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@ GLOBAL DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

Countries and Regions 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 Y-0-Y Changes
B R Rt & 202153H81H | 202043H31H RE

“Lukfook” Shops 75 #5./E

* Mainland 7y 33
* Hong Kong SAR & B BI{TE &2 D)
* Macau SAR 2P RITTEIE 11 42
* Canada 1A 2 0
* The United States 3 4 4
o Australia 2 M 1 0
* Malaysia 5287552 3 A
* Singapore N i 0

Sub-total /\&t

 Mainland A3t

o The Philippines JE2 & 2 0
 Cambodia % 1 0
Sub-total /J\5 1,881 +257

Total #84t 222
Other Brands in Mainland PaithE fth 5 i

* “Goldstyle” +5
o “Dear Q" =

« ‘3D GOLD' (£ EH)

* “Goldstyle”

Worldwide Total 2 k4 i 2,120 +246

1 Mainland: Hereafter refers to as “Mainland” Paih : 1157 2 M Pa
B Hong Kong SAR: Hereafter refers to as “Hong Kong” & &4 RI{THE © TBEBAIEE)
o Macau SAR: Hereafter refers to as “Macau” HPIFFBITTHE @ &4 TR

“LUKFOOK” DISTRIBUTION NETWORK IN MAINLAND | 75481t 0 S5 A8 4%

As at 31 March 2021
%2021E3531H

Total No. of shops [ 48 8¢ 2,212(+224)

| |
Total No. of Licensees &ah# 48 81 604(+98)
Total No. of Provinces 48 27(0)
Total No. of Municipalities & £ 428 4(0)
Total No. of Cities 148 %4 514(+45)

Self-operated Licensed Total |Municipalities/Cities
BEE R E oy H#H/

Tier | —43 54(+16) 598(+315) 652(+331) 16(+11)
Tier Il =48 7(-35) 343(-217) 350(-252) 19(-13)
Tier Il =4 8(-4) 379(+1) 387(-3) 64(-15)
Tier IV & below P04 & U F 8(-10) 815(+158) 823(+148) 419(+62)

Self-operated Licensed Total Provinces | Municipalities Cities
BEE RIS ay & HED i

Northern China 315 & 25(-19) 568(+42) 593(+23) 8(0) 2(0) 160(+9)
Central China ZHE 33(-11) 417(+69) 450(+58) 6(0) 1(0) 132(+10)
Southern China @& 0(0) 689(+59) 689(+59) 40) 0(0) 84(+8)
Eastern China ZRE 19(-3) 344(+52) 363(+49) 40) 1(0) 114(+12)
Western China 7 & 0(0) 17(+35) 117(+38) 5(0) 0(0) 24(+6)

[ Northern China ZEJt& 0 Tierl —#g .

Remarks &F
[ ] Central China FEHE Tierll 43 . “Lukfook” shops only 2 G3E 75481 &
. _ . The percentages refer to the contribution to the total no. of shops in Mainland
[ Southern China @& 0 Tierlll =4 B AREEHHE S R EH S E 2 (5t
. o Fi in brackets refer to the 12-month ch ERANHFT B+ ZER 2216
m Easten China  EHE Tier IV & below  FIAER LT igures in brackets refer to the 12-month changes &3 E2 #
[ Western China ZEFEE



@ OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

=E R

REVENUE AND PROFIT AN

A/
NS

/1

ALYSIS | WA BimF o

Revenue and Segment Profit by Market
HIGES R A B S8R iEF

Revenue and Segment Profit by Business

Sales’ and Gross Profit? by Product
HEBHR D BB AR 3 R F

BRERRSHEE REF?

40.1%
(55.8%)

59.9%
(44.2%)

Segment
Revenue Profit
WA SEbER
Hong Kong, Macau & Overseas
EF#  APIRESH . .
Mainland
e |

-4.1p.p.

-4 AMEE DR

5,310 1,248 23.5%
+7.0% +36.8% +5.1p.p.
+5. BB Bh

Remarks: Comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2020 are shown in brackets

3 HE2020F3A31 BIEFEZ LERAFRIERN BT

RETAIL SALES PERFORMA

Overall 282
Gold & Platinum =5 K& 1%

Fixed Price Jewellery T & &f
Hong Kong & Macau & # B 89
Gold & Platinum = & fH%

Fixed Price Jewellery E{E & &f
Mainland Aith

Gold & Platinum =% K iHA%

Fixed Price Jewellery T & &f

55.9%

14.8%
(69.8%) (32.8%)  30.9%
(23.8%)
56.9%
54.3% (61.2%)
10.7% (43.4%) —_
T1%) 33.4% 53.0%
(23.1%) (52.0%)
Segment
Revenue Profit Sales  Gross Profit
WA SEbER E7
Retailing Gold & Platinum?®
5 H N arng: H B
Wholesaling Fixed Price Jewellery
i . TEEE .

Licensing
hRERS

4,953 818

-36.8%  -54.1% -1.4p.p. 258%  -23.2% +0.7p.p.
A AEEDH +0.71AE D B
2,962 409 13.8% 4,195 1,081 25.8%
+14.2%  +32.1% +1.9p.p. -226%  -35.8% -5.2p.p.
+1.9BEDE -5.2(AE DR
946 719 76.0%
+182%  +27.4% +5.6p.p.
+5.6EE DB

" Sales = Revenue - Licensing Income

THE = — RIFEBWA

Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of
Licensing Income

EF=GREER - REEFUAEF

Gold & Platinum refers to gold & platinum products sold
by weight basing on international market price, i.e. at
non-fixed price

BT RIOSEREBEFETSEREZESHENTER
nEER ENIEEME

==
/=

=<

IHERIR

For the year ended 31 March
EHZE3E31HIEEE

NCE |

-32%

-33%
-33% -29%
-38% -33%
-40% -35%
-35% -31%
-28% -20%
-29% -22%
-26% -17%

Same store sales growth (“SSSG”) represented a comparison of sales of the same “Lukfook” self-operated shop having full day operations in the comparable periods and such data did

not include sales of licensed shops and Mainland’s e-commerce business.
FEHEER (REHERR) AR—E 7B BEERAT BN ETEAEENHERLE AMSBIL A SERRERAMBFEBEBNIHERE



@ FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR E

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE | B1#%IR

HKSM BE BT 2020/218 2019/208 42 BRESME
Revenue WA 11,234 -21.1%
Gross Profit £F) 3,323 -20.8%
Operating Profit £&8& &7 1,156 +7.6%
Profit for the Year €A% 7 868 +17.5%
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders #1575 A FE (55 866 +17.4%
Basic Earnings per Share G i & 2 2 7 HK$1.4878 7T +16.9%
Final Dividend per Share &K K E HK$0.50% 75 +0.0%
Special Dividend per Share® & i%435 51l % £° N/A RE N/A 1 EH
Annual Dividend per Share &2 ER 8 HK$1.00%E 7T +50.0%

Dividend Payout Ratio i 2 tE 2

Gross Margin EF%

Operating Margin 48 A2

Net Margin J##]=

EBITDA* KRetF 8 IRIE T E R H A B A

EBITDA Margin® & 517 8~ I8 ~ 17 & Ko S Al 2 1 2

Total Operating Expenses to Revenue Ratio*
MRS (I A L3R

Effective Tax Rate BEMR =X

67.8% +18.8 p.p. EE DB
29.6% +01 p.p. BEDH
10.3% +3.7 p.p. BEDEH
7.7% +3.8 p.p. EEDE
1,241 +9.1%
11.0% +4.3 p.p. EEDE

18.9% +0.2 p.p. BEDE
20.5% 1.7 pp. BEDE

FY2020/21: Hereafter refers to as “FY2021" 2020/21844F © & B4 2021814

FY2019/20: Hereafter refers to as “FY2020" 2019/20814F : 1 &84 2020814 )

Celebration of the 30th anniversary of the establishment of “Lukfook” B4t 7#@) B 1L = +iEE
Represent non-HKFRS measures 153F& B M H RS 2R T8

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS | FZEBFI51Z

Return on Equity (ROE)* % 58 # 25 [B13R =+
Return on Total Assets® 488 7 [0 $R 5
Current Ratio &L=

8.4% +0.6 p.p. EEDEH
6.2% +0.8 p.p. BB
3.6 +0.4

HK$M B & BT 2021315 202081 &
Inventories 7 & S 1322 7,533
Average Inventory Turnover Days' 15775 /EEH! - a1 401
Closing Inventory Turnover Days? #iK 77 & A% H2 T s 359
Cash and Bank Balances IR K $R1745 6% I 3546 2,714 +30.7%
Bank Borrowings & Gold Loans $B1TEZ R &4 EE 1089 1,513 -28.0%
Net Cash FR% - 2457 1,201 +104.5%
Debt-to-Equity Ratio® £ &1 Hb % o 284% 33.9% 58pp EEDH
0%
S 10%
40

! (Opening Inventory + Closing Inventory) = 2 = Cost of Inventories Sold x Number of Days for the Year
(FE + BREH + 2 + BEFERA X ERB#H

2 Closing Inventory - Cost of Inventories Sold x Number of Days for the Year
HAEE + BEFElAx ERAY

2 (Long-term Liabilities + Current Liabilities) + Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
(REABME + RBBM) + AADRERFE AREERREHE

4 Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company —+ Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
AABEDFEAREER - AR REFEAREERR#E
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company -+ (Long-term Assets + Current Assets)
RABEBFEAREES — (RPEE + RPEE)

Annual Report 2020/21 R 1



CORPORATE PROFILE
XM

Established in 1991, Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is one of the leading jewellery retailers in Hong Kong
and Mainland. The Group principally engages in the sourcing,
designing, wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a
variety of gold and platinum jewellery and gem-set jewellery
products, with a total of over 2,300 points of sale in 10 countries
and regions across Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland, Singapore,
Malaysia, Cambodia, the Philippines, the United States, Canada
and Australia.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in May 1997.

NEEE ER) ARAR ((FA8)) RENEAR MBIAE
M) II1991F  EEBRAMTIEHRETER 2 — &K E
EIBRERERHCaMRKEEHERZRE Rt #Ht
L HRERERTERT EEFRESE RPT A HTM
W FEERPEER  SRIEE  FERE  RE - MEAKOEM 1018
A& H A5 82,3008 S &R

A AT F R B AMA R EHERAT TR LMo

CORPORATE VISION
EXER

The corporate vision of the Group is to be the “Brand of Hong
Kong, Sparkling the World”. This is also our core brand value. The
Group always puts forth maximum effort for “Lukfook” to reach its
goal of becoming a globally recognised and desired brand, and
as one of the Hong Kong’s most renowned brands in the luxury
industry, the Group commits to crafting the finest jewellery for
customers to further establish its reputation in the international
market.

BB EREE DEERNTEERS KRB IZOERF
EE-—ERFIW BOWHE 7B RAEHERNREEN
miE - FREENLESMmE  FEERNAEKBEERHE
HEH UE—PRIUIHERBERTE LNEE-

2 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7548 E (B BRAE



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
FERS

WONG Wai Sheung & &%
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 3 J& T 1T AR &,

Annual Report 2020/21 FE 3R




CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
B

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group” or “We”), | hereby present the Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (“FY2021” or the “Year under
review”).

With the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, the retails sales in
Hong Kong and Macau decreased substantially. The Group’s
total revenue for the Year under review fell by 21.1% over the
corresponding period of last year to HK$8,861,335,000 (2020:
HK$11,233,771,000). With the turnaround gain on gold hedging
and foreign exchange from losses last year, government subsidies
and the improvement in net financial income and operating losses
of associates, the profit attributable to equity holders increased
by 17.4% to HK$1,017,335,000 (2020: HK$866,315,000), with
earnings per share of HK$1.73 (2020: HK$1.48). The board
of directors of the Company proposed a special dividend of
HK$0.50 per share for the celebration of the 30th anniversary of
the establishment of “Lukfook” and a final dividend of HK$0.50
per share, together with the interim and special dividends of
altogether HK$0.50 per share paid in December 2020, the total
dividend for FY2021 amounted to HK$1.50 per share (2020:
HK$1.00 per share). The dividend payout ratio is 86.6% (2020:
67.8%) on a full year basis.

As the effective control of the pandemic contributed to economic
recovery in Mainland, the Group continued to actively pursue
further development in the Mainland market. During the Year
under review, the Group added a net total of 222 “Lukfook”
shops worldwide, including 224 net addition of shops in Mainland
which comprised a net addition of 257 licensed shops and a
net reduction of 33 self-operated shops, and 2 net deduction of
shops overseas. As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a global
network of 2,366 shops (2020: 2,120 shops), including 2,284
“Lukfook” shops (2020: 2,062 shops), with business spanning
across Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland, Singapore, Malaysia,
Cambodia, the Philippines, the United States, Canada and
Australia.

BRER

KANERRANBRER B BRARE (KA
B REWBAR @i IAER) % TFHM)
ENREAEEBHE2021F3831HIEEE
(M20218A FF 1N CIEFE ) 2 2 F &

F0190BRBEREBFET  BREEH
EXEBETFE REBNREIBEEENEWAR
IR EEREREV21.1%%E8,861,335,000%8
70 (20204 : 11,233,771,0007T) - T E=S
R RIINEREFNEFEE AW E  BUTHE
B R BRI G A B A B RS IR S BT
RET EEFBEARBRGERFAIEMI7.4%E
1,017,335,000% 75 ( 20204F : 866,315,000
70) BREBF A1.738 55 (20204 © 1.48%
T cAEBMIANBIRILI=ZTEE ARTE
EEEZRNOERESR0.50E T RARR
&% S & 0.50/8 7T R B iR2020F 125 kT
AR AR E & HE80.508 7T 2021
TEREEGHAE.508E T (2020F : 51K
1.00/870) » 2FIRELEE%86.6% (20204 :
67.8%) ©

Rt E IERESITEANSEME  ZEED
HEBIDIARATIZ RIBEEERN [7NE]
S 2R 82220 » SRR A BI85
2248 B EIEFIBRO5TRI MRS 0 FR
L33 B & S R EINFE R L2 o 12021
F£3831H AEER 2L E2,366/ 5 &
(20204F : 2,120/) » 852,284 17518
[E#H (20204 : 2,062/]) " BRES B~
PO~ FrONIE ~ SR PEE ~ SRIBE  JEEE =
B~ NS A Rz B o

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
B

During the Year under review, due to the low base effect, the
same store sales of the Group for the quarter from January
to March 2021 has a turnaround to a positive growth and the
Group’s business is expected to restore growth in the coming
year. The Group also recorded a satisfactory same store sales
growth for the period from April to the first two weeks of June
2021, with SSSG of around +120% for the Hong Kong and
Macau market and same store sales growth of around +50% for
the Mainland market.

With better border restriction lifting in Macau, the Group will
net add 2 shops in Macau and 1 licensed shop overseas in the
coming year. In view of the anticipated considerable growth of the
middle-class population in Mainland, the Group remains optimistic
about the mid- to long-term business prospects. Therefore, the
Group will focus its expansion in the Mainland market, and expect
to net add 350 shops which will be mainly licensed shops in
fourth-and fifth-tier cities in the new financial year.

Two years ago, the Group has set up its new three-year corporate
strategy with Supply Chain Management, Mainland Market
Expansion and Strategic Growth as its three main focuses so as
to foster its future business growth.

In order to further enhance its competitive edge, the Group
will focus on strengthening supply chain management through
various means to identify right products, set right price and offer
products to market at the right time in order to promote business
development and strengthen operational efficiency.

As Mainland remains to be a market with growth potential in the
mid- to long-term, the Group will continue to focus on business
expansion in Mainland. The target for net addition of “Lukfook”
shops in Mainland in the coming year will be not less than 300
shops, while the target for net addition for new brands’ stores
in Mainland is 50 shops. In addition, the Group is committed to
further developing its e-commerce business and strengthening
cooperation with various e-commerce platforms in Mainland, and
at the same time will also establish its own e-commerce platform,
aiming at a 20% sales growth for e-commerce business for the
upcoming year and will step up its efforts to promote the sales of
affordable luxury jewellery products to expand its footprint in the
young consumer market.

REBEER > AN EESME KEER
2021 F1ESRZEENREHECE2EBAESR
B FEARFERERFERAN -MAER
2021 F4B 5 E2021E6 B () E MBI RS
EBEENEEHEEFARE EPERMEREH
ERENA+120% > AMEEEFHNEEH
EFAIERIA A+50% ©

MICRPIBRBE R SER SAEBRER
GHORPITHIZ R M2 E & > WA E MG -
mhEE - EAMPEAOERRIFHOERT
FEBHNEPREEBI SRS
HERRIBER DA E P A M5 > WA
W — W FIPIERI60fE 58 EES MRS
W E R BRI ©

24 88 (B 54 70 47 A1 8T ST B0 = 4 b 2 5B >
PRI\ [Py BIRR R (SR A 1
EIfEASAE DY » MBhH KB E IR
e

RE—SEATEENRIED ~EERK
AERFERZEEREEHEEEELUESR
BEEM BEEBEER URBERBRD
BHE BUREEFE RN EE Y m

MR RGHRR > AL B REBE DT &
ERNEFEN AMIBREFER - At RE 17
2[5 & B ARF IE R A D BE300M » M kg
BY 5 & B R 18 R A 50/ o 3 5h » AEET
TREENMERERETFEHES MR
HEEBFANGF ARTERILERE
FEHBTE UHEE RSB EFEBES
REER WHENELLHETARNED
HERVHKESH  MRFEHEEN S
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
B

The Group has already adopted multi-brand strategy. Apart from
“Goldstyle” and “Dear Q”, the Group will continue to develop new
brands in the future. During the Year under review, the Group
has established a new product line named “Lukfook Joaillerie”
to target at the high-end jewellery market, and has opened a
total of 3 shop-in-shops in Macau and Mainland in FY2021. In
addition, the Group will adopt holistic approach to penetrate into
the markets for the middle-class, wedding couples and kids by
understanding customers’ spending habits, and attract customers
by visual merchandising enhancement, cross-selling boosting
and VIP promotional activities, as well as mobile applications
and social media platforms. Besides, we will also explore the
enhancement of offline shopping experience and possibility of
cross-over collaboration with other industries or brands. We
believe that customers are increasingly preferring jewellery with
unique design. Following the introduction of the DIY Ordering
Service System (the “DIY System”) in Mainland during the Year
under review, the Group will also launch the DIY System in Hong
Kong, Macau and overseas. Customers may directly choose
polished diamonds and ring mounts via the system to create their
personalised diamond products and enjoy customised service
experience. This bespoke service not only caters to the needs of
customers who are pursuing unique experience, but also helps
the Group to gradually penetrate the high-end jewellery market.

| would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all our staff
members, shareholders, customers, business partners and other
stakeholders for their unfaltering support and contributions to
the Group’s continuing success. Going forward, the Group will
adhere to pragmatic and sound growth measures, strengthen its
competitive advantages and further enhance its leading position
in the market, so as to generate sustainable returns for its
shareholders and set a new benchmark for corporate excellence.

By order of the Board
WONG Wai Sheung

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 June 2021

NEBERND MBS B Goldstyle | &
MDear QMM RRBHRAINBHIEESH
R CIEEEEN  AEMMR T —HERF
MNERERE Ut HSHEHERES TER
202134 FFIBRPI A R B a& 3R JE FR & o Utk
SO EBERTRBRENHEEE XNEE
MRELUBETE - BERZEDS GlNE
iBN5E ZE MR~ X AR FOVIPHEE SRS
FHREBEANMAELIFAURIIBEE-
B B IRERIBAG THEYEER  BH
MITERRBETERSIET ML - IR
AEZOBEEBIRANERE ~EE %
el BB EE N ERIE T TDIYE] B RS R 4%
(TDIV&R#RY) & TMEREE B REINR
TZDIYRGFG -BEEIUEEBEBRRMIESR
R AT sTREMEE R ER . BREA
{EBIRRTS  Br 7 m BB KBS EMNEE N
NEMAREEZS 2ESIHEREHS

AEBFENMD 2RBAMANET KRR
BE EBBANEMSOENRNZFEN
B AAZBLEBRUARLOHE I RE XEH
MEUFERBHNERSBRE  MARFED
E—SPBEAEBN TS LABEM B
P B8 7 2R 55 A (0] 3R R At 32 i TH BY 1 3 B 6 o

AEBEEGm
FERITHARE
HES

&HE - 2021FE6824H

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIREsTim T

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE BRI
am “.“’
4
‘ §=$
Revenue Operating Profit Profit Attributable to
A =gt Equity Holders
HK$8,861M HK$1,244M ESE AEGER
8,861HE AT 1,244 B # 7T HK$1,017M
21.1% +7.6% 1,01788#5T
+17.4%
a
Q- 0
Basic Earnings per Proposed Dividend per Share' Overall Net Shop
Share BREkigR Additions
SREXREF HK$1.00 BERERIE R
HK$1.73 1.007# 7T +246
1.73% 7T
+16.9%

Including a final dividend of HK$0.50 per share and a special dividend of HK$0.50 per share (for celebrating the 30th anniversary of the
establishment of “Lukfook”), together with the interim dividend paid, the annual dividend would be HK$1.50 per share with dividend payout ratio of
86.6%.

BIER AR B G RR0.507 7T K 45 51 IR B & AR0.5078 7T (B 7548 AL =HEF) » ERBIRTHFRERE » 2FHIRR B ER1.508 7T
Tk B L %86.6% ©

Annual Report 2020/21 R 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

vail

SEERE

Results

With the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, the retail sales in Hong
Kong and Macau decreased substantially. The Group therefore
recorded a revenue drop of 21.1% to HK$8,861,335,000
(2020: HK$11,233,771,000) for the Year under review. Gross
profit also decreased by 20.8% to HK$2,632,315,000 (2020:
HK$3,323,020,000). But the steadily declining gold price in the
second half of FY2021 and the strengthening RMB led to a
turnaround gain on gold hedging and net exchange from losses
last year. Together with the government subsidies in response
to the pandemic, operating profit thus increased by 7.6% to
HK$1,244,113,000 (2020: HK$1,155,766,000), while operating
margin increased by 3.7 p.p. to 14.0% (2020: 10.3%). In addition,
the strong cash position led to a substantial improvement in
the net finance income, together with the narrowed share of
losses of associates, net profit therefore rose by 17.5% to
HK$1,019,134,000 (2020: HK$867,652,000), and net margin was
11.5% (2020: 7.7%). Profit attributable to equity holders increased
by 17.4% to HK$1,017,335,000 (2020: HK$866,315,000), basic
earnings per share thus increased by 16.9% to HK$1.73 (2020:
HK$1.48).

E$ 5

2019 R FEBSHRBBLE T BRTEH
ERETE > AEBREEEENRARIL
F21.1%%E8,861,335,0005 75 (20204F :
11,233,771,000% 70) > #8FEF] 75 T B£20.8%E
2,632,315,0007 75 (20204 : 3,323,020,000
BIT) o BN TEFEZFEERA
RN Eg SCESHARER FEREASE
WEEEA WG N EBFREES BN @R
= KE R RAIIEMN7.6%Z2E1,244,113,000
H T (2020F © 1,155,766,00058 7T) » AL 2%
FMELIBI3.7TEE M EE14.0% (20204 :
10.3%) o lb9h RN E S TH  SHHEFW
AKXMBRE > N LRGBS ATEBEEA T
72> S EFH17.5%ZE1,019,134,00078 7T
(20204 : 867,652,000 7T) 7 B HEA11.5%
(2020£F : 7.7%) - R IFE ARG EF A
HHN17.4%%E1,017,335,0007 70 (20204 :
866,315,000 75) » B E AR F A ML N
16.9%ZFE1.7338 7T (20204F : 1.4877T) ©

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEER eSS

Overview

During the Year under review, the Group operated a total of 3
brands under the multi-brand strategy. There was a net addition
of 246 stores that were mainly “Lukfook” shops. During the Year
under review, the Group added a net total of 222 “L.ukfook” shops
worldwide, including 224 shops in Mainland which comprised a
net addition of 257 licensed shops and a net reduction of 33 self-
operated shops, and there was a net reduction of 2 self-operated
shops overseas. As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a global
network of 2,366 shops (2020: 2,120 shops), including 2,284
“Lukfook” shops (2020: 2,062 shops), with business spanning
across Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland, Singapore, Malaysia,
Cambodia, the Philippines, the United States, Canada and
Australia, and operated a total of 80 “Goldstyle” shops (2020: 52
shops) and 2 “Dear Q" shops (2020: 3 shops) in Mainland.

B

REBEEERN T2 MmERIE T XEBEGH
KESE LR FIB R T 246 Ef Hh &
AINB E R EHRRBEEERNRIK
TP IB R0/ - BRI A I 55224 (E P
BIEF I Ro57R AR E » F R/ 33 B E )
K BB oM R /D2 B & R o fR2021 3 H 31
B AEBRR 2Bk E2,366/E & (20204F :
2,120f8) » HAE1352,284R 175181 )5 & (2020
£ 12,062/) BRES B A F0
W EARPEI S E FEEE  EH MEX
B8 LA R 1 e A% & 198081 I Goldstyle J &
#5 (20204 : 52R89) F2f5 M Dear QJfE & (2020
& 3[)

Revenue and Segment Profit by Business

REBR D HIUA RS 88iEF

55.9%
(69.8%)

14.8%

54.3%
10.7% (43.4%)

(71%) -

(32.8%)  30.9%
(23.8%)

-~

33.4%
(23.1%)
Segment
Revenue Profit

WA SRR

Retailing

s H
Wholesaling

8t H

Licensing
cet

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2020 are shown in brackets

5 SRR 420208 FF 2 LEER BT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEER eSS

By Business ML 7529
HK$M B & AT

The retail business was the Group’s primary source of revenue.
As the retail sales in Hong Kong and Macau dropped significantly,
the Group’s total retail revenue decreased by 36.8% year-on-year
to HK$4,953,317,000 (2020: HK$7,839,502,000), accounting for
55.9% (2020: 69.8%) of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment
profit also decreased by 54.1% to HK$195,692,000 (2020:
HK$425,916,000), accounting for 14.8% (2020: 32.8%) of the
total, and its segment profit margin was 4.0% (2020: 5.4%).

Attributable to the increase in the number of licensed shops,
the Group’s wholesaling revenue rose by 14.2% over the
corresponding period last year to HK$2,961,827,000 (2020:
HK$2,593,498,000), accounting for 33.4% (2020: 23.1%) of the
Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit increased by 32.1% to
HK$408,894,000 (2020: HK$309,605,000), accounting for 30.9%
(2020: 23.8%) of the total. Its segment profit margin was 13.8%
(2020: 11.9%).

Revenue | Segment Profit Segment
[/ON 7 EB A Profit Margin

5 8835 K

4,953 195 4.0%
-36.8% -54.1% -1.4p.p.
1AEE DR

2,962 409 13.8%
+14.2% +32.1% +1.9p.p.
+1.98 8 D&

946 719 76.0%
+18.2% +27.4% +5.6p.p.
+5.6E B D

TEXEBARERTZWRARIE AR ER
TEHEABE TS EEETEWRARER
It T F£36.8% 2% 4,953,317,00058 7T ( 20204 :
7,839,502,000/8 7T) » (A EBE AL W AS55.9%
(20204 : 69.8%) ° H & EF) TR E164.1%
105,692,000 75 (20204 : 425,916,000
70) 15 EE214.8% (20204 © 32.8%) » EDEf
R A4.0% (20204 © 5.4%) ©

R & RR TS B BT 18 N - 4 &2 B #it 35 WR A 8K
KEREAEMN T 14.2%%E2,961,827,0005 7T
(20204 : 2,593,498,000/87T) » {E A EE4E
T A B933.4% (20204F : 23.1%) o O EFF)
Bl 1 1132.1% E 408,894,000 7T ( 20204 :
309,605,000 7T) * 1dtE£380.9% (2020 :
23.8%) » HDEmFIE%13.8% (20204 :
11.9%) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R T

During the Year under review, licensing income increased by
18.2% to HK$946,191,000 (2020: HK$800,771,000) due to the
increase in the number of licensed shops as well, accounting
for 10.7% (2020: 7.1%) of the Group’s total revenue. lIts
segment profit margin was 76.0% (2020: 70.4%), while its
segment profit increased by 27.4% to HK$718,683,000 (2020:
HK$563,951,000), accounting for 54.3% (2020: 43.4%) of the
total.

CIEFERN @EEFIWATREREEHE
AN _EFH18.2%E946,191,0005 75 (2020
£ 1800,771,000587T) » hAEBELEW AL
10.7% (20204 : 7.1%) - HDIHEFR2A
76.0% (20204 : 70.4%) > E 5O E % Y
1 NN27.4%%E718,683,000% 7T ( 20204 :
563,951,000/ 7t) » {4 tE%&54.3% (20204 :
43.4%) ©

Sales’ and Gross Profit? by Product

REMBSHHE RERN?

47.0%
(48.0%)

56.9%
(61.2%)

Gold & Platinum?®
HERAS®
Fixed Price Jewellery

EfEE

ms 2

By Product L E

HKSM B & & 7T

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2020 are shown in brackets
5t AR A20200 F 2 LEER# T
! Sales = Revenue — Licensing Income

FHEE =W — mAEEBBA

Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Income

EN=HEEN — REEHIRAETR

3,720
-25.8%

4,195
-22.6%

N

@

HERHEEREERTSERRESHENZTSRPTER BIIFEE

Sales
HE

53.0%
(52.0%)

Sales  Gross Profit

HE =7

Gross Profit Gross Margin

EF] eSS
818 22.0%
-23.2% +0.7p.p.
+0.718 8 7 &

1,081 25.8%
-35.8% -5.2p.p.
S2EE D

Gold & Platinum refers to gold & platinum products sold by weight basing on international market price, i.e. at non-fixed price
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

vail

SEERE

Due to the impact of strong gold price in most of the time
during the Year under review and the drop of retail sales in
Hong Kong and Macau, sales amount of gold and platinum
products decreased by 25.8% to HK$3,720,143,000 (2020:
HK$5,012,405,000), accounting for 47.0% (2020: 48.0%) of the
overall sales amount (Group revenue minus licensing income).
Gross profit of gold and platinum products declined by 23.2%
to HK$818,089,000 (2020: HK$1,065,841,000), accounting for
43.1% (2020: 38.8%) of the overall gross profit (consolidated
gross profit of the Group minus gross profit of licensing
income). Its gross margin was 22.0% (2020: 21.3%). Besides,
sales amount of fixed price jewellery products fell by 22.6% to
HK$4,195,001,000 (2020: HK$5,420,595,000), accounting for
53.0% (2020: 52.0%) of the overall sales amount. Gross margin
of fixed price jewellery products dropped by 5.2 p.p. to 25.8%
(2020: 31.0%) because of increase in revenue mix of wholesale
business which was at relatively lower gross margin. Its gross
profit, as a result, decreased by 35.8% to HK$1,080,964,000
(2020: HK$1,682,722,000), accounting for 56.9% (2020: 61.2%)
of the overall gross profit.

During the Year under review, the overall SSSG of the Group was
-39.9% (2020: -31.5%). SSSG for the Hong Kong and Macau
market and that for the Mainland market were -47.1% (2020:
-33.3%) and -4.7% (2020: -20.2%) respectively. SSSG for gold
and platinum products was -31.9% (2020: -33.2%) and that for
fixed price jewellery products was -50.7% (2020: -29.2%).

The Group has been striving to diversify its product mix to offer
customers with more choices. Since 2010, the Group has been
engaging in the mid- to high-end watch business. As at 31 March
2021, the Group was the authorised dealer of 11 watch brands,
including COINWATCH, DOXA, ENICAR, HAMILTON, LONGINES,
MIDO, OMEGA, RADO, ROMAGO SWISS, TISSOT and
BIUJOUMONTRE. For the Year under review, the watch business
contributed revenue of HK$43,429,000 (2020: HK$99,709,000),
accounting for 0.5% (2020: 0.9%) of the Group’s total revenue
with 56.4% decrease when compared with the same period last
year.

B hiATERAESETLBEERN A
HNEEEERERTEHE VY HIHER
F25.8%%E3,720,143,0005 75 (20204F :
5,012,405,000/87T)  {LhEBHERE (A& EH
WA A R ZEFWA) B947.0% (20204 :
48.0%) - E& MIAEEMREN AR 23.2%
%818,089,00078 75 (20204 : 1,065,841,000
Bro)  MEREN REERGESENREDE
WA EF]) BY43.1% (20204 : 38.8%) °
HEFZEXA22.0% (20205F : 21.3%) 53
S EEEHMERNBEERRL22.6%E
4,195,001,0003 75 (20204F : 5,420,595,000
BrT) BB IHEREMNS3.0% (20204 ¢
52.0%) - EEEMERNENERERN X
B AY HE B 2 FS U A MG EE I h0 M s 20 5. 2@
BANEE25.8% (20204 : 31.0%) » HEF|
X L FP£35.8%ZE 1,080,964,0007 7T (2020
£ 11,682,722,000/87T) * (HEEFEEHN]8956.9%
(20204 : 61.2%) ©

REOEEFERN AEEERREHEEE
#-39.9% (20204 :-31.5%) - &HHEH & HEFT
MHBEURRMTZNEEHEE R R DR
#-47.1% (20204 :-33.3%) &-4.7% (2020
F1-20.2%) c &E® MIHEERNFEHE 1
E£5A-31.9% (20204 :-33.2%) > MEEE &
E B A ZA-50.7% (20204 :-29.2%) ©

NEFE-BHREWEZTLER AETIR
HELEE BQ2010FE AEEHETSIE
TEIRETS > 1R2021F3H31H  AERA111E
PSRNV IR I REEERNERXE
BEEE NS 2 AFBE RE - EEBCK
MEBE - HLIEAR TBEREBEHK IKE
FEFEMN 2k B R E BN A %43,429,000
HIT (20204F © 99,709,000/ 7T) » {h 25 E 42
T A0.5% (20204 : 0.9%) > BB A FFEHALLEL
T #56.4% ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

BUSINESS REVIEW

By Market T35
HK$M B & H T

EH5EIEE

Revenue and Segment Profit by Market
FhiEE 53 B A B 53 BB imF)

40.1%
(55.8%)

5.7%

(29.8%)
94.3%

(70.2%)

59.9%
(44.2%)

Segment
Revenue Profit
KA HEREF
Hong Kong, Macau & Overseas
&% BPIRES . .
Mainland
Pt N

Revenue

WA

3,551
-43.4%

5,310
+7.0%

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2020 are shown in brackets

5 1 FESEANA20208 FE 2 LEEEF

Segment Profit
BaN=iditl

75
-80.6%

1,248
+36.8%

Segment
Profit Margin
5 BB iR

2.1%

-4.1p.p.

AAMEB DR

23.5%
+5.1p.p.
+5 BB DB
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas

&FE - BPIREH

1.3%
(1.1%)
- 7
7.3%
(1.6%)
Revenue
WA

Retailing

ys N
Wholesaling

e H

Licensing
fRhEE .

Revenue Segment
ON : Profit Margin
53 B3 K

, -0.6%
3,245 -19 -26.0% o
-46.8% -107.7% 656%) 4 pmEng:
260 48 64.6% . 441 ?'6%
+159.8% -23.5% (164%) 477 D8
46 46 61.4% :10(2)'8%
-34.6% -33.8% (18.0%) 4 Qﬁgﬁgﬁg
3,551 75 100% P
-43.4% -80.6% (100%) 4 11@35%
954 48 N/A e 2‘1 %
-45.8% -23.5% TER + 5@§'§£¢g

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2020 are shown in brackets

5 SRR 220200 F 2 LE R BT

" Adjusted Wholesaling Revenue = Revenue of Wholesale Business to External Parties + Inter-Segment Wholesale Revenue

AEEREE R AL BT = BIMIL BEZEFEUR A+ 2 BRREIHE SE A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

vail

SEERE

Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas

Hong Kong

According to the statistics on visitor arrivals to Hong Kong
published by the Hong Kong Tourism Board in January 2021,
visitor arrivals from Mainland in 2020 decreased by 93.8%
year-on-year to approximately 2.71 million. According to the
statistics on visitor arrivals to Hong Kong published in April 2021,
Mainland visitors from January to March 2021 decreased by
99.6% year-on-year to approximately 12,000. During the Year
under review, the Group net reduced 2 shops in the Hong Kong
market, and its retail revenue declined substantially by 50.8%
to HK$2,103,657,000 (2020: HK$4,272,284,000) as the border
restrictions have not been lifted. As at 31 March 2021, the Group
operated a total of 47 self-operated shops (2020: 49 shops) in
Hong Kong.

Macau

According to the market figures released by the Macao
Government Tourism Office, per capita spending of Mainland
visitors increased by 22.8% year-on-year in 2020, but Mainland
visitor arrivals to Macau in 2020 decreased by 83% over last year
to 4.75 million. Besides, the number of Mainland visitor arrivals
to Macau from January to March 2021 fell by 31.7% to 1.57
million year-on-year. As the border restrictions have just been
lifted partially and progressively since the end of September 2020,
the Group’s revenue generated from the Macau market also
decreased substantially by 40.4% to HK$933,455,000 (2020:
HK$1,566,144,000) during the Year under review. As at 31 March
2021, the Group had a total of 13 self-operated shops (2020: 11
shops) in Macau.

H#& R R EIN
5%
RIEEBIRIEERBN2021F1 B A2 55758
IREH TS BT ) 2020 BRI IRE
BERLIB8NEL.71EE AR ; MHt2021
FLR N ZhBAREHK T HIEE T 2021
F1REIRBMhBRMIRE LA ER R
99.6%ZEL 2B AR - AEENRCIBFELS
B FER LD ToRES AR RER B
TE YA KIER150.8%ZF2,103,657,00078 7T
(20204F : 4,272,284,00038 7T) © 1202143
B3 AEBRTESERENERHA47HE
EE (20204F @ 49f5) o

BP9

R RPIFRITRE BT RYER RN TS
BIERE ) 2020 2 X ERAMMIRE ALY
HERIEL EF22.8% 0 120204 57 78 A L ik
BREEFHVEIUELTEEB AT B>
2021 1B ESR M EAMRET R AERL
TE31.7% 15788 AX - REIBEFERN"
R R2020598 [EA IR B S B » &
Bk BBEMHEHNWATIKER/D40.4%E
933,455,0003 75 ( 20204F : 1,566,144,0003%
70) o FA202143831 0 » N EEERFIH R
13RI B & E (20204 : 11f) ©
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Overseas

As at 31 March 2021, the Group operated a total of 12 overseas
shops (2020: 14 shops), including self-operated shops of 1 in
Singapore, 2 in Malaysia, 3 in the United States, 2 in Canada and
1 in Australia, as well as 1 licensed shop and 2 licensed shops in
Cambodia and the Philippines respectively.

During the Year under review, retail revenue from the Hong
Kong, Macau and overseas markets decreased by 46.8% to
HK$3,245,173,000 (2020: HK$6,099,642,000), accounting for
36.6% (2020: 54.3%) of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment
loss was HK$19,547,000 (2020: profit of HK$253,864,000),
which accounted for -1.5% (2020: 19.5%) of the total. Its
segment profit margin was -0.6% (2020: 4.2%). On the other
hand, because of the sales of raw material gold, its wholesale
business revenue increased by 159.8% to HK$260,135,000
(2020: HK$100,148,000), accounting for 2.9% (2020: 0.9%)
of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit decreased by
23.5% to HK$48,489,000 (2020: HK$63,374,000), accounting
for 3.7% (2020: 4.9%) of the total revenue, while its segment
profit margin was 18.6% (2020: 63.3%). As the segment profit
of wholesale business included the profit of inter-segment sales
to self-operated shops, if including inter-segment sales in the
denominator, its segment profit margin would be 5.1% (2020:
3.6%). Apart from that, Hong Kong licensing income decreased
by 34.6% to HK$45,726,000 (2020: HK$69,900,000), accounting
for 0.5% (2020: 0.6%) of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment
profit was HK$46,110,000 (2020: HK$69,602,000), accounting
for 3.5% (2020: 5.4%) of the total, and its segment profit margin
was 100.8% (2020: 99.6%).

Overall speaking, revenue from the Hong Kong, Macau and
overseas markets decreased by 43.4% to HK$3,551,034,000
(2020: HK$6,269,690,000) during the Year under review,
accounting for 40.1% (2020: 55.8%) of the Group’s total revenue.
Its segment profit decreased by 80.6% to HK$75,052,000 (2020:
HK$386,840,000), accounting for 5.7% (2020: 29.8%) of the
total, while its segment profit margin was 2.1% (2020: 6.2%).

=

12202193831 H » AEFE AR L Z12/:85h
[E& (20206 © 14R8) » SFE1BAIR IR 2
B B 2R PE g ~ SRR =B ~ 2 (U R INE
AT EMN BE S U ERIEZEMN
FERBDRIRE 1R R @A o

REEFER> FE BFPIREIITENETE
U AR /D 46.8% E3,245,173,0005 7T (2020
& 1 6,099,642,0008 7T)  HEBEFE A
B36.6% (20204 : 54.3%) c HNEEEA
19,547,000 7T (20204 : & F]253,864,000
BIT) (HEEREAN-1.5% (20204 : 19.5%) »
HOIEaHE%A-0.6% (20205 : 4.2%) o5
—FmE EMEEFNBARBEREEM
+F159.8%F 260,135,000 75 ( 20204F :
100,148,0007% 75) » {hE B E U A B92.9%
(2020%F : 0.9%) > E & F] R 123.5%
Z£48,489,0003 70 (20204 : 63,374,000
7o) IEEEREMB.7% (20204F : 4.9%) » HH
TR K 5418.6% (20204 © 63.3%) o
HEXEHEN O EZANEELPEHEERE
ERAE MOt ADIBHEE > I E
FEA51% (20204F : 3.6%) °FRIEASN » &
7B R RS U AT BE34.6% E 45,726,000/ 7T
(20204 : 69,900,000 75) » b & B ZEEE UL
ARI0.5% (20204 : 0.6%) » ENEREFIBA
46,110,0005 75 (20204F : 69,602,00058 7T) *
{HEEHEMIB.5% (20204 : 5.4%) » H D EREF|
E#100.8% (20204F : 99.6%) ©

meEms PEBEEER S &8 B RES
HIZBIW A T #43.4%%E3,551,034,0007 7T
(20204 : 6,269,690,00058 70) * EAEEH
LRI A40.1% (20204 : 55.8%) » H D HF
A BT #£80.6% £ 75,052,0005 75 (2020
£ 1 386,840,000 7T) * (HEEAERY5.7% (2020
& 129.8%)  HDEBiEFEA2.1% (20204 -
6.2%) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

The SSSG for gold and platinum products in the Hong Kong, &#E - EPFIRGIHTHENESRATERZ

Macau and overseas markets was -34.2% (2020: -34.5%), while — [F[EIHE K %-34.2% (20204 :-34.5%) »

that for fixed price jewellery products was -55.7% (2020: -30.0%). M EEEHME R A-55.7% (20204 :
-30.0%) °

Mainland

Palth

32.2%
(35.1%)

17.2%
(18.8%)

28.9%
(27.0%)

53.9%
(54.2%)

. 50.9%
16.9% (50.2%)
(14.7%)
Segment
Revenue Profit
KA S EBEF]

Rgeéailing . .
ngtglesaling .

Licensing

LLES

Revenue Segment Profit Segment
WA B EF] Profit Margin
e HIEE

12.6%

1,708 215 +2.7p.p
- (o) 9 . . :
1.8% +25.1% +2.7TEE D
(o)
2,702 360 +31 is :
0, 9 . By
+8.4% +46.4% +3AEE D
900 673 +77‘11; Z)
0, 9 - By
+23.2% +36.1% +7 BB
5,310 1,248 +52:13§Z)
0, 9 : Br
+7.0% +36.8% +51EE D
0,
3,079' 360 +ej 61'>p7 s’
(o) 9 . Bt
+2.4% +46.4% +3.5E ” 2L

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2020 are shown in brackets

5 SRR 220200 F 2 LE R BT

' Adjusted Wholesaling Revenue = Revenue of Wholesale Business to External Parties + Inter-Segment Wholesale Revenue
B BHR WA = HIMEBEFTWRA+ D EERZERA
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Mainland

During the Year under review, despite the decrease of the
number of self-operated shops, with effective pandemic control
in Mainland and overseas travel restriction which helped to
stimulate domestic consumption, retail revenue from the Mainland
market decreased by 1.8% only to HK$1,708,144,000 (2020:
HK$1,739,860,000), accounting for 19.3% (2020: 15.5%) of
the Group’s total revenue. Benefiting from the closures of some
loss-making shops, its segment profit increased by 25.1% to
HK$215,239,000 (2020: HK$172,052,000), accounting for
16.3% (2020: 13.3%) of the total. Its segment profit margin was
12.6% (2020: 9.9%). The SSSG for gold and platinum products
in Mainland was -2.1% (2020: -21.5%) and that for fixed price
jewellery products was -9.4% (2020: -17.2%).

Due to an increase in the number of licensed shops, revenue of
the wholesale business in the Mainland market rose by 8.4% to
HK$2,701,692,000 (2020: HK$2,493,350,000), which accounted
for 30.5% (2020: 22.2%) of the Group’s total revenue. Because
of effective cost control and the increase in VAT refund due
to increased diamond imports, its segment profit increased
by 46.4% to HK$360,405,000 (2020: HK$246,231,000),
accounting for 27.2% (2020: 18.9%) of the total. Its segment
profit margin was 13.3% (2020: 9.9%). As the segment profit
of wholesale business included the profit of inter-segment sales
to self-operated shops, if including inter-segment sales in the
denominator, its segment profit margin would be 11.7% (2020:
8.2%).

Licensing income in the Mainland market rose by 23.2% to
HK$900,465,000 (2020: HK$730,871,000) as a result of
the increase in the number of licensed shops, accounting
for 10.2% (2020: 6.5%) of the Group’s total revenue. Its
segment profit increased by 36.1% to HK$672,573,000 (2020:
HK$494,349,000), accounting for 50.8% (2020: 38.0%) of the
total, and its segment profit margin was 74.7% (2020: 67.6%).

Paith

REBEEERN BEBEEHE R ERH
BB LB A 0 e SN IR R 5 7R A B
FEEMHE AMZERARTERI.8%E
1,708,144,0003# 7T ( 20204F : 1,739,860,000
BrT) HEEERZWAN19.3% (20204F :
15.5%) » S ER O EEEHNBEE  Ho
=R F B _EFH25.1%ZE 215,239,000 7T (2020
£ 172,052,000 70) » (5 EERY16.3% (2020
F 113.3%)  EDEEFZEA12.6% (2020
F:09%) cRMEERINEERZRIEHE
WEA-21% (20204 :-21.5%) > MEBE
7 mAVE A-9.4% (20204 -17.2%) °

REEHBEEMS A IS EEFIW
A _EF8.4%ZFE2,701,692,0005 75 (20204 :
2,493,350,00078 7t) » {5 B B FE IR A BY30.5%
(2020% : 22.2%) » E93 20 &H B R B M
B AS R B (A8 A A O _E A g e g ER
IR _EFH46.4%E 360,405,000 75 ( 2020
IF 1 246,231,000%7T) * {HEEAEMN27.2% (2020
F:18.9%) » HDEEHE£13.3% (2020
F19.9%) cHRHMEXBEN S EMNES
DEBHEEEBEENFIE WPt AD
ERREIHE > D EEAMES11.7% (2020%F :
8.2%) °

A EEEBBARREESEEIEMm
+EF23.2%%F900,465,000 7T ( 20204 :
730,871,000/ 7T) » HEEEB U AN
10.2% (20204 : 6.5%) » AN HF A
672,573,000 75 (20204F : 494,349,000
70) » FHIEA36.1% > (5 E B8 #950.8% (20204 :
38.0%) » EDEEMEAT4.7% (20204 :
67.6%) °
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Mainland distribution network

Shop number of different brands

s E

20214F

31 March
2021

Py ith 73 55 A4S

31 March
2020
20204F

3831H

3H31H

“Lukfook” Self-operated 110 -33
AR aEE
Licensed 1,878 +257
mmhRE
Sub-total 1,988 +224
it
“Goldstyle” Self-operated 3 +5
BEE
Licensed 49 +23
el
Sub-total 52 +28
INEE
“Dear Q” Self-operated 3 -1
B
“3D-GOLD” Self-operated 3 -3
€9 BEE
Total Self-operated 119 -32
Y BEE
Licensed 1,927 +280
MRS
Total 2,046 +248
ECE

With the adoption of multi-brand strategy, the Group has
developed the popular product collections of “Goldstyle” and
“Dear Q" into independent brands since May 2019. During the
Year under review, the Group operated a total of 80 “Goldstyle”
(2020: 52 Shops) and 2 “Dear Q" (2020: 3 Shops) individual
shops in Mainland. Apart from that, the Group reported a net
increase of 257 “Lukfook” licensed shops (2020: 264 shops) and
a net reduction of 33 “Lukfook” self-operated shops (2020: net
reduction of 31 shops) in Mainland. As at 31 March 2021, the
Group had a total of 2,212 shops (2020: 1,988 shops) under the
“Lukfook” brand name in Mainland, including 77 self-operated
shops (2020: 110 shops) and 2,135 licensed shops (2020: 1,878
shops).

FEMIFND BIEERES > R2019FE58 1 #F
HPIERZY M Goldstyle | ~ [Dear Q2 ERL
I ThER o B REE B > A BT Y A
80 Goldstyle ] (20204 : 52f8) &2/ Dear
Q. (20204 : 3f8) BILfE#H o BRIL 2 9h » TRF
HER T 257/ 7B RhRE (20205 : 264f)
K3 033 NN BB B &S (20204 @ 3R,
D31RE) o 7A2021FE3H31H » AREBFE ALY
(718 LR A& B 5 S 4R 852,212/ (2020
£ 11,088 - BIF7TTRIBEE (20204 : 110
RS) 522,135 WARSE (20204 : 1,878F5) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the Year under review, the overall same store sales growth
of “Lukfook” licensed shops in Mainland was +8.0% (2020:
-11.8%), while the same store sales growth for its gold and fixed
price jewellery products were +11.9% (2020: -14.5%) and +1.5%
(2020: -4.6%) respectively.

REREFER > A7 SRR S
EFIEA+8.0% (20204 :-11.8%) »MEE
SREEBEHERNEEHEAEI DA
+11.9% (20204F :-14.5%) Kz+1.5% (20204 :
-4.6%) °

FY2021 Mainland E-commerce Business Performance

2021 B E M EFEEEFRR

‘ Revenue
WA

1 +34.2% Y-0-Y Change #E£1L

‘ Contribution to Mainland
Retail Revenue'

Rt EERA
49.5% (2020 : 36.2%)

’ Contribution to Group’s

Retail Revenue'
HERTEKRA"
17.1% (2020 : 8.0%)

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2020 are shown in brackets
5 | ESERA20208 2 LEER# T
T Sales of self-operated shops and e-commerce business
BEEREFEHBHER
2 ASP included value-added tax (VAT)
THEBOIBER

Revenue of e-commerce business from Mainland increased by
34.2% to HK$846,112,000 (2020: HK$630,281,000) during the
Year under review, accounting for 49.5% (2020: 36.2%) of the
retail revenue in Mainland. Sales of gold and platinum products
accounted for 78.0% (2020: 77.3%) of its sales mix while sales
of fixed price jewellery products accounted for 22.0% (2020:
22.7%).

Overall speaking, during the Year under review, revenue from the
Mainland market increased by 7.0% to HK$5,310,301,000 (2020:
HK$4,964,081,000), accounting for 59.9% (2020: 44.2%) of the
Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit increased by 36.8%
to HK$1,248,217,000 (2020: HK$912,632,000), accounting for
94.3% (2020: 70.2%) of the total, and its segment profit margin
was 23.5% (2020: 18.4%).

20%

‘ Average Selling Price?
FHOEE
RMBA K #1,3005T
170.0% Y-0-Y Change #2F £15

‘ FY2022 Revenue Growth Target
20220t F IR AL R B R

Sales by product
SHEMNERDES

Gold & Platinum
HERIAE

Fixed Price Jewellery

EREH

AMBFEFES W ARLDBEEER
EF34.2%%E846,112,0005 75 (20204 :
630,281,000/ 7T) > 1 I Z & A BY49.5%
(20204 : 36.2%) - HE & MiAEE M
E15EEA78.0% (20204 @ 77.3%) » THEE
HEI5 LRI 222.0% (20204 : 22.7%) ©

BEms REEFEER R E RIS
AMEAN7.0%%E5,310,301,0005 75 (20204 :
4,964,081,000/87T) » A E B4R W A59.9%
(20204F : 44.2%) o EE0a%] 8138 1036.8%
%£1,248,217,00058 75 (20204 : 912,632,000
70) » 1hEEREHI94.3% (20204F 1 70.2%) » H 5
=R A K 423.5% (20204 © 18.4%) ©
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Financial Impact in relation to Investments and
Operating Activities in HKRH* & Its Subsidiaries

Gain/(Loss)

RERERER'REMBARNIRER
EEEHIMEBRE

HK$M FY2021 FY2020
BEET 202184 & 202084 &

50% share of loss of associate
B A B150%E5 18 S Rk

Valuation gain on convertible bond

BJRESGEST

Impairment provision on amount due from HKRH

FERE BE RIER RSN ERE

Wholesale gross profit

2 EF]

Loss on a financial guarantee contract

MHEREMNER

Interest income on working capital loan

MEEE G B WA

Interest income on convertible bond and amount due
from HKRH
AARES MEWRES BB RZERREBEFR] E WA

Overall

e

During the Year under review, the loss of an associate of the
Group narrowed, while taking into account the other losses
arising from its parent company, HKRH, the total loss in
relation to investments and operating activities in HKRH & its
subsidiaries remained flattish at HK$38,000,000 (2020: loss of
HK$38,000,000).

# HKRH represents Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock
Code: 2882) which conducts jewellery retail and franchise businesses under
the brand name of “3D-GOLD” in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland.

(43) 21

(38) -

REOEFER AEEREARNEIRA
Fri % > st R EB AR ERERZERM
MEMER REAERERKEWES
ABRWNBREREEEZHNAERAFTFR
38,000,00078 7t (20204F : 38,000,000/ 705
18) -

¢ BEARERARSEERZRARAR RHK

5% 1 2882)  MEBVRFIRAMGEUTEES ) &
B EHRE R E R ER-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Non-HKFRS Financial Measure

To supplement the consolidated results of the Group prepared in
accordance with HKFRS, certain non-HKFRS financial measures,
EBITDA, EBITDA margin and total operating expenses to
revenue ratio have been presented in this report. The Company’s
management believes that such non-HKFRS financial measures
provide investors with clearer view on the Group’s financial
results, and with useful supplementary information to assess the
performance of the Group’s strategic operations by excluding
the impact of certain non-cash items. Nevertheless, the use of
this non-HKFRS financial measure has limitations as an analytical
tool. These unaudited non-HKFRS financial measures should be
considered in addition to, not as a substitute for, analysis of the
Company’s financial performance prepared in accordance with
HKFRS. In addition, these non-HKFRS financial measures may be
defined differently from similar terms used by other companies.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s cash and bank balances
amounted to HK$3,546,000,000 (2020: HK$2,714,000,000). Net
cash was HK$2,457,000,000 (2020: HK$1,201,000,000). The
debt-to-equity ratio was 28.1% (2020: 33.9%), being the ratio of
total liabilities of HK$3,188,000,000 (2020: HK$3,513,000,000)
against total shareholders’ equity of HK$11,325,000,000 (2020:
HK$10,372,000,000). As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s banking
facilities amounted to HK$3.9 billion (2020: HK$4.3 billion), of
which HK$1.1 billion (2020: HK$1.5 billion) has been utilised. The
Group’s income and expenditure streams are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

FERMBHREENMBHE
HERAERERBEEBYBREERNRR
NiRaXE FERMBREERMBHE
REtH B MRIE T ERHBERI A A~ R5HH]
B MENTERBHAENRNBEEHA
SERALRERAREAZI - ARFE
BRERE ZFEBMBREENMBHE
RREERTEFWMNAERMBEE I
REERANBERER  BRMFETIFRE
HENRE SHEAERRBEEN KRR R
m: ERZIFEBMBREERM B EF
B/OMTAFERRME - ILREBZIEER
MBBRSENM B ERNERRESEY
BRSENREO QDM BRED T
FEMIFBRFTE LI ILTEIFFRBM B RS
ZHIMFHAENERPIEREM AT AL
BLEHERBRAE -

MHEERUEER

2021438310 » ZEB IR & M IRTTLE R
#3,546,000,00058 7T (20204F : 2,714,000,000
HBIT) o BIREA2,457,000,000% 75 (2020
£ 11,201,000,0008 ) » BEEHELLEA
28.1% (20204 : 33.9%) > LT iR EE
3,188,000,0007 75 (20204 : 3,513,000,000
o) IEE IR 4EEE11,325,000,00078 7T
(2020 : 10,372,000,000570) Z EEHIEHHE o
20214388310 AEEBIRITEEEES
39.0fE78 7T (20204 : 43.0f2%7T) » E411.0
BATT (20205  15.0FE ) KO & E
Bz EEEELETYE
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Inventory

=8

Inventory Turnover Days (By Product)

FEREAR(UERESD)

Average Inventory

Turnover Days

IGE1=E 4

FY2021
2021B44E

Gold

BE

Fixed Price Jewellery
EEEH

Overall

bt

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s inventory further decreased to
HK$7,322,000,000 (2020: HK$7,533,000,000). However, as the
decline was smaller than the drop in sales, the average inventory
turnover days grew to 451 days (2020: 401 days) with the
average inventory turnover days of gold products being 344 days
(2020: 274 days) and that of fixed price jewellery products being
544 days (2020: 527 days).

The inventory turnover days calculated basing on closing
inventory were 444 days (2020: 359 days) with the closing
inventory turnover days of gold products being 351 days (2020:
249 days) and that of fixed price jewellery products being 527
days (2020: 469 days).

Capital Expenditure

During the Year under review, the Group’s capital expenditures
amounted to approximately HK$243,000,000 (2020:
HK$392,000,000), including the costs of properties, leasehold
lands, land use rights, leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures
and equipment.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s total capital commitments
amounted to HK$37,000,000 (2020: HK$11,000,000).

Y-0-Y
Changes
BES(

+70

+17

+50

Closing Inventory

HREFEE

Y-0-Y
Changes
BEBL

2021814

+102

+58

+85

R2021463831H  AEBMNEFEEE—FT B
%7,322,000,0007 75 (20204 : 7,533,000,000
B o BERPABREENREERE FHUEE
B HEILIE451H (20204 1 401H) » Hef
BeEmZFHFTEREBEA3448 (2020
F274H) T EEMERZFHEEREH
A A544H (20204 : 527H) ©

MUK EFEEFE2BE R A4448
(20204 : 359H)  E =S ERNIAERE
ERAEBA%A351H (20204 © 249H) * F
EBENMERZREFEREAHE]A527H
(20204 : 469H) °

k2

REBEEFERN FEBEARZOR
243,000,000 75 (20204 : 392,000,000
) BEYE-AEL M LHEHAE EE
MERAE R BEKRREAA

A&
2021538310 *EBHOVE R KIEBERRD
37,000,000 7 (20204 : 11,000,00047T) ©
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Contingent Liabilities and Guarantee

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had corporate financial
guarantee amounting to HK$1,075,000,000 (2020:
HK$1,075,000,000) to banks in respect of 50% of the aggregated
amount of banking facilities granted to an associate. As at 31
March 2021, the banking facilities utilised by the associate was
HK$1,486,000,000 (2020: HK$1,678,000,000).

As at 31 March 2021, a loss allowance of HK$20,000,000
estimated under the expected credit loss model in respect of such
corporate financial guarantee of the Group was recognised (2020:
Nil).

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, save as disclosed above, the
Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

Human Capital Policy

As at 31 March 2021, the number of employees of the Group was
5,900 (2020: 6,500). The management reviews and examines
the remuneration policies on a regular basis to ensure that fair
rewards and compensation are provided to our employees.
Remuneration packages are determined with reference to
comparable market rates while bonuses and other rewards are
linked to the performances of the Group and the employees. This
policy aims to motivate employees with monetary incentives to
work together to enhance the Group’s business performance.

FABERIER

202138310 AEE @ — M E A
B ZIRTMELIEZ50% B BERTEA
AT B #5HE171,075,000,0007 75 ( 20204 -
1,075,000,00077T) ° 2202143831 H » %
e AB B8 AIRTTRIE1,486,000,0007 7T
(20204 : 1,678,000,000 %) ©

2021438310 RIBEEIHEEBEENMG
o RBSBAEERZ AT HFEFRNEER
20,000,000% 7t (20204 : ##) ©

12021 %2020%F3831H » If FXXIREEZE 4
AEFETEEARAGE

ANEFHE

F2202183831H » AEBEMNE T A#%5,900
A (2020%F : 6,500A) - EEEEHRET ME
IZE BN SR > IUFE R 23 B TIRE A T
HE - FNFENDKEEBROTHEKFEERE
EoMCARAEMZEREAERRES R
N LR EEUSREE - SEBETH
NERRANEBEFRRITWEIZ
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During the Year under review, due to the low base effect, the
same store sales of the Group for the quarter from January
to March 2021 has a turnaround to a positive growth and the
Group’s business is expected to restore growth in the coming
year. The Group also recorded a satisfactory same store sales
growth for the period from April to the first two weeks of June
2021, with SSSG of around +120% for the Hong Kong and
Macau market and same store sales growth of around +50% for
the Mainland market.

With better border restriction lifting in Macau, the Group will
net add 2 shops in Macau and 1 overseas licensed shop in the
coming year. In view of the anticipated considerable growth of the
middle-class population in Mainland, the Group remains optimistic
about the mid- to long-term business prospects. Therefore, the
Group will focus its expansion in the Mainland market, and expect
to net add 350 shops which will be mainly licensed shops in
fourth- and fifth-tier cities in the new financial year.

2021 F1ESEZENFEHEELZEEES
R —FERBEBRRBERA -MA
EER2021F4B D E2021FE6 8 1 E MBIR
BREEENREHEAE AP EBRHMER
EIHER ELAA+120% N2 E S i E
|5 85 & F 18R 49 25+50% ©

MICRPIBRBE R SER SAEBRER
GHORPITHIZ R M2 E & > WA E MG -
mhEE - EAMPEAOERRIFHOERT
FEBHNEPREEBI SRS
HERRIBER DA E P A M5 > WA
W — W FIPIERI60fE 58 EES MRS
W E R BRI ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRSO

Strategic Growth
RERMIER

To
Reach a
New Height
BREEE

Mainland Market Expansion Supply Chain Management
Pyt im R R HEEEEE

Two years ago, the Group has set up its new three-year corporate  Z<EB R M EFI 5] L F A = F KL L
strategy with Supply Chain Management, Mainland Market — [{tfESEEIE| ~ M IZIHE] K TR E1E

Expansion and Strategic Growth as its three main focuses so as I EA = KE L UBIEEEBEFHEHREL
to foster its future business growth. BE-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRSO

Right Product
BEEm

Supply Chain

$ Management Z
HEEEIE
Right Price Right Time
EEER EE R

Supply Chain Management HAEREIE

In order to further enhance its competitive edge, the Group will ZAE—SREAAEEMNFIES > KERK
focus on strengthening supply chain management through various I E R IR LR B E(HEE B IR c K&
means. The Group will revamp its supply chain management, RBEMREHERSE UNMHEEEEE
and identify right product, set right price and offer products LE#T2BEE - AHEEELREZEES B
to market at the right time by implementing full automation, {tREEEN NSEFEEL EHEEFEL
big data management and full integration in supply chain E{B& & EESALRA 1%~ KBRS 9 8 M2 R Nsa ¥
management; improving factory productivity; improving inventory iR FUBHREBEER BEEEE
turnover period; establishing strategic partnership with suppliers; &> R B E R @A TS E » AL FIE
streamlining logistics on distribution and intensifying support to 7R R INRE BN o

licensees, with a hope that all these would help promote business

development and strengthen operational efficiency.
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Mainland Market Expansion

As Mainland remains to be a market with growth potential in
the mid- to long-term, the Group will continue to focus on
business expansion in Mainland. The target for net addition of
“Lukfook” shops in Mainland in the coming year will be not less
than 300 shops, mainly focuses on opening licensed shops
in fourth- and fifth-tier cities, while the target for net addition
of new brands’ stores in Mainland is 50 shops. In addition,
the Group is committed to further developing its e-commerce
business and strengthening cooperation with various e-commerce
platforms in Mainland, and at the same time will also establish
its own e-commerce platform, aiming at a 20% sales growth
of e-commerce business for the upcoming year. In light of the
enormous spending potential of young consumers on online sales
platforms, the Group will step up its efforts to promote the sales of
affordable luxury jewellery products to expand its footprint in the
young consumer market.

Strategic Growth

The Group has already adopted multi-brand strategy. Apart from
“Goldstyle” and “Dear Q”, the Group will continue to develop new
brands in the future. During the Year under review, the Group has
also established a new product line named “Lukfook Joaillerie”
to target at the high-end jewellery market, and has opened a
total of 3 shop-in-shops in Macau and Mainland in FY2021. In
addition, the Group will adopt holistic approach to penetrate into
the markets for the middle-class, wedding couples and kids by
understanding customers’ spending habits. It will also continue
to attract customers and encourage local consumption by visual
merchandising enhancement, cross-selling boosting and VIP
promotional activities, so as to improve sales and profits. Given
the importance of social media in product promotion, the Group
will continue to showcase and promote its products on mobile
applications and social media platforms such as Facebook and
WeChat, etc. Besides, we will also explore the enhancement
of offline shopping experience and possibility of cross-over
collaboration with other industries or brands. Furthermore, we
believe that customers are increasingly preferring jewellery with
unique design. Following the introduction of the DIY Ordering
Service System (the “DIY System”) in Mainland in the Year under
review, the Group will also launch the DIY System in Hong
Kong, Macau and overseas. Customers may directly choose
polished diamonds and ring mounts via the system to create their
personalised diamond products and enjoy customised service
experience. This bespoke service not only caters to the needs
of customers who are pursuing unique experience, but also
increases the sales amount and average selling price of high-
end and high-quality diamond products and achieves the cost-
effectiveness of mass customisation, which helps the Group to
gradually penetrate the high-end jewellery market.

Pt IS iR

R RG> AL RS REB DR &
ERNEF IR AMIBRER - At RE 75
BIEEHERFERF A LDIS00E T 2%
SRS PO~ T AR T FA R AR R T o T 72 7 am 8 25
75 E » BRI A8 R0 & ° 5 5
FEENERNSEAMBELEREFEHX
%o RREBETENEE RFRGRIL
BEREFEBTa TUBFEHFEHBHEE
RN DR FER - BERFEHEENME L
HETAHEREERED ~EER#
BRNEIEERIKEEH ZHE > LA
REEHEEMTS

RERMHER

AEBERNZ @R BT Goldstyle ] &
MDear QLU KRG NI FHREZH &
e RIBRFEM IRFIR T @B mEs o It
EmQEEZHHBHKEDS LB H12021
BA 0 R PY Fe P ith HE R BRI IS S o b 5h
FEBTEBEBRTHBESTHIHERE K
EEMERELZBETE - BEREETSF
Ry & M R B 058 E PR Y ~ X AR SHAVIP
WELE RIIBEE HHELHEHE LIRS
HEMA B BERNHREEEERKEENE
SRBE AEBREBUFHEAEINE
AR TaUEEMMES ETERET
REBF TERREFAR THBYE
B BEMITENRBETERGIER MR-
BE HMAISEZEOBEEBEHRFIVEK
B AEE@EN OIS EREARELTDIYET
ERFT RS (DIYRME) B TRRIEB R
FIRBINRIZDIYR M - AR LU EZE B
AEWERA AT STREMENERE
o BE BB ACRIARTS » BR T m B B KR
BOBREIN TRABKASHEBELER
ISR A FHEFEUERAEERIAIMN
Yo B AERZES 2B mKET S
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In order to consistently align with the branding theme of “Love
is Beauty”, the Group has built a welcoming and warm-hearted
brand image to strengthen customers’ emotional attachment
to the brand, and has strived to become a globally recognised
jewellery brand through outstanding marketing campaigns and
excellent customer service programmes.

To raise brand image and strengthen customers’ awareness of
the brand, we continued to join hands with Lukfook Jewellery’s
global brand ambassador, Mr. Li Yi Feng, to bring more trendy
jewellery to create a romantic interpretation of stylish jewellery and
celebrate the sparkle moments of love.

Adhering to the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality
Services and Customer Orientation”, the Group acts in the
customers’ best interests in our operational management, and
is meticulous from product design, quality assurance to sales
services. To tie in with our “Six Heartfelt Services” culture, we
are dedicated to fulfiling customers’ need with a caring heart
and offering sincere quality services, aiming to provide the most
enjoyable shopping experience for customers.

Meanwhile, we also extend the concept of “love” to our
employees. We strive to promote a caring culture and create a
friendly and harmonious working atmosphere. We treat employees
as our family members and care for their physical and mental well-
being in order to enhance their sense of belonging and foster a
corporate culture of Lukfook Family.

AU

PEBZUEHMEHERR NREEEETE
AEE-HEBHEBNTRERRSHNER
ERFEHE > BURVIRMBI @R > M58
BEHRENERESR BOIBIMBSEINED
HIBYEREE mhE o

BT RBPMBTERRIMRBEEH @R
o HPIEERNEREERNEAFTZES
THTFHRESHRHGE HERERE T K
BHARARBMS —EERE BT -

FETELBE BRBEAE - UFTR/EINE
o e ES LAEREDBETRaSE R
RERR  BEREZEARBERBE—HT
B WRAKXERRORBINRE > By
THREERE RURHEERHNRT 5
RLB—UBABEENHIRKE

HIEFEE AR 2B SEREE TE
> BB ERE X e R EMBHN I
RH WARETUHRMNRKERE—H HER
S O MR8 TREBR e/
BAKENBEXE-

S ]

LUKFOOK JEWELLERY

To Emplayess
HEI (
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BRANDING
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Targeting the mid- to high-end markets in Mainland, Hong Kong,
Macau and overseas, the Group has adopted comprehensive
marketing strategies, launched diversified product offerings with
exquisite designs, together with meticulous services to seize the
development opportunities in the middle-class, wedding and kids
markets.

HEPBERESINPEREETS  2EERNEENTS
WERE BEREE 2N ERES KEEE IR
%o DUME R E VEGHR FHHH RN ERKE

To cope with our market positioning, we have endeavoured
to further penetrate the middle-class market through various
channels. Nowadays, running marathon has become one of
the most popular sports among the middle-class in pursuit of
a healthy lifestyle. Therefore, the Group sponsored medals for
the Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai, Wuhan and Guangzhou
marathons to honour more than 624,500 marathon finishers over
the years, with a view to boosting brand awareness and seizing
the business opportunities from the middle-class market.

As the middle-class increasingly pursues personalised
customisation, the Group launched the “Diamond In Your Style
Customised Service” to keep pace with the prevailing trend
towards personalisation. This exclusive bespoke service uses new
ideas instead of traditional sales mode. Customers can select their
favourite diamond and mount on the online system, and view the
multi-perspective rendering of the finished product in real time.
Moreover, the product also comes with an exclusive packaging
box and engraved plaque, making it even more meaningful and
commemorative.

REEAERNTHEEM RMIBRNBBTRAREE—TLE
qﬂJ’zﬁiiﬁofﬁé\%EFﬁALX{L@i/ﬁﬁﬂb ﬁﬁ%?ﬂ RRZ
FEREAENES 2 — FHit xEBEFRBBENES -
IR BB FUE R EMNE RIS AR 2R A 1B 18624,60011 5T B B
FRE > FRREAGREISBAE  IEPERSHRIEHE -

FREE B B BB SR E A BT & » AREE#EH T Diamond In Your
Style IME 1 Z AR > WD SR MEACHEE - HETRAR
B ERNEARHEERE EREUNE LR2FELSE
A RMT FrlREERREAERRE A ERE
EHESBEEERFRZ TR I ASHEENLCSEE.
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In response to the middle-class customers’ demand for trendy
diamond jewellery, we continued to introduce the latest “Love is
Beauty” Collection of sparkling diamond jewellery which features
the heart design and “Shining Diamond Setting” to interpret our
branding concept of “Love is Beauty”. In addition, the Group
also added story elements to products. We introduced the
“Grain” Collection whose pronunciation is similar to “Good Luck”
in Cantonese and “Encouragement” in Mandarin, and we have
also engaged Mr. Li Yi Feng to show the love-infused “Black
Pineapple” necklace, whose pronunciation is similar to “loving
you” in Cantonese, evoking emotional resonance with customers
successfully.

Nowadays jewellery is no longer just for women. The Group
unveiled the brand new “F-style Hey Cool” Collection and “F-style
Pt in Style” Collection to reach out to the middle-class customers.
Black electroplating finishing blends in the “F-style Hey Cool”
Collection with innovative craftsmanship, which not only retains
the advantage of gold jewellery as a good store of value, but
also puts a fresh new twist on gold jewellery, exuding the
wearer’s individuality and style. The “F-style Pt in Style” Collection
combines black electroplating and black enameling to accentuate
men’s masculinity and chic taste.

RHMEREZREBRE BN NEBEGEHESL Love is
Beauty2R& 2 EMEMD O R RAMEEM ZH
I LUEH) TTRPIEETE) T2 TSR > i T2R ) B mAR#EE
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According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Civil Affairs
of the People’s Republic of China, there were approximately 8
million pairs of newlyweds in 2020. In order to seize this valuable
business opportunity of the wedding market, during the Year
under review, the Group has participated in wedding expos
in Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Chengdu, Wuhan and Hangzhou
with all-round brand promotions in print, outdoor and online
advertisements as well as the official publicity channels of different
wedding expos to increase brand exposure and enhance the
brand awareness in the wedding market. At the same time, we
also held “Share Love in Wedding” roadshow, with wedding-
theme decoration which has turned the event venue into a
“Wedding Cathedral”, and attracted the attention of customers.

To meet the increasing consumer demand in the wedding market,
Lukfook Jewellery incorporated the symbolic numbers “5”, “20”,
“13”, “1” and “4”, which together denotes the meaning of “I love
you for a lifetime” in Chinese, into a portfolio of stylish wedding
jewellery products and caring services. In order to cater for the
demand for wedding jewellery, we introduced the “Light of Love”
18K gold diamond ring. We use light with shadow effect to project
“1314”, “| @ U”, “520” or other special symbols in the specially
designed gift box to create a unique statement of lifelong love. In
traditional Chinese culture, people like to purchase gold jewellery
for gifts. The Group has launched the “Beloved” Collection of gold
wedding jewellery, integrating the traditional Chinese wedding
culture into trendy gold jewellery designs.

In response to the implementation of the two-child policy in
Mainland and the rising demand in the kids market, apart from the
“Hugging Family” Collection, our latest products of Rilakkuma™
Collection offers an exquisite selection of three-dimensional
accessories crafted with different techniques and designed with
lively, sweet details.

Baby accessories have always been one of the most popular
gold products in the market. To drive strategic growth, the Group
unveiled a new series of gold baby accessories, adding a joyful
vibe to the gold colour. Auspicious accessories that invoke
the blessings for peace, safety and health come in the
exquisitely designed gift boxes, making them the best
choice for gifts to express the elderly’s good wishes and
love for babies or personal use.
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MULTI-BRAND/LINE STRATEGY

In light of customers’ growing demand for diversified products,
the Group introduces multiple product lines and brands in
accordance with the market changes to cater for different tastes
of customers, which would also increase our market share,
enhance our competitiveness and further strengthen our leading
position.

LUKFOOK JOAILLERIE

With the increasing purchasing power, customers are looking for
high-quality stylish products that can reflect their personal taste.
Therefore, we opened Lukfook Joaillerie in Xiamen and Kunming
during the Year under review, targeting the high-end market.
Lukfook Joaillerie features a diversified selection of high-end
jewellery and award-winning jewellery masterpieces, aiming to
provide superb products for customers.

GOLDSTYLE

The trendy “Goldstyle” is crafted with innovative techniques to
double the hardness of gold and provides the style effects of karat
gold. This collection not only retains the advantage of gold as a
good store of value, but also puts a new twist on gold jewellery,
adding on-trend sparkle to customers.

DEAR Q

The products of Dear Q incorporate creativity and playfulness,
allowing customers to mix and match the charms for their unique
styling. We offered nearly 200 designs of 18K gold diamond
charms and also launched limited-edition charms for various
festivals to cater for the ever-changing customer preferences.
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With a strategic initiative to increase brand awareness and
secure our market share in Mainland and Hong Kong, the Group
continued to strengthen the connection between love and beauty,
which is in line with our branding theme of “Love is Beauty”.

The Group actively capitalised on different promotional channels,
such as public relations activities, advertising and various kinds of
sponsorships, to enhance our brand visibility. We also captured
the rapid growth of online marketing by placing advertisements on
major social media platforms and search engines, and promoted
our products via live broadcast platforms, influential we-media
accounts, KOLs and other popular new media platforms.

As the Group’s anniversary this year fell on the day of Double
Seventh Festival, we invited Mr. Li Yi Feng, Lukfook Jewellery’s
global brand ambassador, to show up and interact with audience
at the live-streaming event, which recorded over 12 million views
that effectively enhanced brand visibility and created hot topics.
At the same time, we also cooperated with a total of nearly 120
KOLs on four major platforms including Bilibili, Xiaohongshu,
Weibo and Douyin, driving our online exposure to a new height,
so as to raise Lukfook’s brand awareness among young
consumers. Besides, the Group held the “Love for More, Bling
for More” new product launch event in Shanghai to celebrate
the sparkling beauty of love with Mr. Li Yi Feng. The event was
simultaneously live-streamed on both Lukfook Jewellery’s official
Weibo and Tmall flagship store, which recorded over 10 million
views. Meanwhile, we established “Love for More, Bling for More”
pop-up stores in various areas and interacted with customers via
lucky draw mystery box to boost brand awareness and create
hot topics. During the Chinese New Year, the Group teamed
up with AliPay again to participate in the “Chinese New Year
Five Auspicious Cards Campaign” event with renowned brands
through promotion on open platform, which realised brand
exposure of 150 million viewers, rapid traffic growth and improved
interactions with customers, greatly enhancing the brand
penetration.
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Riding on the wave of e-sports and animation comics booms in
recent years, the Group has continued to be appointed as the
official partner for the “King Pro League” champion rings for eight
consecutive seasons, with a view to strengthening our penetration
into the millennial generation as their purchasing power is trending
upwards, stepping up brand publicity, and enhancing our brand
penetration into the market of younger generation.

The Group is committed to striving for excellence in product
design, craftsmanship and quality, and bringing diverse elements
into our products to create a wide range of jewellery products with
ingenious designs and exquisite craftsmanship.

The Group has brought forth innovation to cater for the needs
of different customer groups. Apart from designing products, we
also developed “a Physical Gold Ornament and an Electroforming
Method” which has been granted an “Invention Patent” by the
China National Intellectual Property Administration. This physical
gold ornament has combined the advantages of different gold
ornaments in the market. Our unique electroforming technology
creates stunning texture appeal like heavy solid gold, and
overcomes the limitations of traditional electroformed gold
ornaments which are soft and easily deformed. The Group has
created the “Melody of Love Collection of Crystal Ball Music Box”
with this patented technology, underling its competitive edge in
the market. The Collection comes with different physical gold
ornaments to celebrate every memorable moment.

Our professional jewellery design team is the fashion-conscious
trendsetter. They have also actively taken part in various local and
international jewellery design competitions, and have won more
than 200 awards up to now. During the Year under review, the
Group’s design piece “Freedom and Bondage” won the “Best of
Show Award (Open Group)”’ and “Craftsmanship and Technology
Award” in the “21st Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition”.
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During the Year under review, the Group’s continuous efforts in
brand building have been recognised with the following awards
and accolades from the industry and market, which included:

- “Hong Kong Service Awards — Quality Living Category
(Jewellery and Gold)” for fourteen consecutive years

- Ms. Nancy Wong, Executive Director and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer, named “Young Entrepreneur of the Year”
in JNA Awards 2020

- Honouree of “Outstanding Enterprise of the Year — APAC” in
JNA Awards 2020
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The Group puts emphasis on quality control and authentication
to enhance consumers’ confidence, and is meticulous from
procurement to authentication. In 1996, China Gems Laboratory
Limited (“CGL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, was
established for the purpose of providing services including
authentication and grading of diamonds, authentication of jadeite
jade and coloured gemstones, and quality assessment for
jewellery. The laboratory is operated by a group of experienced
and certified gemologists specialising in authentication of
gemstones and jadeite jade.

In addition, the Group set up Victoria Gemological Institute
Limited, which principally engaged in jewellery authentication
and professional training. With branch offices established in
Mainland, the institute provides services for the jewellery sector
and customers. The institute has passed the ISO/IEC 17025
accreditation of the ANSI-ASQ National Accreditation Board
(ANAB) and the accreditation of the International Laboratory
Accreditation Cooperation (ILAC), and is authorised to issue
internationally recognised reports for diamond grading, jadeite
jade, ruby, sapphire and emerald testing.

Besides, the Group also collaborated with the National Gemstone
Testing Center and became one of the first jewellery brands
to launch e-certificate, making joint efforts to provide quality
assurance for consumers and protect the interests of consumers.

The Group also cooperated with the De Beers Group Institute of
Diamond to provide a report for Hearts & Arrows diamond sold
at our shops, so as to give customers a more comprehensive
understanding of the diamond products purchased.

Lukfook’s cultivation of a warm-hearted brand image would
not be successful without a commitment to service excellence.
Adhering to the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality
Services and Customer Orientation”, we act in the customers’
best interests in our operational management. In line with the
branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, the Group has introduced
the “Delivering the Beauty of Love with Six Heartfelt Services”
excellent customer service programme to fulfil customers’
needs with a caring heart and offer quality, sincere services to
customers, with a view to providing the most enjoyable shopping
experience for customers and relaying the culture of Six Heartfelt
Services to each customer all over the world.
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To tie in with our fashionable and warm-hearted brand image,
our shops have applied soft champagne gold tone, and added
curvy lines to showcases at storefronts to create an elegant and
romantic ambience. Glass elements are widely used at shops to
create a more spacious feeling and impressive displays, so as to
make customers feel at home.

The shops introduce the innovative space design to create
a corridor-style shopping area where customers can stroll to
appreciate and select jewellery. The shops also provide an
independent area where customers can enjoy one-to-one service
and tailored advice offered by our staff. Besides, the Group
has established the Member Zone at shops for our privileged
members to enjoy special offers, leisure space and caring
services, aiming to deliver unparalleled shopping experience to
customers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Purpose of This Report

We hereby publish the fifth Environmental, Social and Governance
(‘ESG”) Report (“this Report”) of the Group to all stakeholders.
The purpose of this Report is to let stakeholders understand
the Group’s sustainable development strategies, guidelines
and performance in the past financial year, so as to improve
the transparency of the Group’s information disclosure. For
information on corporate governance of the Group, please refer to
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this Annual
Report.

Report Year and Scope

Unless otherwise stated, this Report covers the reporting
period of FY2021 (“Reporting Period”), and covers the business
operations of the Group’s offices, factories, showrooms and self-
operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland. There were
no significant changes in the scope of this Report from that of
FY2020 ESG Report published by the Group. The contents of
this Report are derived from the official system documents of the
Group, statistical reports or relevant public information.

Reporting Standard

This Report complies with the “comply or explain” provisions
of the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the “ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and contains all
disclosures as recommended in the Guide. This Report includes
a content index to the ESG Reporting Guide to enhance its
readability.

Reporting Principles

In the preparation process, the Group adhered to the “reporting
principles” stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock
Exchange: materiality, quantitative and consistency. Please refer to
the table below for details.
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Materiality
BEEM

Quantitative

Eft

Consistency

—Eft

Publication Interval, Version of and Access to This

Report

This Report is part of the Group’s annual report available in
both Chinese and English versions. It is accessible on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Group’s website at lukfook.com.

Meaning
BB

The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process
to identify and the criteria for the selection
of material ESG factors; (ii) if a stakeholder
engagement is conducted, a description of
significant stakeholders identified, and the
process and results of the issuer’s stakeholder
engagement.
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Information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools used,
and source of conversion factors used, for the
reporting of emissions/energy consumption
(where applicable) should be disclosed.
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The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any
changes to the methods or KPIs used (if any), or
any other relevant factors affecting a meaningful
comparison.
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Response of the Group

FEEIEE

The Group identifies current major
sustainability issues through stakeholder
engagement. In this process, internal
and external factors are considered.
For example, we regularly conduct
assessments of material issues and
communicate with stakeholders to
identify important issues related to
sustainable development. For details,
please refer to the section headed
“Important Issues”.
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The notes to the data list set out
the standards and methods used in
calculating the data (where applicable).
BRI KM IRt EHBER AN
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The Group has compared current and
past key performance indicators and
information (if applicable) in different
areas so that stakeholders can gauge
its performance by year-over-year
comparison.
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Your Feedback

Your valuable opinions on the content and format of this Report
and our sustainable development performance will help us
continue to improve. Please contact us by email at ir@lukfook.
com.

Our Mission

The Group always puts its greatest effort to implementing
the following corporate missions in order to contribute to the
shareholders, customers, employees and contribute to the
community:

° To add value to shareholders’ investment, maintain a steady
and sustained business growth in profit

° To provide value-added products and attentive services to
its customers

° To provide its employees with a professional development
environment and grow together to achieve corporate goals

° To contribute to the community through enforcing the
communications with public and participating in charity
events

Corporate values
Practicality: Advocating a pragmatic and realistic way of doing
business

Innovation: Continuous learning and strive for change as well as
innovations

Integration: Build a harmonious corporation both internally and
externally, put the overall interests as the first priority and seek
common ground while reserving differences

Excellence: Demonstrate full commitment, quest for excellence
and continuous improvement, endeavor to be the best

Corporate Management Philosophy

People Focus: Respect the individual values of employees, trust in
their abilities, and believe that employees are valuable corporate
assets

Value for Harmony: Build a harmonious internal and external
working environment

Focus on Results: Advocate high efficiency and effectiveness,
pursue professionalism and dedication
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Product and Service Quality

EmkEBaE

Ms. Nancy Wong, Executive Director and Deputy
Chief Executive Officer, as a Recipient of “Young
Entrepreneur of the Year” in JNA Awards 2020
S ITE S REITTEAR R =M /A E20205F
EINAKEMER BT FEERKEY

“Hong Kong Service Awards — Quality Living WA
Category (Jewellery and Gold)” awarded by East T
Week Magazine for fourteen consecutive years
EEAFRE(RBTI) BB EEBRBEAE—
BHAEER GREETT)

T T

Recognised as “Consumer Caring
Company” by the GS1 Hong Kong
for eight consecutive years

BEN\FTEEBERnGESHE RS
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“Freedom and Bondage”, the Group’s jewellery design piece,
won the “Best of Show Award (Open Group)” and “Craftsmanship
and Technology Award” in the “21st Hong Kong Jewellery Design
Competition”
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The “Generations” (orooch and earrings) won the Cultural Totem Award of
37§ Open Group at Chuk Kam Jewellery Design Competition 2020 organised
by the Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association
E@ImA BT B REIR) REAREERCIREMERTENDN
B E MR 5T LEE2020% 15 A B4R b B g 4215

Mr. Tse Moon Chuen, Deputy Chairman and Deputy General Manager (middle) and Ms. Joanna
Shum, Awardee (right)
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The “White Sandalwood and Red Walls” (bracelets and earrings)
won the Wangu Hongye Award of Open Group at Chuk Kam
Jewellery Design Competition 2020 organised by the Hong Kong
Jewellers” & Goldsmiths” Association

EmMAIEME (FAERER) RNEAROERSREMERS
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Mr. Tse Moon Chuen, Deputy Chairman and Deputy General Manager (right) on behalf Ve
of Ms. Daisy Wang, Awardee

Bl EEREREER 2AE(E)RAR BRI EXXE/NE

The “Fascinating” (earrings and alternative jewellery) and the “Henna” (ring
and shoulder necklace) won the Ancient Law and Modern Use Award of
Open Group and the Cultural Totem Award of Fashionable 18K Group at
Chuk Kam Jewellery Design Competition 2020 organised by the Hong
Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association

fEmEEirx) (BRRSEEM) KMERNRE RIEREBEER) 7©
BEEROERTIREMEDTENNE S B0 R 5t LEE2020 15 A5
HEESRREBE R HKEAXCERERE

I

Mr. Tse Moon Chuen, Deputy Chairman and Deputy General Manager (middle) and Ms. Kit Chan,
Awardee (right)

Bl = 7 3R Bl AR S IR i 22 ST A () RIS R R sHBM BRIE 2/ VB ()

The “Connection” (headwear and earrings) won the Ancient Law

and Modern Use Award of Fashionable 18K Group at Chuk Kam
Jewellery Design Competition 2020 organised by the Hong Kong
Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association

EmIE) CER R EIR) REBG A TR G E=m g R/ IN
EEE MR 5 LEE2020E SR EKE AT A5 ARIE

Mr. Tse Moon Chuen, Deputy Chairman and Deputy General Manager (left) and Ms.
Ma\/\s Yeung, Awardee (Middle)
Bl T EREESESRETE (A) REGERAGEE/NE ()

Environmental Protection

IRIE fREE

UK FOOK GROUP

Lee Fook Diamond & Jewellery (GuangZhou) Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Group, was awarded the logo of “Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner
Production Partners (Manufacturing)” for the fourth time after passing the audit
of the logo scheme of “Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production Partners”
jointly organised by the Environmental Protection Department and the
Department of Industry and Information Technology of Guangdong Province
BERRRFREBLEERE LEMNGEECRESRMNEREREE
BHIRSE B AERE T 2 ENFEECEMARAS S
EREBRIEHFTRFEEBMH ®IEHE) 1IES

N iR

Annual Report 2020/21 3R



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IR e

RERRE

Corporate Governance and Citizenship

EEEBRARTEE

Recognised as “Caring Company” by the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service for 11 consecutive
years

EENFESBHERBHEI R EHRERR
Bitx

> HAPPY B 2 %

o e of Sl S
NRENENEREE

Named as a “Happy Company” for 7
consecutive years under the “Happiness at
Work” promotional scheme

compAn I EECER B TR B S
syears HAMLEE)

Recognised as “Good MPF Employer”

by the Mandatory Provident Fund

Schemes Authority 2019.20

HERBRHIEATESHEERB RS s

BYTH 2 o f ) 525F _/AGGod MPF Employer

Became a signatory of the “Good Employer Charter” again,

and was awarded the Certificate of the Good Employer Charter,
reaffirming its achievements in adopting employee-oriented
measures and implementing good human resource management
e practices

HERA(FRINE)SEWE TEBRFRERFINERE B
b 41 AEEREBREAURBERD RABTREANEREER
M EZRERR

/fﬁf LT

MM ) R
ﬂ mrmm.pmmmunum

Recognised as a “QF Star Employer”
under the “Quialifications Framework”
Scheme again
HEZTABEREREISTEZ2IQFE4R
EE KBRS
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OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

P W’@
(&)
s

With reference to the risks faced
by our industry peers, adopt
PESTLE' and SWOT? analysis to

identify possible material risks to :
the basis.

sustainable development.
S2EREDHENRR > 1EB
PESTLE' R&SWOT* A #fris B #5 &
ARETERFELERERRE

B o

Sustainability Governance

The Group continues to improve its ESG management system,
clearly defines the division of responsibilities from management
level to administration level, and ensures that the ESG philosophy
is integrated into its strategic planning and operational decision-
making processes in a more effective way. The Board bears
the ultimate accountability in the supervision of ESG works,
and assesses and manages material ESG related matters. To
demonstrate its emphasis on the performance in and reporting
on sustainable development, the Board, starting from FY2020,
independently reviews the annual ESG report at Board meeting.

SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

LSALS

Review all 17 United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals
("SDGs") and select 5 of them

related to the Group’s business as _ 2 1R E RS R 5EAERIESDGS » &I
ﬁ% 7B S Bl R FHEE R A

® (TSDGs) ) MEHEH5SE
SREREFARNVERESE

£23 B :SEIEES =k

FRRBE

Develop four key sustainable
development areas on the basis of
risks and 5 related SDGs.

EPEERE P FHE S RESE o

AFEERER

FEEFETSRE HERELAEERER
FREAEEENTEENEED T BER
RIE-HERERTL ,_\%ﬁxﬁli&ﬂ)\m%%ﬁ
BEBEERARBREZF -BEFTREEE

B HEREARTIENRKER %WEEZ%EE
EANRE - HEREAFE AERHT
FELERIFRERERNER EFTN
2020 FRIMEEFEGAT  BUBRF
ERE - HERER/RS

! PESTLE analysis model mainly analyses six macro-environmental factors, including political, economic, sociological, technological,

environmental and legal factors faced by the Group

PESTLED TR T ZUAEBEH N AKRRRIRERREON > AP EEEUA &K 18 Kl RIEROERRR

2 SWOT analysis model helps to identify the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats of the Group

SWOTHD IR B UAEBNEDS  HZ B REBEDF
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Risk management is regarded as an integral part of daily
management and sound corporate governance by the Group.
The economy, industry, regulations and operating conditions
are constantly evolving along the line of a cutthroat business
landscape. The risk management mechanism can facilitate
the Group to assess and minimise risks that may hinder us
from achieving our business goals. Benchmarking on the risks
faced by international peers, the Group analyses its potential
risks, assesses and identifies the risks and opportunities related
to environmental, social and governance issues and reviews
the corresponding impacts. Prior to formulation of corporate
strategy each year, the Group also uses PESTLE and SWOT
analysis models to conduct a macro analysis and set appropriate
corporate strategies and goals based on the environmental,
social and governance factors faced by the Group. We have
formulated environmental, social and governance-related control
measures, which have already been effective, to deal with major
environmental, social and governance risks. Combined with the
sound internal control, these measures help to continuously
identify, evaluate, optimise, manage and monitor the risks faced
by the Group in the course of its operations.

Through the risk management committee, the board of directors
acknowledge the ESG-related risks. The Group also reviews
each registered risk and the implementation progress of the
corresponding mitigation measures quarterly, and evaluates the
progress of all corporate strategies, goals and key performance
indicators every six months. For details of our risk management
approach, please refer to the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report”.

Aiming to share the responsibility for achieving a sustainable
future among the globe, the SDGs were set up by the United
Nations in 2015. As a socially responsible company, sustainability
is the cornerstone of the Group’s business operations. We are
devoted to expand the development of our jewellery business.
Meanwhile, we also strive to undertake the environmental and
social responsibility, promote environmental protection, contribute
to the society, incorporate the caring culture in our business, and
create value for stakeholders and society. The Group always puts
its greatest effort to reach the expectations of the customers,
employees and shareholders and brings a positive impact to
the society. The Group actively identified and managed potential
sustainable development risks that were material to the Group,
and basing on 17 SDGs and the Group’s business, 5 goals were
selected as the basis to develop 4 key sustainable development
areas: (1) craft inheritance and innovation, (2) sustainable
jewellery and responsible sourcing, (3) people empowerment,
and (4) community care. This strategy provided a unified and
comprehensive framework that allowed us to set goals to improve
our sustainability performance in operations and business plans.

AEERAGEEAHTEEREL2LXE
BT ER—Z D o BN N 1TE AR
REER A ERme ENEBHIRIERRE R
o REEERG TR AERETEREE
BRI SEF B R M E IR EF B IERN AR o &
EEREBEEERREMES AR TEAER
BENREMFETREECHRIE - HERE
AEEEENERAKBTESTHEE T
REEHE B FERIEA  UPESTLEARSWOTS
MR REAEEERHNIRE - HERER
HNEZ UETHBRE2 M ARELEEN
TEFRLEE - BAFTRE - HEREA
RN ERER UWEHERIRE - HEAE
AR MZEEGIEEE N EF - EaTE
BIPERIES] > Z BB A B IS BT ~ 51
BE-EEREEFAEEESEBRETEBEN
B

EXCEBAREELZEENTERIIRE
HEREANEMEAR AEBTRESFE
BEREEECRARKEBEEHRANITE
B g+ FRlBEMAEERE  BIRKREHE
BRERERNERBR BEERMAARE
BRZENFR FEREEREARE —Hc

B EBEIN20165F 2 TSDGs» B ZHEH =
KHEBAZEERIFERRNEEFR—
XEEHEEENEE AIFBERELE
EEBEENEL -RAERDBRREE
BERNRER  TRIGAZIRREE ST
EFIRF CETE URHREXERAZE
%o mFHENHLERISEEE - RARNER
BE BTRRRERMOMAEN DL ES
RIEERIFE - it A S BRI 5 IR
HAEEMSEANETAUFEERAR
2% T17{ESDCs R RIFERERBER T8
RIEHSEBERERER  EMmtl €N EEE:
RS REAE ((1)EBR T B IEEEAIH
QP FAETEE e BERE QAT HAER(4)
HEHE EREEH‘R-—ER—MEZENIE
RBHMAKREE R BRATEERFEHE
HENAFEERRKRR
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5 SDGs were selected by the Group as bases:

The 4 key sustainable development areas established by the

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE

o

o

12 RESPONSIBLE
CONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION

EEEHSESDGsERERE

13 iomor

CO| | &P

17 PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS

Group include:

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
ANDINFRASTRUCTURE

o

12 RESPONSIBLE
CONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION

QO

17 PARTNERSHIPS
FORTHE GOALS

&

DECENT WORK AND

ECONOMIC GROWTH

17 PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS

&

Key area EZ54E1H
Inherit the exquisite craftsmanship, integrate
innovative technology design, and achieve
the success of jewellery from generation to
generation
FEBEELDTE @&
BT MIE 5T > AR

AEBFIENMEER D FEERALEE

12 RESPONSIBLE
CONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION

QO

Key area EZ54E1E

Commit to combating climate change,
reducing resource use, protecting the
environment, and promoting a sustainable
supply chain

BOESREEE > B

BRER > RERE

13 v

2 4

AR ERE Sustainable BRI RHE e R
Jewellery and
Responsible
Sourcing
LISy 0%
HARERE
The Legacy of
Sustainable Development
IEARAT L B {EERAR IR
People
Empowerment
AFEREE Key area S4Bl
Commit to
creating an ideal
Key area EE5%EIH working environment,
Actively participate advocating a culture of equality, DESEATAURCAD

in community activities,

care for the community, and
shoulder social responsibility
B2t EES) 0 S
BEHEEE

diversity and inclusiveness, and
empowering employees with career
development opportunities
:ﬁlijﬁ’ffiuIVFiaiﬁ  IRIBTE
Heiqt EEtAtEIHﬁ%?’fE%%ﬁ

o

17 PARTNERSHIPS
FORTHE GOALS

&
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Stakeholder Engagement

HRE2H

The Group attaches great importance to staying in regular HSEBEREFNECHRFHE-THE
contact with stakeholders. In our daily operations, we establish ZEH > RFIFBSZREHEZNEEIRH
good relationships with stakeholders through multiple channels. BIRA1% c EAIT M ERCHI BB RN K
Regular communication with stakeholders enables us to respond ~ FFEIE RETE1EMNEE R W RHET 5

to changing needs and expectations in a timely manner, and to ¥ EBF k> tMEMRMAEIHEERE A &

follow the pace of market development, which helps us effectively
manage risks and seize opportunities to create value for our
stakeholders.

BERE RFMHERIEEE

Regular Communication BRIBE
Major Stakeholder Category Major Communication Channel Frequency
FERFEER FEBERE 67BN
Customers and Community e Direct Communication e All the time
BEERHE BHiEAR REFETT
e Social Network e |rregularly
HREE REH
e Press Release e |rregularly
S FEHA
Employees e Employee Performance Appraisal e Annually
BT Interview SFE
BITHEMNEZEN
e  Meeting ® Irregularly
g FEHA
e Feedback Mailbox e QOpen all the time
[RE&EHE REAFA
e Employee Activity e |rregularly
BIEF) N HA
Licensees e Licensees Meeting ® |rregularly
anh& AR EHA
e  (On-site Visit e |rregularly
St RE HA
¢ Direct Communication ® Irregularly
BiEAR REHA

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]
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Major Stakeholder Category
FEFHEER

Suppliers
HEER

Investors and Shareholders

REERRR

Major Communication Channel

FEBERE

Supplier Meeting
HEEEE®
Tendering

Bz

On-site Visit
IR

Exhibition

REE

Direct Communication
ERES

Annual General Meeting

e VN

Annual Report/Interim Report
F3R PR E

Investor Conference
BEEGE

Press Release/Announcement
L SN

Direct Communication
BHiEAaR

Frequency
67BN
e |rregularly
FEHA
e |rregularly
REH
® Irregularly
R EHA
e |rregularly
FEHA
e |rregularly
REH
e Annually
BEE
e Annually/semi-annual
SEEHEE
* |rregularly
REHA
® |rregularly
FEHA
e |rregularly
RE HA
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Materiality Assessment
Materiality assessment helps us properly assess issues that EEM T EHBRMAZSHTGFMEESR
stakeholders valued and have a significant impact on the BHAEBEMNEENLRBEEATENS
operation and development of the Group. In order to effectively 8o A B M EIB M ERE IR EHETIFMD
manage and report on issues that have a significant impact on our E¥HNBEEAEEZMZEE > HARE LT OE
business and stakeholders, we conduct a materiality assessment & B i&E178E 245114 ¢

basing on the following four steps:

Step 1
SE—

Step 2
SBR=

Step 3
TR=

Step 4
$HMm

Identify related issues

5 B AR R 5 R

Collect stakeholder
feedback
W EE 51 & [ 8R

Identify material issues

B EE S

Confirm material issues

EREZRE

m]#ﬁtt

EEMFE

Based on the results of stakeholder communication activities in the
past, industry trends and the ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock
Exchange, the Group identified 26 issues that are most relevant to the
Group’s business and its impact, covering the three major areas of
“Economy”, “Environment” and “Society”. These issues were used as
the basis for this stakeholder communication.
RIEBFFHEBRIDNGER EABDRMIAIRE T E R
ERIMEIES ) NEEH HEARER XH R HETLERRY)
TERAREERE ,uﬁrﬁ%,ﬁj NRIBIMM S = KEE - WL ERE
RIFH E BB AR

We invited internal and external stakeholders from Hong Kong, Macau
and the Mainland to participate in an online questionnaire survey and
to score these 26 issues.

HPIEFERETHE RFIRAMBI A S R INEFH &2 EE RS
FBE > BLZ26IHE R ETT D ©

In the materiality assessment, each issue was assessed for materiality
from the perspective of internal and external stakeholders. Based on
the analysis of the questionnaire survey results, a materiality matrix
was developed and 16 material issues were drawn.
AEEMTE SEZEEENBRIIEBEFNEAETEER
Mo iRBEHEHREERDN GIELHEEZMERE  WSH16IEEE
FHid o

The senior management of the Group discussed the materiality
assessment results and materiality matrix, and confirmed the 16
material issues in this Report, and disclosed relevant issues in the
Report.

rEENSREEEENEEN T EERREE M BEBEL TR
TR E1CEREERE TERSPEMIREERRE-
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Issues Considered

21,

26.

Relatively high
Bne

Importance to stakeholders*
HEPENEE NS

Relatively low

BIE

Air Emissions

BERBEIK

The Risks of Climate
Change
RIZEEH R

. Occupational Health and
Safety
HERRREZE

Product Assurance and
Quality
EnEEREE
Community Investment
HEEE

Business Expansion
EBBE

o/

8

Waste
BEEY)

Green Procurement

HERE

. Staff Development and

Training
BT ERRIE

. Customer Services

BER%

. Craft

I

Materiality matrix

o

23.

EEMHIEME

o/
O

Carbon Emissions and
Energy
BB R BE TR

O 00|0

Importance to the operational continuity and development of the business”

ﬁﬁ?‘zm#mﬁg *u%@miglﬁ,\

LY L

Relatively high
BE

EREENEE

4,

Environmental Risks in the 9.

Supply Chain
HAESE R IR IR R IR

Employment Compliance 14.

EEERE

Intellectual Property
Rights Management
M EREE
Product Design and
Creativity
EmRsTRAIR

The importance to stakeholders is determined basing on the scores made
by the external stakeholders according to the impact of important issues on
society/environment and its connection with the Group.

The importance to the operational continuity and development of the
business is determined basing on the scores made by the internal
stakeholders according to the likelihood of impact of and potential impact
of the relevant issues on the continued operation and development of the

Group’s business.

19.

24.

Water Resources 5. Packaging Materials
KER Consumption
BEMRIEE
Staff Welfare 10. Equal Opportunity,
BERH Diversity and Anti-
discrimination
TEHE 2o RIEX
=
Ethical Sourcing 15. Transparency and
JETBIREE Traceability of Raw
Materials
BRI EBREM A8
A
Marketing and Advertising 20. Anti-corruption
TISHEERES k&5
Data Protection and 25. Economic Performance
Network Security A RIS
R RERERES

HEMENERUETINSFHNEREZRERN T
g/ RIBNFZERE AN AEBNBEMETORE

Eo

HEBNRHEEENERNEZUHRABFMHE
BN AEEEBNREZENS REENDIAE
MREEZEREFRETOERE
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The vertical axis of the materiality matrix is “Importance to
stakeholders” and the horizontal axis is “Importance to the
operational continuity and development of the business”. Issues
lie within the upper right quadrant in the matrix are considered to
be the most important.

Important issues
Based on the above analysis, the 16 most important issues to our
stakeholders and the Group identified by us and summarised in
key sustainable development areas are as follows:

16.

17.

18.

19.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Product Assurance and
Quality
EmihakEE
Customer Services
BEE RS

Intellectual Property Rights
Management
MBEEEE
Marketing and Advertising
mSEERES

Craft

TZ

Product Design and
Creativity
Em&sTREIR

Data Protection and
Network Security
HiEREAEEL S
Economic Performance
KRR

Business Expansion

EER

Sustainable Jewellery and

Responsible Sourcing
RN E R RERE

14. Ethical Sourcing
BERE

EEMEENEHSTHRNENEET &
HA ST HEBNTEEENSERNEET
Eha ERRFIRIDRR S RERZEE

EERE

RT3 A > FPIs Bl tH I ER A S AL )
BEZRAGHFNEREERMERRE
REV16TEZEBU T ¢

People Empowerment

A7 ERAE
9. Staff Welfare
BE=H

10. Equal Opportunity, Diversity
and Anti-discrimination
TEHE L RIER

11.  Occupational Health and
Safety
BERRRZSD

12. Staff Development and
Training
BTEEREN

13. Employment Compliance
BESHRE

20. Anti-corruption
R&5
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As a leading brand in the industry with a long history, the
Group has always been ingenious, insisting on using the most
exquisite craftsmanship, the best design, the highest quality
raw materials, and the most sophisticated technology to create
jewellery products that exceed customer expectations. We attach
importance to the inheritance of craftsmanship and product
innovation, as well as product quality and service quality. We
are committed to implementing the brand promotion theme of
“Love is Beauty” and practicing the principle of “Brand of Hong
Kong, Sparkling the World”. We comply with applicable laws
and regulations related to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy of products and services, as well as international
and industry standards when we are providing products and
services, including but not limited to the Product Quality Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests, the
Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Patent Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Advertisement Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Trade Descriptions Ordinance,
the Trade Marks Ordinance, the Registered Designs Ordinance,
of Hong Kong, the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the
Broadcasting Ordinance and the TV Advertising Code, etc. During
the Reporting Period, there was no major non-compliance case
concerning breaches of relevant laws and regulations related to
product liability.

ERELBANTEXRERE ~EE—H
BEEL BRARBENIZ REFH
Rt REBENRME  RISIIRIRII 78
HBEERPAENHKEER RAEHRIE
EEEERAN AREEEREEUAR
BEHRX BNEMIERE I mEEETE
BEREBRE BEREBINRE -HMAE
RHEMKRBRHEEEDMNRTHRER
Ze2EE RERLEAARNER AR AR
Bl LUK BRI T R 2 IR EA R (F
EARHNEEREER) (PEARKNE
HEERDFREER) (PEAREMEBR
EI(PEAREMEAFENZE) (PEARHK
MEESE) BB (ERRPE) ~ (BIRE
B~ GGEMIMNRER SRS ~ (EAER FARR)
7B ~ (BIBIRA) R (BRES TR E 1
BEHB AEBRTERERSTNMERE
BRRAFZEILES RIEFMERRNERTR
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Recognised as a “Consumer Caring Company” for eight consecutive years

BEENFERAAMIOEE

The Group was selected as a “Consumer Caring Company” by the GSH
Hong Kong for eight consecutive years, and was awarded the “5 Years @}mm
+ Reward” logo again, which commended the Group for its outstanding ——~1

performance in caring for consumers.

4 EHEDEEREIEATRELDE, REETT
Zlgﬁyﬁ@:ﬂﬁj\fz%&f;/%; DD/\EE%TMLEI\%?% /\IE’LJ‘JJZ%J jﬁ% Aﬁxiﬁ% 5 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Lid
F+E IR RERA A EETAEEEE T ENE BRI FRANERARAR

W encanad as IR

The Group is honoured to be awarded in the “Consumer Caring Scheme”
for eight consecutive years. For many years, we have been adhering to
the principle of “customer first” and persisting in fulfiling the promise of
“caring service to consumers. We have also kept pace with the times, make
continuous progress, and strived to provide quality products and services to
meet the ever-increasing demand for products from customers. In the future,
the Group will continue to provide customers with more considerate services
and enhance customers’ shopping experience.
FEBRRREZEE N \FEROEESEAFEIPERR -ZER HM—EFRFURATIZTRE  BEE
BB ELORBIASE - RMITEREE TEES  RNRMHEBERART LR EBEEHEm AT
EEENER - RARAEE R GEESBERHREMORT  RABRZNEYEE -

The “Consumer Caring Scheme” aims to commend local companies that care about consumers and continue
to improve business processes, product and service quality to provide customers with an extraordinary
consumer experience, build consumer confidence, and win customer loyalty. The assessment criteria
include seven categories of “Comprehensive Care for Consumers”, “Practice of Commitments”, “Caring for
Consumers”, “Monitoring Quality and Safety”, “Focusing on Service Quality”, “Listening with Heart” and “Caring
for Employees”.

ML ERE) EERGHABHEEURBBTEHNSEB R IE EokRFBER  BERTHEREN
HERR BIDHEEEL RISBEETHAENAM B - TEEACE2AMESHES) ~ BERH]
MHEHEE - TRERBEZ2 TEARFER - THORBIRBEEET It KHEE-
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Craftsmanship

The Group is well-known for its stylish and festive jewellery
products. In order to realise the vision of becoming a global
recognised brand, we are committed to expanding our product
series and branch locations, hoping to let more people know
and love our brand. We carry out the original intention of creating
the best quality products, relying on the exquisite skills of the
craftsmen, to create each piece of jewellery with a sincere and
rigorous attitude, so that each piece of jewellery can be passed
on from generation to generation. The jewellery design team of
the Group has the top designers in the industry. With their keen
fashion sense, they continue to innovate and design innovative,
unique, fashionable, meticulously crafted jewellery products with
different festive features, leading the trend.

In order to broaden the vision of the design team and stimulate
their creativity, we have been actively participating in various local
and international jewellery design competitions, allowing designers
to absorb rich experience and strive for progress. So far, our
team has won more than 200 awards, and its achievements
and strength have been highly recognised. During the Reporting
Period, we were very pleased that the design team won multiple
awards in the “21st Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition”.
Among them, “Freedom and bondage” won the “Best of Show
Award (Open Group)” and “Craftsmanship and Technology
Award”. The winning entries were designed by Ms. Lee Wing
Yan, a jewellery designer of the Group. At the same time, six of
the team’s entries also won the “Merit Award”. With the exquisite
craftsmanship and unique creativity of jewellery designers, the
Group’s design entries have been winning awards in the “Hong
Kong Jewellery Design Competition” for multiple sessions.
We will always persevere and continue to deploy resources to
cultivate outstanding talents, and provide professional design
courses that keep pace with the times on a regular basis. The
Group encourages designers to experiment in various aspects
of materials and styles, infiltrate different creative elements into
products, and bring customers an endless stream of unique
design freshness.

The “21st Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition” takes
“RelativeCompatible” as the design theme. The Hong Kong
Trade Development Council, the Hong Kong Jewellers’
& Goldsmiths’ Association, Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade
Manufacturers Association, Hong Kong Jewellery Manufacturers’
Association and Diamond Federation of Hong Kong will work
together in this competition to discover outstanding design stars
for the industry and showcase high-level Hong Kong jewellery
designs.

EoIZ

AEEURNHEKBEERRTRERB AEERMR
AEUBAREBHNBES  BANHERESR
RN DERE FEEES ARBBIEE
MR - FMPERITEREEERNY
LV BHETERERE  UBWBENREEL]
EE—MEM EEHHEEURREG K
EEETHENMRTERERTERIELN
SRETEM » JRFEMIEER VR B RS > R ETHERR
Hir et HeF - BE B - FITMASE
BEARESEBFONKEES  5I588Re

AR B RAIRE B M FINEI =
FRBE2EEEAMMERKERSAE
ERFTARBESEER IREF - ES5H
IR E X B EBB200E%E  EM B HHE
REE -RREME  HMARS ERTEEK
RETFNEEBHRERILE ZERE-
Hep fFmBRERE I ESTARMEARE I K&
TTEKME > SRFMBFTERKRERS
BN 2= Sk IRV/VIE 3R 51 o BB > B B BY 7N IR 1F
FREMBRE - AEBENREREZEN
EBHERLE REE ARHKERS
MNBETZERBRAE - RMAT—EERF
TR EERERBEREEEF AT BEHRE
HARITENFERFRE FERABER
StENERM AR LEZ T EES ) BT F
AIfETREZAEM BBESTHRRRTEDN
BERETBIR R

ME21EEBHRERTLEEI U MEH-BE 5
R ETE THEBEZEER BAKALE
BTIREMHERE EERELIORBE T
BLRENSEBHEREBELQRERTS
B REREBESHIRNE  BTREKE

NEBKRERG -
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Winning pieces of “Best of Show Award (Open Group)” and AR ASE | KRITEME SHEER

“Craftsmanship and Technology Award”:

Title of Design Freedom and Bondage
{Ed ¢ BHERE

Designer . Ms. Lee Wing Yan
Bl D O FEARVE

Category . Earrings

=Wl . BRER

Pigeon is the symbol of freedom and peace while the ropes
(ribbons) representing bondage. It is a metaphor of the tightened
pigeons struggling from freedom.

REHER I AR EHAENTHRE: B8R (%) RRERE > LR
B AERER  EEaH -

Design concept

BEEEREMER

-

]

Title of Design: Common World
@ R KR

Designer: Mr. Au Kwok Man
SREtEm BRI E

Category: Rings
15 mts

Title of Design: Condensation
e - BR
Designer: Mr. Choi Ching Ya
SRETAD  BBERSELE
Category: Bracelet
UIRES

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 752 E (B HIRAE

Title of Design: Fire Lightning
fEfm : BRNA
Designer: Mr. Au Kwok Man
EREHAT L BRI L
Category: Earrings
#8h : HIR

Title of Design: Xuan Zang * Wukong
e BEE B
Designer: Ms. Li Yim
ERETEM @ /A
Category: Bracelet
$Hp © Fi§

Title of Design: Starlight in the Dark
Em: BR¥E
Designer: Ms. Chan Hang Kit
SREHEM ¢ BRIEZ/INE

Category: Earrings
f8p - HIR

Title of Design: Love ¢ Going Home
{Fim : B o EIR

Designer: Ms. Li Yim

SR ETRM ¢ ZE/)\E

Category: Pendant
1B BB
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Crafts Inherited from Technology

The Group is committed to innovation, constantly researching the
latest crafts and technologies, combining innovative technologies,
and launching different products and brands to satisfy the public’s
pursuit of “beauty” while pass on our craftsmanship. Some of
our products, such as gold medals and ornaments, provide
personalised customisation services, allowing customers to add
patterns and texts according to their personal preferences and
needs, making the products unique.

Bz TZE1E

AEBR NN TEHMERMOTEMNR
M7 BERRHR TR E MM @IE W
BATH I I0ER BRRRMOTEEL
TR -HAMDER AINEERBEFDRM
BEEERIRS  BEFPREASTENE
MEERNXT BELAIAEESE-

Bespoke design process

EmaTHRE

Initial consultation
with client

RERARBE

Product design

ER R

Production

BRALE

Product delivery
EmX

We have also launched the “Light and Shadow” diamond ring
product by using innovative technology. We used the light and
shadow effect to project “520”, “I Love You” or other custom-
made combinations in the exclusive gift box after accurately
calculating the spatial distance in the ring box to match the
dazzling diamonds. The declaration of love gleamed against the
contrast of light and shadow.

Discussion on
product design
with client

BERMKRBE

Approval of
design and order
placement

EERARTE

HPIT R AR RN #EH DB B R E
e ERIEEREME EHEEER TEE
BRNERNFMREHH520 Tl Love
You | S EH M B BT A4 A’EE%?EEEEEEE’J
EENEREE BENESHMNES
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To Research and Develop Patented Technology and Launch the “Goldstyle” Brand to Create Harder and
More Dazzling Gold Jewellery

B & E R > T Goldstyle 1 g T EEREERIREBN T E HH

“Goldstyle” is a fashion jewellery brand created by LukFook Group in order to obtain fashionable, high-quality
gold jewellery customers. “Goldstyle” products are unique in craftsmanship, using the world’s first patented
technology and exquisite gold-making technology to increase the hardness of ordinary gold by about two times.
While retaining the value of gold, the effect is comparable to the shiny and lightweight Karat gold style. For
example, the dazzling star pendants, its roots are intertwined to form a dazzling briliance; the illusory bracelets,
with twisted geometric figures, highlight the three-dimensional and layered sense of gold ornaments; and the
dazzling ring jewellery set, through the combination of circle and ring, it creates a stylish three-dimensional hollow
shape, highlighting the modern sense of jewellery.
lGoldstyle ] R@/NBEBRERPREE EoE 2t mNERER BOTENEE B mE -
Goldstyle ) Em TEE  ERAEKEAINEN & BBEENGEIE BRA—ReBEEN2E
RESTEENRR  MRTEEKEHZTELIRIN AIIHEENE 2 m % AR IREREE ) X8
IERIRACHE XN FE > AR AER  RETHNIIBRNERAR ; KHNEIREMEL BB
BIEIRNMAS B HARN B TIEE SR @R/ -
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Six Heartfelt Services

D ARES

The Group has always adhered to the tenet of “Six Heartfelt
Services” to serve customers and provide customers with
comprehensive customer and after-sales services, so that each
of them can feel the most ardent and professional service and
full confidence. Under the premise of “Six Heartfelt Services”,
we have introduced the “Delivering the Beauty of Love with Six
Heartfelt Services” excellent customer service programme to fulfil
their needs with a caring heart, in which we instruct employees
to strictly implement every service link from greeting etiquette for
customers entering the store, politely and patiently explaining and
communicating with them, saying goodbye to them, and sincerely
providing after-sales services, etc. We have also adopted various
measures to maintain the highest service quality:

FEB-BEEFNORBINFESRBESR
HEPRETENERMERRE  EMF
BUBRRIRRY - FXNRFNEOA
B0 7RO BRFSIBIATIR T RAJHEIT 70
BRCABERE S HERRBE 58

ETERBATE—ERFIREG  EERT
BEREH ERMORMfAEREER B2

BEMPIERN RERREERRSES  &H 0
TRRMPIRRE AT RIS R K
MFREBENRBEE

Annual Report 2020/21 £k



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
ﬁiﬁ% %i“"fﬁ /D#Ett

Enhance Customer We provide customers with free cleaning and jewellery inspection services. We also
Confidence on Our have gem microscopes in our branches. Customers can personally inspect the fine
Product features of the products before deciding to buy. We also have a laser engraving
RABEEHERED machine to engrave the diamond’s unique number on the diamond waist by laser to

verify the number on the authentication certificate. In addition, we will also provide
jade and diamond authentication certificates to enhance customers’ confidence on
our products.
EMABERRERESAREEMRRTE TR O/EEREABME BRI
HEBRTEGNMARE T AERE - RMTRBHEHZFH > MUEH H I
EANBRSRIREZNHEE L UEZEEEEE LR ST HIREIEER
REAEEES  EABRSHRMERMNE e

Implementation of The Group continues to promote the Mystery Shopper Programme, continuously
the Mystery Shopper optimises and improves the quality of service, meets the needs of customers,
Programme and gradually highlights the Group’s excellent image among its peers. The Group
WITHIBEE T8 will assign mystery customers to visit different branches to evaluate the customer

experience and provide feedback on the team spirit, sales process, experiences such
as service attitude and etiquette. Their feedback will be recorded and analysed so
that the Group can continue to improve, thereby increasing customer satisfaction.
During the Reporting Period, Hong Kong branches received an average of 85.5% in
the Mystery Shopper Programme.

AEBEBHTHNBERESE FEELCRISRBER  AEBEENER &
TREAERTRAXEEANERTER - AEEGIERKMHERIFH TR DE > 571%
BEE AR Wi HARMEREE  HE B  IRFEEN SR FREA R ES -
HEEEREe®nMoin MERERTENSZ KMEsEENREE -1
REME S TRHMMEE T EIFTEEN T 0 = E85.5%

Evaluate and Train The Group incorporates the excellent customer service programme into special staff
Employees training and assessment, arranges for sales staff to receive regular training to improve
NS T sales skills, and conducts audits on branches from time to time in daily work to

ensure that employees will implement the “Six Heartfelt Services” thoroughly.
FEBREHERERBABMASTEEZINZZ 2 F > ZHHEBS T ERRE
RIESHERGNEI LEABITEPARERBEITETERIE BRE
THRISOIRBEIBREIT

In the “Quality Service Benchmark Assessment” conducted — F2020E7ZE973 HARI#ETH ME LD RFEE 45T
during the period from July to September 2020, we ranked ] F > FAFITEITHIMERIEE FHEH T AU
within the top ten among 93 brands in the industry, which proves P> & A58 BB 3 9 19 AR 75 7K T B i K 2B 17 [B)
that our service level surpasses most of our peers. The “Quality 1T MBERBEE I LI ETEATERIREE
Service Benchmark Assessment” aims to provide retailers with EHEEMNHEIE SEXTEEHMNER
a comprehensive and objective measurement tool to measure  ARFSKF » AN ERF K FRESEWEIE
the customer service level of each retail store, collect important BN T miE & K5 o

data for improving the service level, and help retailers strive for

excellence.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]
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Take Preventive Measures and Work with Customers to Fight the Epidemic

iFprRE g AEERFRE

The health and safety of our customers is our top concern. We have adopted the most stringent epidemic
prevention measures in all branches, so that customers can feel at ease:

BEENRENZERERMARAMONSIR - RMAES D EORINRRENDZIENR GBRE—EZD !

o Require staff to take their body temperature every day, frequently use hand sanitizers and clean their hands,
wear masks and strengthen disinfection

EREISREERR KEEREFSEFRNBFEEF KRB OSHMEHEE

o Conduct shop cleaning and disinfection frequently, and adjust business hours in accordance with local
government or shopping mall requirements

REETESBERES AR St S BFNESEER  AEEERE

° Require staff to help customers to take body temperature and use hand sanitizers

EXRETHHEAEERBRERHSETR

o Disinfect the product before and after the customer tries on the product
EfEE%DKWEDEHUTﬁ 'f—_l'/gﬁ#

z\ffﬁ

LUKFOoOl
. -
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IR e

In addition, we have launched the “Intimate Guardian Gift”
Programme during the Reporting Period, allowing Lukfook VIP
to enjoy exclusive discounts and redeem disposable masks with
their points.

AEKNEEEX

SN > FAPIFE IR S BRI T TRE O T 58428 ) 51
o RRNERETEEZER BROBE—
RMEOE-

AN,

Y TEE

sEERTRE
—}Rﬁl’.‘li (B kS0

EMIMAMS : 25,0008)

YoMask

\n'i ;
;_‘ 4

,*.-.--"""

1

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

As an enterprise with a number of innovative and exclusive
designs, we attach great importance to protecting intellectual
property rights, are committed to combating infringements,
and abide by the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Trade Marks Ordinance and the Registered Designs Ordinance
of Hong Kong and other applicable laws and regulations. We
have registered more than 350 trademarks, such as “LukFook”,
“LukFook Jewellery”, “Dear Q" and “Goldstyle”, and have applied
for patents or copyrights for some products and display props
to protect designers. Among them, “a physical gold ornament
and its electroforming method”, which was independently
researched and developed by the Group, obtained an invention
patent authorized by the China National Intellectual Property
Administration during the Reporting Period.

{RIEHEEE
EAERZBERAIMMBEREL TR E > M
HRIERRENRER TR ERITA
BF(PEAREMEEIZE)  (FEARS
MERFE) BB (EIZEG)) B (Mo
BB sHEPD) SEA AR R - HMEATN
18~ T7R@HE ) ~ TDear Q& Goldstyle 12518
#B3501E 1 sk > W A 30 0 A mANPRY B A
BB EEE URERSFAE - E
RIREHRE AEBMBTHEN—BERS
TRGREEEH I ESERNBERRE
MEEEBRE A o
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As a well-known brand, the Group is committed to fight against
infringement activities. Since 2006, we have joined the “No Fakes
Pledge” Scheme implemented by the Hong Kong Intellectual
Property Department. The products sold in newspapers are all
genuine products. As of FY2021, a total of 48 branches under
the Group have participated in this scheme. We have displayed
the “No Fakes” logo on the shop window for customers to
identify. We have also made all efforts continuously to crack
down on intellectual property violations and counterfeit activities
that damaged brand reputation. So far, we have successfully
cracked down on many businesses that counterfeit the “LukFook
Jewellery” brand through legal means, and the total number of
stores closed or rectified has exceeded 840. The Group has also
established an anti-counterfeiting rewarding and reporting system
to encourage reports of unauthorized use of “LukFook” and
other brands of the Group to operate jewellery and gold jewellery,
possess or sell products that are imitations of these brands or
counterfeit such trademarks, and to promote the correct sales
atmosphere of “No Fakes”.

Protect Privacy

We believe that protecting the privacy of our customers is of
the utmost importance. We comply with the “Privacy Policy”
formulated and published in accordance with the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong and other relevant laws and
regulations, and explain to customers and other stakeholders the
collection, use, disclosure and storage of personal information
method. We also set out relevant clauses in the Staff Handbook,
requiring employees not to disclose customer information to third
parties without authorisation.

Quality Assurance

As a “Hong Kong Famous Brand”, the Group must be responsible
to customers and ensure the quality of each product. From raw
material procurement, production to after-sales services, we
are meticulous and implement comprehensive and strict quality
assurance measures to ensure that every piece of jewellery sold
meets the highest quality requirements.

For procurement, we will only cooperate with industry-recognised
suppliers, including members of the Shanghai Gold Exchange and
Shanghai Diamond Exchange and De Beers, the world’s largest
diamond supplier, to ensure that the quality of raw materials
is guaranteed while meeting industry standards. After the raw
materials are purchased, we will conduct a comprehensive quality
inspection to ensure that the raw materials meet our quality
requirements.

ERZERZLHN A FEERNITERRE
74 FZFIE2006F LB MA BB H ERE
EWTERESAFE T8 REPMEENEMD
HRERES -BE20210 5 AEERE T
B48R D ES BRI 8 - HFIED EHE BT
MERESINRGEHBZH - FEE—H
NER BEITBRIRN A ERE IBSRE
BENIFERRI TR ESERNEERR
KITBZRRENEHE mEER > Rt
fEAl 5 5 B2 OIS S0 BUAIB40M - R E B N ER 1L B
BERRITRAR B RRIFEREL 7R
REMETREREEERESH - ERN
EENMRZEmBNERZEFRREM ED
MERES INEMBEERR

RIEFLR
HARBFREETNLREFREZ - KB
SREBEANER FLABR) 15A)) K HEA4E R
BOER AR BIFIZT AR EE MR FARRECR) > @
BERAMFDERBWE ERRENF
FEAE BB - IR (E T FM)583
HARFER BEXE T EREEERTFRER
FENEE=AWE-

HERE

ER BRI AEBYANBERTEE B
B—HEREEMFERAIF - BRERMEER
BEEUFEERRE RAB—#HT5 8
mEEMmESNEERBER BRE—F
HENBHERIEIESHMEER

EHRBELE RARSEAERTERIMH
EEGE BREMHNRERERE B
METERE QELEREXNFAKRLE
BORZAMNEE - RIRRAE A HERDe
BeersF - RMIIEER  HMAGETEZEY
HBERA BERRMHTEHRMANEEERK
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The Group has a jewellery processing plant in Nansha,
Guangzhou. The plant has obtained ISO9001:2015 quality
management system certification, confirming that our design and
production meet its standards, ensuring product quality.

We inspect the finished products to ensure that the products
do not have any problems before selling. If customers find any
quality problems after the product is sold, they can report to
us. We will inspect the products according to the product recall
and complaint handling procedures, and submit them to the
authentication center for follow-up, and respond to customer
complaints in a timely manner.

In order to enhance customers’ confidence in our products
and lead the industry to continuously improve product quality
standards, we have established an Internal Product Authentication
Center and the Victoria Gemological Institute Limited, and
cooperated with De Beers Group Institute of Diamond to appraise
products and provide reports to customers to strengthen their
confidence in product quality.

China Gems Laboratory Limited

Since the establishment of the China Gems Laboratory Limited,
CGL, in 1996, the Group has provided services such as diamond
authentication, grading, gold testing, jade and coloured gems
authentication and jewellery quality testing, including the issuance
of internationally recognised diamond grading reports, gold
testing reports, and jade, ruby, sapphire and emerald test report.
The center has passed the assessment of the Hong Kong
Accreditation Service. It is one of the few jewellery authentication
centers in Hong Kong that meets the jadeite jade test, diamond
authentication rating and gold purity test (ISO 11426) at the same
time. It is also the first jewellery authentication center in Hong
Kong that has successfully assessed the gold testing method
certification of Chinese national standard GB/T9288, which proves
that its authentication standards have reached international
standards.

AEEBRENEVRBRENLIR THE
FEISO9001 : 201, B 2B RFB BEH
MR REERAEEE BREREE -

HPEHRMRETRRE BERERREE
WEEGENIMEIE - WERN HEREER
RREMEERENRRMARKR - ZFATR
BEMBIWRKRFEERE  HERETR
Al TR BIEE P OFRRE kD RER
e

ARFABEHESNEL ABBERER
BRI EREENRE RARILT A
ERERFONASHEEL SR TRN
B EREERRA N HERETEE
IR IR T EE > A A5 R R
e

REFEEEPO
AEBMBE1996FNUFEREEETFLE
SoRMEREE TR -EERAHFRK
EOELEERKERERAERS  25&
REBRDOINBOTRERS TR
SMBFRAEL BEEAOKREFREAR
HohLEBBEBRIREL BEEL
AT EEETEFRAUS - BRETETR
REEMERRA (1ISO 11426) HEKEEE H
L BREAEBMZ ZPEEKTEEGE/
TO288E 1R A ABRBZHKEEER O &
BHETEREDERRKE-
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Victoria Gemological Institute Limited

We established the Victoria Gemological Institute Limited in 2013
to conduct jewellery authentication and professional training. The
Institute has passed the ISO/IEC 17025 assessment and ILAC
accreditation, and can issue internationally recognised diamond
grading reports, jade, ruby, sapphire and emerald test reports.

Cooperating with De Beers Group Institute of
Diamond

The Group cooperates with De Beers Group Institute of Diamond
to provide reports for Hearts & Arrows diamond sold, so that
customers can have a deeper and comprehensive understanding
of the diamond products they purchased.

Responsible Promotion

The Group publishes information on our products, services and
activities through different promotional channels. The Group
strictly abides by the Advertisement Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Broadcasting Ordinance, the TV Advertising Code
and the Trade Descriptions Ordinance of Hong Kong and other
laws and regulations related to advertising and labelling, and
reviews the content and labels of the promotion, guarantees its
authenticity, and protects the rights and interests of consumers
and the right to know.

HIHEEREMKR
HFIFR2013FEM I HEZF| D E A2 1T
EREREEEINI T -B2RBEBISO/
IEC 17025% 1% [7ILACER ] » 0] 25 B2 B fR 28 AJ
NEAHRBRES FR AEBEL - BEEOME
iR ERE o

RYLEARERERRRAE

AEBRBEBHERBORRGE BE
ENNON\FELRERS BREHHEM
BEOERABRAKREEAYIDH

BEFEHE
FEEEEBEEEFRREQIIEHER
BBEREHER AEEBREET(PEAR
HMBEESE)  BER(EREG)  (BRE
HTRID R (P meR BRR ) 5 B S 1R B AR R
BERRAD BEREBRANRE  REH
BEE% RIEHEEVEQMNAGBE
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To Become the First Jewellery Brand to Launch E-certificate by Cooperating with the National
Gemstone Testing Center

RFEXHEELEHEEERBPORSERBELEFEENRE MR

We cooperate with the National Gemstone Testing Center (NGTC) to become the first jewellery brand to launch
e-certificate and jointly provide consumers with quality assurance and continue to protect the interests of
consumers.

EMEBRGKEFAEEEERETOBETFSE A EEHEFZENKE R  HERHEEREM
mEBRE BERHBEENF] R EM o

The e-certificate will be read through a physical smart card in order to ensure that the certificate is unique and
strengthen the anti-counterfeiting. The frosted smart card is small in size, easy to carry and store.
RERESE B _ULNAMNKE EFFESREABREREREN -ENFRNEEREBREME) 7 E
BE REES-

In addition to printing the basic information of the product, the back of the card is also equipped with a Radio
Frequency Identification (RFID) high-frequency security electronic label encrypted by the state cryptographic
algorithm. Customers can read the certificate through the NGTC APP by using the Near Field Communication
(NFC) technology, or scan the QR code on the card or enter the number for verification. The WeChat or Alipay
APP also supports the scanning function, which is convenient and reliable. The e-certificate in the NGTC APP
presents richer and more detailed content, including the table percentage and pavilion depth percentage of
turner information, inspection unit, contact information, etc., to provide consumers with more comprehensive
information. In addition, there are exclusive promotional videos and jewellery story columns on the page,
consumers can click to view the product introduction or link to the official website of Lukfook Group to learn
more about the brand.

RNHERED EESNERERIN BERBLBEZEEEMENSEHT] (RFID) 222 EFRH BEE
AR GERRI AR LULHE (NFC) T B S > I aliwh ~k EN TS E A RSREE
ERXNERABREATZERHMINE BEREX IR KB FRAEARNNEFRESE2RESEFMA
RS BEFEETERENERIERT R SABA BMEEHNSE A HEERUHEL2ANSEM B0 B
HANRBEEBESEREARKENEME HEENMESEEMN BNELGEGHREER THRESM
&

Smart card of elec.tll'onlc RS
certificate  5-LFA000000

EFESHEREF

Scan the QR code on the card to
read the certificate

RHEFEN ZHEISEIEE
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Not only is our pursuit of beauty in product design, but we are
committed to creating a sustainable future, focusing on protecting
the environment and expecting customers to save resources and
reduce waste in areas such as production, administration and
retail business. The Group has developed a sound environmental
management system to regularly review and improve our existing
environmental protection measures. The Group’s jewellery
processing plant in Nansha, Guangzhou manages the identified
environmental elements in compliance with the standards of
ISO14001:2015 environmental management system, to reduce
the environmental risks of production processes or accidents, and
has obtained relevant certifications.

We strictly abide by applicable laws and regulations relating to
the environment, including but not limited to the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Environmental Protection Tax Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Law of the People’'s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste and the National Catalogue of Hazardous Wastes. During
the Reporting Period, there was no material non-compliance
with applicable laws and regulations related to environmental
protection.

EMPEHENBRNMEBRNERKZBRE A&
EE—EBERNERD—EIFEERNERER
ENRERE PBEBESETLEE - TEEE
EEREHBEHNVERER B/ RE W H
ERENRECSESE THREAKRNESR
THVIRMRIEHE o AL A E N FE 7D AU BREE A0
T RRIZISO14001:20151B 18 BIR R 45 /2% > §1
HE#ANIRERRATEREIE > LURD
SEIFREWRELENRERE > TERE
TERAEREE ©

HABTHRRBEHEBNBEREEZRR &
RERRR (PEARREMBIRIZ RESE)
(PEARHAMBIRBFRERZE) ~ (FEA
RHEMBEE RS RIRE A E) KR (BEIX
e L) - NREME AEEETEH
RIBHEBZRREO A ELES REMEKR
BIERITA -
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Rational Use of Energy

We strive to reduce the carbon footprint of the Group’s business
and are committed to seeking suitable energy optimisation
measures in our course of operation and production. During the
Reporting Period, we implemented the following measures:

° Made use of a glass ceiling in the office building of the
factory area, to maximise natural lighting and reduce the use
of electric lights

° Encouraged employees to turn off computers when they
leave the working area to reduce electricity consumption

° Promoted the use of rechargeable batteries

o Participated in the “Charter on External Lighting
Programme” implemented by the Environment Bureau of
Hong Kong, with 20 branches in Causeway Bay, North
Point, Jordan, Mong Kok, Tsim Sha Tsui, Tsuen Wan and
Yuen Long turning off external lighting from 12am to 7am, to
reduce light nuisance and energy consumption. The Group
was awarded the “Gold Award” in the “Charter on External
Lighting Programme” during the Reporting Period.

ERE IR

=L
HAEHHRBEREBEBHOGED  HFIR
NEEBREEBETSREGENEREEL
YA o PO¥R S AR FFIEREN T LUTHE06 -

s ImEMABERAKBERSEIB
PRERICBIUR - B ME B AR

s HEIEIRERIFEFRIAER B

. REFEATRERDH

o ZUEBBRIEBHITHN(RINELNE)
&) T 20M D MEIRIEE bk
H BB RIEN R RITRBE D TER
B 12 ERHE L7RMIEE R
R 18 P SNBSS > LUBRVE S % B AR /D BE
FUBFE c RE BN SRS HAEER (P INE
HANE) sTEIH o

»

Energy saving reminder
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Our energy consumption data during the Reporting Period and

TREFVAE BRI S HE 520208 FHI5E

the FY2020 are specified in the table below: TREREUE -

Indicator Unit FY2021 FY2020
518 B 2021844 202084
Total Energy Use (Note 1) MWh 17,274.57 15,5635.59
MBEEREE A (1) TE T ELBS

Intensity of Total Energy (Note 1) kWh/turnover (HKD’000) 2.23 1.53
e R E (yEE) FERBE &% (TET)

Direct Energy MWh 2,371.70 2,826.73
BHERER TE T 5

Unleaded Petrol MWh 317.17 431.23
UM TE T ELBS

Diesel Ol MWh 715.19 722.05
ES: FEFTEE

Natural Gas MWh 1,339.33 1,673.45
RAR FE T E5F

Intensity of Direct Energy kWh/turnover (HKD’000) (Note 2) 0.31 0.28
BEEREE FTREF &% (THET) (M2)

Indirect Energy — Purchased Electricity (Note 1) MWh 14,902.87 12,708.86
B R—BEE (fist1) FEFTE

Intensity of Indirect Energy (Note 1) kWh/turnover (HKD’000) (Note 2) 1.92 1.25

BIZ5E

Note 1:

Note 2:

IR ‘Z\ﬁ (M—JLDI1)

The Group’s self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
operated in leased spaces. The power supply was controlled by the
property management offices. Some of the relevant property management
offices considered that it was not practicable to provide electricity
data or sub-meters to individual tenants. Therefore, the total electricity
consumption only covered offices and self-operated shops in Hong
Kong, Mainland and Macau, staff quarter and warehouse in Hong Kong
and Macau, and jewellery processing plants in Nansha of the Group.
The relocation of self-operated shops varied from year to year and a
construction work was in progress in jewellery processing plants in Nansha
in FY2021, so the data for FY2021 and FY2020 could not be directly
compared.

This turnover included revenue of the wholesale business and retail
(including e-commerce business) of self-operated shops in Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland only. The intensity of FY2020 has been restated.

B EET -

fizE2 -

FREEXE (T (WaE2)

REEREB BRARAMNBEEERAEMS
EiE MEHARNEEEE BTN M/ ER
EERIAOENBFIREBEYIER D HIL T
AT HI > BB EERNEAEEAESE A
BHES AMARPIMEERBEE  EERE
FINEBTIEERAE - REVKEMIKR -MEE
ENRBEREFRAEER 021 EENKE
IR EERE TR #20215F 5 8220208 &£ /Y
IR REEE ML -

REFRRECERBEEFRNES RFILAM
BEE (BEBFHHER) NEEEHEETE 2020
MENZEEET
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Packaging Materials

As our business involves production, we also use packaging
materials for product packaging. The data on packaging materials
for finished products of the Group during the Reporting Period
and the FY2020 are specified in the table below:

Indicator Unit

517 B

Total Amount of Packaging Materials Tonnes
Used in Finished Products

ST A EEMENES NI

Intensity of Packaging Materials Used in
Finished Products
KT A BEMRNEE

Note 1: This turnover included revenue of the wholesale business and retail
(including e-commerce business) of self-operated shops in Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland only. The intensity of FY2020 has been restated.

Protection of Water Resources

The Group’s water is mainly purchased from local government
water supply agencies and property management companies.
During the Reporting Period, we did not encounter any difficulties
in sourcing of suitable water sources, but we realise that the
global water shortage was becoming increasingly severe.
Therefore, as a responsible social enterprise, we actively optimise
our own water consumption and sewage discharge management
to protect precious water resources.

We post notices at the office to remind employees to save
water and maintain daily operations in accordance with our
environmental policies of “strengthening training, promoting
energy conservation, and making good use of resources and
continuous improvement”.

kg/turnover (HKD’000) (Note 1)

sy

HREMANEZ I REE RATEERE
EYHAERETRE - TREIAEER
¥R 5 AR 52202087 SR BY B AN an B AR KL B ¢

FY2021 FY2020
2021814 202081 &
244.77 290.17
0.032 0.029

R/ EERE (FET) (1)

MEE1 . ZEXREDERBEBRINEE  RFIRAM
BEE (BEBFHHER) NEEEHETE 2020
MENZEEET

BEkER
AEEAKEZEE MG BT HKEBR
MEEE AT RSB RAEREER
KR ERBBEIME BRKLFEIFEHE
EHOKBEREMBIBIERE  PFUER—FR
BEENHEEE RMIEBEECESNA
NCHFER G KBERE R URELEHNKE
e

HPSERAMBRME S~ RES THH
A7k %R IFIRIRIR 75 &t [R5 3~ B EsE
ERBE R ENS I REFEBEF-
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Besides, the Group generates production sewage such as
gypsum wastewater and electroplating wastewater, as well
as, domestic sewage in the course of its production and daily
operations. To prevent unprocessed sewage from polluting the
surrounding environment, we have set up sewage treatment
facilities in the plant area, including an integrated treatment
system for gypsum wastewater, a water reuse system and
an underground biochemical pool. Our gypsum wastewater,
electroplating wastewater, concentrated water and domestic
sewage are pre-treated before discharging, to meet the second-
level standard of the second range of the Water Pollutant
Discharge Limit (DB44/26-2001). Also, we inspect the rainwater
ditches and toilets of the factory every week, to prevent people
from discharging production sewage that falls short of relevant
standards and polluting nearby water sources.

Some of the processed gypsum wastewater and electroplating
wastewater is recycled for toilet flushing and greening, to improve
water efficiency and reduce water consumption. We also repair
leaky faucets on time to minimise the waste of drinking water.

Tap
water

Ak

¢ Electroplating &

Wastewater

IS ZEBEEERAEEEBRREF TS
EEASEK - B2EKEEESKUKE
SEISK e A RS RIS K E BIBIBIE S
BEE ITHREBERESKEER B
SR K—EBICRIBRLG  R/KLB RSN
MR EE B ABEEK s BEEE K EKM
EIEEMGETTERE ) A ENERC LURE
R EYHEMBRE) (DB44/26-2001) 55—
ER— 2% o LN BB EHHZ R é:[r“aﬁ
RAKBEMEFE HLEEABAREZNE
B TS KB AN 75 Ze M3 KR ©

BAOKEEREBNABEKMEZEKGEIR
BRI RIFTEZERR  LURS AKMam
D B IACHFE © TP TR & R By # R K BY K BE
RETHE BRABRERDBRKRE-

Water reuse system

B polishing process pre-treatment
BLITETH BAERERG HREBRRE
Storage Reuse in
¢ —> tank plant
Fkith HEBAA

Casting
—> process

EETF

Reaction tank

REEH
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Our water consumption data during the Reporting Period and the
FY2020 are as follows:

Indicator Unit
518 E (il
Total Water Consumption (Note 1) m?
waFeEkE (FsE1) IHAK

Intensﬂy of Total Water Consumption (Note 1)

mrEkEEE (1)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Some of the Group’s self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland operated in leased spaces. The water supply was controlled
by the property management offices. The relevant property management
offices considered that it was not feasible to provide water data or sub-
meters to individual tenants. Therefore, the total water consumption only
covered offices and self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Mainland and
Macau, staff quarter and warehouse in Hong Kong and Macau, and
our jewellery processing plants in Nansha, where the water supply was
controlled by the Group. The relocation of self-operated shops varied
from year to year and a construction work was in progress in jewellery
processing plants in Nansha in FY2021, so the data for FY2021 and
FY2020 could not be directly compared.

This turnover included revenue of the wholesale business and retail
(including e-commerce business) of self-operated shops in Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland only. The intensity of FY2020 has been restated.

The following is our wastewater emissions data during the
Reporting Period and the FY2020:

Indicator Unit

518 Bl

Sewage Discharge (Note 3) m?

Sk E (FEE]) AV

Note 3: The figure represents the amount of wastewater discharged from our

jewellery processing plants only. Wastewater generated from our retail
shops and offices in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland is properly
connected and discharged to the communal sewer drainage system. As a
construction work is in progress in jewellery processing plants in Nansha in
FY2021, the sewage discharge has increased.

Recycling of Recovery

The Group generates a certain degree of non-hazardous waste
in the course of daily operation and production, including food
waste, industrial waste, metal, plastic, paper, general waste, etc.

mé/turnover (HKD’000) (Note 2)
MHKEERE (FAET) (E2)

UFBEARRE
B’

HARE B2 202084 £ B9 A 7K 8L

FY2021
2021844

192,133.23

FY2020
202081 &

163,610.97

0.040 0.016

a1 . REEBSRER VR ERAMNEEEERE
WAt EE kA REEERBITES M
FEREE ¥R 1A B E R AR KBRS D %
W RE] AT o R > ABFEK B E RS K EEZT A EE
P“% HNEE AR EEREEE - FBK
BRENETEERAE  MEDKREN TR MmE
MFE@L’I MEEKEER 2021 EE
BTN B TR T2 > #2021 8 G E220208F &
BEIETAEEEZ L8

MiEE2 : ZEXFEOEMRBEEBRNES RPIRAM
HEE (BEBFHHER) NEEEHET 2020

HMENZEEET

DU % F P97 ¥R &5 HA RS 2 202084 FF RY75 K HE
R

FY2021 FY2020
2021815 202081 &

117,710.00 94,660.00
W§s:¢@#@ﬁiﬁﬁﬁamz 955 7K HE R BB o
B ES RPN D E G RIEERREL

HEKBEEEBZALHRELARSKERFK T
2021 ERmVBREMTIMA TR UK

REAEAEM
HiRE
RPN BEEENEERRTE I RELE

SERY) BERG TEEY B BB
Mok EREYF -
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To ensure that waste discharge does not cause a heavy burden AEREEYHENATHIRBERNEARE
on the environment, we strictly control the sorting, storage and %> ANEE B EFEYIN D48 ~ IFHRF EIWETT
recycling of waste, and implement several measures to reduce EIREIE > FIR B ML B (CRIEREE .
waste at source:

Sorting and collecting ° Sorting bins are placed in the factory to collect waste separately, to avoid solid
SEEUNEE and liquid chemical hazardous waste mixing into general waste
MRIEHREDENIRBEEEY DREWE  BRRERE R RE (2 EMmES
YR A—IREEEY)
o General solid waste is collected and treated by solid waste collectors
ZHEE RS EE YU s v WU K R 1B — AR [El BB BE )

Recycling and reusing o A specific location is designated to collect recyclable wastes, including PVC
[0 rubber, waste paper and packaging materials, for the recyclers to collect
2| L5 E AL E W E R BlU 4 > MPVCEB K ~ BEAR ~ BLEEYIEL 5 > 5 Bl U g Uk
&Eo
° Employees are encouraged to reuse waste papers and bubble wraps as the
packing materials for product packaging
HENE TRIEE AR VEREAERBENERY)
o We encourage the recycling of carton, plastic bags and stone-filled plastic
boxes
BRI  BRNEARBRBEIRER
° Environmental protection activities, such as recycling and reusing of red
packets, are initiated internally

RAEREEEN B H DB A FIRFREH

Reducing waste at o We have promoted the “Bring Your Own Bag” campaign at our retail outlets
source since 2015, and donated all fees charged for plastic shopping bags to Green
JRER R EE Power, an environmental protection organisation in Hong Kong, during the

Reporting Period
H2016FREE T ZEEHRT BERBYRES W TRES ARG EE
MENR &2 BEE TERRTEBGENE

o Employees are encouraged to make good use of toilet papers, adopt double-
sided printing as far as possible, and promote electronic communication, to
reduce paper consumption at source
SRETERR SEXRALEEONR TRESFLER  WRERDAR
SR FE

° We select materials in the most appropriate size when cutting materials to
reduce wastage
TR R R B E R T B4kt » DUR D FIER B BE

° We use the appropriate amount of solvents/cleaners to reduce unnecessary
wastage
B BERECERABEEE S RO THNENRE
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The following is our non-hazardous waste data during the U254 HA R 52202084 FE Y E E B

Reporting Period and the FY2020: EWREE

Indicator Unit FY2021 FY2020

517 Bl 202184 2020871 £

Total Amount of Non-hazardous Waste Tonnes 309.78 318.95
Produced (Note 1)

FREEBEEEEYRE (1) YN

Recycled Waste

EhlEE

Food Wastes Tonnes 9.04 8.59

BT ER YN

General Industrial Waste (Note 2) Tonnes 39.53 33.44

—iR TRy (fsE2) N

Metal Tonnes 0.15 0.58

=8 YN

Other General Waste Tonnes 0.52 2.42

Hh4 5 EY NI

Paper (Note 3) Tonnes 21.54 11.27

#EoR (BE5E3) UNL]

Disposed Waste

EEEEYE

Plastic (Note 4) Tonnes N/A 0.65

B2 (MI5t4) NI REHA

Other General Waste Tonnes 239.00 262.00

Hh4 5 EY N\

Intensity of Total Non-hazardous Waste Tonnes/turnover (HKD’000) (Note 5) 0.040 0.031

Produced (Note 1)

FREEEZEEYRERE (EE1)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

The figure represents the amount of non-hazardous waste generated from
our jewellery processing plants only. The non-hazardous waste generated
from our self-operated shops and offices in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland was handled by property management companies.

In FY2021, plaster tanks were cleaned at jewellery processing plants in
Nansha, resulting in additional general industrial waste.

In FY2021, there was a large-scale document disposal conducted at
jewellery processing plants in Nansha. Thus, the amount of paper waste
generated was relatively large.

Plastic waste was mainly obsolete tools. Its volume generated was unstable
and that in FY2021 was minimal and did not reach the minimum processing
volume specified by the recyclers.

This turnover included revenue of the wholesale business and retail
(including e-commerce business) of self-operated shops in Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland only. The intensity of FY2020 has been restated.

Rt/ ExEE (FHET) (EE5)

MisE . ZBBEARRMAKENIREENEEERY
YB-RFNEE R F'?)S’zWME“F&#)#%JfFﬁ
EENEESERYBANEEERRETEE

MizE2: M2021M4F, BOKEMIRGETAEMER
Tt REEAN—RIEEYELTERS -

MiEE3: 12021844, BV EREM IR S ET AEM AR
FEIE, FIt AR EMELEBRS -

Mizt4: ZERBERVIZREARENTIR HEELBTRE
T M0 ENELESBM > WARERKFIERE
NREREE-

Mi5E6 : ZEXBEVERBEBRINEB RFIRAM

BEE (BEBFHHER) 7?%%%%502020
MENTEEET
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In addition to non-hazardous waste, the Group generates
hazardous waste in the course of its production, such as waste
parts/components, empty chemical containers, sludge from
sewage treatment systems, waste lubricating grease, waste
batteries, waste light pipes, waste ink cartridges, radioactive
waste, concentrated acid waste solvents, concentrated alkali
waste solvent, waste lubricating oil, waste lubricating coolant,
waste paint and grease produced during cooking. We properly
store the solid chemical hazardous waste in a sealed container
with a lid to avoid leakage of chemical substances. Solid and
liquid chemical hazardous waste is stored in containers labelled
by the types and characteristics, and is collected and processed
by approved chemical hazardous waste handlers. We also
arrange designated staff to conduct weekly inspection to ensure
proper collection and storage of hazardous waste. Radioactive
waste is collected and recycled by the manufacturer. Hazardous
wastes such as acid waste liquid, waste light pipe, and solid
wastes including gypsum cake, biochemical pool sludge, grease
trap slag, are handled by different qualified recyclers.

BT ERSERY TLEEBEPTIELEN
BT 4 EENE2ERREE 5K
RIEBRFFAEER S BEHBHE BES
MNEENE S BERKE WP EEY) R
BE S REREEE AT BER B BEREIE S AN
B B HRRARKMELNHESNAS
BEEY HMAEZEFRERCEEREY
NREEERHARRE BRICEMERRE
R B RE KR BE (E R ERREE VB R 88 Ak
LR RAEEEE RS BRRBANEER
R HERmRERREE TEZHEA
BEMETRE HREREVYRZLSWE
R EF - TREI M EEY) & B 4 E MK UE KD
WeaBER BIAESERENEADER
FAEMT R FRMESERE  EXHERNEE
BRI IR R -
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The following is our hazardous waste data during the Reporting MR & TP IR S HB R R 20208 £ H EkE

Period and the FY2020: EWEEE
Indicator Unit FY2021 FY2020
518 Bl 2021845 2020814
Total Amount of Hazardous Waste Generated (Note 1) Tonnes 4.988 6.438
FREEBEEEEMRE (1) yNL]
HWO06 Waste Organic Solvent and Waste Containing  Tonnes 1.934 4.647
Organic Solvent

HWOBEE B 14 A EI B & B 1 A B EEY) NI

HWO08 Waste Mineral Oils and Waste Containing Tonnes 0.111 0.145
Mineral Oils

HWOBSJEE 1% 470 8 £ = I ¥ S EE4) UNL]

HW12 Waste Dyes and Paints Tonnes 0.010 0.045

HWA2Zu i K2 28} BE ) YN

HW13 Organic Resin Waste Tonnes 0.022 0.0035

HW13B # Kt 558 EEY) YN

HW29 Mercury Wastes Tonnes 0.120 0.218

HW295 ZREEY) YNUE!

HW34 Waste Acid Tonnes 0.236 0.466

HW34EE B NI

HW35 Waste Alkali Tonnes 0.784 0.474

HW35[EE 3 NI

HW49 Other Waste Tonnes 1.771 0.439

HWA49H {th EE4)) YNUE!

Intensity of Total Hazardous Waste Generated Tonnes/turnover (HKD’000) (Note 2)  0.00034  0.00063

FIEA R EREEMEERE AF /%5 (FAT) (H2)

Note 1: The figure represents the amount of hazardous waste generated from our  [isF1 | ZEIBEERXRBMELVKRENTIHAEENBES
jewellery processing plants in Nansha only. No other hazardous waste was EEYHE - HANES BRPI R A B E i
generated from our self-operated shops and offices in Hong Kong, Macau ERUWEESEMNESEEY
and Mainland.

Note 2: This turnover included revenue of the wholesale business and retail — [fisF2 | ZEXBEEOEMLBLEFRNES B RAH
(including e-commerce business) of self-operated shops in Hong Kong, BHEE (QIEETHEHED NETEE 52020
Macau and Mainland only. The intensity of FY2020 has been restated. MENZEEET]-
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Emission Reduction

Climate change has brought unprecedented challenges to the
world. The Group keeps an eye on the emissions of waste
and greenhouse gas generated in our operations, and actively
optimises the management of gas emissions. The air emissions
of the Group mainly come directly from the processes of welding,
grinding, melting, pouring, electroforming, jewellery cleaning, etc.,
as well as, fuel emissions of vehicles, also indirectly from electricity
and natural gas consumption in the plant. We have installed an
activated carbon filtration system and an exhaust gas scrubber
system in the factory. Exhaust gas generated in the production
process is then discharged after pre-treatment process.
Neutralization tower is also set up. Alkali solution is added in the
tower to neutralize acid mist. We also regularly entrust external
third-party testing companies to conduct inspections to ensure
emissions is complying with the Ambient Air Quality Standards
(GB3095-1996). The person in charge regularly maintains
and cleans the waste disposal facilities to ensure the smooth
operation of the facilities.

The following is the Group’s greenhouse gas and air emissions
data during the Reporting Period and the FY2020:

R BER
RIEZIEE AT RAFARENKE > &
EEBFRMEEEBREPASIBNVER K
BERBEEM BHRELREFRERE X
EENERERETEEFERAER FTE
Be BR -BE EHMBEBLSEEIRUR
BEINCREER BN EEAREEAMT
& B9 R ARHEE o I TR SRR
BIERRRERAKERG BEETFF
EENBERETERERRE S SHINER
BB B A - 55 N7 g R LA R A B
BoRMETCHRTIBE=ABAQBE
THRA BERERFE(RETRESTE)
(GB3095-1996) B EANE ST EHHEERE
EREETHEERE L BERREEEBIB

T RAAEER RSB R20200 FEE
RAE R ERBER R

Indicator Unit FY2021 FY2020
518 B 202181 £ 202087 £
Total Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Tonnes of COze 11,819.58 9,624.57
(Scope 1 & 2) (Note 1)
AERBEBINE EE1K2) (fsE1) rB_E{btREE
Direct Emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes of CO2e 581.88 697.14
BiEHW EE1) rBE_E{ERESE
Indirect Emissions (Scope 2) (Note 1) Tonnes of CO2e 11,237.70 8,940.68
HEHIm (EBE2) (1) PSR ES
Total GHG Emissions Intensity (Scope 1 & 2)  KgCOze/turnover (HKD’000) 1.52 0.95
(Note 1) (Note 2)
RERBASINERE E@E1R2) AFZELiRES EEEE
(MF5E1) (FH7m) (Fst2)
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) Kg 1,123.98 1,318.78
A/ (NOx) Fr
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) Kg 2.77 3.25
a4 (SOx) T
Particulate Matter (PM) Kg 74.80 90.39
feEgEh (PM) T

Note 1: As a construction work was in progress in jewellery processing plants
in Nansha in FY2021, the electricity consumption and its corresponding

indirect emissions have increased.

Note 2: This turnover included revenue of the wholesale business and retail

(including e-commerce business) of self-operated shops in Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland only. The intensity of FY2020 has been restated.

MiEE1 @ 2021 FRVBENIRAE TR IR WAEE
FEABRA B EFRER TG M-

MisE2 : ZEXRECEMRBEEBRNES RFIRAM
HEE (BEEFHHEY) NEEE X 2020
MENEEBEEY]-
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The Group has been Accredited the Certificate of Merit under “Manufacturing and Industrial Services
Category” in the “Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence”

FEBRTERRIEEHARE IREXERTERBIANBERE

The Group has been accredited the Certificate of Merit under “Manufacturing and Industrial Services Category”
in the “2019 Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence”, in recognition of its outstanding contribution in
environmental management.

REBN20198 BRI WA PRETRISEERTERBIANTNERE URGERTREEET
E LR SR RE ©

The “Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence” is an environmental award that aims at achieving
outstanding environmental performance, which is jointly organised by the Environmental Campaign Committee,
the Environmental Protection Department and nine organisations. The purpose of the award is to encourage
corporates and organisations to adopt environmental management, to compare their environmental
performance against the best practices in their respective sectors; and to recognise corporates and
organisations with outstanding environmental performance.

EBRBEEHAR EUERFHRFRERSEEN—EARFREE ARBEHEZETHAIRRFRES K
NEEESH - ZRESESBCENMEBRNIREEIE UHFB R ANREFEENLRERIER
I REsTERSHIRERIEN B EREE

i
A\

2019
Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence
FARAANE R

Cerfificate of Maerit
anm

A P e Wik e
HARETREM

Luk Pk Heldings {Intemetonal) Limited
RN (R RN

totica st Fe
AR

= =
22 X

B O e T e o ol e
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The Group has Received Recognition under “Services” and “Manufacturing” Sectors in “BOCHK
Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards”

FEBRTPREREERMASLKE RBEIRREX TEERET

The Group has been accredited with its first “EcoPartner” in the “Service Category” at the “BOCHK Corporate
Environmental Leadership Awards 2019” which were jointly organised by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries (“‘FHKI") and Bank of China (Hong Kong) (“‘BOCHK”); The Group's subsidiaries, Luk fook Jewellery
(Guangzhou) Company Limited and Lee Fook Diamond & Jewellery (GuangZhou) Company Limited, have been
awarded the “EcoPartner” and “5 Years+ EcoPioneer” in the “Manufacturing Category” for five consecutive
years, in recognition of the Group’s accomplishment in practicing and promoting environmental protection in
various aspects. FHKI and BOCHK have been co-organising the “BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership
Awards” since 2015, aiming to encourage enterprises operating in Hong Kong and Pan-Pearl River Delta to
implement environmental protection measures to fulfil corporate social responsibilities and reduce environmental
pollution.

AEBRESBIEAS (T4 BhEIRT (B8 (RIREH) BMaBEZEN THIRSBEEIRFREBERLAE
2019 P E RN IIRFBXEIITER R A RERELEN)  AEERB AR SEHRE (BN BRAB REM
NEBECEMARABSMEERFNHEE TERERFREDBHIMM6FE+2HIRRARRS > LU
BEEAERNSHRBIRENBREEE - THIRH BB EIRREBILKRE B2016FHRHITRETRRESS
W BERRBE B ZH=AMEEENGERTIREER UBITREEHEEE ROVBRIE S

PREE| :
PRIBRELASE @h tfian Gy

2019!5"2&20”“?”

-

ﬂﬂﬂ!lll)imﬂm J"(ﬁﬁl(l!ﬂ k-1 Fa] TUENE (Bl ) BRL3
T e Lisk Fosok Holdings (intermaticnal) Ltd
e e
e Haedemr e 1 . F Frikiamra e
= ] &+ * ¥ E=r & e
CHITEY . S @tianen @poren )
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The Group has awarded the “Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production Partners (Manufacturing)”

FEERETERFTREESH REFR) I1=F

The Group successfully passed the assessment of the “Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production Partners
(BB FREEBM)” Recognition Scheme jointly organised by the Environmental Protection Department
and the Department of Industry and Information Technology of Guangdong Province. Its subsidiary Lee Fook
Diamond & Jewellery (GuangZhou) Company Limited was awarded the “Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner
Production Partners (Manufacturing)” for the fourth time, recognising our efforts in energy efficiency and
conservation.

AEERIBBHRRFREZSHERES TENE S CEMSRMN BB F2EERMH EHst8l 8%
MmBABIEMNAEEBAEMARADEESFNERBERBEBFTREEBMNH WEX) 1555 5SERME
AEIR A R B AV 5 E PR R AYES /) o

The “Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production Partners (B#EE24EEH)” Recognition Scheme is
jointly launched by the Environmental Protection Department of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and the Department of Industry and Information Technology of Guangdong Province to
award the honour of “Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production Partners” to Hong Kong-invested factories
that actively implement and promote cleaner production, thereby commending corporates for their good
performance in cleaner production.

RS REERH Rt 8 RHEBRITHREETIRIEREZHFEERE TENESCEEL @&
BEENEESHFREENBELRBEEBEFTREEBHIRE UEACERBREEARIFNRIR-

INiR =
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.
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e
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EARARENRLR
i
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Responsible Sourcing

The Group expects to cooperate with suppliers to move
towards and create a better and more environmentally friendly
future. The Group adopts a comprehensive supply chain
management mechanism, which includes the guidelines for
supplier and contractor assessment system and management
to monitor and assess the quality of suppliers’ products and
services and their performance in environmental protection. We
also actively promote social responsibility in the supply chain,
requiring suppliers and contractors to comply with the Group’s
environmental protection policies and strict corporate governance
standards, and regularly review the performance of suppliers and
contractors to ensure that they comply with relevant regulations
and make continuous improvements. Besides, “Supply Chain
Management” has been recognised as one of three main
focuses of the Group’s three-year corporate strategy in FY2019,
with a hope to promote business development and strengthen
operational efficiency, indirectly reflecting our efforts and
determination in this area.
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Quotation and
Tendering

BRERBIR

Vv

Qualification
Examination

BEHEE

Vv

Regular Evaluation

MRS

We have established a comprehensive procurement process, under which all
procurement projects are required to obtain quotations from designated number of
suppliers of the Group or carry out bidding procedures based on the project budget.
In addition to quality of products and services, we also provide “Guideline on Green
Procurement”, suggesting our staff to include environmental considerations in their
procurement processes.

EMBEUITENREER  REFARBEE BREERESHERIEEHENE
ERHEEHRNREIETREREER R TERKRBRE  RMTREGREFRR
BIEE5 ) BRE IR REAERZERIRFRRERER -

All approved suppliers and contractors are subject to the Group’s internal approval
procedures. They also need to sign a “Supplier Agreement” and “Clean Trading Policy” to
ensure that the products and services provided are in compliance with the standards.
FRE R PSR A B B T A EEN NI EMET > WHRT (HEEHE) &
(FRRR ZEER) U RPTIR M E m R IRFB R SR 2E o

We conduct regular review of our suppliers and renew their “Supplier Agreements”
for supervision. We provide some of our suppliers and contractors with the
“Environmental Protection Manual of Working Inside a Workplace”, and conduct
evaluation of environmental protection operation and on-site inspections (if
necessary). We give those who fail the first assessment a chance to improve, and
consider to terminate our business relationships with them if they fail the assessment
again.

B CHERHERER KBS (HEEHR) LEEE - RMERE o HES
REBESRESALENRRIEES ) LETREREFIML NERTEGE
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“Conflict-free” Diamonds

Our imported diamond has passed the Kimberley Process
Certification Scheme, proving that all rough diamonds are not
“conflict diamonds” mined in war zones. “Conflict diamonds” are
also known as “blood diamonds”, which are mined in war zones
and sold to the market under illegal circumstances, or may cause
damage to the ecological environment and human rights.

The success of the Group and its leading position in the market
depend on the continuous contribution of outstanding talents
to the Group. Therefore, we are committed to repaying their
efforts and becoming their ideal employers, striving to abide
by employment-related laws and regulations, establishing
a harmonious, integrated, equal and diversified working
environment, and providing employees with competitive salaries
and benefits, as well as complete career development ladder and
training opportunities, so as to nurture an outstanding talent team
through sound corporate culture.

During the Reporting Period, there was no material non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations concerning
remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
other benefits and welfare, including but not limited to the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China and the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong, etc.
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Signatories of the Good Employer Charter
(FREXHENEEHE

During the Reporting Period, the Group participated in the “Good Employer Charter” scheme launched by
the Labour Department and became a signatory, promising to adopt employee-oriented human resources
management measures.

RIREHE AEFEL2HELE TR(FERENZ)AE U ASEEEE  FERW U EEAETANRTASEE
B

I

AW (EE) ARAR
Luk Fook Holdings (rrnemauonan Limited

AR EFQ2 H"II]I!II

¥Im s
i
@ TR

Won Three Awards under the Good MPF Employer Award by the MPFA
RERESRMERMRESFEIZFABIZIEHRE

The Group won the “Good MPF Employer” award from the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
again, and also won two special awards, the “Electronic Contribution Award” and the “MPF Promotion
Award”, commending the Group for making MPF contributions via electronic means and its contribution to the

promotion of MPF schemes.
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Recognised as “Happy Company” for Seven Consecutive Years

EEtFERAAFHOEE

The Group has been recognised as “Happy Company” in the “Happiness-at-work Promotional Scheme”
for seven consecutive years, commending the Group’s “people-oriented” development strategy, and also
recognising the Group’s corporate culture of building a friendly and harmonious “Lukfook Family”.
REFBEECFN BOLERIEESEPERSTA THOGRE) REBAER TUARE NERERR [
RTRAAERRERRE MBI RNEAREINBEE.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group, said: “Employees are the
most valuable asset of the Group and the root of corporate development. The Group is committed to creating
a healthy and happy working environment for employees. We firmly believe that improving the happiness of
employees at work is helpful to improve work efficiency and a sense of belonging and attract outstanding
talents, thereby strengthening our business development and competitiveness. Employees who work happily
can also bring better services to customers. In the future, we will continue to work hard to build internal and
external harmonious working environment, and carry forward the spirit of Lukfook Family”.
NEERIFERTHERERBEAERT BIRFEREREENEE TEREEEZENBR AEER
77?%514’* ERERMRNIFRE BMRERERAEINIIFREKT  BEES TIFNEKHEENE

c[EE IRAIRSIBF AL  WMMBEFERRFEF N TEROHNE I HERBEREREEENR
i‘“ R BB RES HHBERNIEN TIERIE  SFENEBAKERNBM

The “Happiness-at-work” Promotional Scheme is hosted by the Promoting Happiness Index Foundation of
Hong Kong and implemented by the Hong Kong Productivity Council, aiming to raise the recognition of Hong
Kong companies and organisations for “Happiness-at-work” and advance the creation of a happy working
environment by all sectors of society, thereby raising the happiness-at-work level of Hong Kong people.
MFAOTIEE #HESEEEBREAREEHEES T TRABBLEENRERNIT SRIEAS AN
MFEOTEFINERER #ES A EFEKMRAN TERIE BB B AN ITIEHREEKT
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Diversified Talent Team

The Group promotes the principles of equality, diversification and
anti-discrimination in all human resources-related processes,
accepting talents of different genders, ages, disability status,
family positions, races and religions to become part of our
big family. We also strive to eliminate any discrimination in the
workplace. As of 31 March 2021, the Group has employed a
total of 5,900* employees, of which 5,791 employee work in
Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland. The relevant total number of
employees by region, type of employment, level, group of age and
gender as follows:

Zr{EAFT B
REBPRBANEREBRBRESLRETF
F-Z M RIERNERER > B4R EMER
FBBEERI - REMAU - BEERHHA
THRABRFARREN—MF  BFR OB
(EAI B3 AR B R H IR - B £20214F38 31
H> AEBHEERT5900%E T » 45,791
HETITHRIERES B EARAMTE &
e ~ EEFELE R B FE AR R R 1% R E
PHEEREWMT !

Total Workforce By Geographical Region

Total Workforce By Employment Type

Rt E R e RS A REFERIIHNESEH
22%
21%
1,222 ﬂ
6%
366
78%
I 4,515
73%
4,203
. Hong Kong Macau Mainland Full time Part-time/Contract
B il Pt ES B8

Total Workforce By Grading
REHESHNERESRH

92.2%
5,340

Senior Management

BREER IR EEE

Middle-level Management

0.1%
8

—

“7.6%
443

Senior Officer or below

BREEIUT
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Total Workforce By Age Group

Total Workforce By Gender

R ERRI DRV ES B H RIS ES A
23.0%
1,333
0.5%
27
5.0%
304
50.2%
o 2,909
21.0%
1,218 69%
4,006
29 or below 30-39 40-49 Male Female
29U T 30-395% 40-498% % Z
50-59 60-69
50-59%% 60-69%%
Recruiting and Retaining Talents BRI EANA

In order to establish a strong talent network, the Group recruits
appropriate and enthusiastic talents to join us through various
channels such as internal training initiatives and local, overseas
and on-campus recruitment, as well as through collaboration
with professional recruitment agencies and higher education
institutions. We have also established a talent pool of technical
cadres for the purpose of attracting local and overseas technical
and management professionals. We also strive to introduce the
cutting-edge technologies and craftsmanship to continuously
reinforce our strengths and enhance our competitiveness.

In order to ensure the continuous development of employees in
the Group, we have established a complete career development
ladder and assessment mechanism to enable employees to keep
improving themselves based on the direction and goals of their
career development. The Group conducts performance appraisal
every year to evaluate the work performance of employees. We
promote employee by taking into account the appraisal results,
the academic qualifications and rewards and punishment records
of such employee.

BEBIUBRKNAT @S ~EEGEBZRE
RE > QREBESEE - HTHEE - BIMNEE
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TENRELRESNEZES FETR
BESNBEZRRAONMERTE B K
BeorERESFEETENEZ FHREIH
THERFE-RMEEEHER BT E2EME
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To retain employees, the Group actively specifies, through a
well-established human resources system, the arrangements
relating to the remuneration system, holidays, working hours,
benefits, staff handbooks, reward and punishment system,
dismissal and termination of labour contracts, etc.. However, if an
employee terminates the employment contract with us, we will
also arrange a resignation interview with such employee to learn
about the reason thereof. We will appropriately adopt employees’
suggestions and make improvements.

Respect for Employees

As a responsible employer, the Group respects the rights of every
employee, promises to abide by applicable laws, regulations
and employment standards, and provides them with reasonable
remuneration and benefits. We mainly determine the remuneration
of employees based on factors such as position, employees’
performance and results, and their professional and management
capabilities, and ensure that their remuneration is competitive
in the market. We make MPF contributions for employees in
Hong Kong, and make social insurance and housing provident
funds contributions for employees in Mainland. In addition, we
also provide employees with diversified benefits and review the
benefits system in a timely manner to reward employees for their
contributions to the Group.

The benefits available to full-time employees include but are not
limited to:
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Medical insurance Annual leave Maternity leave Paternity leave Marriage leave
B R b FR EfR FER SR
Meal allowance (for retail
Compassionate leave Discounts Bonuses emolo ee(s) Bonuses
BB FNES el oy 4
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Apart from the above benefits, we also focus on the work-
life balance of employees, and organize various recreational
and cultural activities at appropriate times to create a relaxing
environment for employees. We also provide well-equipped
recreational facilities such as basketball courts, gymnasiums,
karaoke rooms, libraries, TV rooms, etc. at the quarters for
our employees in Luk Fook Jewellery Park. Due to the raging
outbreak of pandemic, the Group greatly reduced such activities
during the Reporting Period to maintain social distancing and
protect the health of employees. We hope that we will be able to
restart such activities and bring employees together again when
the pandemic is over.

We attach great importance to the voices of our employees, and
their opinions on the Group can help us to continuously improve
our human resources system and become a better employer. We
have also established a grievance mechanism, and employees
can deliver their grievances to the Group via email, telephone
or face-to-face interview. We undertake to keep the identity
of whistle-blower confidential and take timely and appropriate
investigation and follow-up measures to protect the rights and
interests of employees.

The Group adopts a zero-tolerance attitude towards child labour
or forced labour. The human resources department verify the
applicants’ identification documents at the time of recruiting to
ensure that they have reached the legal working age. We also set
out employment terms in our Staff Handbook and other relevant
employment system, including working hours, holidays, salary
and dismissal arrangements, to avoid forced labour. During the
Reporting Period, there was no material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations relating to child labour or forced
labour.
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Training and Development

In order to consolidate our leading position in the market, we
must continue to improve and introduce the latest craftsmanship,
technologies and industrial knowledge to continuously grow our
business. To this end, we have established a complete training
system to provide employees with diversified internal and external
training courses, so that they can continue to learn and keep
improving. We have in-house tutors to provide various training
courses to employees and seek collaboration with external
professional bodies, such as The H.K. Institute of Gemmology
and The Guangdong Province Jewellery and Precious Metal
Testing Center, to arrange external courses for employees. The
Group also funds employees to enroll in external courses to
support their continuous improvement. During the Reporting
Period, the Group trained each employee whose grade is deputy
manager or above for 24 hours every three years. A summary of
certain training courses held during the Reporting Period is as
follows:

Induction trainings
for new employees
e IBAEl
High-quality and outstanding skills
of customer services

BEREEE P RIS

Advanced jewellery knowledge
certificate courses
EPSTRE A ERE

SRR

Group’s orientation class

Coach-style leadership skills courses
for shop managers

&R E ERNBRIRERIGREE

Marriage ambassador training courses

IBE A EIEE)IERTE

1EANEE R
HEBEEAEENR TS LA R0
ATEED  FREREEME T E RMWATT
ENH BEBURBEZ R -BIL HFIRILR
EMEIE R RETRMZTIERAERA
SNEBIRFIERAR » MANPIRT B B KIF -
HMREEERNZEMRE THIRSBIE
Si2 BN RSB EF Al FRTR
EERAERERERETBRATO B
BTLRHNERE - BB ETTEEE K
SR EE Bt FIREI BB ERAZ - RIS H
B AEEASURKERIULETS=
FRM24/NEFIE - U T i — L8R S B
SAVIEFIERAE

High-quality service and jewellery
knowledge certificate courses
BERFBERENAES R

Knowledge of “Antique Gold” products
IhEEE EmAH

Sharing session for photographing
jewellery with mobile phone

TR ) SR
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The Harbour North branch won the prize in the “Online Learning Introductory Course of Natural
Diamonds” 2020 training competition

IAEDERTRAER LS L2 AFIRRE 202055 5|l A F LR

During the Reporting Period, the branch under the Group participated in the “Online Learning Introductory
Course of Natural Diamonds” 2020 training competition organised by the Natural Diamond Council, aiming to
enhance employees’ knowledge of identifying natural diamonds, during which the Harbour North branch won a
prize.

RRESHAR AERZBHE T AE2MRABA G EEMN IRAELE 2B APIRE] 20205 5K
B BEUHRABILENRAEBONGH - R A IEAER D 5B RESRIE
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Recognised as “QF Star Employer”
EETATQFEREE)

During the Reporting Period, the Group was again awarded as “QF Star Employer” in the “Qualifications
Framework” scheme, in recognition of our active application of the qualifications framework to promote talent
development.

REBSHE AEBBERAREERBISTEIZIQFERET )  URBHMBBREBEBERBLUIEE A
THRE-
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Safety and Health of Employees

The health and safety of employees is a matter of greatest
concern to the Group. Only by taking good care of the well-being
of our employees can we continue to improve and make further
achievements through the efforts of our employees. To this end,
we are committed to establishing a comprehensive occupational
health and safety system, and formulating appropriate measures
to maintain a healthy and safe working environment and abide
by the Occupational Safety and Health Regulations, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases, the Work-related Injury Insurance
Regulations and other relevant laws and regulations. During the
Reporting Period, there was no material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations relating to the occupational safety.

Number of work-related fatalities in past three years:
BASERTUHRAR

Rate of work-related fatalities in past three years:
BESFRTTHRLE !

In terms of health, we buy work-related injury insurance for our
employees, and provide protective equipment such as masks and
gloves as required by position. In terms of safety, we regularly
inspect occupational hazard protection and emergency rescue
facilities, and promptly arrange maintenance in case of any
damage or problem incurred. The Group has set up a security
department in the jewellery processing plant in Nansha, and the
person in charge conducts regular inspections to identify and
manage occupational hazards and disease risks, and to minimise
related risks. In order to strengthen employees’ awareness of
occupational health and safety, we provide occupational safety
rules, provide regular training to explain fire and safety and
hygiene knowledge, and will also carry out regular fire drills.
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Making concerted efforts to fight against the pandemic

EF—OEHERE

In view of the raging outbreak of pandemic, in order to reduce the health and safety risks caused by the
pandemic, we have implemented the policy of putting prevention first and strict pandemic prevention measures
in the workplace to minimise the risk of virus transmission, including:

BIRRE HAEEBRTRNERNZ2 AR RMOEBMBELE—NA i R IESFREEEIPZE
B BREEERARAERE 84 !

° The jewellery processing plant in Nansha implemented the measures of quarantine inspection, health
protection and safety production upon the resumption of operation in compliance with the “Work
Programme for On-site Inspection of Industrial Enterprises upon Resumption of Work” issued by the local
government.

e (IREPHNBRBENIRZRBHEBFEHMN(TXCEETIRSEZETFEAHZE) P IRE TRHHET
BB BRRENZ DL ERET

o We provided online training on “Knowledge of Preventing and Controlling COVID-19” and distributed
“Personal Hygiene Handbook for COVID-19” to our employees, to communicate on the working area and
knowledge of personal and household protection

o MEIRMEITE AR F I K AE AP R # AR 153> TR EE (7 L AR 3 b K AE A B & 1) >
BT F&E B A E Kb E M 3

o We instructed employees to wear masks, check body temperature, wash hand frequently, disinfect
regularly, reduce meetings and maintain social distance.

e RESTFHFAHOS - ZZREWA 8AF  EHES B ER L RIFLI B
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Business Ethics

The Group adheres to strict principles of business ethics and
integrity in business operations. We have formulated and
improved systems in accordance with the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Hong Kong Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance and other laws and regulations, as well as
industrial standards, including the Kimberley Process Certification
Scheme, the “Best Practice Principles” of De Beers, the “Practice
Guidelines” of the Responsible Jewellery Council and the “Code
of Practice for the Jewellery Retail Sector” of the Hong Kong
Consumer Council, to prevent corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud,
money laundering and other illegal behaviours. Employees are
required to sign the “Integrity Undertaking ({B&;2 &£ ))” when
they join us, whereby promising to uphold business ethics and
discipline, and to prevent the transfer of benefits. If an employee
accepts the gifts from business partners, he/she shall declare
and register the “Registration Form for Receiving Gifts and Red
Pockets in Lunar New Year (GTEWEBR&FIEEHLE))
with the Cashier Department and have it signed and confirmed
by the manager-in-charge. The red pockets and gifts received
will be collected uniformly and later evenly distributed among
colleagues for raffles and dinner together. We have also issued
the “Preventive Guidelines against Crimes of Money Laundering
and Terrorist Financing ((FBRA /BRI R E B M ERICIEIE
5]))” to the staff of Hong Kong and Macau branches to guide
the person-in-charge and colleagues of each branch to assess
and identify the risks and countermeasures of money laundering
and terrorist financing. In addition to requiring employees to abide
by ethical standards, we also expect suppliers, customers and
partners to uphold the same principles. We require suppliers to
sign the “Integrity Trading Policy for Suppliers (fFEREEZT
SHEE))", and issue the “Guidelines of Soliciting or Accepting
Advantages for Employees of the Group (EE{REZ=E&UL
THIZIES]))” to customers, suppliers and partners to remind
them that they cannot transfer benefits to our employees. If there
is any suspected corruption or other illegal behaviours, employees
can report to the Group immediately. We undertake to follow up
with the most rigorous and timely attitude. During the Reporting
Period, there was no material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations on the prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.
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CARING FOR THE COMMUNITY

We firmly believe that the Group must shoulder the responsibility
of corporate citizenship to help those in need in society, in return
for the support and recognition of the Group from the community.
Therefore, we invest certain resources every year to cooperate
with non-profit making organisations, participate in various public
welfare activities, and respond to the needs of the community with
our strength.

Fully Supported the 2020 Guangzhou Marathon
2N EF2020FE BN BHINES

FEHE
HAREAEBNAREEELARINEE
HHEFENH T LERTEN AL UOE
HEaTAERNZFESE - SUL- %aﬁt
FHRB— Eélﬁ/\3F$%U7f§E7f§AT’E’%Eﬂ
BEAHEE REMNHELEHERE

During the Reporting Period, the Group once again became a supporter of the Guangzhou Marathon. We
designed and produced 20,000 full Marathon finisher medals inlaid with colored gemstones for the event,
crowning tens of thousands of runners. The design concept of the medal was derived from the “Waking Lion”,
the intangible cultural heritage of Guangdong Province, symbolizing wisdom and courage and inspiring people.
Besides, surf pattern design was used on the outside of the medal, which meant the runners was riding the
wind and waves on the track and moving forward courageously. The medal was also decorated with colorful
garnets, which symbolized brightness and hope. The back of the medal was used for recording the runners’
finishing miles with certain space reserved for runners’ personalized engraving, which made the medals unique.
FEENRSHBEERABNEHMNEENZFE RMARFEENESR TR F20,00088 212 FH
MEBEYETERE AHRLEF MR RENR A REEREIFMEXCEE BEM > EREES
o IRERO IS REINER LBRARS FBEFEEE LFRAKER  BEEA > MERRE LR

TEERRG KEUCRERE REERTHEFNTEERY UHREEMEEFFEMRCIFRR

RERAEE-
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Supported the Charitable Activities
B ER

During the Reporting Period, the Group has made donation to Yan Chai Hospital, Women’s Welfare Club,
Western District, Hong Kong (& 5 & {5 Z @F) 2 1- /% 8 F) and Lions Clubs of Sham Shui Po Hong Kong
(BFA R HIFE)to support their activities, including gala dinner in the Women’s Welfare Club, Western
District, Hong Kong, Charity Poon Choi Banquet of Yan Chai Hospital, and Charity Dinner and Ball of Yan Chai
Hospital and the “Hong Kong Junior Chess Competition” of Lions Clubs of Sham Shui Po Hong Kong.

RREME AEERE AR EMNGCEBRURB AR KT FE LB U FEERNE
%Jj’ BESEABERZENEHEMRE - CEBREASARE CEBRASEEFGURB AR K HFE

EBELDERMELLEE -

Cared for the poor families

RIREERE

Meanwhile, the Group also devoted in encouraging our licensees to shoulder the corporate responsibility
together and express their cares for the needy. During the Reporting Period, our licensees delivered food and
clothing to impoverished families in Jiajiazhuang, Changlianggou, Xinzhou, Shanxi Province, and donated money
to support poor families who lost their source of income due to accidents. In addition, different licensees offered
their helping hands in various ways in hope of assisting citizens from all walks of life. For example, some visited
needy families or elderly people living alone around Xinhui District and gave each household quilts and their
warmth; some offered free vision check for staff from Zijin County No. 3 Primary School, Wushi Health Center,
and Zijin Broadcasting and Television Bureau; some joined China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation and made
regular donation to children who live in countryside.
AEERKEBREEBERMNREELREECELAREE MARENALTRTEATIZIE - RIS AR
EMNREERLUARSIINMERFERZEERTNERNREX LT ERERKRREHEA M WIRHRER)
HABIIERERARBNEERE Rtz KREREETSEESHBENGE AN ARKRSHHTEE
HERERBERENMNBTEEN SRELBE AR L REEHR =/ -EAEERKEEERERD
NIEASRERENG IR 2EPEKERES S KN ZESATHRENRE  HEEE IS E
HHR -
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STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

Bt RZFRIRIR - 1 B R E iRk S1551 R

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TEER EE —REERMBERER

A. Environmental

A IRER

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1 : Bkt

KPIA1.1
RREIERAL

KPI A1.2
BB IEEAL.2

KPIA1.3
FIRENIEIRA1S

KPI A1.4
RRERIERALA

KPIA1.5
RRERIERALS

KPI A1.6
RREWISIEAL6

General Disclosure Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation

of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—MRiKRE

BHBERRRZERBEHN Bk KTt mH

EAERBEREMNELSMN

(@) B, R

b) BFHETAREAXENEBEER
ROINER

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

HEE AR R

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and
intensity.
BEREOHHEREE

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

ELEERENBEREE

Total non-hazardous waste produced and
intensity.
MELRERENESREE

Description of measures to mitigate emissions
and results achieved.

AR ENERRAERR
Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
HREEEERBERENN G E AEE
FEMNEHRMERE

Policy/Procedure

B/

Air Emission Management

Guideline

BRI EEES

Solid Waste Management

Guideline
EfeEE e EEs]

Wastewater Emission
Management Guideline

BB E RS

N/A
TR

N/A
TER

N/A
TER
N/A
TR

N/A
TER

N/A
~ER
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Section/Disclosure

il L

Sustainable and Responsible

Jewellery Sourcing

RRRERAEERE

Emission Reduction

DB

Emission Reduction

OB
Recycling of Recovery

EREU

Recycling of Recovery
EROU

Recycling of Recovery

BBl

Recycling of Recovery

EREU
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TEHEE EE —REERMBERER

Aspect A2: Use of
Resources

BEA2 : ERfER

KPI A2.1
R R IEEAL1

KPI A2.2
R IEEA2.2

KPIA2.3
FIRENIEIRA2.3

KPIA2.4
PR EIEIRA2.4

KPIA2.5
RENIEIRA2.5

Aspect A3: The
Environment and Natural
Resources

EEA3 : RERXAER

KPI'A3.1
RERUIEIRA

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw materials
—RiRE

BHUFERER (B1EER  KREMEMR)
RIER o

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type in total and intensity.

BB DN ERR/IEEEREEERE
fgo

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BEKEBREE

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

HEERER N st B RFTEMER o

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
HKBUBA KR LA B R EE > UkiE
FRKM @B RPISHR

Total packaging material used for finished
products, and if applicable, with reference to

per unit produced.
S mPrABEMHNEBREEEB L
%0

General Disclosure

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural
resources.

—MRIRE
HEETAHBRRRAEREREAT 2
HYBLR o

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.
BIEBEHHRERAABRNEATZ
RERREEEHY ENTH-

Policy/Procedure

HEEF

Green Office Guideline

B eS|

Environmental Procurement
Guideline

BREEIFES

Office and Workshop General
Operation Guideline
WAERITH—REFES
N/A

AER

N/A
~ER

N/A
~ER

N/A
~ER

N/A
~ER

Green Office Guideline

e aLEs

Environmental Procurement
Guideline
RAREET AL

Office and Workshop General
Operation Guideline
WAERITH—REMFES
N/A

TER

Section/Disclosure

EHi/2H

Sustainable and Responsible
Jewellery Sourcing
AREREREEERE

Rational Use of Energy
ERER

Protection of Water
Resources
EEKER

Rational Use of Energy
ERER

Protection of Water
Resources

EEAER

Packaging Materials

2

Sustainable and Responsible
Jewellery Sourcing
OEGERG EARE

Sustainable and Responsible
Jewellery Sourcing
ARERERGEERE
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI Policy/Procedure Section/Disclosure
TEHE -BE —REBERMEEEER BEBF EHi/EH

B. Social

B.3#t®

Employment and Labour Practices

ERRFEIER

Aspect B1: Employment General Disclosure Staff Handbook People Empowerment
EBEB1 : {&{E Information on: BEFH N RREE

(@) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

—RR IR

Bl RRRE BERSH TR R

B TERE S REBRUREMESE

RAENE

(8) BER; R

o) BFHETABEATENHERERR

REIBER

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, N/A Diversified Talent Team
R B IEIZR A age group and geographical region. BB AT B

2R BERE  FERARN &R D HE

BR%-
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group N/A To be disclosed in future
RSB IEIER1.2 and geographical region. TEH ESG report.

BRI FERANRMER HNERRKL SERKRRNERE HER

Ko ERRERE-
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TEREER EE —REERMBERER

Aspect B2: Health and
Safety
BEB2: BREARZ

KPI B2.1
R RENIEER2.1

KPI B2.2
RRENIEER2.2

KPI B2.3
RRENIEER2.3

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

—RiRE

BEREZ2TERREREREEEREE

HREN:

(B B &

) BFHETAREAXENEREIER
RAINER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

RIERHEMETHARRLEE.

Lost days due to work injury.

RIGHELTIERE-

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented
and monitored.
HMPTFR AN B ERERAZ 2R Wk
BRITREERE.

Policy/Procedure Section/Disclosure

BiRAEF EHi/8H

Occupational Health and Safety Safety and Health of

Guideline for Office and Retail Employees

Store BT%E

BRAERZEENBERERE

2153

N/A During the Reporting Period,

B there were no cases of
work-related fatality.
AREHURAEMEAIE
BARMECHER.

N/A To be disclosed in future

TEHR ESG report.
HERARNRE HER
BARERSE

N/A Safety and Health of

TER Employees
BTIZRE
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TEHEE EE —REERMBERER

Aspect B3: Development
and Training
[BEB3 : EERIE

KPI B3.1
RENIEIRB

KPIB3.2
RENISIRBR.2

Aspect B4: Labour
Standards
[BEB4 : ¥ T 5

KPI B4.1
FRENIEIRBA

KPI B4.2
RENIEIRBA.2

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

—RRIRE
BERMEERT LB BN H R AN
BUR - BB HIE S o

The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category.

Rith R ESENEDNRIEER AL

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
rURNREEERE D BLEE AT
R]i53 @

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

—RiRE

AEABLEETHAEGETH

(8) EE; R

) BFHETABEAZENAMLIER
RAIMER

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
s R B AR T8 R B T Rkl

%I

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

B ZEREREREERARERMRR
BF R

Policy/Procedure

HEEF

Staff Handbook
EEFH

N/A
~ER

N/A
~ER

Staff Handbook
BEFMH

N/A
~ER

N/A
~ER

Section/Disclosure

EHi/2H

Training and Development
BHlEE

To be disclosed in future
ESG report.
HERRRNRE HER

EARERE-

To be disclosed in future
ESG report.
HERKRRNRE HER

EARERE-

Respect for Employees
§858T

To be disclosed in future
ESG report.
HERRRNERE T8 Rk
BARERSE-

To be disclosed in future
ESG report.
SERKRNRE HER

EARERE
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TEHEE EE —REERMBERER

Operating Practices

EERA

Aspect B5: Supply Chain

Management

[EmEBS : {EEER

KPI B5.1
RRENIEIRBE.1

KPIB5.2
RENISIRBE.2

Aspect B6: Product
Responsibility
BEB6 : EREE

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.

—RiEE

BEMREENIRE R & RBEER

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BB D HEHHE

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.
HREMERHEBNELN WERNTEH
BRIMMEREESE U BRIEBAINHNITR
BERA*e

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods

of redress.

—RRIRE

BRMERERNESNEREZ2 BS-

RERWREE URMEMA AN

(B) B &

) BTHETABEAZENAMLIER
RRBIER o

Policy/Procedure

HEEF

Corruption Prevention Policy

REXZHR

Engineering and Operation of
Goods Approval Process
TEREBNRBRRE

Financial Authorization and Signing
Approval Procedure

MHERERSBRIZERRE

N/A
~ER

N/A
~ER

Integrate Quality and
Environmental Manual

ReFh

Customer Complaint Handling
Procedure

BERAEEER

Section/Disclosure

EHi/2H

Responsible Sourcing
BEARE

To be disclosed in future
ESG report.
HERRRNRE B K
BA RERE-

To be disclosed in future
ESG report.
HERKRNRE HER
A REEKE-

Responsible Promotion

BEFEE
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TEHEE EE —REERMBERER

KPI B6.1
AR B IE1RB6.1

KPI B6.2
R AR IERB6.2

KPIB6.3
PR B 151RB6.3

KPI B6.4
RSB NIEIRB6.4

KPI B6.5
FIRENIE1RB6.5

Aspect B7: Anti-
corruption

BEBT:R&S

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
BEFEEXEREYETARZAREER
IRl ER

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
BEMNERKRBNRHFYEURRELE A
e

Description of practices relating to observing
and protecting intellectual property rights.
HhEERERRERHEREENEA -

Description of quality assurance process and

recall procedures.

HhEERTBRRERLWER

Description of consumer data protection and

privacy policies, how they are implemented and

monitored.

WO EE ERRE RARIER > LR 8

RITRERRE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

—fRiRE
BRI R RERE RN
(@) B, R

b EFHETAREAYENEMEER
SAIEYER -

Policy/Procedure

HEEF

N/A
ER

Customer Complaint Handling
Procedure
BERHEEER

N/A
TER

N/A
TEA

Privacy Policy

MIRER

Staff Handbook
BEFMH

Corruption Prevention Policy
AR AR

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Section/Disclosure

EHi/2H

To be disclosed in future ESG
report.
HERARRNRE - HERE
B RERE

Number of products and service
related complaints received:

To be disclosed in future ESG
report.
BERNERKRBNERRY
B

HERKARNEBE HBRE

B BRERE-

How complaints are dealt with:
Quality Assurance

EHR%  BERE

Protection of Intellectual Property
Rights

REERBERE

Quality Assurance

BEfRE

Protect Privacy

RIEMR

Business Ethics
[EESEE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BIE B REARE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TEHEE EE —REERMBERER

KPI B7.1
R B SIRBT 1

KPIB7.2
FIRENIEIRBT .2

Community

#HE

Aspect B8: Community
Investment

EEBSHERE

KPI B8.1
R A IERB.

KPIB8.2
FRENIEIRB8.2

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the Reporting Period and
the outcomes of the cases.
WE&B‘HW%ﬁ*ﬁ)\iﬁféakﬁiaﬁm
WEETAR Y E R

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

B HERRRREL URERRTR
BER*e

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities” interests.

—RE
BRMHE2ERTREEMEHERE
RERAZHIHEZEHETN R Eﬁﬂzﬁo
Focus areas of contribution.

BT EMHE

Resources contributed to the focus area.

EEEEBFBPER-

Policy/Procedure

HEEF

N/A
ER

N/A
TER

We are in the process of setting up
the community investment policies.

BMREREHBRREBR

N/A
TER

N/A
~ER

Section/Disclosure

EHi/2H

The Group has no concluded
legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the
Group or our employees during
the Reporting Period.

AEERRSHBL EEAH
K%Yﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]él%mﬁe

BRENESHFDNES

Business Ethics

[GESEE

Caring for the Community
HEHE

Caring for the Community
BEHE

Caring for the Community
BEHE
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XEARS

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
AND BOARD COMMITTEES
ERGREFZAENRIE

As at 31 March 2021
R20218E3831H

Remarks: 5t :

1 Executive Director /T &%

2 Non-executive Director JFHITHES

3 Independent Non-executive Director %17 JFHITES

4 Wil cease to be a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 July 2021
B2021E7B18E BABRAHHNEEERE

104 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75{8£E (B BRAE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERQRS

The Board of the Company recognises that sound and
effective corporate governance practices and procedures,
with an emphasis on integrity, transparency, accountability and
independence, are essential to enhance the shareholders’ value
and safeguard the shareholders’ interests. The Company is
committed to maintaining a good corporate governance standard
and endeavours to ensure that its businesses are conducted in
accordance with all applicable rules and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

External Auditor
MR AZ B A

P e T T e ]

~

Internal Audit
Department

REIEEE

Chairman

x*E

Risk Management
Committee

AABMEZTGRE EARABTEN B
E-BEMREILIMEZERT BREREWZ
TEEARRKEFHETRREBERRE
REEDB/BEZ - ARFEEMEFTRIFE
FELRE W EFREEAEBEARR
RIRETES

Shareholders
&R

———

The Company
AR

Company Secretary

EREEEEE

Audit Committee
BiZz&REg

Remuneration Committee

o T e e e e e e e e

Board of Directors

HNEEE £5g
Nomination Committee |
REEEE
Management
SIRfE

e e e e e e e e e e

NEAME

e e e e e e e e e
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRS

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
code provisions and, where applicable, the recommended best
practices of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on Stock Exchange during the Year under review, except for the
following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual, so that there is a clear division
of responsibilities for the management of the Board and the
day-to-day management of the Group’s business to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

In view of the increasing trend of business deriving from the
Mainland market, it is believed that Mr. WONG Wai Sheung
being the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
will further enhance the business development of the Group in
the Mainland market due to its norms on “status parity” when
future business negotiations are conducted in Mainland. Besides,
members of the Board also include qualified professionals and
other prominent and experienced individuals from our community.
The Board considers that the existing Board composition, with
the support of Board Committees and two Deputy Chairmen,
can ensure a balance of power and authority. The Board will
nevertheless review this structure from time to time and will
consider the segregation of the two roles at the appropriate time.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors is aware of any
information that would reasonably indicate that the Company
is not, or was not for any part of the Year under review, in
compliance with the CG Code.

REIBEFERN  ARABDEHRABRAES L
mARR (T EWARR) WE4Fr sz (R EER
STRDR(EEERKRE) (EXEEARTR) B
[RA) M BETAAE TR RERRERR
WEA) > ETIRBEEFRIN

TFRMFESCHEA 2R E £ E BT BB ERNA
BEEED UAEE—ARERE RES
CEEAAEEOEEBEEZREREE
7 LEREDMR B T

HRAMTSESHEBRER BERNEH HE
A 2B HERERBEEEREELRAR
FREFRTHBE JERRREAMETE
BiEER E-—SRAFEREAMT RN
FHEUR- I EFETHETEREERE
FEANT KRG EHEMEBEM  SERZER A
T-BEFERRN NEFEETZETAWE
BIEREZHE T HEEEFG ZHEMARERE
RAOMBEZ T -BEWMIL EFGR T
R ET ML 2R AE 0SB B R R 0 R WD
B o

BREXIRBEINN EFHANTEERNER
AR EERA R B IRE NN OB FEE AR
BIEEEREEERTA
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEELARS

The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
of all directors, they confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during the
Year under review.

() Board Composition

The Board currently comprises five executive directors,
three non-executive directors and four independent non-
executive directors. They include persons with a wealth of
practical experiences in the jewellery industry, accountancy
profession, securities industry, banking industry and legal
profession. The Board possesses a balance of skills,
experiences and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. The composition
of our Board complies with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules. The current members of the Board are
set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung

(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy
Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairmar)
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

The biographical details of the directors are set out in the
section of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 138 to 148 of this Annual Report.

KRB EHFM LR E10PRE 2 (L%
TABRETESFXZRETH]) (BT
Al) EREFETREFXZZBRTER K
MEREEFHAREHE  REMRINE
BFEEA—BETRETRIFHEZ R EZER]
REMERETIRFRS ZBTER]

() EFFZHEM
EFEREFHILRTES =N
TEFKRNOLBIUIFNTESRHEMN B
PEERKETE A EX RBHT
F RITEREREXEREZEHER
ZANT - BEFERBREERBETM
BZHARE - KRRZSENAE B
FEZEMTE EHRAE3.10(1)K(2)
1% B3 10AF - R EFE N B H U
™

BITES

=HEBRE
(EEFITHAEE)

BmERE BIE/E)

EI5B L+

=4 =g

BREIEIEL

JEHITES

/El/l:l EE;EE (EH/:I_E_ )

Bl el o i

2 EBBS ) MHAK P4+

BIAFRNITESR
EHBCBSK ML
ZOKRIE
EOUBER T
SFRELSTE

EXEEFBHNAEFREIBBEES

148B EERGSREEANEZBFE
1H1—Efe
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PEERAHS

(i)

Attendance Records at the Board, Board

Committees and General Meetings

The attendance records of the individual directors at
the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and general meetings during the
Year under review are set out as follows:

Board
Directors Bx Bxg
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & &BE&E (ZEH# 4/4
Chisf Executive Officer) (Note 1) TBAaE) (Mat1)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen HmEEE 4/4
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 2) &) ()
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung BRI xegun 4/4
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy e 4/4
Dr. CHAN So Kuen REBEEL 4/4
Non-executive Directors EHTES
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny EERLE 4/4
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 3) EZ/E) (W23)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline (Note 4) 15 8% ¢+ (ffs4) 1/1
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP SFRRA T T 44
Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP ZEIHBBS ) MHA T4+ 4/4
Independent Non-executive BiE#TES
Directors
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander BERKE (Wa2s) 11
(Note 5)
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP  E#BGBSK T4+ 4/4
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin BRREE 4/4
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP BEAT ML 4/4
Mr. HUI King Wai FmESE 4/4
Notes:

1.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was re-elected as the Chairman of the
Company with effect from 20 August 2020.

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman of the
Company with effect from 20 August 2020.

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman
of the Company with effect from 20 August 2020.

Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline ceased to be a Non-executive Director
of the Company with effect from 12 August 2020.

Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander retired and ceased to be an
Independent Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from the
conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 20 August 2020.

During the Year under review, the Chairman held a meeting with
the Independent Non-executive Directors without presence of
other directors.

(i)

EFCER EREZETERRK

RREZHFERE
B ESROBEFERNRTZEEEY
B BREZEEER RBREEGEH

MINEEEERMRRARE 2 HFECHR

AW
No. of Meetings Attended/Held
HE/BITEERY
Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BENRZET R4ZET HHERET RREEXE
N/A R4 2/2 2/2 11
N/A REHA 2/2 N/A B 11
N/A B N/A REBA 2/2 il
N/A R4 N/A REF N/A R 11
N/A R 58 N/A RER N/A R 11
N/A R4 N/A REF N/A R 11
N/A R4 N/A RE A N/A R4 N/A RE
N/A B N/A REBA N/A REA il
N/A R4 N/A REFR N/A R 11
11 11 1 1/1
2/2 2/2 2/2 11
2/2 2/2 2/2 11
2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
2/2 2/2 2/2 11
BI5E -
1. =EEEE B2020E8F20 0 REEEA K
NSIESEE
2. Hm A B20205E8H20 A iR EEA K
NEBIEFE -
3. =SB B2020F8 20 IRE EEA R
NERIERE
4, BE®R LT H2020E88 12H BB IEEA
RNEZIEPITES -
5. HE R o4 B20209F8H20 8 217 AR ERIB

FREERFERTUFAFEEAATZE
YFPTEE - EZEZETTRKFNES
EREREEERANME

REBFER TRERKXBEMEFHET
BEIIFTERRIT T —RE&H-
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(iii)

(iv)

EEAWMS

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of
the Company within a framework of prudent and effective
controls which enables risks to be assessed and managed.
The Board controls the business but delegates day-to-day
responsibilities to the executive management. The Board
sets the Company’s strategic aims, values and standards
and ensures that its obligations to its shareholders and
others stakeholders are understood and fulfilled by the
members of the Board.

The Company has a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision. The Board gives clear
directions to management as to the matters that must be
approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf
of the Company.

All the directors of the Company have full and timely access
to all relevant information and have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that all proper Board procedures,
applicable rules and regulations are followed. All the
directors including the independent non-executive directors
may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense in carrying out
their functions, upon making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
regularly.

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Board has received from
each of the independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms.
WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI King Wai, an annual
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and, having taken into account
the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules in
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors, the Company considers that all independent non-
executive directors are independent.

(iii)

(iv)

EFTRERENNER

EFEZHEAULERFEH FEEE
AABZAE REBEEMZEERE
mE R EERR EETREEXT
MEEXFHEFIRENTEERE
B-BEFEHFIARTZREER B
BRRE BRESENEEERET
HERRKREMFNEZER
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ZEH - EFEEMAEFTEHEST
REREREFHREZEE BEEE
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BHERERRERERTRIWEZE
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EXeRERFURETHREBRRAK
ROl -2REE (OEBUFNTESR)
RETHBR SR RAEFTRHER
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ARBEREFLZHBEESTERE > MU
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

EEAWMS

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors (Continued)

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen has served as an independent
non-executive director of the Company for more than
9 years. He will retire and offer for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the
Company to be held on 19 August 2021. Pursuant to CG
Code Provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, his re-election as
Director should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders. The Company’s circular to be
despatched to shareholders on or about 19 July 2021 will
contain the biographical information of Mr. IP Shu Kwan,
Stephen and the reasons why the Board believes he is still
independent and should be re-elected.

During the Year under review and up to the date of
this Annual Report, the Board had at all times met the
requirements under (i) Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise; and (i) Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the board.

Directors’ Relationship

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or connected
relationship between members of the Board.

Re-election of Directors

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s AGM in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ Ongoing Development

All directors have the opportunities to receive professional
training programmes arranged by the Company during
their terms of appointment covering the topics of corporate
governance, updates on the Listing Rules and other
regulatory developments at the expense of the Company.
Directors are encouraged by the Company to participate in
the relevant continuous professional training to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has also
arranged for consultants to provide training programmes.
The average training hours that the directors received were
not less than 10 hours.

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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(vii) Directors’ Ongoing Development (Continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company
arranged a seminar covering the topic of personal
information collection. The current directors’ training records
during the Year under review are summarised as follows:

Directors 55

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung =EBLEE
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (F/EFITHAEH)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen HmeitE
(Deputy Chairman) (GESE),

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung FIERELZ+

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy BEFLT

Dr. CHAN So Kuen REEEL

Non-executive Directors JEMITES

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny BERRSTE
(Deputy Chairman) (GESE),

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP SRR T AL

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors JHIIJEHITESE

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP B EIGBS A 4+
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin ERA/RESE

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP BB

Mr. HUI King Wai ST R A

The Chairman leads the Board in the determination of strategies
and in the achievement of objectives and ensures that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings and
receive adequate, complete and reliable information. The Chief
Executive Officer is delegated with the authority and responsible
for running the Company’s business, implementing the
Company’s strategies in achieving business objectives. Both the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer positions are currently
held by Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, an executive director. The Board
believes that the current governance structure, with a combined
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and a vast majority of non-
executive directors, provides an effective balance of power and
authority for the management of the Company in the best interest
of the Company at the present stage.

FE#BBS > MHA F#h L

(viii EFHNFEERE (&)
B E2021E3H31HLIEEE » AAE B £
T—XAFE AR EREBAER Y E
HEE REEFER REEENIE
SlEeig i T

Training on regulatory development,
directors profession or duties,

or other relevant topics
FRSERR - ERERAMEN

H {th 48 FA R =E RV E 2

v

NSNS

AN

NSNS

ITRABEFERERBRENER  WHE
REREEFHESTTER LWEREBEN
B WREHESEN TBKRAIENES-
THRRERED EERAREHEE
TERBZREE LBEREFER  THERT
HBEMENRBRFOHATESTERE
TEHE-BEFERE URFHHNERREBM
E (- AREEERTEEE URAEBD
HRIFRITESR) EUBRERARABEEREE
BOBRE §aR AR R RENm-e
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All the non-executive directors are appointed for a term of two
years, and the appointments are renewable from time to time,
subject to retirement by rotation at AGM.

The Board has established three Board committees, including
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing the respective aspects of the Group’s
affairs.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense
in appropriate circumstances.

0

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1 February 1999
with written terms of reference accessible on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, with
three other members namely Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen,
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI King Wai. All
Committee members are independent non-executive
directors, exceeding the requirement of a high majority of
independent non-executive directors by the Listing Rules.
In compliance with the requirements of Rules 3.10(2) and
3.21 of the Listing Rules, majority of the members possess
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

During the Year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to discuss and review, inter alia, the interim and
annual financial statements, the submission and publication
of the interim and annual reports, the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report, the corporate governance
and compliance status of the CG Code and the internal
audit plan and functions of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
FY2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee is of the view that the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for FY2021 comply with
the applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules,
and that sufficient disclosures have been made.

PREFRRTESZERAME  MEEF
FREE EARKRRBEFRE LRHESR

EFARTR
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TEXRBIEXER BABRARRKE-
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FOHM=EmMEAERERRE B
BT RTHRRTE - ZZEE2HN
EABIUEHTES BB LLHRAA
AR EBABILIERTESHR
FEo&R EHREE3.102)E K3.211&
ZHRE ABOHREEBECBEEER
NEBESHAERVEEEER
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(i)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Company believes that a clear appreciation of the
separate roles of the management, the external auditor
and Audit Committee members is crucial to the effective
functioning of an audit committee. The Board is responsible
for selecting appropriate accounting policies and the
preparation of the financial statements. The external auditor
is responsible for auditing and attesting to the Group’s
financial statements and evaluating the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, to the extent
that they consider necessary to support their audit report.
The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the entire
process.

The major functions and duties of the Audit Committee
mainly include:

° reviewing the Group’s interim and annual financial
statements and the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board for approval;

° reviewing the financial reporting obligations and
considering any matters raised by the Group’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or external auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor, and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards;

o approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor and making recommendations
on the appointment, re-appointment or removal of
external auditor;

° reviewing the internal audit programme and ensuring
that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and effective, and considering any major findings of
risk management and internal control matters;

(i)
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(1)

EEAWMS

Audit Committee (Continued)

o reviewing the financial control, risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and ensuring
that the management has discharged its duty to
have effective risk management and internal control
systems, in particular, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions; and

o reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and the Company’s
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

As at 31 March 2021, the arrangements for employees and
stakeholders of the Group to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, risk management,
internal control or other matters and the whistleblowing
procedures are in place.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 1 April
2012 with written terms of reference accessible on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. MAK Wing Sum,
Alvin, being an independent non-executive director, with five
other members namely Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE
Moon Chuen, Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, Ms. WONG Yu
Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI King Wai. The Chairman of this
Committee and four out of six members are independent
non-executive directors, a high majority of independent non-
executive directors which meets the requirement of the CG
Code.

During the Year under review, the Nomination Committee
held two meetings to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors, review and make
recommendation to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and to review the retirement and
rotation plan of the directors, and make recommendation
to the Board on the selection of the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

(i)

(1)
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

The principal role and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee mainly include giving full consideration to
succession planning for directors and senior management,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive directors. In order to achieve a
balanced and appropriately qualified Board, the Nomination
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition, including the skills, knowledge,
diversity and experience, of the Board, and advising
the Board as to any changes that may be required. The
Nomination Committee has the authority given by the
Board to seek external professional advice in the selection
and recommendation for directorship, if necessary, to fulfil
the requirements for professional knowledge and industry
experience of any proposed candidates.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy sets out the criteria, procedures and
process to be adopted when considering candidates to be
appointed or re-appointed as directors of the Company.
The Nomination Committee would select the candidates
based on the objective criteria, including but not limited to
qualifications, skills, experience, independence, age, culture,
ethnicity and gender. The Nomination Committee would also
take into account whether the candidate can demonstrate
his/her commitment, competence and integrity required
for the position, and in case of independent non-executive
directors, the independence requirements under the Listing
Rules and their time commitment to the Company. The
Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
Nomination Policy and would review and recommend any
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval, when
necessary, to enhance effectiveness.

(i)
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

Board Diversity

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. As such, the Company continued to adopt
the board diversity policy during the Year under review. In
achieving a truly diverse Board, candidates with different
talents, skills, knowledge, length of service and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, age,
gender and other qualities may be selected as members of
the Board. Selection of candidates is based on a range of
diversity criteria. The ultimate decision is based on merit and
contribution which would be brought by the candidates to
the Board if he/she is selected as a director. The Nomination
Committee is of the view that the current composition of
the Board has achieved the objectives set out in the above
board diversity policy.

The Board is composed of members from a diverse
background. The Company excels in gender equality
as female directors account for one-third of the whole
Board. The chief financial officer, an executive director
and two independent non-executive directors are qualified
accountants. There is also an independent non-executive
director who is a qualified solicitor. The Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee was the Secretary for Economic
Development and Labour of the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Six directors have experience
sitting on the boards of other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. The directors have extensive experience
in the retail jewellery business, finance and accounting,
taxation, business strategy, securities and investment,
communications and marketing, branding, and exposure
or experience in various countries including Mainland,
etc. They are members, or committee or panel members
of various industry bodies, public service or government
bodies or charities. The Directors bring a wealth of diverse
experience to the Board, which is conducive to the business
development and growth of the Company over the years.

(i)
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 7
April 2005 with written terms of reference posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. IP Shu Kwan,
Stephen, being an independent non-executive director, with
five other members namely, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms.
WONG Hau Yeung, Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms. WONG
Yu Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI King Wai. The Chairman of this
Committee and four out of six members are independent
non-executive directors, meeting the requirement of a high
majority of independent non-executive directors by the
Listing Rules.

The principal role and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee mainly include making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy, structure and
packages for all remuneration of directors and senior
management; reviewing and approving performance-
based remuneration and the terms of service contracts
of the directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the compensation payable in connection with
any loss or termination of office or appointment of directors
and senior management, overseeing any major changes
in employee benefits structures throughout the Company
or the Group; and reviewing the on-going appropriateness
of the remuneration policy. No director or member of the
senior management determined his/her own remuneration
package.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during
the Year under review to review the remuneration policies
and recommend for the Board approval of the annual salary
increments for the calendar year 2021, the discretionary
year-end bonus for 2020 and the performance bonus for all
non-sales employees working at the headquarters.

Details of directors’ emoluments, five highest paid
individuals and the remuneration of the members of
the senior management by band during the Year under
review are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 245 to 248 of this Annual Report.

(iii)
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Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by the external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants and
Registered PIE Auditor, was as follows:

BRSNS IZ BB R L BIKE G STENE AT (L
FEE N REMARN I BERAHE) RHEEF
stRIEESHIRBZME DI T -

2021

HK$’000

FHEx

Audit services BT RTS 5,640

Non-audit services FFBESTARTS

— Review service —BERRT 560

— Tax related service — M EIERARRTS 1,349

Total 4Ect 7,549
The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to financial ~ MNEZ IR HFRE T E2BE > SR E

reporting are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of each financial period, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the end of the
financial period and of the results and cash flows of the Group for
the year. In the Company’s interim and annual reports which are
issued within the time limits stipulated by the Listing Rules, the
Board presents a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment
of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.
The published consolidated financial statements adopt, and
consistently apply, suitable accounting policies complying with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The Board ensures that the Company maintains sound and
effective risk management and internal control to safeguard the
shareholders’ interests and the Company’s assets. The Audit
Committee, with the assistance of the Internal Audit Department,
regularly reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems. The Head of the
Internal Audit Department directly reports to the Audit Committee.

The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines for
considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal
control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship
with the Company’s external auditor. The Audit Committee
established by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules has
clear terms of reference.
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In order to achieve enhancement of corporate governance of the
Company, the Board has undertaken and delegated to the Audit
Committee to constantly review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and the directors, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report. During the Year under review,
the Audit Committee performed the duties relating to corporate
governance matters as aforementioned.

During the Year under review, the company secretary undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update the skills and
knowledge, which exceeded the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

The Board is responsible for the Company’s systems of risk
management and internal control and for reviewing their
effectiveness annually through the Audit Committee.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee has received the risk management and
internal control evaluation reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Department. The reports summarised information relating to the
work carried out in the following areas:

° the results of selective testing of internal control procedures,
assets, and financial records of the Company;

° a general evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems installed by the Company; and

o an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during the
Year under review.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and discussed
with the management.

The Audit Committee recognised that an evaluation of the risk
management system and an examination of the internal control
system on an annual basis have been adequately executed by
the Internal Audit Department during the Year under review.
The Audit Committee acknowledged that the management has
been progressively implementing adequate and effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to ensure the
effective functioning of the Company’s operations.

Risk Management Committee

With an aim of establishing and improving the risk management
system, ensuring timely identification and management of
risks for the achievement of corporate objectives, the Risk
Management Committee was set up in 2016, comprising the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, four executive directors
(including Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung,
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy and Dr. CHAN So Kuen) and
a senior executive of the Group. The duties of the Risk
Management Committee include, but are not limited to: (i) review
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code regarding risk
management requirements; (i) coordinate staff training, including
risk management principles, assessment methodology and its
implementation; and (jii) assign personnel to support departments
to perform risk assessment for newly established business or
projects, if necessary. This committee reports directly to the Audit
Committee.

During the Year under review, the Risk Management Committee
held two meetings to discuss and review, inter alia, reports
on effectiveness of risk management processes, reports on
departmental risk assessment and the implementation progress of
the Group’s corporate strategies and key performance indicator
targets.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Risk Management Framework

The Company’s risk management framework provides a
systematic and disciplined approach to risk management
process, which is embedded in the system of internal controls as
an integral part of corporate governance. The risk management
framework helps sustain business success, creates value
for stakeholders and supports the Board in discharging its
corporate governance responsibilities by proactively identifying,
addressing and managing key risks within the Group. The
risk management framework is aligned with the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQO”)
integrated framework for effective internal controls, which
comprises 17 principles under 5 components, including Control
Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities, Information
and Communication and Monitoring Activities. Departments
& Management as risk owners take direct risk management
responsibilities and reports to the Risk Management Committee.

A summary of the risk management framework of the Company is
shown as below:

Risk Management Framework

R ERRE

Report
R

Audit Committee
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Risk Management Framework (Continued)
Board of Directors

Setting the basic tone and culture of risk management
across the Group;

Approving the criteria of risk assessment;

Approving major decisions affecting the Group’s risk profile
Or exposure;

Approving changes to key elements of the risk management
procedures;

Approving the Group’s risk management policy; and

Monitoring significant risks

Audit Committee

Reviewing the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

Ensuring that effective systems of risk management and
internal control are established by the management

Risk Management Committee

Recommending the Group’s risk tolerant level and criteria;

Approving standard risk management templates including
forms and tools;

Approving risk registers;

Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code
regarding risk management requirements;

Appointing risk owners;

Appointing staff to support departments to conduct risk
assessments on new ventures and activities;

Conducting review on procedures and policies of risk
management;

Reporting, if any, significant risks to Audit Committee in a
timely manner; and

Coordinating staff training
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Risk Management Framework (Continued) RS ERLIE @)

Departments & Management R EERE

Departments and management are responsible for the =FIREEEESHEEHE NIRRT
identification and assessment of risks within their areas of &P :

responsibility:

Objective Setting and Categorisation BIER T REE

e Strategies; o REY;

e Operation; . BE

e Financial reporting; and o IEER; &

e Compliance . =

Risk Identification BBz

e The Group provides examples of risk factors; and o AEERERREERKEHG ;
. Risks should be relevant to strategies and objectives . BB RIS B 2B R
Risk Analysis B ED T

e Considering existing control measures; o  EREIFHEITEN ;

e Using a consistent scoring criteria; and s  AH—RRESEL; &
e Assessing the residual risks o FEFIEREFE

Risk Treatment Bl % =

e Choosing a risk treatment strategy; o IEIERBFEHKRES ;

e Establishing a treatment plan; and o  FTNFEHE &

e Appointing risk owners e ZERRBESEA
Effectiveness of Monitoring and Reporting B R BRI

. Monitoring and reporting risks periodically; and . TEHIBERKERRER ; &

e Setting up an emergent risk reporting mechanism o RUTEREERTIE
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Review Processes of the Effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The management and the Risk Management Committee
review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems. The Internal Audit Department also conducts
independent audit of the effectiveness of these systems. Separate
reports are submitted to the Audit Committee for its review
and appraisal. A final report will be submitted to the Board for
accessing the effectiveness of the systems.

If any material internal control defects are found, the Audit
Committee will discuss them with the management. The Internal
Audit Department will follow up and/or re-classified as “severe”
risk in the risk management system for further formulating
measures to resolve or prevent such defects.

Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company acknowledges its responsibilities under Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules and the overriding
principle that inside information should be announced promptly.
The Company has established a policy for the disclosure of
inside information (the “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) with
close regard to the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information
issued by the Securities and Futures Commissions. The Inside
Information Disclosure Policy includes, among other things: (a)
only designated persons are authorised to communicate the
Company’s corporate matters with investors, analysts, the media
or other members of the investment community; (b) directors or
senior management shall report to the Chief Executive Officer any
potential/suspected inside information as soon as practicable for
him to consult (if appropriate) the Board thereafter for determining
the nature of developments and, if required, making appropriate
disclosure; (c) disclosure of inside information must be made
in a manner that can provide for equal, timely and effective
access by the public to the disclosed inside information; and (d)
inside information must be kept strictly confidential until a public
announcement is made and shall be disseminated in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules before it is released via
other means.
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The internal audit is an independent function undertaken by
the Internal Audit Department reporting administratively to the
Company’s management and reporting functionally to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department is authorised to obtain
all information necessary to accomplish internal audit work.

The Board has conducted an annual review to ensure the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

A risk-based audit approach has been adopted by the Internal
Audit Department. Internal control reviews are conducted regularly
to closely monitor business or operation changes. Regular audit
tests are carried out to ensure key controls are in operation.
The Internal Audit Department also conducts other projects and
investigating work as required.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with respective
department heads to have actions agreed and subsequently
followed up, in order to ensure that satisfactory control is
maintained.

In each semi-annual work plan, manning levels of the Internal
Audit Department are agreed with the Audit Committee. A
summary of the internal audit activities and audit results are also
submitted to the Audit Committee twice a year.

Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to submit a written requisition requiring a
SGM to be called by the Board. The written requisition (i) must
state the purposes of the SGM; and (i) must be signed by
the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
Company, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”) (Continued)

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the
requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them may convene a SGM, but
any SGM so convened shall not be held after expiration of three
months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. A SGM
convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in any SGM to be convened
by the Board.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, either any number of shareholders representing not
less than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
or not less than 100 shareholders, can request the Company in
writing to () give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next AGM notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (i) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company (contact details are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information”) with
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one
week before the meeting in case of any other requisition.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose for
election as a director have been posted on the website of the
Company.
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The Board maintains an ongoing dialogue with shareholders
and in particular, endeavours to provide transparency and uses
the AGM and investors’ conferences, to communicate with
shareholders and invites their participation in certain marketing
events. Besides, the Company’s official website serves as a
handy communication channel for the shareholders. Press
releases and announcements about the Company’s business
affairs are published from time to time.

The Company informs shareholders of the procedure for voting by
poll in the circular to shareholders, and ensures compliance with
the requirements regarding voting by poll contained in the Listing
Rules and the Company’s Bye-laws.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s
business address in Hong Kong at 25/F, Metropole Square, 2 On
Yiu Street, Shatin, New Territories. Shareholders may also make
proposals at the general meetings.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year under review.

The Dividend Policy sets out the principles and guidelines that the
Company intends to apply in relation to the declaration, payment
or distribution of its net profits as dividends to the shareholders
of the Company. The Company intends to distribute 40% to 45%
of its annual net profits as dividends to shareholders, having
taken into consideration certain criteria set out in the Dividend
Palicy, including the Group’s financial results; cash flow situation;
business conditions and strategies; future operations and
earnings; capital requirements and expenditure plans; interests of
shareholders; any restrictions on payment of dividends; and any
other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for FY2021.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sourcing, designing,
wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of gold
and platinum jewellery and gem-set jewellery products.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year under review,
the material factors underlying its results and financial position and
material attributable factors of the development and likely future
developments of the Group’s business, are provided throughout
this Annual Report, particularly in the following separate sections:

(@) Review of the Group’s business — “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 3 to 6 and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 7 to 28;

(b)  The principal risks and uncertainties the Group is facing —
“Report of the Directors” on pages 130 to 133;

(c)  Future development in the Group’s business — “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 3 to 6 and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 7 to 28;

(d) Analysis using financial key performance indicators —
“Financial Highlights” on page 1 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 28;

(e) Information about the Group’s ESG policies and
performance — “ESG Report” on pages 39 to 103 and
“Report of the Directors” on pages 129 to 157;
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) Discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations — “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 104 to 128 and “Report of the Directors” on pages
129 to 157; and

(9 An account of the Group’s key relationships with its
employees, customers and suppliers and others — “ESG
Report” on pages 39 to 103 and “Report of the Directors”
on pages 129 to 157.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the risk
management practices of the Group are sufficient to mitigate
the risks present in our businesses and operations as efficiently
and effectively as possible. The Board delegates some of such
responsibilities to various departments.

The Group’s financial position, operations, business and
prospects may be affected by the following identified risks and
uncertainties. The Group adopts risk management policies,
measures and monitoring systems to pre-empt and contain
exposures associated with the identified risks.

Economic Risks

Global Economic Condition

Possible economic slowdown or prolonged downturn of the
global or Mainland’s economy may affect the retail market
sentiment as a whole.

Tourist Destinations
The increase in popularity of other tourist destinations weakens
the spending of Mainland tourists in Hong Kong and Macau.

Operational Risks

Rent

As a retailer, rent accounts for a considerable portion of the
Group’s expenses. Rental increment on retail shops directly
affects the profit of the Group. The Group strikes a good balance
between shop expansion and profit increment. The Group strives
to lower rent via negotiations with landlords, closes branches with
low profitability and searches for suitable locations in other areas
for new shops.
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Operational Risks (Continued)

Prices of Raw Materials

Fluctuations in prices of raw materials may adversely affect our
profitability. We strive to improve our purchasing procedures in
order to maintain reasonable raw materials costs. On the other
hand, the Group has a gold hedging ratio of around 20% which
mitigates the impact on the profit due to the drop in gold prices.

Fierce Competition

There is strong competition from national and local competitors
in jewellery and watch industry. The Group has formulated a set
of branding strategies to enhance brand image and awareness.
Details of such strategies are set out in “Branding” on pages 29 to
38.

Inventory Turnover

Owing to the impact of volatile macro-economic environment in
Asia especially Mainland, our inventory turnover bears the risk of
slowing down.

Management of Licensed Shops

Licensed shops play an important role in raising the brand
awareness of the Group. Maintaining a good brand image and
reputation is a win-win situation for both the Group and the
licensed shops. Therefore, the Group uses best endeavours to
ensure their operations are consistent with the Group’s image and
operation standard. We maintain a close working relationship with
our licensed shops as well as providing one-stop support to them,
such as shop-opening training, the provision of operation manuals
and regular operation review meetings.

We also closely monitor the licensed shops through a stringent
control system which consists of 6 areas of control, including
Operational Control, Product Quality Control, Distribution Network
Control, Pricing Control, Brand Image Control, and Service Quality
Control. Details of such system are set out on page 132.
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Control System on Licensed Shops

% 5B B R R

o Whistle-blowing System and Reward Scheme

BIRAM S IZ BN 5T E

e Sales and Inventory System Access
HERTFERAEA

e DVR System

e 100% diamond products in Mainland market
offered by Lukfook
Pt T 35 8 5 2 R 100% B 7N R R

e Authorised suppliers on other products

HE B EE H g (R

e Prior approval on retail locations
AT ERAE

e Standardised retail price for products through
centralised labeling process
BB —IRERE U —ERTEE

e Authorised renovation contractors
IEESIE R B

e Prior approval on all advertising & promotion
FEAEBHAEESNE R

e Mystery Shopper System on service
quality control
MRS B UEERBRE

Operational Compliance Audit Team
SEAHREEEE /A

Annual Contract Renewal Basis
SN Al

Cash On Delivery Basis

B2 =Rkl

Certificates issued by NGTC/GTC for

quality assurance

Blig, BiREEEREERE

Sightholder of De Beers — steady quality rough
diamond supply

De Beersf L& - R EEE AN 2 HFE

Centralised control on discount policy

oh R HT IR

Standardised operational materials
(e.g. uniform, packaging) in all shops

FREIEHRA—E8YE BN : fIk 8%

Centralised Staff Training

m—a8 T
* Regional training centres & 13 1%/l 410
e E-Learning programmes #3_E £35 5272
e On-site training & #h 1= 3
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Regulatory Risks

Changes in Laws and Regulations

The changes in laws and regulations such as the Competition
Ordinance (Cap. 619 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
adjustment to the policy of Individual Visit Scheme could
adversely affect our businesses. Our management keeps a close
eye on the change in such laws and regulations and adjusts the
Group’s operating strategies accordingly, in order to maintain the
Group’s market competitiveness.

Intellectual Property

We recognise the importance of building a good reputation and
protecting our intellectual property. Any unauthorised use of our
trademarks in counterfeit products could harm our brand image
and reputation, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

In view of this, the Group’s legal department has set up teams
in both Hong Kong and Nansha in Mainland to handle tasks in
respect of intellectual properties (such as trademarks, design
patents and fighting against infringement).

The Group has successfully registered the “Lukfook” trademark
in the regions where “Lukfook” has a presence (such as Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland, Singapore, Malaysia, Cambodia, the
Philippines, the United States, Canada and Australia). Our
legal department has reached a consensus with our product
development department, marketing department and design
department that any new product, collection, display prop and
fitting out design should be forwarded as soon as practicable
to the legal department as appropriate for applying for design
patent/copyright in Mainland, Hong Kong and Macau so as to
ensure the maximum protection for the Group.

The Group’s legal department and business department
constantly monitor any infringement by free-riding brands across
Mainland, and cooperate with the law enforcement agencies
to fight against infringement. The Group always encourages
colleagues to monitor any infringement during their business
trips and report the infringement to the legal department, and
endeavours to fight against infringement of the Group’s intellectual
properties.

Financial Risks
Details of financial risks are set out in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements, and the non-compliance with such
requirements could lead to the risk of termination of operating
licences. The Group has been allocating systems and human
resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and
regulations, and to maintain cordial working relationships
with regulators effectively through effective communications.
During the Year under review, as far as the Group is aware, it
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group places great importance on environmental protection
and endeavours to promote sustainable development. It
incorporates relevant environmental strategies in every aspect of
its business, and implements initiatives in areas such as energy
saving and waste management in manufacturing, administration
and daily retail operations to mitigate the impact on the
environment.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a fair
and safe work environment, promotes staff diversity, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The
Group also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate training
and resources to the employees so that they can keep abreast
of the latest development of the market and the industry, and
at the same time, improve their performance and facilitate their
self-fulfillment in their positions.
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Relationships with Key Stakeholders (Continued)

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationship with customers and providing products which
satisfy their needs and requirements. The Group enhances the
relationship by continuous interaction with customers to gain
insight into the changing market demand for different products
so that the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also
established procedures in handling customers’ feedbacks and
complaints to ensure that customers’ opinions are dealt with in
prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains stable business relationships with its
suppliers and service providers. In order to have a better
and close monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s
management regularly conducts performance reviews targeting
the Group’s major suppliers and service providers, and
communicates with them for rectification and improvements.

The results of the Group for the Year under review are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 169.

The directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.225
per ordinary share and a special dividend of HK$0.275 per
ordinary share, totaling HK$0.50 per ordinary share. A total of
HK$293,554,000 was paid on 24 December 2020.

The board of directors intends to distribute special dividend for
celebrating the 30th anniversary of the establishment of “Lukfook”
to reward shareholders. Therefore, the directors proposed final
and special dividends of HK$0.50 each per ordinary share,
totalling HK$1.00 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March
2021 (2020: HK$0.50 per ordinary share) to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
25 August 2021. Taking into account of the interim and special
dividends paid, the total dividend for the year would amount
to HK$1.50 per ordinary share, totalling HK$880,662,000
for the year (2020: HK$1.00 per ordinary share, totalling
HK$587,108,000). Subject to the approval of the shareholders at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held on 19 August
2021, the final and special dividends will be paid on or around 8
September 2021.
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Details of the shares issued by the Company during the Year
under review are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the Year under
review or subsisted at the end of the year.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2021,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$1,063,754,000 (2020: HK$1,053,050,000).

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last
five financial years ended 31 March are as follows:

2021
HK$’000
FERT
Results E 3
Revenue WA 8,861,335 1
Profit attributable to equity RABERFAA
holders of the Company e A 1,017,335
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BEE 14,512,039 1
Total liabilities FEY=KE 3,187,815
Shareholders’ funds REES 11,324,665 1

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year
under review.
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2020 2019 2018 2017

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
TET TET TET TET

1,233,771 15,859,990 14,578,409 12,807,277

866,315 1,492,747 1,369,393 1,016,838

3,925,048 14,423,672 12,214,878 10,679,250

3,612,937 3,800,666 2,135,141 1,699,310
0,371,705 10,517,270 10,034,769 8,873,350
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The directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2021 and up to the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairmarn)
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM of the Company.
Accordingly, Ms. Wong Lan Sze, Nancy, Dr. CHAN So Kuen,
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung and Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, shall retire
from office by rotation at the AGM. All the retiring directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. Details of
the proposed directors to be re-elected are set out in the circular
sent together with this Annual Report.
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Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, aged 70, is the founder, Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Group.
He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Mr. WONG has over 54 years of
experience in the jewellery industry and is responsible for the
overall strategic planning and management of the Group. He is
the Honorary Life President of The Kowloon Gold Silver and Jewel
Merchant’s Staff Association, the Honorary Permanent Chairman
of Hong Kong Jade Association, the Chairman of Supervisory
Committee of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade,
Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association, the Honorary
Chairman of Macau Goldsmith’s Guild, the Honorary Chairman
of Guangdong Golden Jewelry and Jade Industry’s Association,
the Consultant of the Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of
China, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Small and Medium
Enterprises Association, Founding Member and Vice President
of Shenzhen Gold & Silver Jewelry Creative Industry Association,
Honorary Advisor of H.K. Gold & Silver Ornament Workers &
Merchants General Union and the Consultant of the 7th Term
General Committee of Hong Kong Brand Development Council.
Mr. WONG is the father of Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Deputy
Chairman and Non-executive Director of the Group and Ms.
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, Executive Director and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Group.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, aged 70, is the co-founder of the Group.
Presently, he is the Deputy Chairman, Executive Director and
Deputy General Manager of the Group. He is also a member
of the Nomination Committee. Mr. TSE has over 48 years of
experience in jewellery retailing business and is responsible
for the merchandising and production functions of the Group.
Mr. TSE is an Executive Committee Member of the Diamond
Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited, a Vice President of
The Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society, the Vice Chairman
of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver
Ornament Merchants Association, the President of The Tsuen
Wan Festival Lightings Organizing Committee, a Member of the
Kwun Tong District Junior Police Call (JPC) Honorary President
Council, a Vice Chairman of Macau Goldsmith’s Guild, a Director
of Hong Kong, Guangzhou, Foshan and Zhaoging Friendship
Association, an Honorary President of Tsuen Wan Committee
for Celebration of Reunification of Hong Kong with China, an
Honorary President of Tsuen Wan Preparatory Community of
National Day, a Vice President of Zhaoqging Overseas Friendship
Association, an Honorary Consultant of Shatin Friends Society,
an Executive Committee Member and Vice Director of Finance
of Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association, a Vice
Chairperson of Tsuen Wan District Fire Safety Ambassador
Honorary Presidents’ Association, an Honorary President of H.K.
Gold & Silver Ornament Workers & Merchants General Union,
the 20th Term Honorary Consultant of Hong Kong Precious
Metals Traders Association Limited, an Honorary Consultant of
Tsuen Wan Kwai Ching District Women’s Association, the 9th
Term Honorary President of Tsuen Wan District Elderly Welfare
Association and the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Gemstone
Manufacturers’ Association. Moreover, Mr. TSE was awarded the
“Chief Executive’s Commendation for Community Service” by the
Government of the Hong Kong SAR.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, aged 48, is the Executive Director
and Chief Operating Officer of the Group and a member of the
Remuneration Committee. She is also a Director of China Gold
Silver Group Company Limited (“CGS”), an associate of the
Company which conducts jewellery retail and franchise business
under the brand name of “8D-GOLD” in Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland. Ms. WONG initially joined the Group in 1994 and
served various departments for about 8 years until 2002. She
rejoined the Group in 2004. Currently, she is responsible for the
Group’s operations and development of the retail, wholesale
and licensing businesses. In addition, she is also responsible for
the administration and human resources functions of the Group.
She holds a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration from
University of Southern Queensland. Ms. WONG is a Member
and Vice-Chairperson of The Jewellery Industry Training Advisory
Committee and a Convenor of the Recognition of Prior Learning
Subcommittee and she has over 27 years of experience in the
jewellery industry.

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, aged 40, is the Executive Director
and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Group. She joined
the Group in 2006 and assists in formulating and implementing
the Group’s overall business strategies. She is also responsible
for the Group’s corporate branding, marketing, corporate
communications, product design and development functions
and e-commerce operations. Ms. WONG holds a Bachelor’'s
Degree in Commerce from the University of Toronto, Canada and
a Master’'s Degree of Science in China Business Studies from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is also a Certified
Public Accountant of the United States of America. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. WONG worked for an international professional
accounting firm in Hong Kong, where she performed auditing and
accounting assignments for a variety of business organisations
including listed companies. She received the GIA Diamond
Graduate title in 2007 and was awarded the “Young Entrepreneur
of the Year” at JNA Awards 2020, and is also a Member of Young
Diamantaire Group of Diamond Federation of Hong Kong. Ms.
WONG is the daughter of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director and the
sister of Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Deputy Chairman and Non-
executive Director of the Group.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. CHAN So Kuen, aged 61, the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Group, joined the Group in 2012 and
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Group in 2015.
Dr. CHAN graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and Oklahoma City University (the United States of America),
with a Doctorate Degree and a Master's Degree in Business
Administration, respectively. She is also a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. During the period
from the year 2003 to 2010, Dr. CHAN had been the Director of
Finance & Company Secretary of Bossini International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 0592) for around 3 years and the Deputy
Chairman of the Board of Directors & Chief Executive Officer for
about 4 years consecutively. Dr. CHAN has substantial financial
and management experiences in vast varieties of businesses
for more than 35 years. Dr. CHAN is currently responsible for
the overall financial management, corporate finance, information
technology, investor relations and company secretarial matters of
the Group.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 44, is the Deputy Chairman
and Non-executive Director of the Group. He is also the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of CGS. He joined the Group
as an Operations Manager in 2002. Mr. Danny WONG is an
active participant in the community and is currently a Permanent
President of Sze Wui and Kwong Ning Clansman’s Association
(Hong Kong) Limited, the President of Sihui Dasha Town
Clansman’s Association (Hong Kong), an Executive Committee
Member of Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited,
a Supervisory Committee Member of Hong Kong Jewellers’ &
Goldsmiths’ Association, a Supervisory Committee Member of
The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver
Ornament Merchants Association and a Member of Lions Club of
Sham Shui Po Hong Kong. In December 2008, Mr. Danny WONG
received the GIA Diamond Graduate title, and awarded the “CEO
of the Year” by Capital CEO in 2017. He is the son of Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director and the elder brother of Ms. WONG Lan Sze,
Nancy, Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of
the Group.
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Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP, aged 74, joined the Group in 1997. He
was re-designated from an Independent Non-executive Director
to a Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 October 2011,
owing to changes in factors concerning his independence. Mr.
HUI has 50 years of experience in the securities and investment
industry. Mr. HUI had for years been serving as a Council Member
and Vice Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, a member of the Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission, a Director of the Hong Kong
Securities Clearing Company Limited, a member of the Listing
Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an
appointed member of the Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal,
a member of Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, a
member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts of
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission and also an
appointed member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Investigation Panel A. Mr. HUI was appointed by the
Government of the HKSAR as a Justice of the Peace in 2004 and
was also a member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference from 2006 to
2017. He had also been a member of Government “Appointees”
(independent member) of Appeal Panel of the Travel Industry
Council of Hong Kong. Mr. HUI also serves as Independent Non-
executive Director of Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited
(Stock Code: 0908), Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1212), Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation
Limited (Stock Code: 0535), China South City Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1668), SINOPEC Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 2386), Agile Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3383) and FSE Lifestyle Services Limited (Stock Code: 0331)
whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. He was an Independent Non-executive Director of
Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0711)
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (Stock Code:
0388) until his resignation effective from 1 February 2015 and his
retirement effective from 29 April 2015 respectively.
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Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP, aged 64, was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company in 2011. Mr. LI holds a
Diploma of Architectural Design from Humber College of Toronto,
Canada in 1981 and a Bachelor’s of Architecture from New
York Institute of Technology in 1984. Mr. LI was awarded the
Certificate of Registration Authorized Person (List of Architects)
in 1989 and the Certificate of Registered Inspector in 2012,
by the Government of the HKSAR respectively. In professional
qualification aspect, Mr. LI is a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of
Architects and a Member of Architect Registration Board. He also
got the PRC Class 1 Registered Architect Qualification. Mr. LI has
extensive architecture experience and is a Director of Li & Siu
Associates Ltd. and A. Li & Associates Architects Ltd. In addition,
he is a Director of Keen Mind Kindergarten. Mr. LI was appointed
as a District Council Member of Sham Shui Po District from 2000
to 2007 and awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation For
Community Service and Medal of Honor. He was also appointed
by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the Peace in
2008 and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in 2017.
Mr. LI has been appointed to various positions over the years
including: Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Office (East Liaison
Team), Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Fire Safety Committee,
Chairman of Sham Shui Po Council for the Promotion of Cultural
and Recreation Service Limited, Chairman of Sham Shui Po
District Fight Crime Committee, Honorary President of Sham Shui
Po District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Kowloon
City District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Yau Tsim
District Junior Police Call, Chairman of Yau Yat Chuen Residents
Association Ltd., President of Police Dragon Boat Club and
Chartered President of Lions Club of Sham Shui Po Hong Kong.
Mr. Li is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Sheung
Yue Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1633) which is listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP, aged 69, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
2011 and is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. IP graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a degree of Social Sciences in 1973. He subsequently
pursued further studies in Oxford University and Harvard
Business School. Mr. IP joined the Hong Kong Government in
November 1973 as an Administrative Officer and had served
various government departments. Mr. IP was promoted to
the rank of Director of Bureau in April 1997. He worked in the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “Government of the HKSAR”) as a Principal Official from
July 1997 to June 2007. Senior positions held by Mr. IP in the
past included Commissioner of Insurance, Commissioner for
Labour, Secretary for Economic Services and Secretary for
Financial Services. Mr. IP took up the position of Secretary
for Economic Development and Labour on 1 July 2002. His
portfolio in respect of economic development covered air and sea
transport, logistics development, tourism, energy, postal services,
meteorological services, competition and consumer protection.
He was also responsible for labour policies including matters
relating to employment services, labour relations and employees’
rights. In his capacity as Secretary for Economic Development
and Labour, Mr. IP was a member of the Hong Kong Airport
Authority Board, the Mandatory Provident Fund Authority
Board, the Hong Kong International Theme Parks Company
Board as well as the Chairman of the Logistics Development
Council, Port Development Board, Maritime Industry Council and
Aviation Development Advisory Committee. Mr. IP retired from
the Government of the HKSAR in July 2007. Mr. IP received the
Gold Bauhinia Star award from the Government of the HKSAR in
2001, and is an unofficial Justice of the Peace. Mr. IP is also an
Independent Non-executive Director of China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1313), Lai Sun Development
Company Limited (Stock Code: 0488), Kingboard Laminates
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1888), Nameson Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1982), Million Cities Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2892) and C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3309) which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. He was formerly an Independent Non-
executive Director of Synergis Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2340).
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, aged 68, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 2012
and is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto with
a Bachelor of Commerce degree in 1976. He is a member of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. After working in Citibank
for over 26 years, Mr. MAK retired on 1 May 2012. He last served
as the Head of Markets and Banking for Citibank Hong Kong,
being the country business manager for corporate and investment
banking business. Mr. MAK had also held various other senior
positions in Citibank including Head of Global Banking responsible
for managing all the client relationship managers. Prior to that, he
also managed the bank’s Hong Kong corporate finance business,
regional asset management business and was the Chief Financial
Officer of North Asia. Before joining Citibank in 1985, Mr. MAK
was an audit group manager at Coopers & Lybrand (now known
as PricewaterhouseCoopers). He worked for Coopers & Lybrand
for 8 years, 5 of which was in Toronto, Canada.

Mr. MAK is an Independent Non-executive Director of Lai Fung
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1125), Hong Kong Television
Network Limited (Stock Code: 1137), Goldpac Group Limited
(Stock Code: 3315) and Crystal International Group Limited
(Stock Code: 2232) which are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He was formerly an
Independent Non-executive Director of I.T Limited (Stock Code:
0999). Mr. MAK was admitted as a member of Hong Kong
Housing Society in May 2015 and is currently a member of its
Supervisory Board, Human Resources Committee and Special
Committee on Investment as well as the Chairman of Audit
Committee.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP, aged 72, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 2013.
Ms. WONG is also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Ms.
WONG had been working with PricewaterhouseCoopers for over
36 years specializing in the Mainland tax and business advisory
services. Since 1978, she was responsible for the development
of the firm’s business in the Mainland. Ms. WONG joined Tricor
Services Limited as a director from 2004 to 2006 after her
retirement as a partner from PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2004.
Ms. WONG is currently a member of the Dental Council of Hong
Kong. She is also a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

In addition, Ms. WONG is an Independent Non-executive Director
of Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited (Stock Code:
0050), Kerry Properties Limited (Stock Code: 0683), Kerry
Logistics Network Limited (Stock Code: 0636) and SJM Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 0880), which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. HUI King Wai, aged 71, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in 2015 and is a member
of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a solicitor
practising in Hong Kong. Mr. HUI is currently a consultant of
Holman Fenwick Willan. Mr. HUI was a Non-executive Director of
the Group during the period from 1999 to 2013.
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Senior Management

Mr. WONG Wai Tong, aged 60, is the Business Director of the
Group. He initially joined the Group in 1998 and served various
departments for over 10 years until 2013. Mr. WONG rejoined
the Group in 2014. He has over 44 years of manufacturing and
purchasing experience in jewellery and gold industry. Mr. WONG is
responsible for the Group’s merchandising and polishing of rough
diamonds and assembly and production functions of diamond
products. He holds the titles of a Diamond Grader of National
Gemstone Testing Center and a Certified Diamond Grader of HRD
Antwerp Institute of Gemmology. He is a Director of Guangzhou
Diamond Exchange and the 12th Term Director of Guangzhou
Panyu District Chamber of Commerce (Chamber). Mr. WONG is
the brother of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director.

Ms. WONG So Kuen, aged 59, is the Deputy Financial Controller
of the Group. Ms. WONG joined the Group in 1997. She is mainly
responsible for accounting, finance and tax planning matters
of the Group. Ms. WONG often travels to Mainland in search
of information on national tax policies and privileges in order to
develop relevant tax plans for the Group. She has over 35 years of
experience in financial and accounting for commercial firms.

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping, aged 51, is the Deputy Corporate Gift
Director of the Group. She has over 33 years of experience in the
jewellery industry. She joined the Group in 1990 and is responsible
for the corporate gift business of the Group. In 2001, Ms. CHUNG
won the Best of Show Award for her design “Flashing” in the
2nd Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition. She received the
GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2004. Ms. CHUNG is a Fellow
of the Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong Business
Sector Limited, an Executive Committee Member and Vice
Director of General Affairs of Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’
Association, an Executive Committee Member of The Kowloon
Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association, an Executive Committee Member and
Director of Recreation of The Kowloon Gold Silver and Jewel
Merchants’ Staff Association and a Director of the 5th Congress
of Gemmological Association of Fujian.
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Below are the updates and changes of directors’ information
since the date of the Interim Report 2020/21, required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

1. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung will cease to be a member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 July 2021.

2. Ms. WONG Hau Yeung will cease to be a member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 July 2021.

Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set
out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
AGM have service contracts with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which are not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The fees and other emoluments of directors are determined
by reference to industry norm and market conditions, with
discretionary bonus on performance awarded to executive
directors.

Save as disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party,
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the Year under review.
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No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Year under review.

As at 31 March 2021, save as disclosed below, none of the
directors and chief executives of the Company had interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO which (a) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (b) were required, pursuant to the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company:
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Number of Ordinary Shares
LERSE
Beneficial Controlled Beneficiary Other Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of a Trust Interests Interests Shares
£ BafisA BE  REGEE  GREREA Aitries kAT  (ROBMM
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 7,829,561 454,000 7,352,504 236,860,722 - 252,496,787 (1) 4301%
BRERE note (a) note (o) note (c)
st (a) Kzt (o) M3t (0
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 433,344 - - - - 433344 (1) 0.07%
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy 643,000 - - 236,860,722 - 237,503,722 1) 40.45%
BEEYL note (c)
W ()
Dr. CHAN So Kuen 180,000 5,000 - - - 185,000 (L) 0.03%
REEEL note d)
W5 ()
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny 360,000 - - 236,860,722 - 237220722 (1) 40.40%
BERLE note (c)
Wiz (o)
Mr. LI Hon Hung 837,437 70,000 - - 8956858 9,864,290 (L) 1.68%
TEELE note (g) note (]
it (@) WE )

(L) Long posttion 72
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company: (Continued)

Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s spouse, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, held 454,000 shares of the
Company.

Note (b)

The directors of Dragon King Investment Ltd. were accustomed to act in accordance
with the directions of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, hence Dragon King Investment Ltd.
was deemed to be a controlled corporation of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, and in return
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was deemed to be interested in 7,352,504 shares of the
Company held (whether directly or indirectly) by Dragon King Investment Ltd..

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung together with other parties acting in concert in respect of
the voting matters in Dragon King Investment Ltd., collectively controlled (whether
directly or indirectly) over 30% of the voting power of Dragon King Investment Ltd..

Note (c)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and Ms. LUK Chui Yee are the founders and settlors of The
WS WONG Family Trust (the “Trust”). Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee,
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are the discretionary
beneficiaries under the Trust. The Trust was interested in 236,860,722 shares in the
Company, comprising (i) the 1,511,050 shares in the Company held by the Trust
and (i) the 235,349,672 shares in the Company attributable to Luk Fook (Control)
Limited. The Trust indirectly controls over one-third of the voting power of Luk Fook
(Control) Limited (being approximately 46.29%) and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

The members of the Trust, together with other parties who act in concert with Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung in respect of the voting matters in Luk Fook (Control) Limited,
collectively controlled (whether directly or indirectly) over half of the voting power of
Luk Fook (Control) Limited.

Note (d)
Dr. CHAN So Kuen'’s spouse, Mr. LO Kwing Chi, held 5,000 shares of the Company.
Note (e)

Mr. LI Hon Hung’s spouse, Ms. Irene LI, held 70,000 shares of the Company.

Note (f)

Mr. LI Hon Hung, as the administrator of the estate of the late Mr. LEE Shu Kuan,
held () 6,370,229 shares of the Company (which beneficially held by the late Mr.
LEE Shu Kuan); and (i) 33.3% of the issued share capital of Wah Hang Kimon
Investments Limited and 51% of the issued share capital of Wah Hang Kimon
Holdings Limited, which each in turn held 630,624 shares and 1,956,000 shares of
the Company respectively.

AT R KRR ZEFE (@

M5E (a)

HmERBEREZEBER T L TK5454,0000 AR BRI

MI5E ()

REKEARAANERENRERERERENESRT
E ALBEEREARABRRAARBELEZRIERE
R ERBEERBANREEREARAST (FwEE
SRR ) A ANAE) 27,352,504 B 1A P EEA R o

HRERALEERHMMEEREARABDREETFE T
Bz AL aHER FhBERSEEt) gEREARA
BlBIB30% K 1

MI5E (o)

BEREBRERERRZ LT AThe WS WONG Family Trust
(M550)) WA AREZTEA BREERE ERRL T
HEREAEREESLTAGTNEESEAN SAEE
AN F1236,860,7228% B0 MR B3RS SER AR B
B 21,511,0508% B& 15 Re (7518 (AR BRRA B EIL 2 R A
5]235,349,6728& & 17 o (FEt BRI R (ER) BRRASE
BB=D2—RZHE (B14946.29%) » T E LB A /NS
) BIRABNARB A ZRMD P EE R -

EFEME (BERAZREREM B R ARARKR
FE-RITHZEMAL) SHER (FRERNB M)
7B (ER) ARAT BB —FRE#-

MI5E (o)
REBE L ZRBENSLERH5000REAT RN

5 ()

FEBFEZERBFTRIER X LRH70,0000 K25 R
e

P& (f)

FEBEEFADRERBAENEESEARFTA(RD
i fa I S AR B A A 896,370,220 R A B BR 1D 5 i) HE
CIRTRERRAGBETRAMNIBINREZIBLTIER
ARABEETRANSI% MEFHLREFRATRK
ETRLERBRLFADFIRFE630,624/% 51,956,000
AN ©
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So far as known to the directors and chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 March 2021, save as disclosed below, no
person, other than a director or chief executive of the Company,
had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of

FR2021F3831H R FXIHEE N AR
BEERRSTHABMRE MEAMIEA
NBEZFARSITHRAEZ ALTRERAERKR
P RABEIRMD T EEIREES RIS KL
BEXVEE 2R E3NEX BB R AT IREZ
KA -

the SFO.

Number of Total
Name of Shareholder Shares Capacity Interests % of Shares
R, 2B R ®E 5 R R ES L
Ms. LUK Chui Yee 454,000 (L) Beneficial Owner 252,466,787 (L) 43.00%
BEERZL BTGB
15,182,085 (L) Spouse
note (a) [
fizk (a)
236,830,722 (1) Beneficiary of a Trust
note (b) EREZmEA
B3 (o)
Ms. CHEUNG Irene 236,056,722 (L) Spouse 236,056,722 (L) 40.21%
RER T T note (c) [
fizE )
Luk Fook (Control) Limited 234,924,672 (1) Beneficial Owner 234,924,672 (1) 40.01%
TNE () BRAE BTGB
LF Holding Services Limited 235,696,722 (L) Interest of controlled 235,696,722 (L) 40.15%
note (d) corporation
BifEE (o) RERER B
BOS Trustee Limited as Trustee 235,696,722 (L) Trustee 235,696,722 (L) 40.15%
note (e) ZEEA
fizE (o)
Silchester International Investors LLP 82,206,600 (L) Investment Manager 82,206,600 (L) 14.00%
RELE
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. 46,958,000 (L) Investment Manager 46,958,000 (L) 7.99%
RELE
Silchester International Investors 35,241,600 (L) Investment Manager 35,241,600 (L) 6.00%

International Value Equity Trust

() Long position 7 &

RELE
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Note (a)

By virtue of SFO, Ms. LUK Chui Yee was deemed to be interested in the shares of
the Company held by her spouse, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung.

Note (b)

Ms. LUK Chui Yee and Mr. WONG Wai Sheung are the founders and settlors of
the Trust. Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are the discretionary beneficiaries under the Trust.
The Trust was interested in 236,830,722 shares in the Company, comprising (i) the
1,511,050 shares in the Company held by the Trust and (i) the 235,319,672 shares
in the Company attributable to Luk Fook (Control) Limited. The Trust indirectly
controls over one-third of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited (being
approximately 46.29%) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

Note (c)

By virtue of SFO, Ms. CHEUNG Irene was deemed to be interested in the shares of
the Company held by her spouse, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny.

Note (d)

LF Holding Services Limited held 100% of the issued share capital of LF Enterprises
Limited and 46.29 % of the issued share capital of Luk Fook (Control) Limited,
which held 1,511,050 shares and 234,185,672 shares of the Company respectively.
Hence, LF Holding Services Limited was deemed to be interested in 235,696,722
shares in the Company.

Note (e)

BOS Trustee Limited owned 100% of the issued share capital of LF Holding Services
Limited and was deemed to be interested in 235,696,722 shares in the Company in
the capacity of the trustee of the Trust.

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the Year under review as disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements do not constitute connected transactions
under the Listing Rules.

At no time during the Year under review was the Company, its
subsidiaries, its associates, its fellow subsidiaries, or its parent
company or its other associated corporations a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors and the chief executive
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.

IEE (a)

RIEBSRERA ERR R IREANARBRER
FEFMFAER 7ﬁy1 hiER o

M5 ()

ERRUTREEEREAEINAIMARSTAE
BAZT - BEBLE BERAEREEFLLIAGST
HEEZH A - S50HA A AF236,830,72208 &1 By 4
& BIR()VEER AR BT A 21,511,050 B2 1% K (i) 7~ 42
(J=R%) BRABIME(L 242 F)235,319,67288 %15 155

BEEGNE (R BRASBB=2Z2—%Z# BI1
46.29%) > WAL IR BN E (TR BRABNRAAE
HAEZRMDRESER -

M5 ()

RBESRAER KRR L ERR AN ERBEIER
TEFMFAEARBRD TR R -

PREE (d)

LF Holding Services Limitedf¥5&LF Enterprises LimitedHy
100% B & TRA LG (R BRAT B ETRAN
46.29% > MILF Enterprises Limited 7~ 1& (%) ARAF A
D BIEE1,511,05008 52234,185,6 7288 4~ A B B 17 o Rl LE »
LF Holding Services Limited# 17 %158 24x/2 5235,696,722
BERRAD YRR ©

IEE (e)

BOS Trustee Limited# A LF Holding Services Limitedfy100%
BRITRA TRAEFERAEENZEAMBRAES AL
51235,696, 72282 B& 17 Ay 2 o

eV BRRNEICHIRERERNCIERE
ERTIZAEALZR S UAER LT
RAET ZRERRF o

REEFERTAER A28 HANBA
EHEMERAT RRAMBATDRNGAT
HihEMB ZEMERAELEZBNEP—
7 REERBDNEFARRSTHRAE (B
HEBRI18EU T FR) AR AT HEIE
BAEFrNEHMABMBZE RGN HRER
PERERIRmIKA

Annual Report 2020/21 3R



R+EPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEUHE

As at 31 March 2021, the aggregate amount of financial F2021E3831H  AEBBE—KHEE AT K
assistance to an affiliated company and its wholly-owned EZ2BWBATIRMEZHEERLLEBE L
subsidiaries by the Group exceeded 8% of the assets ratios as  ™iRBIE14.07(VEFF R EMBEELLE 8%
defined in Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. Details of advances ZAEERZHEB AT RHEEZEWEB A SIRM
(including guarantee given by the Group) which were non-trading Z IEEZMBR (BEREBIRHZIER) =2
in nature, made by the Group to the affiliated company and its ¥4 :

wholly-owned subsidiaries were as follows:

Extent of

Corporate

Relationship Corporate Guarantee

Name of Company with the Group Advances Guarantee Utilised

EFERAAT

YAGIEE HAEB 2% B YAGE - #iRER

HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHET FH7T

China Gold Silver Group Company Associated company 100,000 - -

Limited (“CGS”)

FEEIRERBRAS (HPEER) /NS

3D-GOLD Jewellery (HK) Limited (Note) Associated company - 1,075,000 743,000
EEGHRE (BB BRAE (D) = Y/NS|

Note: 3D-GOLD Jewellery (HK) Limited is a subsidiary of CGS. et S2EHE (BB SRAFAATERRZWEA
E o

el
2E 8

Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the consolidated 1R#E EMRAISE13.221%  EEAEBMU B E
balance sheet of CGS with financial assistance from the Group BhrPEERZEGEERARREAERR
and the Group’s attributable interest in CGS as at 31 December 20206128318 (REBEFRAITTHH) B{GH

2020 (the latest practical date) are presented as follows: EEiR BT -
Consolidated Group’s
balance attributable
sheet interest
50%
HEEE TEE
aER FE(LER
50%
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#ET F&T
Non-current asset JERENEE 214,675 107,338
Current asset MBIEE 1,628,377 814,188
Current liabilities mEas (1,688,427) (844,214)
Non-current liabilities JEREIERE (247,548) (123,774)
Net liabilities FEE (92,923) (46,462)
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During the Year under review and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under
the relevant statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including
former Directors) of the Company or its associated companies.
The permitted indemnity provisions are provided for in the
Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and officers liability
insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability
and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be brought
against such Directors.

During the Year under review, the percentages of sales for the
year attributable to the Group’s major customers are as follows:

The largest customer RAER
Five largest customers combined hBRAERGST

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had interest in the major customers
noted above.

The percentages of purchases for the Year under review
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

The largest supplier BRAMRER
Five largest suppliers combined ARBERAMER G

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had interest in the major suppliers noted
above.

Particulars of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings of the
Group as at 31 March 2021 are set out in Notes 31 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

REBEFEARSERRSHHMB L AR
BIRARERNA BEUERATNES
MBADES (BEES) RRHEANRBE
R - BAEFBERXHNREEINELRTZ
ARMA URRAERREFTRBRITH
ANEBENEERERN BRRELESH
BEMHEPEEE AR FHFAMELARRER
ML EEE -

REBFEERN AEBEFEZREFREERH
ERZADLEWNT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAET
1.7% 0.9%
6.0% 4.0%

BES REZHMBALIRNBESRNER
RABSNU ERAZAEFRER  BiERER £
MEBERZ e

iy

REIEFEEN  AEE T EZHEBPILIEE
BzBEDLEWMT

/

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAET
42.8% 31.9%
75.1% 78.8%

BEE REZHMBATINBESANER
RRFERU ERAZERKRER HEES £
MEEMHEE o

KREENR2021F3H31HZBITER BEX
REMEEFBEHN G S ERERMAI1I R
320
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There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

The register of members of the Company for the AGM will be
closed from 16 August 2021 to 19 August 2021, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attendance at the AGM to
be held on 19 August 2021, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 13 August 2021.

The register of members of the Company for the final and special
dividends will also be closed on 25 August 2021 and no transfer
of shares will be registered on that day. In order to qualify for
the final and special dividends, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 24 August 2021.

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the directors are reviewed and determined by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics. No director, or any of his or her associates involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.

The Company had 1.24% interest in HKRH as at 31 March 2021.
HKRH is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2021, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung and Mr. WONG
Ho Lung, Danny who were directors of the Company, were
also directors of CGS, a subsidiary of HKRH. Mr. WONG Wai
Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, Dr.
CHAN So Kuen and Mr. HUI Chiu Chung who were directors of
the Company held certain shares in HKRH, were also considered
as having an interest in HKRH under Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

RABZ AR RS BREELEER
ZHTE B READ R F A RE

MR BFAREMS > AR BF 2021487
16H E2021F88 190 (BEMREEEN) G
FMERMDEFERFE - ATEEREHE
B H2021F8B19HE T2 REBEKRT P
BEPAXHERERREREANR20214F8
B138 T F4RB0D AR ER AT 2 B ERMD
BEESLREARRIBSFELARAR H
WAEBETEREARERI18IFSFRNLI7IE
1712-1716Z > LURIBE R FE -

AR R EMS » KA B IR 2021
F8HHE EMEBERMDBERERFE AT
EEREZARPEEFIRE  FAIBEL X4
BEEABRZREANR2021E8824H TF4
FESON AT EEEARNB 2 B ERMDB LB
EEPRESSRERAT MU AFTEE
FEB/RERI8IHEMAL7IE1712-1716
= UIMEE R FE-

FEBREZHFMBRDEREEZRE
EREKREN -BEFZHMBFHEEEES
EANBEIZERBEE BERHRERERRKIE
EERBHBHEMBTREE - BETANES
REEABMBEAT2EEEHAS 2 5 -

P2021463831 8 A AR EBERERD
B 1.24% 0 © B8 ERIE IR B3 PR
Lo

R2021%3831H A RBIEETIHH LT T
BEREAETATEERERNB AT FE
TIRMNEBFE - ARNBDEETHERLE - Had
HENEIEBL T -MRBETRTFRALE
HREEBERERNETRG  WRE L
MRAES A0 EHETWRANRETBER
R A o
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The retail and franchising operations for selling gold and jewellery
products carried on by HKRH and its subsidiaries (‘HKRH Group”)
constitute competing businesses of the Group. As the Company
and HKRH were separate listed entities and run by separate and
independent management teams, the directors of the Company
believed that the Company was capable of carrying on its
business independently of the HKRH Group.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the independent
non-executive directors and the Audit Committee of the Company
would on a regular basis review the business and operational
results of the Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s
development of retail, wholesale and licensing operations for
selling gold and jewellery products are and continue to be run on
the basis that they are independent of, and at arm’s length from,
the business of the HKRH Group.

Save as disclosed as aforesaid and in this report, none of the
directors of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had an interest in any business which
competed or might compete with the business in which the
Group is engaged.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to shareholders by reason of their holdings of the
Company’s securities.

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors as at the date of this Annual
Report, the public float of shares in the Company has remained
above the minimum percentage required by the Stock Exchange
throughout the year.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
under review have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor, who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. The
Company has not changed its auditor in the past 3 years.

By order of the Board,
WONG Wai Sheung
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 June 2021

ERERERKEWNBAR (EBERZER
EEH) RFHERSAHKEEHERNTE
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EEXE URREHTER) c&EBE S Rk
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kFsEATAERERER ZBEQFRE]

NI
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BAEBPIREERNEBBRRF NI BN
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RABBANEBEEARRRFTAEREE
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(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 169 to 296, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2021;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BMRA ZEGRaVBRRAERESET
SR A EBHAI(E B BREER)ESEM

SMEMRT SHEEMN2021FE3831HE
EMBERARESEZAELEENGETH
RERFERERE TEEBREB(ATE
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HPERBEESBEAMAEEM(ERBES
Q) EITES - WAIEZFER T RENS
FEERRS BB ROV HRERK
ENSEIMOPIEE— T @uto

HAEE RPIFFESHNESRBRETEN
BEMHRMANEREHER-

RIEEAGSH G RME(EESENER
PRI CATER ISR > HFIBILR &5
I ERITTRIPNEMEREEE R

HRESFFEERBEHFANTENE B
HAEARGSMBBEERNBEFRAEENS
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarized as
follows:

° Existence and valuation of inventories

° Impairment of retail store assets
Key Audit Matter
B EE

Existence and valuation of inventories

FEZFEERAEE

Refer to Note 3.9, 5(a) and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The carrying value of inventories of the Group is HK$7,322 million
as at 31 March 2021. The Group’s inventories mainly comprised
gold, platinum and gem-set jewellery products in the stores,
manufacturing facilities and distribution centres. Valuation of
inventories is at lower of cost and net realisable value. Significant
portion of value at cost includes cost of precious metals and
gems which are subject to the risk of changes in market value.
The assessment of net realisable value of inventories is based
on estimates and judgements by management in respect
of, amongst others, the economic condition, forecast sales
performance, marketability of products and the forecast market
price of precious metals and gems used to make the jewellery
products. Furthermore, there is a higher inherent risk of theft
and pilferage given the high intrinsic value and portable nature of
individual inventory item.

BER2RFEE M BIRARMNEES.95(@) /%23

R2021FE3H31H BEEBREFEMNEEEA7,322888
T BEEFETECEER - EERMEDHEDTONE
E HERUEENER FENRNASERT S FERE
ZRBEEGE A EBALDAESBREKENE MZE
HRAASHESES AR FEN S FERSERBH (Ho
BLFR) £ TRHAH E RIR  ERAEN MU R BIEHE
MEMFFASSERKENEI B ENE s RHEETTE
N B EENNTEES S RAFERTEE SHEARS
B 18 5 5 LB o

RMEEStPHRMRRRESFEMTRNT

s TFEMEFEUERHEERE
s ZTEEREEME

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EME R IEARE T HIE

We understood and evaluated key internal
controls over inventory existence and valuation.
We tested the Group’s internal control over
existence of inventories by:

i) attended a selection of daily physical
cycle counts in stores throughout the year
to observe the daily count procedures
performed in retail outlets;

ii) inspected the respective daily physical
cycle counts reports for reconciliation of
daily ending inventories to the record in
the inventory system;

i) inspected the in-house and external
gemological appraisal or laboratory
reports on the authenticity of gold,
platinum and gem-set jewellery products.

Furthermore, we attended the annual physical
inventory counts at year end date and
performed sample count procedures in a
selected stores, manufacturing facilities and
distribution centres of the Group. We compared
our sample count results with the counts
performed by the Group and the records in the
inventory system.

T B st B 7 B F /2 M e HLEEDY

T EAEES]  HfIEBL FANAE E&

BHEFEFEMER R ES

) EEAEFEMSNEHNSHEYE
Hidie LEBRTEENSHBRER;

iy ZTHEAMOISHEWEMBERS MU
HEHEXERNFERAFERMLCER
EITHR

i) WEABRINEF =S BERES AR
%ﬁ%é%é&%i%%gﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁ

A8
iy g
=

&

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



Key Audit Matter
FREtH1E

Existence and valuation of inventories (Continued)

FREZFEIERAEE (8

We focused on auditing the existence and valuation of inventories
because the existence of inventories is subject to high inherent
risk given the high intrinsic value and portable nature of individual
inventory item while the estimation of net realisable value of
inventories is subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty.

HARERTFENEFEEREBENSE REAERERF
EEERNTEESaRAEREE FEFEEAREERER
B MtstFENERFERFESEMTREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
MM B M ERIERRE T EE

We also selected samples of gem-set jewellery,
comprising items of different nature, ageing
profiles and price for gemmological appraisal
carried out by independent gemmologist
engaged by the Group to verify their
authenticity and assess their conditions and
valuations. We have evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the gemmologist
and obtained an understanding of the scope of
work and the terms of engagement.

In evaluating management’s assessment of net
realisable value and provision of inventories, we:

(i) compared the net realisable values of
gold and platinum inventories calculated
based on the current market price of
precious metals with their purchase or
production costs;

HATREBNDHREEH IR FIEERRE
TENEN GRKRER) B SEEEE
NWEBIBEAERETHRETGH UZEHEA
EURFEERRIRLEE - RMAEHERE
KA B BN R B MEFHE L THRT
TR E R ZBIR

L EERYFERN SR FERERFF
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Key Audit Matter
RS E st H1E

Existence and valuation of inventories (Continued)

FEZFEMRAEE (8

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
MBI R IEARE T HIE

(i) obtained an understanding of
management’s processes for the
identification of slow moving gem-
set jewellery products and challenged
management the basis adopted for
identifying slow moving gem-set and
related the inventory provision with
reference to, amongst others, the market
price movement of the materials, cost
to re-work of gem-set, the ageing profile
and the historical sales pattern and
the subsequent selling prices of these
products.

(i) compared the results of independent
gemmological appraisal report of
selected samples above to the cost
of gem-set jewellery in evaluating the
sufficiency of inventory provision made by
management.

Based on the procedures performed, we found
that the physical existence of inventories, as
well as the estimates and judgement made by
management in respect of the net realisable
value of inventories, are supportable by the
available evidence.

(i) THREEEBRFIHEAE S EMRAH
BlRER > W2E (Hh i) S EMN
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Key Audit Matter
FREtH1E

Impairment of retail store assets

FEEHEERE

Refer to Notes 5(b), 16 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2021, net book value of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets amounted to
HK$907 million and HK$595 million, of which approximately
HK$53 million and HK$318 million were attributable to its retail
stores respectively. The carrying amount of the retail store assets
is written down to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is in excess of its estimated recoverable amount.

Management considers each individual retail store as a
separately identifiable cash-generating unit and monitors their
financial performance for impairment indicators. Management
has identified loss making stores and stores that are potentially
subject to the negative impact of COVID-19 epidemic for
impairment assessment.

B 2REGRE M HREMNEESL(0) 165%18°

2021438310 EEEYE -BEARBURERAREE
ZEREFEROTEB BT REBEE BT HRDHIA3E R
ATKIISAEATBNESTE SR HEE/EHEENRE
EBHEMGSPIE %R B E E R IR E E RS ZE 2 BT Uk
Elf=:E0

EEERSENTEERAB UM REELEM WEE
TEEROVBRRE REASHERENR - EEESHA
EEBBZEHEAEZI0N0OERFEEREEZaECE
Z 15 & B E AP E TG o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
MM B M ERIERRE T EE

We evaluated and tested the impairment
assessment of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of the retail
stores by performing the following procedures:

- obtained an understanding of the
management’s internal control and
assessment process of impairment of
retail store assets and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement;

- enquired management on their basis
of identifying stores with impairment
indicators and challenged the
appropriateness of these judgements;

- compared the projected sales
performance, gross profits and estimated
running costs applied in the value-in-
use calculations to the historical records
and challenged management’s key
assumptions behind and evaluated
the key assumptions applied by
comparing them to historical trends
and our understanding of latest market
information and conditions;

BPEBATUTEFUFERAATES
HWzE -BERREBEUREREEEZ R
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Key Audit Matter
RS E st H1E

Impairment of retail store assets (Continued)

FELHEERE (&)

An impairment loss of right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment of HK$80 million was recognised in
the consolidated income statement in accordance with the
impairment assessment. The recoverable amount of the assets of
the retail stores is determined by value-in-use calculations using
discounted cash flow projections based on the management’s
forecast covering the remaining tenure of the lease, with major
assumptions such as change in revenue, change in operating
cost and change in gross profit. The change of revenue is
dependent on management assumption in respect of the timing
of easing of travel restriction and quarantine measures and the
speed of recovery of tourist traffic and the customer spending.

We focused on this area because the estimation of recoverable
amount of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets of the retail stores is subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty.

R EN G ERREEURYE -BRE KRB ZHERE
BOEBEBTENGEEnREN - TEEHEENA WEEEE
DNREEEEEER NMEERNER RARRRERERR
PRt B ERABEMERE Wit RINAZE  KEREEFH K
EMEHEITERR - WAZHETBEANEEEERMREL
TRRMI A RREE M 2 R U RIRE RERE P IHEZ WMER
EZ k&

BRPIRERILER REASESTEEHZNE BERRE
Mk fEREEEZ I El e iREFES E A A RE M

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
MBI R IEARE T HIE

- understood, evaluated and challenged

management’s basis on projected
change in revenue, particularly the basis
of the estimated timing of easing of travel
restrictions and quarantine measures, the
estimated speed of recovery of foot traffic
and their spending;

- recomputed the impairment loss

calculation and checked the tenure of
the leases of the retail stores to the lease
agreements; and

- evaluated the sensitivity analysis to

consider the impact on the impairment
loss with reasonably possible changes of
key assumptions and considered whether
the judgements made in determining the
key assumptions are subject to possible
management bias.

Based on our work performed, we found the
impairment of retail store assets made by
management to be supported by available
evidence.

- TR FEREREEERIRAZS
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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BRERANAMAEGER  BEFAEEEEMHR
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Yuen Kwok Kin Andrew.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 June 2021
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3831HILEFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains/(losses), net

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

(Net provision)/net reversal of
impairment loss on financial
assets and financial guarantee

Operating profit

Finance income

Finance costs

Finance income/(costs), net

Share of results of associates

Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to equity holders of
the Company during the year
Basic and diluted

LN
SHE Al A
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BEAKREE

The above consolidated income statement should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Note
g

©

10
19

11

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAERT FET
8,861,335 11,233,771
(6,229,020) (7,910,751)
2,632,315 3,323,020
294,773 130,130
30,572 (197,482)
(1,543,358) (1,945,100)
(151,122) (173,152)
(19,067) 18,350
1,244,113 1,155,766
63,398 45,450
(28,849) (63,075)
34,549 (17,625)
(23,225) (47,080)
1,255,437 1,091,061
(236,303) (223,409)
1,019,134 867,652
1,017,335 866,315
1,799 1,337
1,019,134 867,652
HK$1.7385T  HKS$1.4838 7T

Litttr e R R RN — R
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3831HILEFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be or have been
subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss
Currency translation differences:
— Group
— Associates
Release of exchange
reserve to profit or loss upon
disposal of a subsidiary

Items that will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation of financial assets at
fair value through other
comprehensive income
Remeasurements of employee benefit
obligations

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]
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2021
HK$’000
FERT
1,019,134

509,860
8,095

(1,489)

(1,192)

9,359

524,633

1,543,767

1,540,068
3,699

1,543,767

2020
HK$'000

TAT
867,652

(338,587)
(5,510)

(769)

558

(344,308)

523,344

524,733
(1,389)

523,344
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As at 31 March 2021
%2021%E3831H

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Right-of-use assets
Interests in associates
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Trading licence
Gold loan receivables
Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Deferred income tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Right of return assets
Trade receivables
Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Amount due from an associate
Gold loan receivables
Income tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

BE
ERHEE
L ENN Sy
REY*
ERREE
REEAB 2
BARMESFAEMER
WAZ EREE
R BRI
BHESEE
& FAMRER
H AN FEURARTE
EEFARREE

RENEE
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ROIEERIER
B 5 B UARTE
‘e FAMERER
HhAEUR AR IE
Bl —REE R ERE
BH=ESEE
AR EIFFS R
REKRREFEY

HaE
s

Capital and reserves attributable to ZSATEHEFE A

the equity holders of
the Company

Share capital

Share premium
Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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i
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The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Note
B 5

16
17
18
19
21
32

22
29

23
24
22

19
32

27(a)
27(b)

As at 31 March

#3831H
2021
HK$’000
F#w

906,816
909,084
595,194

42,925

1,173
1,080
50,855

149,110
123,076

2,779,313

7,321,614
75,749
277,338

489,828
769

1,554
19,525
3,546,349

11,732,726
14,512,039

58,710
2,494,040
8,771,915

11,324,665
(441)

11,324,224

2020
HK$'000
TAET

841,004
791,617
919,706

60,689

2,365
1,080

156,284
71,839

2,844,584

7,533,146
93,383
231,309

447,443
1,372

59,578
2,714,233

11,080,464
13,925,048

58,710
2,494,040
7,818,955

10,371,705

40,406

10,412,111

titir e EESRERERBHNE RS-
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As at 31 March 2021
%2021%E3831H

As at 31 March

#3831H
2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
b= FAET FET
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFTIEM AR 29 157,898 146,837
Lease liabilities HEaR 18 81,854 283,661
Employee benefit obligations BERMEME 30 1,291 9,618
241,043 440,116
Current liabilities mENEfE
Trade payables, other payables B S EIRIE S HAth
and accruals ANERENY ] 26 1,022,238 707,861
Financial guarantee contract HHIEREHN 35 20,000 -
Contract liabilities e’ 150,802 97,692
Derivative financial instrument TTEEMTA 20 - 22
Lease liabilities HEas 18 338,574 469,394
Sales refund liabilities HERMEE 155,906 173,221
Amount due to an associate I —K B A B IRIE 19 = 20
Bank borrowings IRITER 31 711,508 1,126,072
Gold loans =EEBE 32 377,520 386,739
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFTIE IR aE 170,224 111,800
2,946,772 3,072,821
Total liabilities HaE 3,187,815 3,512,937
Total equity and liabilities EmkaRiEzE 14,512,039 13,925,048

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in LitiirEEEBBRELEEHRMF—HEE-
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the 4R&BfFIRFKDAESZTRN2021F65240#E
Board of Directors on 24 June 2021 and were signed on its behalf  HE&H T ERNREE !
by the following directors:

Wong Wai Sheung Chan So Kuen
HER CES ]
Director Director

EFE EBF
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3831HILEFE

For the year ended
31 March 2020
As at 1 April 2019

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of employee
benefit obligations (Note 30)
Currency translation differences
Revaluation of financial assets
at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Note 21)

Total other comprehensive
income
Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners

Dividends paid (Note 13)

Dividend paid to a
non-controlling shareholder

At 31 March 2020

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

12020534 31H

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share
capital
fPZN
HK$'000
FERT

#ZF2020%F3831H
ILEE
201954 81H

EEWA

FREF -
Hth2EWA

RERFNEER

st 8 (1580) -
EREE -
BRAMESARMER
WAZEREEZ

BEEF (f:F21) -
Hitt2EAKA

58,710

EEAKA -

BBEEAZRS
BRE (fE13) -
m—aIEEREER

TRATRE B -

58,710

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

ARBEGmEE ARG
Non-
Share controlling Total
premium Reserves Subtotal interests equity
B 1n s (E (i Nt FRERER REAEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHEx FExT FERT FERT
(Note 28)
(MizE28)
2,494,040 7,940,041 10,492,791 45,646 10,538,437
- 866,315 866,315 1,337 867,652
- 558 558 - 558
- (341,371)  (341,371) (2,726)  (344,097)
- (769) (769) - (769)
- (341,582  (341,582) (2,726)  (344,308)
- 524,733 524,733 (1,389) 523,344
- (645819  (645,819) - (645,819)
- - - (3,851) (3,851)
- (645819  (645,819) (3,851)  (649,670)
2,494,040 7,818,955 10,371,705 40,406 10,412,111
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3831HILEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

TATED A AE
Non-
Share Share controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Subtotal interests equity

Red  RRiDEE ffs et JRiERatEnm  HEEAE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
FERT TER  TER FERT FER FER

(Note 28)
(MizE28)
For the year ended #HF2021£3831H
31 March 2021 ILLEE
As at 1 April 2020 1R2020F451H 58,710 2,494,040 7,818,955 10,371,705 40,406 10,412,111
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit for the year FEREH - - 1,017,335 1,017,335 1,799 1,019,134
Other comprehensive income  Htt2EIKA
Remeasurements of employee EBERHEEN
benefit obligations (Note 30) BHst 2 (5E30) - - 9,359 9,359 - 9,359
Currency translation differences EREL - - 516,055 516,055 1,900 517,955
Release of exchange reserve to  IRHE—RIB A
profit or loss upon disposal fRIRERHEEERR
of a subsidiary (Note 39) (Bt5%39) - - (1,489) (1,489) = (1,489)
Revaluation of financial assets BAAESFAREMEE
at fair value through other WAZEREEZ
comprehensive income (Note 21)  B{E& ) (i:E21) - - (1,192 (1,192) - (1,192)
Total other comprehensive Hh2mEmAWKA
income - - 522,733 522,733 1,900 524,633
Total comprehensive income  Z2E4EURA - - 1,540,068 1,540,068 3,699 1,543,767
Transactions with owners EBFEEAZRS
Dividends paid (Note 13) BABRE (H:E13) - - (587,108) (587,108) - (587,108)
Dividend paid to a non-controlling  E— % FEIE R AR 58
shareholder IKATER B - - - - (10,992)  (10,992)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 39) HE&—RBAT
(PI5E39) - - = (33,554)  (33,554)
- - (587,108)  (587,108) (44,546) (631,654)
At 31 March 2021 12021438318 58,710 2,494,040 8,771,915 11,324,665 (441) 11,324,224

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be — _E ¥4z & e 3 B4 B R FE B BB BT B s — EI B8 o
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3831HILEFE

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ET FAT
Cash flows from operating activites ~ E&EEFZIRER=2
Net cash generated from operations  ZEES ZIREFEE 33 2,623,908 3,344,804
Hong Kong profits tax refund/(paid) ’ME (BN &EHE 30,722 (70,320)
Overseas income taxes paid B8R (208,724) (239,592)
Net cash generated from EEENEL ISR
operating activities 2,445,906 3,034,892
Cash flows from investing activities NEEZIRERE
Purchases of property, BEYE -BEMRERE

plant and equipment 16 (138,937) (110,709)
Prepayment for purchase of BEWEZTEMTIE

properties 22 - (48,013)
Purchases of investment properties BEREYE 17 (98,781) (233,761)
Net of cash acquired, in relation to BREZTWHE—X

step-acquisition of a subsidiary b B8~ B T iE 2

R&F4E 38 (132) -
Net of cash disposed of, in BREHE—XWBAR

relation to disposal of a subsidiary FTEEZIREF58 39 (32,148) -
Interest received BUFIE 63,398 44,658
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME -BEK

plant and equipment RABP1SRIE 750 1,758

Net cash used in investing activities NERBFTRAZIREF58 (205,850) (346,067)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEFCIRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITERPTERIE 33 526,000 554,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITER 33 (940,564) (1,283,152)
Proceeds from gold loans with LUREMEEW

cash settlement ETEEMINRIE 33 1,983,437 2,144,256
Repayment of gold loans with BENREEED

cash settlement =2eBE 33 (2,095,966) (2,213,157)
Interest on bank borrowings RITEMK

and gold loans 2EEEME 33 (11,533) (35,346)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHREaE (BEF )

(including interest) 33 (401,848) (479,357)
Dividends paid BHRE (587,108) (645,819)
Dividend paid to a non-controlling BLEIEYN=]

interest of a subsidiary JEPER R KT AR 2 (10,992) (3,851)

Net cash used in financing activites ~ BAE EEIFTAE 2 IREF58 (1,538,574) (1,962,426)
Net increase in cash and cash BEAREEEBY 2

equivalents BN EE 701,482 726,399
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April  IR4B1EZHES K

HEEEY 2,714,233 2,086,522

Exchange differences PE R E%R 130,634 (98,688)
Cash and cash equivalents R3B3IHZRERREF

at 31 March B 25 3,546,349 2,714,233

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read it &R SR E R ELAFEM M T —FRIEE
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 September 1996 as
a company with limited liability under the Companies Act
of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Victoria
Place, 5th Floor 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the sourcing, designing,
wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of
gold and platinum jewellery, and gem-set jewellery.

The Company’s shares were listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 6 May 1997.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated, and
have been approved for issue by the board of directors on
24 June 2021.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap.622. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except for
certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivative financial instruments), financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income, gold loans
and gold loan receivables which are measured at fair value,
as explained in Note 4.

NEEE (BERF) BRAR (TRRF))
R1996F9RHE B REREARIE
REEFMHRIIABRAS > HEM
=R R it AVictoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda e

ERBREMB AR Wi IAEE) £
ENFERERHETEMRAEEH 2K
Bomeh B AREERTEER-

RABRNTI1997TFSA6HEE B S
RFZFRBRAT (TH3ZFT)) ER L

SRR ARBAEIN WEFEEMHRERS
AT (FErm)) 25 L ERR2021668
AHEEEGHETIE

R EGREMBRERFFAEAZEE
FEBRREN T X BB ARBPEIN
IEBRECRFIBEZRFEERER-

FTRBZIEEMBREDIREETRBMT
REER (BEBMBREER ) RES
NEFRGIFE622F 2 1K BB AR E AR B o B
GNP SEAPT R RE » B TR ANEF AR
mZEMEE (BEMTEEMIAR) %
ARESFARMEERAZEREE
ELBERBRESEESRANES
B IR e M BRI E L B AR
5o

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

(@)

New standard, amendments to existing standards and
interpretation that are effective for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 April 2020 and are relevant
to the Group’s operations:

The Group has applied the following new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretation for the
first time for the financial year beginning 1 April 2020:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of material

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

Interest rate benchmark reform

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a business

Conceptual Framework for Revised conceptual framework

Financial Reporting 2018 for financial reporting

The adoption of these new and amended standards
did not have any significant impact on the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

RRABBYBRSENEH N2
EMBERABECRETHERI G
B RRTEEEEETRALAEERS
STECRBF L F B o 5 e B EFIEN S =
EREMNEE Y GG HR
KBEXRRRMNEERVER > T

WEE -

(a) MR2020F4B 1 BB ZHMBEE
B A R B R AR A R
ZHEIEMNIBEEAREREZE
E

AEEBDR2020F481HBAZ
MHEERNEXRERTIHTE
EIR Y3 sk N

ERGHENFIHE  EAZER
EEEED

65t (BT %)
EBGHERS0% .  AXEENE
BRMBREER
FIRREBMBRS

R0 (B3] 5)
EAVBREERESE EBIER

(317
2018FHHREZ PHRE ZEERT
BERIER SHER

SR 2 5 T T RS 8T 2R AU
HEUARENG AN BREE
EEREAES
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Certain new standard and amendments to existing
standards have been published that are mandatory for
the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after
1 April 2021, which the Group has not early adopted,

are as follows:
Amendments to HKAS 39,

HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKAS 16 and HKAS 37

Amendments to
Annual Improvement Project

Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised)

Amendments to HKAS 1

HK-Interpretation 5 (2020)

HKFRS 17

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phrase 2

Narrow-scope Amendments @

Annual improvements 2018-
2020 cycle
(HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 16 and HKAS 41) @

Merger Accounting for
Common Control
Combinations @

Classification of liabilities as
current or non-current ©

Presentation of Financial
Statements —
Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause®

Insurance contracts ©

Amendments to HKFRS 17 ©

Accounting Policies, Change in
Accounting Estimates and
Errors ©

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture ¢
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Certain new standard and amendments to existing
standards have been published that are mandatory for
the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after
1 April 2021, which the Group has not early adopted,
are as follows: (Continued)

M Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January

2021

@ Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2022

@ Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2023

@ To be announced by HKICPA

The directors of the Group will adopt the new
standards and amendments to standards when they
become effective, except for the early adoption of
HKFRS 16 (Amendment), “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021”. The directors
of the Group are in the process of assessing the
financial impact of the adoption of the above new
standard and amendments to standards, none of
which is expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Early adoption of amendment to standard during the
year ended 31 March 2021 where early adoption is
permitted as follows:

HKFRS 16 (Amendment), “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021” (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021).
The amendment extends the availability of the
practical expedient in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16
to cover lease payments related rent concessions
that are originally due on or before 30 June 2022,
provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met. This early adoption of HKFRS 16
(Amendment) does not have any impact to the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2021.

UTABEBEMmAEER2021F481
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(a)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

(i) fair values of the assets transferred

(i) liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business

(i) equity interests issued by the Group

(iv)  fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

(v)  fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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(a)

Business combinations (Continued)
The excess of the:

(i) consideration transferred,

(i)  amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and

(i) acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in consolidated income
statement.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
consolidated income statement.
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(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately
in the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.
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(c)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or
joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting after initially being recognised at
cost.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
3.8.
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(d)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment between the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests
to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss
of control, joint control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-makers. The executive
directors and senior management, who make
strategic decisions, have been identified collectively
as the chief operating decision-makers, who are
responsible for allocating resources and assessing the
financial performance and positions of the operating
segments.

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised within ‘Other
gains/(losses), net’ in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘Finance costs, net’.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in consolidated income statement on
a net basis within ‘Other gains/(losses), net’.
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(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
consolidated income statement. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interests in associates that
do not result in the Group losing significant
influence) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to consolidated income statement.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

(d) HEBIMEBRIBSELE

REEBEIINER BNHERE
EREIIEHBEE
BRREHBSBINEFH
B A B) B4 I R H & =X
BRAREHBEBINEFR
BMEATNERZENNE
B) B AR ER ARG
ZEBREaRNRSORE
ERERTENDEERS
Bk

G0ER oy tHE B B A B IR E
HNAEBREHBIEINE
SR EA M BB A B By S A
AP Rt ER EZTRE
WMREBAIFERED ML
TREGEGEDmRAED ¥
PP HAthER ) & (BRI
FERRBERTNER R
BolEENAERREE
REES) » FIEHR R 5t
EREREEMOEEGRGHE
me

WD~ R R 3R 18 TH ¥R SE B AR
EIIR - B ABEREZE
BEEEEGZ X

ERABREERZAREEN D
FIERARER BZAEB Z A
FEFRI SRSt &R ) HERRIA S G5t
AZBEEZREENED S —
BBYEE RBRABRME &
BRI D ZREENEERK LR
oA HEMEERFEENREE
EZHHBHRBREREERERX
84 o

Annual Report 2020/21 3R



Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 50 years or over the unexpired
lease period of leasehold land,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the unexpired lease
period, whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures and 5 years

computer equipment
Plant and machinery 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less impairment
losses, if any. No provision for depreciation is made on
assets under construction in progress until such time
as the relevant assets are completed and available for
their intended use. On completion, the relevant assets
are transferred to property, plant and equipment at fair
value or cost less accumulated impairment losses

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 3.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing net proceeds with carrying amount of the
relevant assets and are included in the consolidated
income statement.
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Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied
by the Group.

Investment property is measured at cost, including
related transaction costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line
method to write off the cost of the investment
properties over their estimated useful lives of 30 to 50
years. Where the carrying amount of an investment
property is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probably that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment. At
the date of reclassification, its cost and accumulated
depreciation are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and become its cost and accumulated
depreciation for accounting purposes. If an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, it is reclassified as
investment property.

Trading licence with indefinite useful life represents
a membership in Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange
Society and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.

Inventories, comprise raw materials and finished
goods, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. The cost of finished goods comprises
raw materials, direct labour and other direct costs.
[t excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

(@) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in consolidated income statement.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classified
its debt instruments as financial assets at
amortised cost.
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(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses), net, together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented in separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in other gains/(losses), net in the consolidated
income statement as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not
reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Group or the counterparty. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet
the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such
as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair values. The
method of recognising the resulting gains or losses
depends on whether the derivative is designated
and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of the item being hedged. Since the derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group do
not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in fair value
of any derivative financial instruments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.
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Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade and other receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

See Note 22 and Note 24 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for other receivables
and trade receivables, respectively and see Note 3.10
for a description of the Group’s impairment policies for
trade and other receivables.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Borrowings are carried initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and an associate
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of
the resolution of the uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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(a)

(b)

()

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans are
recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate
of the obligation can be made.

Pension obligations

Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) which is registered under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held in a separately administered fund. The
MPF Scheme is generally funded by payments
from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
the employer’s voluntary contribution forfeited
from the MPF Scheme by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.
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(d)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Mainland

As stipulated by rules and regulations in
Mainland, the Group contributes to state-
sponsored retirement schemes for its relevant
employees in Mainland. The state-sponsored
retirement schemes are responsible for the
entire post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to the state-
sponsored retirement schemes are expensed as
incurred and are fully and immediately vested in
the employees.

Defined benefit obligation - long service
payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump
sum long service amounts payable on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the
amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. The obligation is calculated
using the projected unit credit method by a
qualified actuary, discounted to its present
value, and the fair value of any related plan
assets is deducted. The discount rate is the
yield at balance sheet date on Exchange Fund
Notes that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s obligations. All
remeasurement gains/losses of defined benefit
plans are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Past service costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the average period until the benefits become
vested.
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Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
sales returns and discounts, after eliminated sales
within the Group.

(@) Sales of goods — wholesale

The Group manufactures and sells a range
of gold jewellery and gem-set of jewellery
products in the wholesale market. Sales are
recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the licensees/wholesalers, the
licensees/wholesalers have full discretion over
the channel and price to sell the products
and there is no unfulfiled obligation that could
affect the acceptance of the products. Delivery
does not occur until the products have been
delivered to the specified location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the licensees/wholesalers, and either the
licensees/wholesalers have accepted the
products in accordance with sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

A sales refund liability and an asset for the
right of return goods are recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet. The Group uses
the expected value method to estimate the
credit refund or return which best predicts the
amount of reliable consideration to which the
Group entitled.

A contract liability is also recognised when the
licensees/wholesalers pay deposits before the
Group transfers control of the products to the
licensees/wholesalers.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

U]

Sales of goods - retail

The Group operates a chain of retail stores
selling a variety of gold and platinum jewellery
and gem-set jewellery products. Revenue from
the sales of goods is recognised when the
product is transferred to the customer who
takes delivery in store.

Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately when the customer purchases
the gold and platinum jewellery and gem-set
jewellery products. It is the Group’s policy to sell
its products to the end customer with a right of
return within one year at an agreed discount on
the original selling price. A sales refund liability
and an asset for the right of return goods are
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet.
The Group uses the expected value method to
estimate the sales refund or return which best
predicts the amount of reliable consideration to
which the Group entitled.

Royalty and service income

Royalty and service income in respect of the use
of the Group’s trademarks is recognised over
time on an accrual basis in accordance with
the substance of the relevant agreements. The
refund of credit to licensees when certain credit
refund criteria is met are considered as variable
consideration. The Group uses expected value
method to estimate the credit refund which best
predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group entitled.

Consultancy fee income

Consultancy fee income in respect of technical
support and consultancy services are
recognised over the period in which the services
are rendered.

Interest income from bank deposits
Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease period.

(b) HE&ER - FTE

AEBRKEERTEE &
BEXEENTEMRHKE
MEm ZEEMBBERR
(HRIESAIE) RS

RIFEEmMUBA

ERBERRTEMREKE
HHERFANFXIRS
B AEBNBREBR
mEPEEHEM LA
AR—FANREBNHE
TNBYR G - R EEAYEY
ERVNEBREENGEE
EEERES - AEEF A
FRHEEAGSHHERME
RE HAXEBERES
WA EREBEENRER

Ao

() mBRRFBEKRA

ERAERTERBRZ MR
K AR 75 B R A TS R IR 4B B 173
ENANBT R RS EERERE
R BENEGETEEEMN
BRER G BRTYmEEZEE
MIARR R BB A5
ExAEMEEAGESEES
B EAAEBRBERES
WA EREBEEZRETR

Ao

(d EHMEKRA

B R R (BT S 1% e BRI AR
BZzEBEBWRA > RIEHR

752 HARFEST o

(e) SRITEFERFSUWA

IRITERA S RA R ER
) 2R % 42 B RS EE ) B FE

30

(H FMEEWA

HEEWARBRHANERE

SR o

Annual Report 2020/21 3R



(g9 Commission income
Commission income is recognised in the period
when the referral services are provided.

(h) Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any
contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to
the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction
prices for the time value of money.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value in a similar economic environment with
similar terms and conditions.
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Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in consolidated
income statement. Short-term leases are leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise small items of office equipment.

(@) Variable lease payments

Estimation uncertainty arising from variable lease
payments

Some property leases contain variable payment
terms that are linked to sales generated from a
store. For individual stores, up to 100 percent
of lease payments are on the basis of variable
payment terms and there is a wide range of
sales percentages applied. Variable payment
terms are used for a variety of reasons, including
minimising the fixed costs base for newly
established stores. Variable lease payments that
depend on sales are recognised in consolidated
income statement in the period in which the
condition that triggers those payments occurs.

EREEERMAE  SEUT

IR

HEERZIPFAEERE

o REWBHMNZAEPIEZE
fEIAR & 7> B P W Z 1
AHEESR;

o  EEIMBEEME ; K

et

ERBEEE-—RNEENAKER
FHREHR UBREERSE) iR
BEREETLIE - HEEEGE
BETEBEERER AERAEE
EREEEENAERFERRAT
DS

HEREHERAEEEEEHEEN
Rz RUBRERGEETER
sl R o B HATE B HETHIR A
12BN DR12BR 2 HE BB
BEEESRE/NERAERR-

(@) FIEAEER
PJEHE N HERZ1G5T
iEE
BoMEHECSHEHE
£ ZHE R A B
1R - BB B IS & B 5P
BARIERZ AE N RER
= 0IE100% > I B 2 4
EBDLLEERE LA
BURGRZREEZRE
BIREHT AR IS & 2 B E AL A
BHORERME -BURNIHE
BRz Al EEE R E %
AEBEEMRZIRHELEE
RAEGGIEmRTPESD -

Annual Report 2020/21 3R



(b) Extension and termination options
Extension and termination options are included
in certain property and equipment leases across
the Group. These terms are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing
contracts. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by
the Group and not by the respective lessor.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term (Note 18). Initial direct costs
incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expenses over the lease term on the
same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the consolidated balance sheet
based on their nature.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with the expected credit loss model
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other
payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment.
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Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the
end of the reporting period but not distributed at the
end of the reporting period.

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Note 7 provides further information on how the Group
accounts for government grants.

Gold loan receivables to be received by physical gold
are classified as assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Gold loans to be repaid by cash are designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
as the gold loans form part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives. Gold loans to be
repaid by physical gold are classified as liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.
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General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks, commodity price risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to manage certain risk
exposures. The use of financial derivatives to hedge
certain risk exposures is governed by the Board of
Directors of the Company.
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Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the transactions settled in HK$. The
Group also has retail and wholesale operations
in Mainland, Macau, Canada, the United States,
Australia, Malaysia and Singapore. Foreign
exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets or liabilities
are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (“RMB”). The majority of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary items
are cash and cash equivalents denominated
in RMB, which are held by Group companies
whose functional currencies are not RMB.
In addition, certain Group companies whose
functional currency are HKS$, have intra-group
advances from their subsidiaries denominated in
RMB.

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk
by performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposures. The Group also
uses foreign exchange derivative contracts to
manage their foreign exchange risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised
asset or liabilities denominated in a currency that
is not the Group companies’ functional currency,
primarily with respect to RMB, if necessary.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and
transactions arising from its operations primarily
do not expose the Group to material foreign
exchange risk. The Group’s assets and liabilities
are primarily denominated in the respective
Group companies’ functional currency.

At 31 March 2021, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against HK$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit would
have been approximately HK$13,035,000
(2020: HK$24,463,000) lower/higher (2020:
higher/lower) respectively.
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(i)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for the
gold loans receivables, other receivables arose
from disposal of a subsidiary, other receivables
from licensees and amount due from Hong
Kong Resources Holding Company Limited
(“HKRH”"), which were issued at fixed rates, and
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group’s interest rate risk also arises from
gold loans and bank borrowings. Gold loans
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. Bank borrowings at variables
interest rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. The Group does not enter into
derivatives to address these risks.

At 31 March 2021, if interest rates on
borrowings had increased/decreased by
50 basis points with all other variables held
constant, the impact on post-tax profit would
have been approximately HK$2,971,000 (2020:
HK$4,701,000) lower/higher respectively.

Commodity price risk

The Group mainly engaged in the sales of gold
jewellery. The gold markets are influenced by
global as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. A significant change in the prices
of gold could adversely affect the Group’s
financial performance. The Group manages
commodity price risks mainly by hedging gold
price fluctuations through certain derivative
financial instrument-trading of gold contracts,
gold loans and gold future contracts. Should
the gold price go up, the Group would charge
a loss representing the increase in gold price
compared to the contract price, and largely net
against the increase in turnover of gold products
as a result of gold price increase.
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(iii)

Commodity price risk (Continued)

The gold contracts are settled on daily basis and
the differences between the contract price and
market price are immediately recognised in the
consolidated income statement. As at 31 March
2021, the notional value of the outstanding gold
contracts amounted to HK$228,344,000 (2020:
HK$217,832,000).

As at 31 March 2021, if the market price of
gold had increased/decreased by 5%, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2021, due to
changes in fair values of gold contracts, would
have been approximately HK$9,533,000 (2020:
HK$9,095,000) lower/higher respectively.

The gold loans (Note 32) are settled at maturity
which usually mature in 1 to 6 months (2020:
1 to 4 months) from date of inception and the
fair value changes are immediately recognised
in the consolidated income statement. As at 31
March 2021, gold loans of HK$268,755,000
(2020: HK$386,739,000) represents gold loans
involved cash settlement. As at 31 March 2021,
gold loan contracts of 259 kilograms (2020: Nil)
amounted to HK$108,765,000 (2020: Nil) are
outstanding and involved physical settlement.

As at 31 March 2021, if the market price of
gold had increased/decreased by 5%, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2021, due to
changes in fair values of gold loans, would have
been approximately HK$15,844,000 (2020:
HK$16,146,000), lower/higher respectively.

As at 31 March 2021, if the market price of
gold had increased/decreased by 5%, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2021, due to
changes in fair values of gold loan receivables,
would have been approximately HK$2,275,000
(2020: Nil), higher/lower respectively.
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(iv)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group.

The Group’s crediit risk is primarily attributable to
cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks
and financial institutions, derivative financial
instruments, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, trade receivables,
amount due from an associate, gold loan
receivables, rental and other deposits, and other
receivables, mainly including other receivables
arose from disposal of a subsidiary, amount due
from HKRH, other receivables from licensees.
Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor
the exposures to these credit risks on an on-
going basis.

Risk management

Cash is deposited with financial institutions
with sound credit ratings and the Group has
exposure limit to any single financial institution.
Transactions involving financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income
and derivative financial instruments are also
executed with counterparties of sound credit
standing. Given their high credit ratings,
management does not expect any of these
financial institutions will fail to meet their
obligations.
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(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management (Continueq)

Management has performed recoverability
reviews on trade and other receivables regularly
and actively followed up the overdue balance
of trade and other receivables in order to
minimise the exposure to credit risk. In relation
to trade receivables related to retail sales, retail
customers normally settle in cash or credit
cards issued by major banks with low credit
risk. The Group’s concessionaire sales through
department stores and online sales platforms
are generally collectible within 30 days from
the invoice date while credit sales are generally
on credit terms within 90 days. Normally
the Group does not require collaterals from
trade debtors. The Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers, taking
into account their financial position, history
of default and other factors. The utilisation of
credit limits is regularly reviewed. No material
credit limits were exceeded during the reporting
year, and management does not expect any
material losses from non-performance by
these counterparties. For gold loan receivables
and other receivables, mainly including other
receivables arose from disposal of a subsidiary
and the receivables from licensees, to manage
credit risk, the Group has considered the
long-established business relationship with
the counterparty and obtained security in the
form of guarantees and collaterals which can
be called upon if the counterparty is in default
under the terms of the agreement. As at 31
March 2021, these receivables were fully
performing and the credit risk is assessed as
insignificant. Refer to Note 22 and Note 32 for
details respectively. In respect to amount due
from HKRH, the management closely monitors
its financial position and provides loss allowance
for the balance when necessary. Adequate
allowances for impairment losses have been
made for estimated irrecoverable amounts.
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management (Continued)

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk
in view of its large number of customers. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated balance sheet. Except for the
financial guarantee given by the Group as set
out in Note 35, the Group does not provide any
other guarantee which would expose the Group
to credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets and other item
Expected credit losses are unbiased probability-
weighted estimates of credit losses which are
determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes and taking into account past events,
current and future conditions, including but not
limited to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic
on the ability of the Group’s customers and
creditors to repay the debts.

The Group has derived the expected loss rate
by referencing to credit rating analysis and
external default data to determine the probability
of default of its financial assets and other item
and incorporated forward looking information,
including significant changes in external market
indicators which involved significant estimates
and judgements.

The Group has the following types of financial
assets and other item that are subject to the
expected credit loss model:

o Trade receivables;

o Amount due from an associate;

o Deposits and other receivables; and
° Financial guarantee contract

All bank balances and bank deposits are held
at reputable financial institutions and there is
no significant concentration risk to a single
counterparty and there is no history of defaults
from these counterparties. The expected credit
losses is close to zero as at 31 March 2021 and
2020.
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(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item
(Continued)

U)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss provision for trade receivables. The
expected credit loss provision rates for
trade receivables are based on historical
payment profiles and historical credit
loss experience, adjusted to reflect,
where relevant and appropriate, current
and information specific to the debtors,
future economic and market conditions
and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the debtors to settle the
receivables that the Group considers are
reasonable and appropriate.

To measure the expected credit
losses, the Group categorises its trade
receivables based on the nature of
customer accounts sharing the similar
credit risk characteristics. These include
receivables from electronic payment
service providers, department stores
in Mainland, online sales platforms in
Mainland and individual wholesalers/
licensees. Trade receivables have been
further grouped based on the days past
due. The gross carrying amount of the
trade receivables and the loss allowance
provision analysed by aging band are set
out below.
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(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item
(Continued)

U)
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Trade receivables (Continued)

The lifetime expected credit loss
allowance of trade receivables as at 31
March 2021 was determined as follows:

1-30
days
Current  past due
B
P 1-30%
Gross carrying amount  EREIAA(E (T4 7D)

(HK$'000) 245,451 25,782
Lifetime expected HRSEERREE

creditloss alowance  (F#7T)

(HK$'000) = =
The lifetime expected credit loss
allowance of trade receivables as at 31
March 2020 was determined as follows:

1-30
days
Current  past due
wi
A 1-30%
Gross carrying amount ERETAR(E (T 7T)

(HK$'000) 190,023 29,982
Lifetime expected 2HRREERERE

credit loss alowance (T 7)

(HK$'000) - -

As at 31 March 2021, the expected
credit loss rate is 0% (2020: 0%) for trade
receivables aged current to 180 days past
due, and 50% (2020: 50%) for those aged
over 180 days past due, respectively.
Expected credit loss is close to zero for
the trade receivables aged current to 180
days past as there is limited recent history
of default.

31-60
days
past due
bt
31-60%

4,108

31-60
days
past due
it
31-60%

9,507

(ivy 58

B ()

THEERAMELBE

()
U)

61-90
days
past due
&
61-00%

1,930

61-90
days
past due
i
61-90K

247

B EWIRIE (8)
R2021FE3831HZ &
SIEWERIE 2 HRTEHA(E

EBEEBEHBHEEN
T
91-180  Over 180
days days
pastdue past due Total
ol fat !
91-180% 180KML -y
- 134 277,405
= (67) (67)

R2020F3H31HZE
SEWERIESATERAE
EFBEBHELECW
T

91-180  Over 180
days days
pastdue  past due Total
bk k]
91-180% 180KM L it
550 2,000 232,309
- (1,000) (1,000)

R2021E3831H 7 IR
B ABEAE A EI180
THEZEWRKRER
TEHEEREEXA0%
(20204 : 0%) > MEE
A BEI180R MU Y
B REWRBENTERE
BREZXA50% (2020
F 1 50%) c AT HRE
R AR IREEARD
HAE#EA180KMIE 5
FEWARIBEMTBHRE B
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(iv) Credit risk (Continued) (ivy ESERKE @&

Impairment of financial assets and other item THEERAMESHE

(Continued) #)

()  Trade receivables (Continued) () HBEZEKRIKSE (@
Trade receivables are written off when B REBRER I ES
there is no reasonable expectation of BBl FRIE 2~ FEHA R
recovery. Indicators that there is no fHolER AT EGIEI
reasonable expectation of recovery BImIEZBREE (B
includes, amongst other, the failure of a FREIE) B AR
debtor to engage in a repayment plan AREBFTILIERETE o

within the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables B 5 AR B R E R
are presented as net impairment losses BEFABKEHEF B
within operating profit. Subsequent BEEEZE HEIW
recoveries of amounts previously written BBy AT EE S RE T A
off are credited against the same line item. EIEREISE
The movement of loss allowance for trade B 5 AR BB 1R 1
receivables as at 31 March 2021 and E 1120214 202043
2020 is as follows: B31BNEHHUT :
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAET
Opening loss allowance 4818 Z F¥EEEH
at 1 April (1,000) (1,296)
Reversal of loss allowance 518 1% 5 #5[2] 933 296
Closing loss allowance 3B 31 B 2 FEREREE
at 31 March (67) (1,000)
Reversal of impairment losses on trade B 5 W ER B B B 18
receivables amounted to approximately [51497933,0007% 75 (2020
HK$933,000 (2020: reversal of impairment | ES 1R H $5(21296,00078
losses of HK$296,000) is included in the 70) st AR EEEmR

consolidated income statement.
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(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item
(Continued)

(i)

Other financial assets

Other financial assets include amount due
from an associate, gold loan receivables,
deposits and other receivables, mainly
including other receivables arose from
disposal of a subsidiary, other receivables
from licensees, and amount due from
HKRH to measure the expected credit
loss on these other financial assets.

Deposits and other receivables were
mainly rental deposits and utilities and
management fee deposits. These deposits
are mainly placed with various landlords
and property management companies
in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland and
other regions and are due to refund upon
the expiry of the tenancy agreements
and handover of the leased premises.
Management considered that the risk of
default is insignificant for such deposits,
therefore, expected credit loss is assessed
to be close to zero.
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(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item
(Continued)

(i)

Other financial assets (Continued)
Management has closely monitored
the credit risk in relation to gold loan
receivables, other receivables arose
from disposal of a subsidiary and other
receivables from licensees. As at 31
March 2021, certain guarantees and
collaterals from counterparty are held
to cover potential exposure to credit
risk. Furthermore, the risk of default of
the counterparty, taking into account its
repayment history, financial position, and
other factors, including the economic
environment in which the counterparty
operates. As at 31 March 2021, these
receivables were fully performing and the
expected credit loss is assessed to be
insignificant.
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(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Other financial assets (Continued)

To measure the expected credit loss of
the amount due from HKRH, management
considers the past repayment and
default history, the historical credit losses
experience and the credit rating of the
counterparty. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the
counterparty to settle the receivable.
Where necessary, allowance for expected
credit loss is made for the estimated
irrecoverable amount. Accordingly, as at
31 March 2021, the loss allowance of
HK$7,080,000 (2020: HK$7,080,000) was
provided.

Financial guarantee contracts

For financial guarantee contracts, the
maximum amount that the Group
guaranteed under the respective
contracts was HK$1,075,000,000 (2020:
HK$1,075,000,000) as at 31 March 2021,
which represents 50% of the aggregated
amount of bank facilities granted to an
associate. As at 31 March 2021, the
bank facilities utilised by the associate
was approximately HK$1,486,000,000
(2020: HK$1,678,000,000) which is
secured by pledged bank deposits of
the associate of HK$764,725,000 (2020:
HK$851,812,000).
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(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

v)

Impairment of financial assets and other item

(Continued)

(i)  Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)
The credit risk on financial guarantee
contracts represents the risk of default of
the associate. The Group assessed the
default risk and measured the expected
credit loss arising from such financial
guarantee contract. Details of the financial
guarantee contracts are set out in Note
35.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances
and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements
have been for additions of and upgrades on
property, plant and equipment, payment on
debts, purchases and operating expenses. The
Group finances its working capital requirements
through a combination of internal resources and
bank borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure it maintains sufficient cash and bank
balances and has available funding through
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet its working capital requirements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance date
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, including interest
payments computed using contractual rates,
based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.
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(v) Liquidity risk (Continued) (v) mENEERAMRE @&

Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows FHIA 74T — KRR LT
HE
More than More than
1 year 2 years but Total
Repayable Within but less less than  undiscounted
on demand 1year  than2years 5years cash outflows
Ba—F BEmE  KEERE
AREREE - EOREE  EOREE  RHEEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FART FAT
As at 31 March 2021 12021536318
Trade payables and other payables Z 3 & IRERE M
FEfTERIE - 874,248 - - 874,248
Lease liabilities HEaE - 338,988 78,244 12,344 429,576
Gold loans with cash settlement  RE&TEELES 268,755 - - - 268,755
Bank borrowings RITER 711,508 - - - 711,508
980,263 1,213,236 78,244 12,344 2,284,087
More than More than
1 year 2 years but Total
Repayable Within but less less than  undiscounted
on demand 1 year than 2 years Syears  cash outflows
Be—E BEmE  ABRERS
BRERER £ BIREE  BORRE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT
As at 31 March 2020 1%2020%3831H
Trade payables and other payables & 5 FE{TERER HAth
FEfTERIE - 567,973 - - 567,973
Lease liabilities HEESR - 485,734 254,79 34,144 774,673
Amount due to an associate E—REEAFRE - 20 - - 20
Gold loans with cash settlement  B&XEEEES 386,739 - - - 386,739
Bank borrowings RITEM 1,126,072 - - - 1,126,072
1,512,811 1,053,727 254,795 34,144 2,855,477
As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group 7220214 K2020E3831H »
issued corporate financial guarantee to banks KEERET—RBEE AT
in respect of bank facilities granted to an NIRTTHERRITEHLQE
associate (Note 35). As at 31 March 2021, MR (M5E35) 722021
the maximum amount the Group could be F3A318 WiERZHFHS
required to settle under the arrangement for the RERZTE AEEIREE
guaranteed amount if the amount is claimed REBTHAEBRTEEZ
by the counterparty to the guarantee was B % %41,075,000,0007%
HK$1,075,000,000 (2020: HK$1,075,000,000). 75 (20204 : 1,075,000,0007
) o
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v)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Maturity Analysis — Bank borrowings and gold
loans with cash settlement subject to repayment
on demand clauses based on scheduled
repayments including interest payables.

12021538310
RTER
ReRi=efEE

As at 31 March 2021
Bank borrowings
Gold loans with cash settlement

As at 31 March 2020
Bank borrowings
Gold loans with cash settlement

#2020%3A31H
BTER
BeRaaefE8

As at 31 March 2021, there were no
outstanding derivative financial instruments
for the Group. The table below analyses the
Group’s derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at 31
March 2020 to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

As at 31 March 2020 1#2020%3R31H
Foreign exchange forward contracts SMEZEi &4
—HA

=t

- Inflow
- Qutflow

(v) EEBEZEE (&)
FHHA DT — RIESRER
BB IRARRIR 2 iR1TER R
HEXEIEETEEZETEE
(BT FIE)
More than More than
1 year 2 years Total
Within but less butless  undiscounted
1 year than 2 years than5years  cash outflows
Bia—F BAmME FAURRE
—&R BOREE BORESE M ERE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET Thn AR FTET

698,604 12,274 1,021 711,899

269,120 - - 269,120

967,724 12,274 1,021 981,019

1,100,715 15,660 13,475 1,129,850

386,913 - - 386,913

1,487,628 15,660 13,475 1,516,763
[R2021F3831H  A"EE T
BAREEITESMIAYT
FIREHN2020E3831B
BRTHBESNERE &
RE BRI R ERE L
NiTESR T EZA R
BHAERET DT - RAKE
NEERAENRMBRESR
EoHNURNEZERLA R
1218 B REI R4 ER TR &
IRMEASERIESS -

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET TER FET
11,508 - - 11,508
11,414 - - 11,414
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including cash and bank balances, trade receivables,
other receivables, deposits and amount due from an
associate and the Group’s financial liabilities, including
trade and other payables, amount due to an associate
and bank borrowings approximate their fair values due
to their maturities.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
traded in active markets are estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried
at fair values, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR PSRRI 5

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4 H#EEMEIE (&)

(b) Fair value estimation (Continued) (b) 2AREH @)
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREFAREREFP20214F3831H
assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair BARESENTHREERSR
values at 31 March 2021. Bf&Ee
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B—k PR B st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET T T

As at 31 March 2021 #2021%3R831H
Assets BE
Financial assets at BAREEA
fair value through other Hittzml Az
comprehensive income TRIEE 1,173 = = 1,173
Liabilities af
Gold loans with cash settlement  REXEELHEE - 268,755 - 268,755
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREF)AREEF20205£3831H
assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair BARESFENTREER TR
values at 31 March 2020. ISEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R ETHR B it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FET FHET
As at 31 March 2020 2020438318
Assets BE
- Financial assets at —RBAfEFAHEMER
fair value through other WAZ EREE
comprehensive income 2,365 - - 2,365
Liabilities =K
- Derivative financial instrument ~ —#7T4EE£RIT A
— Foreign exchange —INEZBREH
forward contracts - 22 - 22
- Gold loans with -ReERiELEE
cash settlement - 386,739 - 386,739

- 386,761 - 386,761
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The following table presents the Group’s assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair values at 31 March
2021.

As at 31 March 2021 11202143 H831H
Assets B5E
Gold loan receivables EhEEEE
Liabilties =K
Gold loans with physical EMEEEEREE
settlement

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

There were no transfer between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

There were no significant changes in valuation
techniques during the year.

(i) Financial instruments in level 1
The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Level 1
F—R
HK$'000
FHATT
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TRV EERP2021E3831H
BAREFENEERAR-

Level 2 Level 3 Total
EH B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i FiEr Fin
52,409 - 52,409
108,765 - 108,765

FEENBRENERERZF
HEENBFRAEZHEDAH
ARERBRBAFEL

H E20214F K2020FE3831H IEE
EBR S E B H ™
7 45 A fr] B 435 o

FAZEERMITEEREH -

() F1BAZERMIA
REERHHEEEZEMTA
ZAREDNREBERESEH
ZHBREFE - HZHFR
ERBNR & EHIIEEE 55 X2
ZFTSHHE S ERA
T EBRFAEEREE
B ERFHRERBRERR
EREENRFHHERS
Alzm B RAREHE A%
BN ERMEERB TS
REASHEBRE -ZFT
BWHIAE R



(i)

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

° The fair value of foreign exchange forward
contracts is determined using forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date,
with the resulting value discounted back
to present value.

° Other techniques, such as discounted
cash flow analysis, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

The fair value of gold loan receivables is
determined using discounted cash flow
valuation technique reference to quoted market
bid price of gold traded in active liquid markets
as a key input, adjusting for the counterparty
credit risk inputs. For gold loans, the fair value
is determined using discounted cash flow
valuation technique reference to quoted market
bid price of gold traded in active liquid markets
as a key input.

(ii)

FAEAZEMTA

WIRERHHBEE S/
THEWBIMTETR) 2R
AEDHRBEERMNERE -
ZEMERMEEN BRI
SHRBERETSHE B8
DR FE B RS BY 45 E 15 5T o 1
SAETRRAEBEMREZMRE
ERBABIEHEAIHRE A
Z TR AH28R

i —IENZIAE XNHAEL
FRBEAIHRZ HIHHE
Al ETRWII AR

AREEEMIANKEMR
ERMmEE :

o  HUTAMTHISRES
RAEHRE-

o  SNEBHGHNARE
REEHZEHERE
T PREEZBERR
BR5tolRE-

o HfhEAM AIMASIRER
EREBDT BLUREE
HHBEMBIANA R
&e

BURESEEZ ARETE
AMRREREMERME
EoWBEREFRRBTIES
BEEZHEEZMBEARE
ERIE2EARE WA
ZHFEERREABIRE
LB -pEEBEEMS
AREDERAMREREERE
HERMERE  L2ERE
BREmBEEEZEEZ™
BEAREBEREIEBAHK
o
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payments to shareholders, issue of new shares or
obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of
gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (including bank borrowings and gold
loans) less cash and bank balances. Total capital is
calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet, plus net debt.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure

AEBREEEANERBRES
ERFEEFRE] RMABKER
ROk A EAF mAER B R
U R RIFEENE RREBLU
IR E AR ©

AEBEEEARRE TRARBKE
RIBVEFFHEE - HRFIH
BEARE AEEIFABAT
REBVIR S ~ BITH R ER Y

IRTTER

AEBTUBREELXERE

LBE A H - F BRI E R
B(BERTERKESZMEE) B
REMRTEFABTRH -BEX
b TEm) MRS BEEARRM
™) R EEFESH

AREEF20215F &%2020%F3831H

as at 31 March 2021 and 2020: ZEREEDTUT
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FAET
Bank borrowings (Note 31) IRITER (5E31) 711,508 1,126,072
Gold loans (Note 32) =2EE (W:E32) 377,520 386,739

Less: Cash and bank balances B IRE R IRITAERR

(Note 25) (MFzE25) (3,546,349) (2,714,233)
Net cash FIRE (2,457,321) (1,201,422)
Total equity AR 11,324,224 10,412,111
Total capital B A 8,866,903 9,210,689
Gearing ratio BEEELE N/ATREF N/AT 78 A3

AEENRBRESRBENERER
URBHEEREBERREHERAS-

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital
base to support the operations and development of its
business in the long term.
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Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are set out below.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
[t could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Interests in associates and non-financial assets
including property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets, are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations
require the use of judgements and estimates.

ERMEMBRREFTIRA Z (G5 R H
B hEBEEREEMAR (BER
BARBRERREMAIFHZEETR
5t) REREHETE - FIS st ABIRAETE
F EVGRBABERERES - TX
SNRAREARRER T -MREEEE
REBEZRAEBARFHERBEZ G5
RefRRas o

FEVERFESAEEBTH
fls 51 & B 1 BRh 51 52 T A4S K288
ERXBIHER L EEFTHRE
BEMIREERHERUEER
EmBYBEARMIEL > Wrl AR
EEUNBELRRFIHFRER
ERITEBHRFAENITEMAE
RER -BEBNRESEEREMT
fhlbZE b5t e

8 HIRE B R S g RN B
ERBA R KIFEMEE (B
ME--BERRE REMERRE
RREE) REEREEERE:
AIZRIEETR(E - PIUWR[E BEE T IR 1
EREFBERR LA AERLEN
AT TE © b 35 5t 58 7878 A ) i &
fli5te
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Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of asset can be supported
by its recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and
(iiy the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as
a result affect the Group’s reported financial condition
and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to the
consolidated income statement.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, after
reviewing the business environment as well as the
Group’s strategies and past performance of its
cash-generating units, management concluded
that there was impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of HK$9,115,000
(2020: HK$8,134,000) and HK$71,180,000 (2020:
HK$56,392,000) respectively. Management believe
that any reasonably possible changes in the
assumptions used in the impairment reviews would
not affect management’s view on impairment at 31
March 2021.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

BEBEEREBEREREERNE-
LEHBFE ()RS EHBERTE
B E E B R SEEA IR F 4 (i)
HeJur ol #Ea (B A 7o (8 R & Al
AENBBARGSHEBEEBT
EREEFMBRNRKRERE
REFEMNENERSE) IEXH
BERBTE; ki) ERETRER
FTANBEEXE2RR BEILER
TREFAREUBEN KA -
BIEEPRkE B FH R ERNRR
(BHEMBERARERERAR
AERRRR) EEEE Pt
G H R E R P AIRE R R K
EXFE RXMEELEEMZR
BRI RS E R G - IR E
REBRARRRESREBFRALIER
BARHEE) QIR ERERGE
mRPIREERX

HECO21ESHITHILEE  &K%5F
BEMERRBERANER KK
MRHIBRSESBUZBARER
EEEBSEER WE - BEXK
RERERREEZREDR S
9,115,00078 7T (20204F : 8,134,000
HBIT) ’71,180,0005 7 (20204 :
56,392,000/87t) - EEEEE M
ERTERZREZEANGE
HEEFEIgREEEEHY
2021FE3H31ABEZER



The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
Mainland and other jurisdictions. Judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions
and calculations during the ordinary course of
business for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such as differences will impact the income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made. Deferred income
tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary differences
or tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities relating to undistributed
profit of those subsidiaries in Mainland are recognised
based on the undistributed profit of those subsidiaries
in Mainland generated since 1 January 2008 which is
expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future.
When the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred income tax assets and liabilities and
taxation charges in the period in which such estimate
is changed.

FEBAHMEE AR EMME]
ZRENFIER BESE AR
BIPRIS IR B A |IFH Al - £
HEEXEFRAEETRERERRK
MM S KETE - HIEEEERN
REMBERB RN RV CEN
U REMERERNEETAR
R B FT 1S M RIESEFR 13
B RETHREREKRNERKIR
BERZIEEFTSIEE  REEE
50 7y R 2R A ) fE 3R B SR AR s 7]
AFREZSFERERNRE
B 1R MMHREST ©

ERMNE AR Z KD IKEN A
B 2 EIEFR IR IR AR 3 52008
FIRTHERMMBARMMES
T IREAR IS A R R DIk Z R D
TS BRIz S RRERTE
B AEER AZEERENG
StEEEF BN FEREERT
SREERGELEREARST ZHE

=
E
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The executive directors and senior management
collectively are identified as the chief operating decision-
makers (“CODM”). The CODM reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. The operating segments are reported
in accordance with the internal reporting reviewed by the
CODM.

The CODM considers the business by nature of business
activities and assesses the performance of the following
operating segments:

i. Retailing — Hong Kong, Macau and overseas
ii. Retailing — Mainland

ii.  Wholesaling — Hong Kong

iv. ~ Wholesaling — Mainland

V. Licensing

CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on segment results. Finance income and
costs, share of results of associates and corporate income
and expenses are not included in the results for each
operating segment that is reviewed by the CODM. Other
information provided to the CODM is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude interests in
associates, certain leasehold land and buildings, investment
properties, deferred income tax assets, income tax
recoverable and corporate assets, all of which are managed
on a central basis. Liabilities of reportable segments exclude
deferred income tax liabilities, current income tax liabilities,
bank borrowings, gold loans, financial guarantee contract
and corporate liabilities, all of which are managed on a
central basis. These form part of the reconciliation to total
assets and liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Sales to external customers are stated after elimination
of inter-segment sales. Sales between segments are
carried out at mutually agreed terms. The revenue from
external parties, assets and liabilities, reported to the
CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement and balance sheet.

HITEERAREEEEEEARAR
BEEREE (REEEAEE) B
BEEARESEBBNAEE 2 NIH
SR ERRRRORER A EER
HEBEEAREEHZANRSER

BX 5]
SE Ao

REEERREREBTHNEMRER

BB RE TS KE TR .
i TE-FE B REH
i TE -

i.  #EHE-—PEEE

iv.  HEE—Ah

V. mhREF

REEERREREDBEETEHEE
NBRFE -REEERREBRZEE
ENMWEBLARBEMBRARER
BB ERATEEU R REWA KR
MeoRREBEERRERMZEMEY
Frx At 8RN A RIESMB|RR—K-

AE2RNBEETBENRBEAD 2R
mAETHEIMRET REDEE
JEPRISIMEE ~ FTREIFFZIR UK A E)
EE 2HARAETEE -2 RO
BETERBRLEMSRERE ST
mMaE RTEN BEEE WHBERF
GHRRABERE 2BHRETEE-
IEERGEEERRRZBEERER
HEgRZ—EDe

HINRERHEREHEOHEHEERY]
AR o D BRI IH E AR B E R EST
AREEERAREMZRZINRE LI
AUKE E R EPIRWNET 87 R 8ER
GiEmRMNBEEREBR R
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Revenue - at a point of time
Sales to external customers
Sales of scrap

Inter-segment sales

Sales of merchandises
Revenue - over time
Royalty and service income

Consuttancy fee income

Total

Results of reportable segments

WA-BERE
HIRRHEE
HERE

DHBHE
HEBR
WA-p—ERRE
mIERBHERA
EEEGON

st

AERABES

A reconclliation of results of reportable 7] 237 S EHER

segments to profit for the year is as

follows:

BHERIOT :

Results of reportable segments T 2R BEE

Unallocated income
Unallocated expenses

Operating profit

Finance income

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year
Less: Profit attributable to non-
controling interests

Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

ESLTION
ESb

Rt

BHRA

MHER

A NE S

WA HATER
SR

FMiER

B R R R

FARMERNAARIGER

Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and
overseas
BE-F
BFIRESH
HK$'000
T#n

3,245,173

3245173
370,619

3,615,792

3,615,792
(19,547)

Retailing -
Mainland
85—
At
HK$'000
THET

1,708,144

1,708,144
60,170

1,768,314

1,768,314
215,239

Year ended 31 March 2021

BE021F3A3 AL EE
Wholesaling-  Wholesaling -
Hong Kong Mainland
#HE-
hE-5 AE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TF#T
243,136 2,701,692
16,999 -
260,135 2,701,692
693,747 376,935
953,882 3,078,627
953,882 3,078,627
48,489 360,405
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Licensing

RIEEH
HK$'000
FiEn

851,429
94,762

946,191
718,683

Inter -
segment
elimination

pElEEE
HK$'000
FiEn

(1,501,471)
(1,501,471)

(1,501,471)

Reportable
segments
total
pES ]
E-hy
HK$'000
T#T

7,898,145
16,999

7,915,144

7,915,144

851,429
94,762

8,861,335
1,323,269

1,323,269
150,138
(229,204)
1,244,113
63,398
(28,849)
(23,225)
1,255,437
(236,30)

1,019,134

(1,799)

1,017,335



Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and
overseas
FE-
B
R
HK$'000
TR
Depreciation of property, ¥ BEREGETE
plant and equipment (42,639)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (AR BENE (388,612)
Depreciation of investment properties R E VL& -
(Impairment loss)/reversal of % BREREE (AEHE)
impairment loss on property, / AEBEEE
plant and equipment (9,534)
Impairment loss on right-of-use PREEERESE
assets (70,896)
(Net provision)/net reversal of SHEERIBER
impairment loss on financial HESE BETD /
assets and financial guarantee p{Eh -
Additions of non-current assets FRBEERE 28477
Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and
overseas
TE-
E& 20
Rigsh
HK$'000
TER
Segment assets NHEE 4,744,260
Interests in associates IN-VNCIPA: i
Leasehold land and buildings HELHRIET
Investment properties BEmE
Deferred income tax assets RIEFMEHEE
Income tax recoverable BIEIFT S
Other unallocated assets HtRDEEE
Total assets wgE
Segment liabilties ak:=te (566,081)
Deferred income tax liabilties EEMSHER
Current income tax liabilties MEFmEREas
Bank borrowings BITER
Gold loans HEEE
Financial guarantee contract MBRREN
Other unallocated liabilities HitkPEER
Total liabilities maf

Year ended 31 March 2021

BE02153BBILEFE
Inter -
Retailing - Wholesaling - Wholesaling - segment
Mainland  Hong Kong Mainland Licensing  elimination  Unallocated
g5 #HE-
mit HE-FE mit REEE  AUEHHS FAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T T TET T#T TR TR
(12,249) (691) (9,994) (5,060) - (35,792)
(17,986) - (153) (3,876) - (3,836)
- - - - - (25,552)
49 - - - - -
(284 - - - - -
933 - - - - (20,000)
7,998 1,773 22,444 4,212 - 171,767
As at 31 March 2021
142021430318
Retailing-  Wholesaling-  Wholesaling -
Mainland Hong Kong Mainland Licensing  Unallocated
SE- #E- -
pusth & st eSS KRR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART FAT TART TAT FET
2,107,179 641,282 2,730,355 1,497,803
42,925
849,937
909,084
123,076
19,525
846,613
(42,619) (165,034) (244,280) (648,577)
(157,898)
(170,224)
(711,508)
(377,520)
(20,000)
(84,074)
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Total

it
HK$'000
TR

(106,425)
(414,463)
(25,55)

©,115)

(71,180)

(19,067)
242,731

Total

it
HK$'000
F&n

11,720,879

42,925
849,937
909,084
123,076

19,525
846,613

14,512,039
(1,666,591)

(157,898)
(170,224)
(711,508)
(377,520)
(20,000)
(84,074)

(3,187,815)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR PSRRI 5

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEFEN (@)
Year ended 31 March 2020
EE2020F3B31HIEEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Inter - Reportable
Macau and Retaiing - Wholesaling - Wholesaling - segment segments
overseas Mainland Hong Kong Mainland Licensing elimination Total
LE-FH 2E- i o B
RPIRES i HE-FE bl REEE  HHEEE a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TR TER TER FET
Revenue - at a point of time WA-RERY
Sales to external customers HIERBHE 6,009,642 1,739,860 72,392 2,493,350 - - 10,405,244
Sales of scrap HERER - - 27,756 - - - 27,756
6,099,642 1,739,860 100,148 2,493,350 - - 10,433,000
Inter-segment sales AUEHE 126,882 9,627 1,660,706 513,273 - (2,310,488) -
Sales of merchandises HEBR 6,226,524 1,749,487 1,760,854 3,006,623 - (2,310,488 10,433,000
Revenue - over time WA~ —ERFH
Royalty and senvice income RERRBEERA - - - - 707,602 - 707,602
Consultancy fee income BEERA - - - - 93,169 - 93,169
Total Eeh 6,226,524 1,749,487 1,760,854 3,006,623 800,771 (2,310,488 11,283,771
Results of reportable segments T 2HABEE 253,864 172,052 63,374 246,231 563,951 - 1,209,472
A reconcliation of results of AERNBEERTR
reportable segments to profit ERHENT
for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments 7] 2R A EF L4 1,299,472
Unallocated income KREWA 91,451
Unallocated expenses APERE (235,157)
Operating profit mEE 1,155,766
Finance income BTN 45,450
Finance costs BRER (63,075)
Share of results of associates EEHEADEE (47,080)
Profit before income tax FRFRfRRATER] 1,001,061
Income tax expenses FERRAY (223,409)
Profit for the year FRiER 867,652
Less: Profit attributable to non- R RS ER
controling interests (1,337)
Profit attributable to equity AT ERE ARERT
holders of the Company 866,315
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEFEN (@)
Year ended 31 March 2020
HE2020F3B31HILEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Inter-
Macau and Retaling - Wholesaling - Wholesaling - segment
overseas Mainland  Hong Kong Mainland Licensing elimination  Unallocated Total
BE-
B sl TE- "E-
Rigsh it HE-FE il mEEY  PEEHE *nkE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FEr TEx FEr FEx TEr FEr FEx
Depreciation of property, NE BERRENE
plant and equipment 43,362) (16,855) (475) (0,861) (5,513) - (36,495  (112,561)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (AR BENE (458,050) (18,989) - (149) (3,459) - (4,105) (484,752)
Depreciation of investment properties R E# L& - - - - - - (20,044) (20,044)
Impairment loss on property, nE- -BERRERESE
plant and equipment (7,771) (543) - - - - - (8,314)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets K S E B2 (54,312) (2,080) - - - - - (56,392)
Net reversal of impaiment loss/ ~ SHEERESEREEE/
(net impaiment loss) on (REEEFH)
financial assets - 25,430 - - - - (7,080) 18,350
Additions of non-current assets FRBEERE 67,750 23,992 1,295 6,957 4,384 - 288,104 392,482
As at 31 March 2020
1#202043A31H
Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and Retaling - Wholesaing-  Wholesaling -
overseas Mainland Hong Kong Mainland Licensing Unallocated Total
BE-
EAVAM BE- -
RS i HE-FE bl DHEER Kok st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAr TER TER TER TER TER FHT
Segment assets NHEE 5,489,209 1,553,067 653,756 2,549,080 1,317,452 11,562,564
Interests in associates REEAR 2 5 60,689 60,689
Leasehold land and buildings HELTHRIET 787,210 737,210
Investment properties BRENE 791,617 791,617
Deferred income tax assets EEFMEHEE 71,839 71,839
Income tax recoverable AREEH 59,578 50,578
Other unallocated assets HEtRnEEE 641,551 641,551
Total assets wEE 13,925,048
Segment liabilties ek 915,824) (51,989) (38,628) (139,033) (517,837) (1,663,311)
Deferred income tax liabilities REIEMERER (1 46 837) (146,837)
Current income tax liabilities MEFEREasE 800) (111,800)
Bank borrowings BITER (1 126 072) (1,126,072)
Gold loans HeEER (386,739) (386,739)
Other unallocated liabilities HEtRpDEEE (78,178) (78,178)
Total liabilities wafE (8,512,937)
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An analysis of the Group’s revenue by location in which the
transaction took place is as follows:

Revenue WA
Hong Kong 58
Mainland P it
Macau and overseas TP R s

During the year ended 31 March 2021, revenue recognised
of HK$97,692,000 was included in the contract
liabilities balance as at beginning of the year (2020:
HK$122,502,000).

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other
than deferred income tax assets, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables and interests in
associates) by location of assets is as follows:

2021

Macau and

HongKong ~ Mainland  overseas

i Pt RPIRIES

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR

Property, plant and equipment EN T E 560,236 260,527 86,053

Right-of-use assets FHEEE 158,695 292,696 143,803

Investment properties REME 300,569 608,515 =
Prepayments for purchase of BEMEZBNRE

properties - - -

Gold loan receivables BHESEE - 50,855 -

Trading licence RANE 1,080 - -

1,020,580 1,212,593 229,856

BRBETZ MR D 2 AEBWRAD
T

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT THET
2,409,518 4,442,332
5,310,301 4,964,081
1,141,516 1,827,358
8,861,335 11,233,771

HE2021FE3831HIEFEE BB 2R
A97,692,0008 cEF AFYEHNEE

4585 (20204F : 122,502,0005 7T) ©

REEMGEMEI D ZAEBIFRBEE

(FERBELERSRNEE - RANES
AHMEEBRAZECHMEE - RS T8
YERERAMBYRERINBERAT Z
) DA

2020

Macau and
Total  Hong Kong Mainland overseas Total
o5t BB wH RPRES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TR TER
906,816 603,397 217,756 19,851 841,004
595,194 406,775 271,074 241,857 919,706
909,084 310,178 481,439 - 791,617
- - 48,013 - 48,013
50,855 - - - -
1,080 1,080 - - 1,080
2,463,029 1321430 1,018,282 261,708 2,601,420
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Government subsidies BT fE AL
— Value-added tax (“VAT”) refund (Note () ~ —31&{ER (ME{ER)
B (BIEE)
— Other government subsidies (Note (ii)) —E B e (HEE)
— Employment Support Scheme (Note (i) — — MRHE % 5+21 (M k(i)
Rental income s WA
Others Hith

Notes: BdsE -

[0] This represents refund from the tax authority in Mainland. The amount [0}
of refund is based on the VAT payment made in excess of 4% of
the original input VAT. The Group is entitled to the refund as it is a
member of the Shanghai Diamond Exchange and the diamonds are
imported through the Shanghai Diamond Exchange.

(ii) This represents subsidies mainly from a municipal government in (ii)
Mainland.
(iii) The amount represents salaries and wage subsidies granted under (iii)

Anti-Epidemic Fund by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region for the use of paying wages of employees from
June to November 2020.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
63,905 23,036
85,052 51,076
80,997 -
45,485 35,687
19,334 20,331

294,773 130,130

73R B AR BS 14 R 2 IR R o B ERIR
BB R EIRIEE R4 %IF H Z 1B ER T
H-BHRAEERD LBROXFMZME >
MEATEE LEHARZMED WAL
EARERN

IHE = 22 2% P 3 Tl BT 35 2 R o

ZEEBEBRNTHEBFRENZTE

BB zHsRIERN ARZHRE
R2020F6 8 ETAZ T &



The operating profit is stated after charging the following:

Cost of sales (Note (i) & (i)
— cost of inventories sold
— cost of licensing business

Staff costs (including the directors’
emoluments) (Note (i)
Expenses relating to short-term leases
and variable lease payments
Rent concession related
to COVID-19 (Note (jii))
Commission expenses to
payment service providers
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (Note 16)
Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 17)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 18)
Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment (Note 16)
Impairment losses on
right-of-use assets (Note 18)
Advertising and promotion expenses
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

B E R (M E()Re (i) )
—BEFEMZE
— R EF A A

BT (BEEES®)
(Bf (i)

SHIfAE R S E L™
fERAR S

WMEREEIEERES
g (BEE(i)

P ZIRBHES
ZEEMX

Y EN Y e
(M¥zE16)

BEMEITE (I:E17)

EREEETE (sE18)

Y B R R sk B R E RS 18
(M¥zE16)

ERESERESRE
(Hz£18)

EEREBRX

HEWE BERREZ
iagi=!

A Gl s
—EILRTS
—IEEIZIRTS

=i

2021
HK$’000
FERT

6,016,091
212,929

6,229,020

604,811

120,441

(69,872)

41,365

106,425

25,552

414,463

9,115

71,180
74,220

1,438

5,640
1,909

R TSEE BRI :

2020
HK$'000
TAT

7,684,436
226,315

7,910,751

753,339

201,005

(18,561)

65,841

112,561

20,044

484,752

8,314

56,392
81,430

15,454

5,640
1,867
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Notes:

(i)

(i)

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) of HK$306,378,000
(2020: HK$289,599,000) are included in cost of sales.

Breakdown of total staff costs are as follows:

Basic salaries, wages, bonus and allowance

Pension costs — defined contribution plans
(Note 14)

Long service payment (Note 30)

(Hi5%14)

For the year ended 31 March 2021, rent concession related to
COVID-19 of HK$69,872,000 (2020: HK$18,561,000) has been
credited to the consolidated income statement and included in
“selling and distribution costs” in accordance to the amendment that
provides lessees with exemption from assessing whether COVID-
19-related rent concession is a lease modification and requires
lessees to apply the exemption to account for COVID-19-related rent
concession as if they were not lease modifications.

The amendment requires the lessees to apply such exemption only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and only if all of the following conditions were met and
applied consistently to all lease contracts with similar characteristics
and in similar circumstances:

(@) the change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease.

HARHE # & TEA RORR/
RIS R A—TE R

REAR# & (MEE30)

5T

(i

HEMABREETIHA (BEESEHS)
306,378,000 7T (20204 : 289,599,000
7o) ©

BTHMABEIFTNT :

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET THT

865,520 979,970

44,637 62,117

1,032 851

911,189 1,042,938

HZE2021FE3H31A BB HREREME
RABYTE & 35 269,872,000 7T (20204 :
18,561,000 70) BIRIEETT ARG EER
RARIM A THERDHER] > MIETE
HeRM TG BRE R BEERAESHE
EEBAEEYN TERABAERERREU
ISR EE EERASRR AR HINE
WIEREET

ESTARER  EIE MR U N A R 81ER
T ABAB R AR ERBRENTE
FmHERBEREENESHR TAKHEE
HWEERNFTE AB LU ERAAMIE A

554

@ HEYREFEEETHERE
HEREPHNEEREARER
HEIE

() HAEARNERBRELERTR
202156 830H H =~ AT I FRRI TR
b4

© THENHEMERKETEEEEE
#Ho



2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$ 000
F#ET FET
Net realised losses on derivative financial ~ #T4 &Rt T B~ B&I7
instruments (Note) B85 () (13,527) (37,854)
Fair value gains on convertible bond TT@HQTE%Z/A%TEW* - 861
Net realised gains/(losses) on gold loans HeBEZBEERINGE
(Note 32) (}Eﬁ?ﬁ) ,%E (MF5E32) 1,822 (108,462)
Net unrealised gains/(losses) on gold loans =& EE Z RKERWE~
(Note 32) (8518) #%8 (5E32) 9,988 (4,751)
Net realised gains on gold loan receivables FEWE S EE 2 B & IR
(Note 32) WezB g (fi5E32) 8,600 -
Net unrealised gains on gold loan FEWESBEZREIR
receivables (Note 32) W 58 (F5E32) 18,538 -
Net realised gains on forward exchange ZEINESHNZ BEIR
contracts W3 929 6,665
Net unrealised losses on forward exchange & HBIMNE &4 R & IR
contracts E518/2 %8 = (2)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 39) HE—ZK B A S8
([511%%39) (199) -
Net exchange gains/(losses) Wz (B518) 358 4,421 (53,919
30,572 (197,482)
Note: B 5E -
Derivative financial instruments mainly represent gold contracts, gold 1JEE$HEIQI;7%,\$A£’] BELHEAORNA
future contracts and platinum future contracts. These derivative financial SHEAN -NEBYBREEARIRES 25
instruments are not qualified for hedge accounting within the context of MEEMTERRTEE PG ERK-
HKFRS 9.
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Finance income:
— Bank interest income
— Effective interest income on non-current
loan to an associate

— Interest income on the convertible bond
and amount due from HKRH

— Interest income on other receivables

— Interest income on gold loan receivables

Finance costs:
— Interest expenses on bank borrowings
— Interest expenses on gold loans
— Interest expenses on gold loans
from a director
— Interest expenses on lease liabilities

Finance income/(costs), net

AN

—IR1THBUHA

— AT —HKBEAT
FRBEMZER
AIISUSON

— R R A5 R R UL
BERERERIREA
ZHBUA

—HAEUERIEY
HBUA

—ElREEEE
H B A

MHER !
—IRITEMZMEFX
—BEBEZMEMX
—B—HBEEEA

BEEEZMNEMRX
—HEaEZHNERMX

MBWRA (BR) » F8
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2021
HK$’000
FEr

51,456

3,985
5,048

2,909
63,398

(8,983)
(1,947)

(603)
(17,316)

(28,849)
34,549

2020
HK$'000
TAET

41,141

792

3,617

45,450

(31,957)
(3,215)

(174)
(27,729)

(63,075)
(17,625)



Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the applicable
rates of 8.25% and 16.5% (2020: 8.25% and 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profit for the year. Under the new
two-tiered profits tax rates regime introduced on 29 March
2018, Hong Kong profits tax rate for the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits is 8.25%. Assessable profits above HK$2
million is taxed at the rate of 16.5%. Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

EBMEMDIEBAREEGTERR
AR E8.25%8216.5% (20204 :
8.25%K216.5%) sHiZ# f o IRIEH22018
F3H29 5| AFT MR HIF)BREK H2
BEBTRERREREF 2 EEANERNE
%8.25%  2E B A TTU L2 ERER AR
16.5% 2 M-I o BINEFI 2018
ThRE A (st BRI B A I AR EEE 2
BIEERERRETHE -

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET TAET
Current taxation: BUHEATRIE !
— Hong Kong profits tax —BENER 4,302 19,346
— Overseas taxation —BINRIE 231,937 210,822
— Withholding tax on dividend declared in ~ —FRAMEBIKIEE 2
Mainland FEfiR 37,604 -
— Under/(over)-provision in prior years —BEFEEBEIES
GBE) 2,636 (6,739)
Deferred income tax (Note 29) EIEPTSH (FY5E29) (40,176) (20)
236,303 223,409
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The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax

AEERFTSMANEH Z RIALERE
BREaHBERENINETEIRNEKAR

weighted average tax rate applicable to the profits of the ZIRmIMIEEERWT ¢
consolidated entities as follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET TAET
Profit before income tax FRPF1SIE A& A 1,255,437 1,091,061
Add: Share of results of associates o B EBE R XA 23,225 47,080
1,278,662 1,138,141
Tax calculated at domestic tax BERNE A& EF]
rates applicable to profits in the HNEMREFTE ZRIE
respective jurisdictions 187,519 179,911
Income not subject to taxation BIEFRRZ WA (19,990) @,171)
Expenses not deductible ARz ZH
for taxation purposes 10,595 22,670
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERELRS
GBE) 2,636 (6,739)
Tax losses of which no deferred REDIEIERIEBEEEY
tax asset is recognised MIEE 18 10,157 8,666
Utilisation of previously unrecognised A UERERIRIEEIE
tax losses (2,940) (248)
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of ~ PIthfift /&8 A T 2k 97k
those subsidiaries in Mainland wmA 2z FEHR 48,326 21,320
236,303 093,409
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The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$1,017,335,000 (2020: HK$866,315,000)
and the weighted average number of 587,107,850 (2020:
587,107,850) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020 is the same as the basic earnings per
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the years.

EREABANDBREAADERZTE
NG AR E ®EEF]1,017,335,00078 7T
(20204 : 866,315,000 7T) RERNB
T E @R 2 IR 1980587,107,8508%
(20204 : 587,107,85088) 5+& o

HRNERITEDSETRBEEEWEN
TIERS > B E20214 K2020FE38 31
HIEFFESERBERFEERELRR
AR o

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FAET
2020/21 interim dividend, paid, of BIk2020/21 FEEHHEAR B
HK$0.225 (2019/20 interim dividend: ERREENR0.22578 7T
HK$0.50) per ordinary share (2019/20F EH AR E -
0.5077t) 132,099 293,554
2020/21 special dividend, paid, of B k2020/21FEEHSBIR B
HK$0.275 (2019/20 special dividend: Nily &M% iEFR0.2758 7T
per ordinary share (2019/20F &
RIS © f) 161,455 -
2020/21 final dividend, proposed, of BR2020/21FEEREAR E
HK$0.50 (2019/20 final dividend: HK$0.50) & & & i@ AR0.5078 7T
per ordinary share (Note) (2019/20F EFRARG B -
0.50787T) (MIsh) 293,554 293,554
2020/21 special dividend, proposed, of HEk2020/21 FE R IR
HK$0.50 (2019/20 special dividend: Nil) EBRE®ER0.50E T
per ordinary share (Note) (2019/205F EE4F 7))
BRE ) (D) 293,554 -

Note:

At a meeting held on 24 June 2021, the directors recommended the
payment of a final and special dividends of HK$0.50 each per ordinary share.
Such dividend is to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company on 19 August 2021. The aggregate amount of the
proposed dividend is expected to be paid out of retained earnings at 31
March 2021, but not recognised as a liability at year end.

5T

R2021F6H24B £IT 2 E L EBEEFHIRMA KR
HRERRESREERE0508 T - ERARKRESR
FERREARABNR2021F8B198 BT Z KRB F
REH A - FEEB SRR AR S48 5B B 702021438 31
BZRERF PR ERERHREDAE G
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2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAET FET
Net contributions to pension plans charged K4R&BHERTBGRZ
to the consolidated income statement BB B TUFRE 44,637 62,117
The expense is recognised in the following line items in the BRI GEelEmk o A TERR
consolidated income statement: o
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET

Cost of sales HHE R AR 22,213 25,271

Selling and distribution costs HERDHER 19,224 33,099

Administrative expenses THER 3,200 3,747

44,637 62,117

Notes: 5T

[0) The Group contributes to a MPF Scheme for its employees in Hong i) rEEBAEEERERERIIBFIELABEES
Kong, under which both the Group and each employee make monthly B BItAERMASRELHEREEZSE
contribution to the scheme at 5% of the qualifying earnings of the BABS%IEGR R S A RN LRA
employee, subject to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2020: HK$1,500) per 1,500% 7 (20204F : 1,500387T) ©
month.

(ii) The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland also contribute to retirement (ii) NEBP A M E A BN A ETHERE R
plans for their employees in Mainland at a percentage of their salaries MR ZREAER NN EEEL A ERH
in compliance with the requirements of the respective municipal T—EADLEZ R EIERR c BT REE
governments in Mainland. The municipal governments undertake AIEREBRAMPFAEIRE KRB KRE
to assume the retirement benefit obligation of all existing and future BZIRNEHNEE-

retired employees of the Group in Mainland.
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The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the
directors and chief executive of the Company during
the year were as follows:

Fees W

Salaries e

Performance and discretionary BRIFWIEE R IE4L
bonuses

Contributions to pension plan BIREETEIMERR

Total directors’ emoluments, payable FEf R B4R & 5 RE
and expensed in the consolidated Sz BRI SARER

financial statements

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a
person’s services as a director, whether of the
Company or its subsidiary undertaking:

FARNERDEERRSTH
ANBZIME@EENT

2021
HK$’000
FET
1,861
41,535

23,750
487

67,633

2020
HK$’000
SRCT
2,143
52,084

20,219
505

74,951

AR A T HERR B HEK B
NEEFDNREWINE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #E2021F3H31HILLFE
Performance Estimated Employer's
and money  contribution to
discretionary Housing  values of other a retirement Total
Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits  benefit scheme emoluments
Name of director and EERERTH BERRNE HitENZ ETmBHERN
chief executive =12 g E B2 RN EHEREE BE e M@
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#n TR T#w T TFi#n TFi#n Ti#n
WONG Wai Sheung (Note (i) 8% (k) 55 34,642 10,436 - - 184 45,317
TSE Moon Chuen EiNES 55 1,284 1,799 - - 59 3,197
WONG Hau Yeung 155 55 946 5,038 - - 4 6,083
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy HEE 55 795 4,678 - - 37 5,565
CHAN So Kuen BE1R 55 3,546 1,799 - - 163 5,563
WONG Ho Lung, Danny BER 110 180 - - - - 290
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline BER (k)

(Note (i) 40 22 - - - - 62
HUI Chiu Chung SFEE 110 60 - - - - 170
LI Hon Hung TEM 110 60 - - - - 170
WONG Yu Pok, Marina* Eniey 250 - - - - - 250
TA Kok Leung, Alexander* ~ E1R* (FffE(v)

(Note (v)) 116 - - - - - 116
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen’ =y 300 - - - - - 300
MAK Wing Sum, Avin® BXE 300 - - - - - 300
HUI King Wai* STREL 250 - - - - - 250

1,861 41,535 23,750 - - 487 67,633
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR PSRRI 5

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15 EERSHAEIEABSEHRIEDS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued) (&)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s () EFERERSTHASME (&
emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B E2020FE3H31H IEEE

Performance Estimated Employer's

and money  contribution to
discretionary Housing  values of other a retirement Total
Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits  benefit scheme emoluments

Name of director and ESREBIH RERKE Hi@lz EERRGHET
chief executive IN-1cz ik s BT HE2H  BHERER BEJ il E ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEr TiEr TEr TEn TER TER TiEr

WONG Wai Sheung (Note () 8% (&) 55 44735 9,956 - - 184 54930

TSE Moon Chuen EibES 55 1,266 1,632 - - 57 2910

WONG Hau Yeung 155 56 965 3829 - - 4 4,893

WONG Lan Sze, Nancy BES 55 816 3,370 - - 37 4,218

CHUNG Vai Ping (Note (i) B0k (Fit3¥(i) 28 300 - - - 15 343

CHAN So Kuen BER 56 3,702 1,682 - - 168 5457

WONG Ho Lung, Danny BEE 110 120 - - - - 230

YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline BB (1K)

(Note (i) 110 60 - - - - 170

HUI Chiu Chung i 110 60 - - - - 170

LI Hon Hung TEE 110 60 - - - - 170

WONG Yu Pok, Marina* =y 250 - - - - - 250

TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander  ELBIR* (3E(v)

(Note (i) 300 - - - - - 300

IP Shu Kwan, Stephen® 5 300 - - - - - 300

MAK Wing Sum, Ain# TR 300 - - - - - 300

HUI King Wai* Bl 250 - = - - - 250

2,143 52,084 20,219 - - 505 74,951

# Independent non-executive directors # BIFRITES

Notes: Fft 5

0] Mr. WONG Wai Sheung is also the chief executive officer of 0] BERBRENDARAB ZITHAES
the Company.

(ii) During the year ended 31 March 2020, Ms. CHUNG Vai (ii) REE2020F3A31HIEFE  EE
Ping changed her position from executive director to senior KELETZBABHATESTENS
management effective from October 2019. BREERE > B2019FE108BEM -

(il During the year ended 31 March 2021, Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, (iil HZE202143831ALLEE  15EHE
Pauline retired and ceased to be a non-executive director of ZTERERTHIEARABIEHR
the Company effective from August 2020. TEE > B2020F8H-REN ©

(v)  During the year ended 31 March 2021, Mr. TAl Kwok Leung, (vy EE2021F3B31BILFE HER
Alexander retired and ceased to be an independent non- FREBRERABETARBEIL
executive director of the Company effective from August JERNTTEE > B2020FE8F REEM o
2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VPN

Wi\

RATS R AR M5t

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

(a)

15 %ﬂ%&%%&%ﬁkéﬁﬂ&*&“ﬁ
II‘E

EERERITHASME (B)

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Aggregate emoluments paid to or MIEBR AT
receivable by directors in respect of EHWBATER
their services as directors, whether ~ FRIEENEEZHNES
of the company or its subsidiary FEWLEN£48%R
undertaking 1,861 2,143
Aggregate emoluments paid to or ThEREEARAT
receivable by directors in respect of ~ EIB AT EH 2
their other services in connection EREMRBEAH
with the management of the affairs ~ FEUR Z Bl 4228
of the company or its subsidiary
undertaking 65,772 72,808
67,633 74,951

During the year ended 31 March 2021, Mr. Wong
Wai Sheung waived emoluments of HK$20,000,000
(2020: HK$10,000,000).

Directors’ retirement benefits

Except for the employer’s contribution to a retirement
benefit scheme as disclosed in (a), no other retirement
benefits were paid to the directors of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2021 in respect of
their services as directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries (2020: Same).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year ended 31 March
2021 (2020: Same).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company
did not pay any consideration to any third parties
for making available the services of themselves as
directors of the Company (2020: Same).

(b)

(c)

(d)

HE2021FESH3IHILFEE &7
= A E BN £20,000,0003 7T
(20204 : 10,000,000 7T) ©

BEEZEAEN

fR@)EFMFEZRBREBRKER
STE|MHRIN B E202143H31H
LtEE UEBEXRABDZEET
HETARABREWBATES
Frig it 2 AR % 2 H iR R & 7
(20204 : #8[7]) ©

ERZEREN
REE20215F3831HIEFEE 1
|ERLB N EWET (AR
@F (20204 : 48[E) °

MEMEERBRE=FZT
RE
REE2021F3831HILEFEE &
NEAMEBREAE=ZAREES
RABRBEERBE S ERANRE
(20204 : #8[7]) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4o A
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

248

(e)

)

(9)

(h)

Information about loans, quasi-loans

and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
were entered into by the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking in favour of the directors of the Company,
a controlled body corporate or a connected entity
of such directors at any time during the year (2020:
Same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in the notes
to these consolidated financial statements, no other
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company has a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Same).

Five highest paid individuals

Among the five highest paid individuals, all (2020: All)
of them are directors of the Company and the details
of their remuneration are disclosed in the preceding
paragraph.

15 EBERSREEASEIRED

(&)

(e)

(f)

(9)

BRAUES - ZEEFZ2EE
ZERAEERASHAZE
P HEUERRHEMEEZE
¥l

R A EEF AR 2A 5 o E K
BABNETIIUARATEE Z
CEE S RIERHMESES
SHAZET BLUERREME
B2 HE (20204 © #8[F) ©

BEERRS HHREHNZE

K&

RS e RS R AR M sE H A 3P
DAIREZ R0 A A Bt 5k
REBERTUANBDEENE
hESABEEREEERBERE
F2021F3/31HIEFELAEERRI
FEREAFBERZEMEARR
T BHEREH (20204 © #8RF) ©

TnREHMAL
hEEsHFMALES 25
(2020%F : &%) BAREEE
WMEZMSHBEEN LERIEE-

Senior management’s emoluments (hy SREEFEASHE
The emoluments fall within the following bands: BEZMENF T4 -
2021 2020
HK$1 - HK$500,000 17870 E500,00078 70 - 1
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 7 £ 1,000,00078 75 1 -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 78 75, 2,000,0005 70 1 1
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 70%2,500,0003 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7023,000,0003 7T 1 -
3 3

Senior management represents senior management
staff who are non-directors.
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At 1 April 2019
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Year ended 31 March 2020

Opening net book value

Additions

Disposals

Transfers to investment
properties

Depreciation charge

Impairment losses (Note)

Exchange differences

Closing net book value

At 31 March 2020

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net book value

Year ended 31 March 2021

Opening net book value

Additions

Step acquisition of a
subsidiary (Note 38)

Disposals

Disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 39)

Depreciation charge

Impairment losses (Note)

Exchange differences

Closing net book value
At 31 March 2021
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net book value

1201954810
%

BiHTE
RESE

#ZF20203831H
LLEE

EfRERE

hE

HE

BRERENE

RESH
BEBR (&)
ERER
EXRREFE

1#2020%3831H
A
RAMERAE

REFE

#Z202153831H
LLERE
ERESE
hE
BHWE-RHBAD
(Mzx38)
HE
HE-ZHBAR
(Mz£39)
EZH
HEESE ()
EREE
EXEERE
12021538318
[
RIHTERAE

RE3E

Land and
buildings

THRET
HK$'000
TR

822,722
(43,229)

779,493

779,493

(67,177)
(23,835)

(0.884)
678,507

743,080

(64,483)
678,597

678,597
99,093

(25,032)

12,669
765,327
857,923

(92,596)
765,327

Leasehold
improvements
HEmE

35

HKS'000
TR

546,825
(450,046)

96,779

9,779
75,756
(1272)

(60,187)
8314)
(1,418)

101,344

562,494

(451,150)
101,344

101,344
33,519

557
(241)

(43)
(55,331)
9,115)
2203

72,893
524,198

(451,305)
72,893

Furniture and
fixtures and
computer
equipment
i KER
BlRE
HKS'000
TR

234,501
(170,652)

63,849

63,849
33,076
(15,940)

(24,370)

(1,837)
54,778

213,393

(158,615)
54,778

54,778
14,870

28
(1,518)

(3,760)
(21,843)

2,528
45,083
206,355

(161,272)
45,083

Plant and
machinery

BEREE
HK$ 000
Thn

52,682
(45,962)

6,720

6,720

50,675

(46,515)
4,060

4,060
2,485

2,519
(429)

(3,181)

374
5,828
49,138

(43,310)
5,828

Annual Report 2020/21 3R

Motor
vehicles

e
HK$'000
A7

25,400
(23,173)

2,221

2,221
1,019

(961)
(60)
2,005
23,734

(21,509)
2,225

2,225
1,472

23

(1,038)

76
2,758
25,934

(23,176)
2,758

Construction-
in-progress

HRIR
HK$'000
TR

14,927

14,927

14,927

14,927

Total

wE
HK$'000
TR

1,682,130
(733,062)

949,068

949,068
110,709
(i7212)

67,177)
(112,561)
8314)
(13,509)

841,004

1,583,276

(742.272)
841,004

841,004
166,366

3,127
(2,188)

(3,803)
(106,425)
9,115)
17,850

906,816
1,678,475

(771,659)
906,816



Note:

Depreciation expense of HK$3,041,000 (2020: HK$2,260,000) has been
included in cost of sales, HK$95,434,000 (2020: HK$101,130,000) in
selling and distribution costs and HK$7,950,000 (2020: HK$9,171,000) in
administrative expenses.

As at 31 March 2021, land and buildings of HK$472,675,000 (2020:
HK$490,683,000) were pledged to the Group’s bank borrowings. Refer to
Note 31 for details.

As at 31 March 2021, net book amount of retail store assets represented
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets amounting to
HK$53,461,000 (2020: HK$56,137,000) and HK$318,406,000 (2020:
HK$604,768,000) respectively. The Group considers each individual
retail store as a separately identifiable cash-generating unit. As a result
of the potential adverse effect brought by COVID-19 to the retail stores,
management performed impairment assessments for all the retail stores.

The carrying amount of the retail store assets is written down to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is in excess of its
estimated recoverable amount. The estimates of the recoverable amounts
were based on value-in-use calculations using discounted cash flow
projections based on the management’s forecasts covering the remaining
tenure of the lease, with major assumptions such as change in revenue,
change in operating cost, change in gross profit and product mix. The
change in revenue is dependent on the timing of easing of the various travel
restriction and quarantine measures for COVID 19. With the assumption
that tourist traffic and customer spending would start to gradually recover
from the second half of the year ended 31 March 2022 onwards in Hong
Kong, Macau and other markets, an impairment loss of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of HK$9,115,000 (2020: HK$8,314,000)
and HK$71,180,000 (2020: HK$56,392,000), respectively was recognised in
selling and distribution costs.

Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for the recoverable
amount of retail store assets are as follow:

Change in revenue: Based on projected sales estimated by
management which is dependent on the
estimated negative effect of the possible
timing of continuance of travel and
quarantine restrictions in Hong Kong, and
the speed of recovery of tourist arrivals
and their spending.

Change in running cost: Based on historical information and
estimated changes related to the Group’s
various cost saving measures and central
administration cost absorption.

Change in gross profit Based on the historical data and assumed
and product mix: there is no significant changes in gross
profit and product mix.

5T

T EERI 23,041,000/ 7T ( 20204 © 2,260,000
7t) BEt ASHE R ~ 95,434,000 7T (20194 ©
101,130,000/ 7T) B 5t A5 K 7> & F 57,950,000
7t (20204F 9,171,000/ 7T) Bt AT EHH -

2021538318 » L KiEF472,675,00058 7T
(20204 : 490,683,000/ 7t) EBIFAREERITE
M2 IR S IBE S RAMIEEST o

R2021FE3R31H  TEEHREEZREEREY
¥ BB REERERESEDRIS3,461,0008 7T
(20204 : 56,137,0007% 7t) %318,406,0004 7T
(20204 : 604,768,000 7T) ° AEEDAZHEE
BT EEEHABI A HRIREEE B HR2019
BRFERE BN TESHERTIEE &
BEHMASEEHEITREN S

HEEEHEEZRAABHE G RESE
AIARMEEZREENAZEETKEISEE ARG
AW EEENREEEBRER THEHANE
A RBEMRRSREBAFRFENEREEME
oMt RN EmEE SR AEE  EFRER
HEEHETERR WREBHERANERKE
ZIEER2019BRFEH R 2 BT RIREHE 2 B
Mo BREL EMAREMHERERERESHE
ER AP EE2022F3831 0 IEFE T HEEREE
SEIF YE - BERREREREREEZRNER
843 59,115,00078 7T ( 20204 : 8,314,00078 7T) K
71,180,0003 7T ( 20204 : 56,392,000 1) i #4 &
BN iHERRRES

TEEHEETRESENEREESERERZ
FERRRUT :

g

Waan B Eh REFEEERMG ZBAH
B HERAREBRESN
AT Rt IR 2 R AE HA RS
ZEFEETE URIKRE
ANBREHBENIRERE

e A E) R AR EEE BN AL
& I e R SR AT AR 2 IR W AR

RIS R B R 5t 28 o

EFRERMES RBELBERBRERN K
L= MG I EERES
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At 1 April
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Year ended 31 March
Opening net book value
Additions

*481H
Pl
K[EtiTE

HESASIHLEE
FYEREFE
wE

Transfers from property, plant and equipment E2#% B4 % « g B R 52

Transfers from right-of-use assets

Depreciation
Exchange differences

Closing net book value
At 31 March

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Rental income from operating leases
Direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that generate rental

income

At valuation (Note (i)

BEEERESE
e

bE =R
FRIREFE

#3831
&N
REtiTE

REREZASWA
EEHETWAZKREYZE
PTEN EEEEMX

gi&{E (EEa))

2021
HK$’000
FET

853,369
(61,752)

791,617

791,617
101,810

(25,552)
41,209

909,084

1,001,342
(92,258)

909,084

2021
HK$’000
FERT
45,485

(26,945)

2021
HK$’000
FERT
1,547,945

2020
HK$'000
TAT

321,040
(9,324)

311,716

311,716
233,761
67,177
215,368
(20,044)
(16,361)

791,617

853,369
(61,752)

791,617

2020
HK$'000
TAT
35,687

(21,632)

2020
HK$'000
TET
1,496,393
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Notes:

GER

[0) The valuation of the investment properties was determined by an i) G E Y2 2 S E TS BB EAM R AR T

independent valuer BMI Appraisals Limited (2020: Same), who holds
a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the location and category of the investment properties

being valued, at open market values.

EAERAT (20204 : H8E) > HiFA 00 &H
MSEEER URAEEZRENEZUE
R 48R EHEA TR AR EEE

(ii) Depreciation expense of HK$25,552,000 (2020: HK$20,044,000) has (ii) ER®25,552,000# 75 (20204
20,044,000 7t) ERTTEERH AR

been recorded in administrative expenses.

(i) Future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable (i) RN A B 2 KSR EMR R RINE Z &=
leases are as follows: R SARZENT ¢
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Not later than one year —&FR 54,081 51,352
Later than one year and not later than five years —&E&BABBAEE 198,782 241,433
252,863 292,785
(ivy  As at 31 March 2021, investment properties of HK$82,783,000 (v)  7R202143H31H & &) =£82,783,0007% 7T

(2020: HK$85,937,000) were pledged to the Group’s bank

borrowings. Refer to Note 31 for details.

As at 31 March 2021

Location

bt

Office A on 10th Floor, Bank Tower,
Nos. 351 and 353 King’s Road,
North Point, Hong Kong.

B AL A T 28351 K353%%
RIEPOI0FIBAE

Flat 3 on 10th Floor, Hong Kiu Mansion,
No. 313 Nathan Road, Yaumatei, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

SR AU ZUESRREBAE
10F1E3=E

Luk Fook Jewellery Centre,

Jordan, No. 239 Temple Street, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
BAENEERBH2IIFSBHRER L

(2020% : 85,937,000/ 7T) EMIEAER

RITERAVIEIR - FI5F S BMEEST

%202143H831H
Use Tenure
R#& fHHA
Commercial building Medium-term leases
for rental FRERTEAY
BEAEHHE
Commercial building Short-term leases
for rental LIRS
BEAELAE
Commercial building Long-term leases
for rental REFEQ
BEAEHAE

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Attributable
interest of
the Group

FEERE
Gz a ML

100%

100%

100%



As at 31 March 2021 (Continued)

Location

Uk

Units 1506-1516 on 15th Floor,

and 22 car parking spaces, Metropole Square,
No. 2 On Yiu Street, Shatin,

New Territories, Hong Kong

ERM A AR BRI ES 1512
16506-1516% K228 {F B i

Unit 15 on 3rd Floor,

Guanghua Changan Building,

No.7 Jianguo Men Nei Avenue,
Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC
HPEIIL R RN RPN AETHR
HERLAKEIRI6E

Units 1907-1910 on Level 19,

Tower 1, Kerry Everbright City,

No. 218 West Tianmu Road,

Zhabei District, Shanghai, the PRC
FE EETEILEX B AmEK2185E
2 ERRINE—FE19181907-1910%

Units A1802 on Level 16, Fulllink, No. 18
Chaoyang Men Wai Avenue, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, the PRC

FEIIER TR RGP KE

1857 St &5 1618A1802

Level 32-34, Reith International Building,
Xinxiu Village, Xiuxiu Road, Luohu District,
Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province,

the PRC
FEIERSRIHENE NSRS

WA NI BEIRKE32-3412

Use

R&

Commercial building
and car parking
spaces for rental

BEAEK
FEIHE

Commercial building
for rental

[BEFN Le:ic!

Commercial building
for rental

BEAEHHE

Commercial building
for rental

BEAEHA

Commercial building
for rental

BEAEHA

2021E3831H (&)

Tenure

FHA

Medium-term leases

RHTEA

Medium-term leases

RHATEA

Medium-term leases

RERTEA

Medium-term leases

RERTEA

Medium-term leases

RERTEA

Attributable
interest of
the Group

FEERE
HEZRHRLE

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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As at 31 March 2021 (Continued)

Location

Uk

Part of Units 04-05 on Level 14, part of
Unit 11 on Level 15, Units 01-12

on Level 17, Units 01-12 on Level 32,
Units 01-12 on Level 33, Units 01-12
on Level 34, Units 01-12 on Level 35 of,
Block B, IBC, No. 3008 Buxin Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC

R B B B AR T A A & 7 0 S 3008 51%
K ETRE R B K [2(BC)BEE 1418 B (il
04-058F17 ~ 151E EE (i 113645 ~
1718 B 101-12~ 324B EE(i[01-12~
33MBEE([01-12~ 341B B {101-12~

3518 E{101-12

Units 2807, 28th Floor, Block 1, Yongwei Times
Centre, Zhangba Second Road and Jinye First
Road, High Technology Zone, Xian City, Shaanxi
Province, the PRC

RIS EL ™

BB LN\ TR R 8R EE — BB AU D

21 28182807 =

Use

R&

Commercial building
for rental

BEAELHE

Commercial building
for rental

BEAEHA

2021E3831H (&)

Tenure

FHA

Medium-term leases

RHTEA

Medium-term leases

RERTEA

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Attributable
interest of
the Group

FEERE
HEZ ML

100%

100%



As at 31 March 2021 (Continued)

Right-of-use assets FRAREE
Opening net book amount FYEREIFE

Additions AE
Depreciation (Note 8) e (f1zE8)
Impairment losses (Note) BEEE (M)
Transfer to investment properties & E LB Y%

Exchange differences PERERE
At 31 March MW3831H
Note:

The Group leases various retail spaces and premises and
warehouses. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods
of 1 to 5 years but may have extension options as described in
Note 3.20(b). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The Group
also leases certain land use rights in Mainland. These land use rights
are leased for a period of between 16 and 51 years on which plants
and buildings of the Group are situated on.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases
across the Group. Most extension options in property leases have not
been included in the lease liabilities, because the Group considers
these terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing contracts and assesses the exercise of extension options
on a periodic basis. During the year ended 31 March 2021, there
were no revisions of lease term due to the exercise of extension
option (2020: Nil).

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and no leased
assets are used as security for borrowing purposes.

For details of impairment losses on right-of-use assets, refer to Note
16.

2021FE32318 (&)

2021 2020
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
FAT FET
919,706 1,179,467
137,383 517,637
(414,463) (484,752)
(71,180) (56,392)

- (215,368)

23,748 (20,886)
595,194 919,706

F5E -

FERRESETEETHRYEURBE
HESHNBE R ESFZEEHR EF#E
23 5E3.20(b) P2t 48 7H - R & IR 7R B Mg B
BER BPEI BT RNRRRAFME -
FEBTRAMBES T IMERE ZF
IR RN FI6ES1ERE A
EERR KRBT T

AEENZEREHEFER KK IFEE
o RBDMERERNNWLEREEET RE
BERESED RAAFEERLZEE
RAEREECH I ERARERESE
BEEL UEHATGITELIREERZF
F2021F3831HIEFE W EEITFELER
BERMESFRER (20204 : ) -

TRE M EEIERRL - EHEEET
SREGRZERR

ERMERREEREERZ N 320
GICE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR PSRRI 5

18 LEASES (Continued) 18 HE @)
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) MEEEEAERHEIEZEEHE
balance sheet (Continued) (48)
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following HEBEEABREFUTERMME
amount relating to the leases: BE2®8:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Right-of-use assets ERESEE
Land use rights in Mainland B Padth 22 - S ek AR 4 276,788 244,442
Properties leases MERE 318,406 675,264
Total right-of-use assets FREEEEL 595,194 919,706
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Lease liabilities HEafR
Current B 338,574 469,394
Non-current JERH 81,854 283,661
420,428 753,055

256  Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7572 E (EIX) IR AT



The consolidated income statement shows the BEBmREVIUTEBEEZ 5 .

following amounts relating to the leases:

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T#ET FET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EHEEEIRE
Land use rights in Mainland B Padth 22 - st ek AR 4 7,833 7,328
Properties leases YRS 406,630 477,424
414,463 484,752
Interest expense (included in finance cost) BB Gt A ER) 17,316 27,729
Expense relating to short-term leases BREGHEEZRY
(included in selling and distribution costs) Gt AHERDHER) 21,647 80,912
Expense relating to variable lease payments ARl Est AT E & &
not included in lease liabilities (included in ~ Z A& A SR Z X
selling and distribution costs) (Note) Gt ABERDHER)
(M$=1) 98,794 101,532
Note: 5T
For the year ended 31 March 2021, depreciation of right-of-use assets B E202143AB BIELFE FHREENE
of HK$414,463,000 (2020: HK$484,752,000) was included in selling and 414,463,000 7 ( 20204F : 484,752,000 %) B &t
distribution costs. AHERDHER o
For the year ended 31 March 2021, the total cash outflow for lease liabilities HE2021FE3831HIEEE - HEBGBZEHERM
was HK$522,289,000 (2020: HK$661,801,000). 4838 4522,289,0003 7T (20204 © 661,801,000
JT) ©
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As at 1 April

Reclassified from loan to an associate
(Note(i)

Share of results of associates for the year

Share of reserve movement of associates
for the year

Derecognition upon step acquisition
of a subsidiary (Note 38)

As at 31 March

Amount due from an associate (Note (ii))

Amount due to an associate (Note (ii))

Particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31 March

2021 are as follows:

Place of
Name incorporation
%18 o Bl 32 3th B

Luk Fook Diamond Hong Kong
Company Limited* &3
NEEABRAF

China Gold Silver The British Virgin
Group Company Islands (“BVI”)
Limited (‘CGS") * HBHEBRHS

FETIEERMABRAT (HEHEER
(ThE&ER)) - BB

481
HERT—KBE QT
B0 ()

£ YRS B A T 4
AL B AT

BB B AR IEFEST
—XE AT (FsE38)

13H31H

FEW — B A B BRIE
(B =)

BN —RBEQEREA
(B &£ (i)

2021
HK$’000
FET
60,689

(23,225)
8,095

(2,634)

42,925

769

2020
HK$'000
TAT
13,279

100,000
(47,080)

(5,510)

60,689

1,372

(20)

R2021E3A31H A EBBE NT 255

BT
Particulars
of issued % of attributable interests
share capital held indirectly Principal activities
SRTRAHE MHESAFRGEZBSL FEBEH
2021 2020
HK$6,120,000 N/A 50%  Manufacturing and
6,120,00078 7T FiER wholesale of
diamond products
0 E MRS
USDg3,334 50% 50%  Retailing and

3,334 7T

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

franchising

operations of

gold and jewellery
products in Hong
Kong, Macau and

Mainland

TEEE RFIRAM
REEERHEE
ER TERSE
SRR



Notes:

(i)

(i)

()

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the remaining 50% equity interest
of this associate was acquired by the Group on 31 July 2020 at a
consideration of HK$2,634,000. (Note 38)

For the year ended 31 March 2020, pursuant to the shareholders’
agreement, this associate was controlled by a third party, who held
the casting vote in the directors’ meetings.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement, the company is controlled
by the third party, which holds the casting vote in the directors’
meetings. The financial year of this associate is not conterminous
with that of the Group and the financial statements used for equity
accounting are for the 12 months period ended 31 December 2020.
This associate uses 30 June as its financial year, which is conformed
with its holding company’s reporting date.

In connection with the acquisition of China Gold Silver Group
Company Limited (“CGS”), an associate, on 6 June 2014, the Group
and HKRH each agreed to provide funding of HK$100,000,000 to
CGS by way of shareholder loan for general working capital and
business expansion purpose. The shareholder loan was unsecured,
interest-free and not to be repaid within one year after the end of the
reporting period. The carrying amount was denominated in HK$.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, having considered the
financial position and future business development of CGS, it is not
expected that this shareholder loan will be demanded for in the near
future and therefore the balance is reclassified as part of interest in the
associate.

Amount due from/(to) an associate were trade in nature. Amount
due from/(to) an associate were denominated in HK$ and were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. As at 31 March
2021 and 2020, the amount due from/(to) an associate were aged
within 30 days.

The Group’s associates did not have any significant capital
commitments as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group issued corporate financial guarantee
amounting to HK$1,075,000,000 (2020: HK$1,075,000,000) to
banks in respect of 50% of the aggregated amount of bank facilities
granted to an associate. As at 31 March 2021, the bank facilities
utilised by the associate is approximately HK$1,486,000,000 (2020:
HK$1,678,000,000). Refer to Note 35 for details.

MIEE

(i

(i)

)

#HZE2021438310 LEE » RAEM 2020
F7H31 B 182,634,000 T % i e
NEIWIER 0% o (HI5E38)

B E202053831H IEFE» RIER R
ZHENTIHNESEERAIRAECEZH
=l

RIERRIBR  ZATBRE=F TG ZF
ZHARESGGRIRATRE ZME AT
ZHBFERANERTRE HMBRRTHE
AREgstE HEHZE2020F12831H
LE1218 B HARS - 22 B = A B HR FI6 A 30H 1
AHHMBEE  AHERATNREHEH—

o

201456860 WK E AT R E SR
EEERAT (FESR) M= ~EEK
EREREREEREBBRRET @+
B2 $R124100,000,0008 TE & > fEA—R
EEESREBETAR REERHEIR
R B BBARRSHARE—FREE.
IREED AT E

REE2020F3831HIEFE &EEH
SR UBR T RARKRERERESR ~EE
VS ZERBERF TG FRIE AN ERE
B ALZEREMOEARN —KBE AR

FIRIUIN

ZHemz —ER e

U () —KEEAFREBEAEZ K
HofElR, () —REE AT RBELUET
sHE AERE  RERBEERMEER
20214 % 2020438310 » FEUR, (FERH) —
REE A B BRIEZ BREZ A30H A ©

75 2 [H AY B A B 522021 4F K 202043 5 31
B AR EREANRIE

R2021FE3831H AEEFE—BHE R
BT ZIRTRMELTE Z50% A B EIRT
H B A B B4 1%1,075,000,0005 75 (2020
£ :1,075,000,000% 7t) ° R20214£34
1B ZHMEATCHAZRTRENS
1,486,000,0003 75 ( 20204 : 1,678,000,000
BIT) o sE BB SR S5
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2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Current liabilities REBAE
Foreign exchange forward contracts (Note) SMNEZHRE A (FizE) - 22
Note: P 5E -

2020 3A31H  RTAIEERENZHE
EEEUARE (AR sHEZIERHRESH
11,530,0007 7T ©

As at 31 March 2020, the notional amount of the outstanding foreign
exchange forward contracts represented Renminbi (“RMB”) denominated
foreign exchange forward contracts of HK$11,530,000.

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Financial assets at fair value through  BAREFAEMBEIA
other comprehensive income ZERMEE
At 1 April R481H 2,365 3,134
Net fair value loss recorded in equity REDARZARE
(Note 28) E5187% 58 (MIzk28) (1,192) (769)
At 31 March 3A31H 1,173 2,365

BARESFAEMEEBAZEREE
EEEBHMARSMARARD LHZA
BETZEBR -RAAESFAHEME
HEWAZEREEBTHE LUAR
BT

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income represent common shares issued by a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are denominated in HK$ and stated at fair values.
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Non-current JEBNHA
Rental deposits Heks
Prepayments SEANE R
Other receivables arose from

HE—RINBAF

disposal of a subsidiary (Note (ii)) B4z HEEWERIE
(B 5%(i))
Current BPEA
Rental deposits HeEEe
Value-added tax recoverable EEE L
Prepayments FafI™Ia
Other receivables (Note (i) HEWARTE (EE()

Other receivables arose from

Other receivables from licensees (Note (iii)

Other deposits

Notes:

(i

HE—RIBAF

disposal of a subsidiary (Note (ii)) B4z AMMEKERIE
(Rfit 5i))

Hithgx

The other receivables include the amount due from HKRH of
HK$20,000,000 (2020: HK$20,000,000), which is interest bearing at
18.00% (2020: 8.00%) per annum. Such balance, with principal of
HK$57,080,000, was reclassified from derivative financial instrument
upon the expiry of conversion option in June 2019. HK$30,000,000
was subsequently settled in January 2020. In March 2020, the
repayment date of remaining balance was extended to July 2021. As
at 31 March 2021, the loss allowance provided was HK$7,080,000
(2020: HK$7,080,000).

The other receivables arose from disposal of a subsidiary represent
the balances due from a licensee upon the completion of disposal of
a subsidiary (Note 39). The receivables bear interest rate at 5.50% per
annum and repayable in 5 years by semi-annual instalments. Such
receivables are secured by collaterals including certain properties
located in Mainland, inventories of the licensee’s retail shops and
equity interests of certain private entities.

KB SRR 2 E AR
BRIE (5% (i)

B 5E

(i

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T FHET
51,594 105,672
2,825 50,612
94,691 -
149,110 156,284
82,359 53,737
192,878 139,612
68,670 88,378
47,986 129,049
40,582 -
24,830 -
32,523 36,667
489,828 447,443
638,938 603,727

HhEWRIBEIERRERERE RIERZ
F1IE20,000,00038 7T (20204 : 20,000,000
7T) » B EF]=18.00% (20204 : 8.00%)
5B o AN $ 557,080,000 7T 2 Z AL R L
HMER2019F6AEmERTTESMTAS
#9348 © 30,000,000 Fe % 72202051 5 #
EHE o R2020638  BR NS BR 2 B R B HANE
REE2021FE78 - 1202143831 HEHEME
18 #i% 47,080,000 7t (20204 : 7,080,000
HIT) ©

HE—RWBRREE 2 AMEWRREIER
HE - B R BB — 2 e 2 Ak

(MIEE39) © FEURIBIRF A %5.60%5T & »
WARAFERSFEDHEE - BRBKD
LR H R (BFURAMBEFYE &
BEEERHNFERETFRATRENRK
1) (R
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Notes: (Continued) Ik -

(iii) As at 31 March 2021, trading facilities in aggregate of (iii)

RMB80,600,000 (equivalent to HK$94,866,000) were made available
to the licensees in purchases of inventories from the Group or other
destinated external suppliers (2020: Nil). The facilities bear interest
rates ranged from 5.50% to 9.26% and are secured by collaterals
including certain properties located in Mainland, inventories of the
licensee’s retail shops, equity interests of certain private entities
and cash deposits received from the relevant licensee, which were
classified under “trade and other payables”.

As at 31 March 2021, the trading facilities utilised by the licensees
were approximately HK$24,830,000 (2020: Nil). These receivables
bear interest rate at 6.00% per annum with a maturity of 6 months
from the date of inception. Such balances were pledged with cash
deposits received from the relevant licensee totalling HK$31,859,000,
which were classified under “trade and other payables” (2020: Nil).

(&

R2021E38310 > @A AEE R EH i
RN IER IR BT AR IR HAREEA
E2 #80,600,0007T (1HE7£94,866,00075 7T)
HEZRE (20205 | &) -ZEMERNT
5.50%%E9.26% 2 M ZE st B> 1t LUK IR & (i
PRBNETHE REETEFHNE
B ETRASENKRERSBAREEN
WMHIREES) (FRH ENBEATEZRE
fhE(TERIE]

2021438310 REEHANEZRHE
#97524,830,0007 7T (20204F : &) o ZEE
R IE# 7 %6.00% 5T 8 » BRIt B e
=618 B A - B R4S 67 L B /BRI Sh AR P IR
BB IR & 3% & & $£31,859,000/8 T IEHE 1 »
Hhpiaa T8 5 R EMEMERE] (2020
F ) e

The carrying amounts of the deposits, prepayments and e FENREREMERRIBZRE
other receivables approximate their fair values and are BHEHEAAENEE U TS EKAE
denominated in the following currencies: fiI :
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET TAET
HK$ T 232,994 239,995
RVB UNESE: 324,331 300,000
MOP BPITT 72,888 55,579
Other currencies Hhaik& 8,725 8,153
638,938 603,727
Details of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arisen from AEBMASHNEMBERERBEEENE
other receivables, risk management and the expected credit SRk AREEKRERESBEETGE
loss assessment are disclosed in Note 4. BISFIEI P EE4 N2 25 o
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The inventories net of provision are as follow:

Finished goods & pk
Raw materials By vt

At 31 March 2021, inventories carried at net realisable
value amounted to approximately HK$594,120,000 (2020:
HK$379,449,000). As at 31 March 2021, the Group
recognised inventory provision of HK$59,412,000 (2020:
HK$37,945,000), resulted in inventory provision charged
amounting to HK$21,467,000 (2020: HK$11,127,000)
and included in cost of sales in the consolidated income
statement.

Trade receivables B S EWERIE
Less: Allowance for impairment

of trade receivables

The Group’s sales to retail customers comprised mainly
cash sales and credit card sales. Concessionaire sales
through department stores and sales to wholesale
customers are generally on credit terms ranging from O to
90 days.

BBz FENT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
7,262,220 7,491,050
59,394 42,096
7,321,614 7,533,146

R202143831H > o] &7 FE
BRZFE#7%4594,120,0007% 7T (2020
£ 1 379,449,000/ 7t) © j2202143531
H> ANEEEREFEEREE#ES9,412,000%8
70 (20204 : 37,945,000 7T) » B F
B %R 221,467,000 70 (20204 :
11,127,0005870) » Wt ARG &IER
ZEHE R o

B EWERER E R

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
277,405 232,309
(67) (1,000)
277,338 231,309

AEENTESFIHETECARREH
ERERAFHE - BEBBEFHER
mitEZEREEZEER RN TFOE
90H °
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The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0ZE30H
31 - 60 days 31E60H
61 — 90 days 61F90H
91 - 120 days 91Z2120H

Over 120 days #Bi8120H

Less: Allowance for impairment

of trade receivables

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values and are denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
RMB AR
MOP BP9 IT

Hth &%

Other currencies

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure expected credit losses which use a lifetime
expected loss model for all trade receivables. The Group
does not hold any collateral for its trade receivables. Details
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arisen from trade
receivables, risk management and the expected credit loss
assessment are disclosed in Note 4.

The provision and reversal of provision for impaired
receivables was charged to the consolidated income
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account
are generally written off when there is no expectation of
recovering the amount.

B RWIRTAZ BRECIIT ¢

B REWRIER E R A

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
242,039 163,081
26,652 6,138
4,225 49,657
4,075 8,966
414 4,467
277,405 232,309
(67) (1,000)
277,338 231,309

BZRWREZREERZE R REE
WA TSN EWRHEN :

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAERT FHET
9,298 5,632
245,747 219,620
19,392 3,763
2,901 2,294
277,338 231,309

AEERAEBMBREERERMG
LAt ERPEERE HMEES
EWERERA S RRABEEE K&
8 0 2 & 5 R W AR TR I A (4
me REEMASNEZRWIREES
WEERR EREERAREERE
SHEBIFIB I MY AP I BR o

SHE R BB D IR E A R T B T 1
S E SRR - B B S B
BRI 2 288 2 S B E T LM
o
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Short-term bank deposits, with maturities ~ ZIEAE/ DR =@ A

less than 3 months FHARITTERR
Cash at bank and on hand IRTTIRERFRRES
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY
Maximum exposure to credit risk EeEERR

As at 31 March 2021, the cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB, amounting to approximately
HK$2,776,212,000 (2020: HK$1,795,305,000), are held
by the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland. The conversion
of the RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

As at 31 March 2021, short-term bank deposits
with maturities less than 3 months, amounting to
HK$1,069,089,000 (2020: HK$296,499,000) bear an
average interest rate of 3.00% (2020: 1.49%) per annum
with maturity in April 2021 (2020: in April 2020).

2021
HK$’000
FET

1,069,089
2,477,260

3,546,349
3,506,570

2020
HK$'000
TAT

296,499
2,417,734

2,714,233
2,679,248

F2021E3HB31H  UAREEHEMNIR
S RIBLEBYL2,776,212,00078 7T
(20204 : 1,795,305,000% 75) J5 A
EERAMZHBABFAE - HFZEU
AR ENEHBREAINEFEST
B0 X e B4R =2 I BB B8 16 AR 1) Re 38 451 o

2021438310 IRV =E A/
FEHASR1T7E RN 1,069,089,0007 7T (2020
& 1 296,499,000 1) WL FHEF] =
3.00%=t 2 (20204F : 1.49%) » i 722021
F48 (20204 : 20204 8) F|HR o

2021

HK$’000

FERT

Trade payables B ENIRIE 284,767
Deposits from customers and licensees REELARMEEZE]E 500,388
Salaries and welfare payables FET 37 & Ko @ 136,061
Other payables HhpEiRIE 89,093
Accrued expenses FEst& B 11,929
1,022,238

2020
HK$'000
TET
98,440
389,155
126,054
80,378
13,834

707,861
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR PSRRI 5

26 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 26 5 fE(J8RIE H{thfE(TIRIER

ACCRUALS (Continued) FEETFRIE (48)
The ageing of trade payables is as follows: B2EMRBEZIRRNOT !
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
0 - 30 days 0Z308 184,399 73,096
31 - 60 days 31Z260H 87,673 17,201
61 — 90 days 61290H 11,188 7,187
91 - 120 days 91Z2120H 1,348 617
Over 120 days Bid120H 159 339
284,767 98,440
The carrying amounts of the trade payables, other payables B EMIRE MBI IRIERESTR
and accruals approximate their fair values. B RAERBEZ ARERE
27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 27 BREREREE
(a) Share capital (a) Be#
2021 2020
No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HK$'000
e E FER B2 #E FHET
Authorised: ERE -
Ordinary shares of SREEAEIT
HK$0.1 each ZE B 800,000,000 80,000 800,000,000 80,000

Issued and fully paid: B 21T KA E ¢
Ordinary shares of  SRMEE0.1ETT

HK$0.1 each ZE B 587,107,850 58,710 587,107,850 58,710
(b) Share premium (b) KRRiEE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
At 31 March M3B31H 2,494,040 2,494,040
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR PSRRI 5

28 RESERVES 28 (#fE

Financial

assets

at fair value

through

other

comprehensive

Capital income

Capital  redemption  revaluation Exchange Statutory Other Retained

reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves reserves eamings Total

BOREHA

Aft2ERA

JEREE
AR ESRERE Eftf ERHE HEE Rttt REEN a5
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tin FEn Tn FEn Ti#n T#n TEn

(Note (i)) (Note (iv)) (Note (i) (Note (ii))
() (ftsEw) (k) (hSsk)

For the year ended HE00EIBIALER

31 March 2020
Asat 1 April 2019 R2019E451H 135,718 200 (8,890) (119,228) 92,620 17,569 7,822,067 7,940,041
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Proft attributable to eouity holders ~ &AF & B \EIEER]

of the Company - - - - - - 866,315 866,315
Other comprehensive income ~ EfI2EKA
Currency tranglation differences ERER - - - (341,87) - - - (341,37)
Remeasurement of employee EERHBENENIE

beneft obligations (Note 30(0) (¥5£301)) - - - - - - 558 558
Revaluation of fnancial assetsat ~ HAAEHAZMEERA

fair vaue through other k3 YA ]

comprehensive income (Note 21)  (i{5821) - - (769) - - - - (769)
Total other comprehensive income Eft2EEWA - - (769) (341,371) - - 558 (341589)
Transactions with owners HREANZRA
2018/19 final dividend peid BI01819EERBRE - - - - - - (352,265) (352,269)
2019/20 interim dividend peid BR0IYNEERHRE - - - - - - (298,554) (293,554)

. : . : . S B89 (5819

At 31 March 2020 R2020£3831H 135,718 200 (9,659 (460,599) 92,620 17,569 8,043,111 7818955
Representing: &
Reserves (excluded proposed i (FRERERS)

dividend) 135,718 200 (9,659) (460,599) 9,620 17,569 7,749,557 7,525,401
Proposed dividend BIRE - - - - - - 293,554 293,554
At 31 March 2020 HR2020E3R31H 135,718 200 (9,659 (460,599) 92,620 17,569 8,043,111 7818955
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z202153R310 LERE

Asat 1 April 2020

Comprehensive income

Proft attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Other comprehensive income

Currency translation differences

Remeasurement of employee
beneft obligations (Note 30(o))

Release of exchange reserve to
profit or loss upon disposal of
a subsidiary (Note 39)

Revaluation of financial assets at
fair value through other

comprehensive income (Note 21)

R0NE4F1H

EL N
KABRGNE\EEER

Eth2EHA

ERER

[EERNEINENHE
(Ht¥300))

REE-FHBATR
BRESREERA
(HizE30)

BAREFALMZERA
JEHEEEEEY
(Hizk21)

Total other comprehensive income Eft2EAKA

Transactions with owners
2019/20 final dividend paid
2020/21 interim dlvidend paid
2020721 special divicend paid
Profit appropriations

At 31 March 2021

Representing:

Reserves (excluded proposed
dividend)

Proposed final dividend

Proposed special dividend

At 31 March 2021

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

AREAZRR
BA201920EEXRARE
B0 EETHRS
B0 FERRIRE
peTalpae

1202138318
P
it (FRERIERE)

RIEABRE
RE

RIRAHIRE

*2021£3831H

Capital
reserve

Lol
HKS 000
TiEn
(Note (i)
GE)

135,713

135,713

135,713

135,713

Capital
redemption
reserve

BRRE
HK$'000
Yin
(Note (iv))
(H3tw)

200

200

200

200

Financial
assets

at fair value
through
other
comprehensive
income
revaluation
reserve
BOREHA
E2ERA
JEHER
Efffif
HKS$'000
TEn

(0659

(10851)

(10851

(10851

Exchange
reserve

Bk
HK$'000
TEn

(460,59

516,066

(1489

514,566

53,967

53,967

53,967

Statutory
reserves

EEfE
HK$'000
YR
(Note (i)
(MzkGi)

92,620

5,85
5,895

98,475

98475

98475

Other
reserves

Hithte
HK$'000
Fitn
(Note (i)
(i)

17,569

17,569

17,569

17,569

Retained
earnings

REER
HK$'000
Tin

8,043,111

1,017,335

9,359

9,359

(293.554)
(132,009
(161,455)

(5:855)

(692,96)

8,476,842

7,889,734
293,554
293,554

8,476,842

Total

]
HKS 000
TiEn

7,818,995

1,017,330

516,055

9,359

(1489

(119
52278

293554)
(132,009
(161 455)

(587,108

8,771,915

8,184,807
293,554
293,554

8,771915



Notes:

(i)

(i)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at
the time of the Group’s reorganisation in 1997.

Statutory reserves are non-distributable and the transfers of these
funds are determined by the Board of Directors of the relevant
Mainland subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in Mainland.

Other reserve represents the differences between the fair value of the
consideration paid and carrying amount of additional equity interests
acquired in non-wholly owned subsidiaries.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group purchased
2,000,000 of its shares on Hong Kong Stock Exchange at a total
consideration of HK$29,143,000. All the repurchased shares were
cancelled and the issued share capital of the Group was reduced by
the nominal value of these shares accordingly. The premium paid on
repurchase was charged against the share premium of the Company.
An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares cancelled
was transferred from retained earnings to the capital redemption
reserve.

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities is as follows:

5T -

() FEBZ BRBEBIEREBIN7FEHE
PRUSEEI B AR 2 IR EEAM KB TR
AERRMzEEMERZER

(i EERBDH AR DI BEARRIEATHE
B PO I B A B B B AR AR R A R
BRI ©

@iy  HthWEFHEENREBZAREBHBEIFEZEN
BREWIBREESNR A G IREE E8R

(iv) REZE2016FE3HA3 1 HILFEE » AEE LA
829,143,000 8 TN E BB B EH
2,000,0008% B& 1% - FR B BECI AR D9 B 584
AN B TRADAE/R L ZERHR
ZIREE -BOf L IHEEERATHN
AP EEINGR RO FHRMEERSEZS
BEERERANSHEERBEOI#HE -

TR IEE E REERBEE R Z D47
™

Deferred income tax assets:

— Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered after more than 12 months

— Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered within 12 months

Deferred income tax liabilities:

— Deferred income tax liabilities to be
recovered after more than 12 months

— Deferred income tax liabilities to be
recovered within 12 months

Deferred income tax liabilities

EIEFTSREE
—RBB+tER%EHF
W BV ESEFT ISR E A
-+ ZERARUER
BEFFISINE E

BIEFFSHEARE
—RBB+_ER%EF
W EIRYESEFF S IR B &
-+ ZERARUER
FEFFSHRAR

BEIEFSIRAR

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
92,283 48,302
30,793 23,537
123,076 71,839
(157,775) (146,498)
(123) (339)
(157,898) (146,837)
(34,822) (74,998)
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The gross movements on the deferred income tax account FEIEFTS AR~ EENARREW T -
are as follows:

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET THET

At 1 April R481H (74,998) (75,018)
Credited to the consolidated income RERmRTA (1)

statement (Note 11) 40,176 20

At 31 March *3H31H (34,822) (74,998)

The gross movements in deferred tax assets and liabilites EIEMRIBEEREBRERN 2 EEN4EEE (Rt
during the year, without taking into consideration the &IESSHEERFEEARER &R T ¢
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as

follows:
Withholding
taxes on
undistributed ~ Accelerated
profit of tax
subsidiaries  depreciation Total
HEAR
KRR
ZEMR  ERIERE 4t
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
TR THET THER
At 1 April 2019 1201954810 (120,837) (12,853) (133,690)
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated R A& 1BHE (1K) /A
income statement (21,320 8,173 (13,147)
At 31 March 2020/1 April 2020 #2020%38318,/
2020%4H1H (142,157) (4,680) (146,837)
Credited to the consolidated MRAMERREZ
income statement in respect to BRI AREERR
withholding tax on dividend
declared in Mainland 37,604 - 37,604
Charged to the consolidated income & &EBHEFIN
statement (48,326) (339) (48,665)
At 31 March 2021 1$202153831H (1562,879) (5,019 (157,898)
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Decelerated
tax
depreciation
MR I E
HK$’000
TAERT
At 1 April 2019 2019%4R1H 45,468
(Charged)/credited to 4 &1E %
the consolidated (0 EtA
income statement (8,747)
At 31 March 2020/  #202053H31H
1 April 2020 /202054818 36,721
Credited to the RAEB@mREA
consolidated income
statement 21
At 31 March 2021 12021538310 36,742

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profit
is probable. As at 31 March 2021, the Group had
potential unrecognised deferred tax assets amounting
to HK$38,839,000 (2020: HK$29,327,000) in
respect of tax losses to be carried forward against
future taxable income. Cumulative tax losses of
HK$110,816,000 (2020: HK$104,806,000) can be
carried forward indefinitely; cumulative tax losses of
HK$78,438,000 (2020: HK$32,582,000) will expire
(if not utilised) within the next five years. There are no
cumulative tax losses expiring (if not utilised) in the
next seven to twenty years (2020: HK$7,355,000).

Unrealised

profit on

Tax closing
losses inventories Total

HARER
RERE 2ZREREH @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ER T#ER FT#ER
- 13,204 58,672
11,707 10,207 13,167
11,707 23,411 71,839
47,486 3,730 51,237
59,193 27,141 123,076

BILFTSMEEN A 2 MIEEER
R BB EE R R BERR AR
FEEARIER] MBI o 720214F3H31H >
AREBBEEARRELERES EH
38,839,000 7 ( 20204F : 29,327,000
B T ERBTEELIREHERRE
RRWAZRIEEGB  RsTRIEER
110,816,0003% 7T, (20204F : 104,806,000
Bor) JERBEAS RAREBEIR
78,438,00078 7T (20204 : 32,582,0007
7o) HAREA AR R RAERE Mo
RARTEZE-_+EUERFREBEIR
BEIEA (KRB (20204 : 7,355,000
HBIT) °
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Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees
who have completed at least five years of service with
the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitiements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any
remaining obligations. The long service payments are paid
out from the Group’s cash in hand when such payments are
required.

The latest actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2021 and
31 March 2020 specifically designated for the Group’s
employees was completed by a qualified actuary, Palace
Consulting Limited (2020: Towers Watson Hong Kong
Limited), using projected unit credit method. (2020: Same)

(@  The amount recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit
obligations

RERMEEZRE

BEEEB(RREED)  sEBEEER
ETERTY RERBTERRDAF
ZETRERLEZERAES T —RME
RE-BAREBENRFEREEZRR
HERRGEHME WAEAERR
WA B BT RAERZHREEZRE
Bo-rEBTEZRLEAEEFRE
W TEEZEZ - NEEXNHRAMN
EE SEAEERZ FRESEMNT
REIBRBE -

SERIEEMEHMERBR AR (2020
F HEEIRRNEBERAD) LUFETEN
EE% (2020 : 1HE) R EALER
BEMREE 22021FE3831H &202043
Be1HERIEETEo

@ RNEGEESREKRMERZHEL
—FZ

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET TAET
1,291 9,618
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(b) Movements in the long service payments recognised ) RFcEEBBEREIZEHR

in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows: HEEEMT -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
At 1 April R481H 9,618 10,823
Expenses recognised in the MR EEmRER Az
consolidated income statement 1,032 851
Remeasurements recognised in other R EMEEU AT 2
comprehensive income (Note 28) BistE (W5E28) (9,359) (558)
Benefits paid directly by employer BEEZEZ T 2EH = (1,498)
At 31 March M3831H 1,291 9,618
(©) Expenses recognised in the consolidated income € MNiFaEmRERCHEIUT

statement is as follows:

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Current service cost BNEARR T & 936 584
Interest cost IS %N 96 267
1,032 851
(d)  Income recognised in the consolidated statement of ) REe2EBARKEDEZIA
comprehensive income is as follows: W
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAE7T FET
Remeasurements of employees benefit {8 S @F] SEREH T2
obligations (9,359) (558)
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The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31
March 2021 and 2020 (expressed as weighted
average) are as follows:

) F2021FEK2020FE3RB31HFERZ
FERBEERBS UMNEFEHELES)
mr

2021 2020
1.5% 1%
3% 3%
3% 3%

9.4 yearsfE 17.8 yearstE

Impact on employee benefit obligations

Discount rate BRIRX
Future salary increment KR FT LR
Return of MPF balances BB RO =X
Expected term to maturity FTEHREIHRAE AR
Change in
assumption
R=EE
Discount rate 0.25%
AhIRE
Salary growth rate 0.25%
HERIERER

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change
in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be
correlated.

HESENEENTE
Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption
SEaril| e
Decrease by 2.2% Increase by 2.2%
B2.2% 18102.2%
Increase by 22.3% Decrease by 20.3%
1%1122.3% 20.3%

U ESRED O IRBRRES
MArEEtEBREF T EER -8
R B RAARAIRESE L — L
R 5 n] SEARRE °
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Bank borrowings, secured

=

Bank borrowings, unsecured IRTTER WmITE

As at 31 March 2021, bank borrowings of HK$431,508,000
(2020: HK$456,072,000) were secured by land and
building of HK$472,675,000 (2020: HK$490,683,000)
and investment properties of HK$82,783,000 (2020:
HK$85,937,000), which bear interest at floating rates
ranging from 0.63% — 0.73% (2020: 1.68% — 2.78%) per
annum and are denominated in HK$.

As at 31 March 2021, the bank borrowings of
HK$280,000,000 (2020: HK$670,000,000) bore interest
at floating rates and due for repayment within one month
(2020: within one month). The interest rates of the bank
borrowing ranged from 0.73%- 0.75% (2020: 2.37%-
2.89%) per annum and are denominated in HK$.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate
their fair values, as the impact of discounting is not
significant due to their short-term maturities.

IRTTE AR

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
431,508 456,072
280,000 670,000
711,508 1,126,072

202143831 HREBRITE
431,508,000 7, (20204 : 456,072,000
B7T) T M R F 472,675,000 7T
(20204 : 490,683,000 77) K& EY)
282,783,00078 7T (20204 : 85,937,000
BT IR - 2 ERITEFIREFA
K5t B F£F]EA0.63%FE0.73% (2020
F 1 1.68%FE2.78%) > LIABTEHE

BR2021E3831H EBITEX
280,000,000 75 (20204 : 670,000,000
B BEEFAEFEREBER—EAR
B4 (20204 : —@B M) ~RITEME
MEAE0.73%ZE0.75% (20204 : 2.37%
F2.890%)  UABITEHE

HIBTERNBREE  BRETED

RXoREM RITEMZREEZEAR
BEE-
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Non-current assets
Gold loan receivables, with
physical settlement (Note (i)

Current assets
Gold loan receivables, with
physical settlement (Note (i)

Total gold loan receivables

Current liabilities

Gold loan liabilities, with
cash settlement (Note (ii))

Gold loan liabilities, with
physical settlement (Note (i)

Total gold loan liabilities

Notes:

ERHEE
BYEERENESES
(e 5E())

TENEE
BYEERENESES
(e 5E())

[ElEEE1EE

REBaE

HefEasEEas
(B 5 i)

BEYEEESEEAE
(B =)
BofEEaELEEE

MIEE -

0] As at 31 March 2021, gold loan receivables represent a loan of (i)
physical gold of 125 kilograms (2020: Nil) borrowed by a licensee,
a prior non-controlling shareholder of a disposed subsidiary. The
balances are interest bearing at 5.50% per annum and repayable

by semi-annual instalments over 5 years with physical settlement,

which are secured by collaterals including certain properties located

in Mainland, inventories of the licensee’s retail shops and equity

interests in certain private entities related to the licensee.

(ii) As at 31 March 2021, gold loan liabilities are interest bearing ranging (i
from 0.70% to 1.40% per annum (2020: 0.65%), with maturity of 1 to
6 months (2020: 1 to 3 months) from date of inception.

(iii) For the year ended 31 March 2021, gold loan receivables and (iii)
gold loan liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each

reporting period, net unrealised gains on gold loan receivables of
HK$18,538,000 (2020: Nil) and gold loan liabilities of HK$9,988,000
(2020: Net unrealised losses of HK$4,751,000) have been recognised
in other gains/(losses), net, respectively in the consolidated income

statement.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT THET
50,855 -
1,554 -
52,409 -
268,755 386,739
108,765 -
377,520 386,739

2021438318 Bl =S (EE15— REE

(—RELENBAT ZAIJEZERRE) FR
B2 BYEE125AF (20204 &) » 2456k
Y EFES.50%5t B0 WARSEREFFN
BYEEDHER HLURFR S (BFE AR
Nz ETYE - RERZSEETERA
AR S T AAAEEE 2 AR ) 1EIK IR o

1.40% (20204 : 0.65%) Z FEFEHE 3
HE A B EBB AR E6fE A8 (20204 : 1
Z=3EA) °

HZE2021F3ASTHIEFE BIKESE
ERESEEEEDNREREHREA
AESE ERESEERER NG FE
18,538,00058 7 (20204 : ) RESEEE
&R B IR UK 75 5 889,988,000 7T ( 20204 :
REIDESI87$584,751,00058 7T) BB R R
EiEERZHMKE (B18) - PEEmER -



Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated ()

from operations:

Profit before income tax
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 8)
Rent concessions related to
COVID-19 (Note 8)
Net realised gains on gold loan
receivables (Note 9)
Net unrealised gains on
gold loan receivables (Note 9)
Net unrealised (gains)/losses on
gold loans (Note 9)
Fair value gains on
convertible bond (Note 9)
Net unrealised losses on forward
exchange contract (Note 9)
Finance income (Note 10)
Finance costs (Note 10)
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (Note 16)
Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment (Note 16)
Depreciation of investment
properties (Note 17)
Depreciation of right-of-use
assets (Note 18)
Impairment loss on right-of-use
assets (Note 18)
Share of results of
associates (Note 19)
Provision for slow moving
inventories (Note 23)
Provision for long service
payment (Note 30)
Net provision/(net reversal of
impairment loss) on
financial assets and
financial guarantee
Loss on disposal of
a subsidiary (Note 39)

BREF1SFR B E A
HEVE BERREZ
E5a (MfsEs)
¥ERsRIEEEHEE
B (Bﬁ%zs)
fEWESEEZE#IR
e (ﬁﬁﬁg)
FEWESEE 2 REIR
Wz 388 (5E9)
B EEZREIE (KE)
/K513 58 (Mf5E9)
PR ES 2 A ERE
(MFE9)
REIINEEHNZ REIR
18358 (fis59)
WA (HEE10)
MER (FisE10)
VI BB R sk I Es
(MzE16)
I B R sk B RE
518 (F9s%16)
BEMEITE (I:E17)

EREEETE (sE18)

FREEERERIE
(MI5E18)

FELEE AR EE
(fz%19)

TR ERE (5E23)

RHRESEE
(M5£30)

SRME ERTHBER
BB
(R ERs 182 B3 58)

HE—ZRBATZ
518 (M75E39)

i«( gy %lJ Q&K

T = /m fa =)

2021
HK$’000
FAT
1,255,437
1,438
(69,872)
(8,600)

(18,538)

(9,988)

(63,39;)
28,849
106,425
9,115
25,552
414,463
71,180
23,225

21,467

1,032

19,067

199

SEEZHESHIR:

2020
HK$’000
THETT
1,091,061
15,454

(18,561)

4,751
(861)

22
(45,450)
63,075
112,561
8,314
20,044
484,752
56,392
47,080

11,127

851

(18,350)
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Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated (@)

from operations: (Continued)

Operating profit before working
capital changes

Decrease/(increase) in rental deposits

Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade

receivables, deposits, prepayments

and other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in amount due
from/to associates, net

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables,

EEEL RN CE R

Bl

HeigeREL (8N

FERD

B 5 RUERIE 2
FANRIERAMEK
RIE (g b

P FETERE A BRI
B (g o PR

B 5 ERIE AR

other payables, accruals and IRIEFESTAIE
contract liabilities BHEAEGEEMm, Gl
Decrease in employee benefit EEGBHMEEH LD
obligations (Note 30) (H$5£30)
Net cash generated from operation  ZEES 7RS4

Significant non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of HK$116,197,000, in respect of lease
arrangements for properties (2020: HK$512,838,000).

As at the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
entered into gold loan contracts with physical
settlement amounting to HK$108,765,000 (2020:
Nil). The repayment and borrowing of gold loans with
physical settlement are included in the inventories in
the consolidated statement of cash flows as non-cash
transactions.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
received repayments of gold loan receivables with
physical settlement amounting to HK$19,019,000
(2020: Nil) are included in the inventories in the
consolidated statement of cash flows as non-cash
transactions.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

R ar BEEEEZREHIR
(&)

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAERT FET

1,807,053 1,832,262

25,193 (3,491)

516,405 1,528,837

(67,635) 262,509

583 (989)

342,309 (272,826)

- (1,498)

2,623,908 3,344,804
BAIFRERS

HZE2021E3831HLLEEE K
EEMYWELAEZHAIERS
ARETHAREERTEESESD
B 72116,197,0003 75 ( 20204 :
512,838,000/ 7T) °

REE2021FE3B31HIEEE K
EEET£387%4108,765,000/% 7T
(2020%F : ) WEYEE=SE
BEe EVMEERSEENER

REBHERIFREX 55T AL
BHREREXTANEFE

HECO21ESH31HIEFEE &
BWENEREYEE=SEEE
7X19,019,0008 7T (20204 : ##) J5
ERAERSRZAGRERER
ERANEES-



Significant non-cash transactions (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement and
completed the disposal of its interests in a non-
wholly owned subsidiary. The other receivables
arose from the disposal of a subsidiary, including
the consideration receivables, other receivables
and dividend receivable are included in deposits,
prepayments and other receivables in the
consolidated statement of cash flows as non-cash
transactions. Refer to Note 39 for details.

Net debt reconciliation

Below sets out an analysis of net debt and
movements in net debt for each years presented:

Gold loans with cash settlement ReEXRIEEEE
Bank borrowings IRITTER

Lease liabilities MHESRE
Net debt with cash settlement
Gold loans with physical settlement

Net debt EEC2 2L

REREEHFER

BYEEEEEE

BRFRERF (B

HE2021ESH31HILEE » K&
BT UESEWHETEREEER
—RIIEEENRBRBNER - HE
—XWBABELEZHMERIRIE
(BIEERARE HtEWRER
FEWRR 2) Th1ERIEIRERZ 5 A
FeRERERNEE FBIHNE
R EMEUWARIE - s EE 2 MM &
390

B FRAHR

TR 2N FERH FED

AR 3 RREVEE)
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
268,755 386,739
711,508 1,126,072
420,428 753,055
1,400,691 2,265,866
108,765 -
1,509,456 2,265,866
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(©)

Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

Net debt as at
1 April 2019
Net cash outflows —
financing activities
Additions
Unrealised losses on
gold loans with cash
settlement
Unwinding interest
Rent concessions
related to COVID-19
Exchange difference

Net debt as at
1 April 2020
Net cash outflows —
financing activities
Additions
Unrealised gains on
gold loans with cash
settlement
Unwinding interest
Rent concessions related
to COVID-19
Exchange difference

Net debt as at
31 March 2021

© EFPEEKR @

Liabilities from financing activities:

Gold loans
with cash
settlement
&R EIR
BEEEE
HK$’000
F#x
201948182

B3 450,889
e P5E—

BB EE (68,901)
AE -
HEREEEE

2 REINEIE

4,751
B[O 2 -
MEEEEE

ERAMAERE -
PERZ=%E -
*20205F481HZ

a3 386,739
RERHFEE —

MEEE (112,529)
RE -
HeERIEFLHEBE

2 AREIRW

(5,455)
IS -
mEREES

ERAMAER R -
EREE -
142021%£3H31H

Z B3 268,755

MEEFBEENER
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
RiTER HEAR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T#T
1,855,224 715,255
(729,152) (479,357)
- 512,838
- 27,729
- (18,561)
- (4,849)
1,126,072 753,055
(414,564) (401,848)
- 116,197
- 17,316
- (69,872)
- 5,580
711,508 420,428
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Total
st
HK$’000
FAT
3,021,368
(1,277,410)
512,838
4,751

27,729

(18,561)
(4,849)

2,265,866
(928,941)
116,197
(5,455)

17,316

(69,872)
5,580

1,400,691



Contracted but not provided for: BETAERELEE
— property, plant and equipment e EN T
— investment in financial assets —RKERANESA
at fair value through other Hth2mEmlAZ
comprehensive income TREE
Total capital commitments contracted B E]&IBRIEHBEE 2
but not provided for B RIEARER

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, there are
no capital commitments which are authorised but not
contracted for.

As at 31 March 2021 the Group had entered into
properties lease agreements in respect of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of HK$2,804,000 (2020:
HK$29,292,000) which are contracted but not yet
commenced.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had commitments
under short-term leases of HK$10,330,000 (2020:
HK$5,246,000) which will be recognised as an
expense in the forthcoming consolidated income
statement.

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
30,404 5,371

6,591 6,065
36,995 11,436

12202143831 H &2020FE38 31
B W ERBERTNZERK
o

R2021FE3H31H » KEFEBE
S EKREEEE2,804,00087T

(20204 : 29,292,000 7T) 5717
MERERHE BREBECIIOE
EENGEEE

R2021FE3H31H » KERE 2528
FH & & #10,330,000%8 7T (2020
£ 1 5,246,000 70) BN TS
ZERBERRNER AR
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As at 31 March 2021, the Group issued corporate
financial guarantee amounting to HK$1,075,000,000
(2020: HK$1,075,000,000) to banks in respect of 50%
of the aggregated amount of bank facilities granted to an
associate. As at 31 March 2021, the bank facilities utilised
by the associate is approximately HK$1,486,000,000 (2020:
HK$1,678,000,000) which is secured by its pledged bank
deposits of HK$764,725,000 (2020: HK$851,812,000).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group recognised loss allowance
of HK$20,000,000 (2020: Nil) in accordance with expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9.

The major shareholder of the Company is Luk Fook (Control)
Limited (“Luk Fook Control”), a company incorporated in the
BVI, which directly owns 40.09% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining shares of the Company are widely held.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and Ms. LUK Chui Yee are the
founders and settlors of The WS WONG Family Trust (the
“Trust”). Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy
are the discretionary beneficiaries under the Trust. The Trust
was interested in 236,860,722 shares in the Company,
comprising (i) the 1,511,050 shares in the Company held by
the Trust and (i) the 235,349,672 shares in the Company
attributable to Luk Fook (Control) Limited. The Trust
indirectly controls over one-third of the voting power of Luk
Fook (Control) Limited (being approximately 46.29%) and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held by Luk
Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are directors of the Company.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the significant related party transactions are
disclosed as follows. The transactions with related parties
were conducted in the ordinary and usual course of
business in accordance with terms agreed between the
Group and its related parties.

R2021FE3B31H > KEBEME T —
REMEANBMNIRTRERE Z50%0H
IR1TE R B I #E(R1,075,000,000
# 7T (20204 : 1,075,000,0007T) ©
R2021E38381H BE AT EEA
R1TRRE491,486,000,0005 75 (2020
£ 11,678,000,000%7T) » UEBEEH
$R1T1ER764,725,000 75 (20204
851,812,000 1) 1EHEIF o

FR2021FE3831H » ZEBEIRIEE B
REEAFOFRIBET 2 FEIEERIEE
TUFE SR 5 R B 15520,000,0007% 7T ( 2020
F ) o

ERBZEERERNE (ER) BR
AE (TREBER) » BIRRBERRE
EEMRIZAR  BEREREEARLE
40.09% & 17 &= A B &R T IR0 0 BUFF
Ao

BERBRERERRE LT AThe WS
WONG Family Trust (T{E5E1) BIAIHEA
RETN -BRBEHRE - BERBL LT HE
ERAEREHSELAREINEES
m A S5EHEE A2 5)236,860,722% I
MHER BREOEINEAATFEZ
1,511,0500% B 15 K (i) /5@ (ZRR) BIRA
TIFE(E 2 A A F)235,349,67288 f& 17 o 5
SEREEIESNE (ER) BRABBE=
Dz —RERE (AN4946.29%) » I AL
BARNE R BRABNRAAEF
BRI EEED -

HREAE RARALERERF/NE
\RERBESE-

PRz M B WRREMEBOPAIREE I
ERFABEAIRZKEBNT - HREEA
ITZRGPR—RREEEBBRETE
PR ERRE N T E ZFRET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

== A
ARaR

(a)

RSN
EE e
36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36 RIEALZRH @)
Significant related party transactions (a) EARAEALRS
Name Nature 2021 2020
%18 #E HK$’000 HK$'000
FT#ERT FERT
GS Tech Company Limited* License fees 919 1,108
T EEMERARAT) HETEER
Maintenance services fees 3,615 4,459
HERBEE
Rental income 167 167
HEWA
New Merit Corporation Limited* Interest expenses of lease liabilities 142 387
HEERZAREX
Addition of right-of-use assets - 8,706
NEFRAEEE
Luk Fook Financial Services Limited* Licensee fee 1,127 945
HETEER
China Gold Silver Group Company Limited Sales of goods 3,306 10,242
FEERERERAT HEGMD
Sales return (12,250) (10,463)
HERE
Purchases of goods 283 1,115
#®a
Rental income 4,103 4,556
HEWA
Licensing fee income/(refund) 113 9
miEEBERBA RE)
Interest income on the loan to - 792
an associate (Note 10)
ERT—REERABTZFE
WA (FEE10)
Luk Fook Diamond Company Limited” Subcontracting fee paid 1,402 8,084
NEEABRAR BNNBER
Management fee income 199 619
BEERA
Rental income 122 373

HEWA

# The company is 92% owned by a family trust of which Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung and his family members are discretionary

beneficiaries.

* The company is jointly controlled by Mr. WONG Wai Sheung

and other two independent third parties.

The amounts represent the transactions with the Group before

the step acquisition of a subsidiary on 31 July 2020 (Note 38).

# =

NEHRZ%EEHERELERE
FERERE2REHEAZRIKEST
=)

o

O

* e

RS

NEHEREBERERBIRLE

V= SRR e

A ZELTEAN2020FE7TE31AE S K
BE—RXMBATRAAERETH
X5 (MI5E38) ©
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
borrowed physical gold of 300 kilograms (2020:
300 kilograms) amounting to approximately
HK$136,424,000 (2020: HK$113,762,000) with
interest bearing at 0.60% — 0.65% (2020: 0.60%) per
annum from a director. Such borrowings were fully
settled on 31 March 2021 and the related interest
expense on gold loans of HK$603,000 (2020:
HK$174,000) is included in finance costs, net (Note
10).

Amount due from an associate

(Note 19(i) (MF=E19())
Amount due to an associate R —REE R
(Note 19(i) (MFEE19())
Rental deposit received B—xE=ZEAEIWEZ
from an associate MHeZs
Rental deposit related to ER—2BEAL
a related party Z2HEEE
Lease liabilities related to BRE—%BEEAL

a related party ZHESE

Key management includes directors (executive
and non-executive) and senior management of the
Group. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:

Salaries, allowances and
benefits-in-kinds

Performance and discretionary
bonuses

Contributions to pension plan

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

eI — B E A B ARIE

#E o R MBI m@

BRBERBEE WAL

RN 5T R

HZE2021FE3R31HLEEFE K
ERR—REETEAEYES
300AFr (20204 : 300Qfr)
S EB454136,424,000% 75 (2020
£ 1 113,762,0005 77) * REFK
0.60%%E0.65% (20204 : 0.60%)
SR ZBEDMN202143831H
BYEERESEEEENER
603,000/ 7T (20204 : 174,000
B st AMBEER B8 (s
10) ©

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
769 1,372

- (20)

877 807
2,550 2,550
925 8,483

TEEEBORAEERES 1T
RIFATEE) heREEAE-
MEESRBENHECTEIEZEE
BzBiE=wmT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAERT FHET
43,932 54,154
26,359 22,440
597 597
70,888 77,191



At 31 March 2021, the Company had the following principal F202143831H KRBz FEME A

subsidiaries: BT
Proportion of
ordinary
Particulars of shares
Place of issued share Proportion of held by non-
incorporation/  Principal capital/registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  activities capital held by the Company interests
32000 4
0T ATYe BRTRE/ Fiis & &R
& FRLst 8 TELEH EMESHE  SAFAMGEERA i}
Directly Indirectly
B i
Luk Fook Investment (B.V.L) Limited ~ The BVI Investment holding HK$2 100 - -
HBETIREE REER 2B
China Gems Laboratory Limited Hong Kong Authentication of gemstones HK$2 - 100 -
PEKEEEFOERAR % BREE 2B
Fancy Trend Investment Limited Hong Kong Property holding HK$12,100 N 100 N
RIEREBRAT &5 RENE 12,100%7¢
Ice Collection (International) Limited ~ Hong Kong Retalling of gold and jewellery HK$100 - 100 -
*Z EEB) BRAR FE products 1008 7T
SHGEERTEER
Jewellworld.com Limited The BVI Investment holding, and HK$8,000,000 - 51 49
EtRBVI)ERAT HBHBREE  provision of software 8,000,0007¢
development and services
relating to internet
RERR RERMEER
= B RAIERERE
Jewellworld.com Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, and HK$100 - 51 49
LEMR &R BRAF EH provision of software 1008 7T
development and services
relating to internet
RERR REREHE RN
S HEEERERE
Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited Hong Kong Gold bullion trading HK$14,000,000 - 100 -
NEERBRAR % BEATR 14,000,000 7T
Luk Fook Holdings Company Limited  Hong Kong Provision of management HKS$2 N 100 N
NBEEERAT N services to group companies 28T

and wholesale distribution of

gold and jewellery products
RUEEERBTERLDR

HESERERKEER
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Name

418

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Australia) Pty Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(HK) Company Limited
NERERT (B BRAA

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Macao) Company Limited
NERE ST (RPY) BRAR

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Canada) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Singapore) Pte. Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(USA) Company Limited

Luk Fook 3D Management
Company Limited
B DEEARAT

Max Forum Development Limited

HEERARAT

Maxigood Enterprises Limited

BRELEERAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

e,
AR

Australia
S

Hong Kong
B

Macau
i

Canada

MEXR

Singapore

i

USA
ESEl

The BVI
RREARANE

Hong Kong
&8

Hong Kong
B

Principal
activities

TREH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Australia
RENtEEERHKEER

DEER

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products

BEERHEERTEER

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Macau

RRFREEERGEER
TEER

Retalling of gold and jewellery
products in Canada

RNEAREESRSGEER
DELH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Singapore

Rt SR RAEER
DELH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in USA

REEHEEERHKEER
DELH

Investment holding

REZR

Property holding
RENZE

Manufacturing and wholesale
distribution of jewellery
products

RERMEDHHREER

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital

BEfTks/
AMERHE

AU$100,000
100,000 7T

HK$100
1007

MOP1,000,000
1,000,000:2F9 7%

CAS$100
100MEATT

$81,000,000

1,000,000 N3 7T

UsD100
100%7T

HK$1
187

HK$100
100%7T

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000 7%

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Proportion of
ordinary shares

held by the Company
AT ERLA

Directly Indirectly

Hi R

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
FEERR S
FrisEiEmR
i ]



Name

418

ENNBERERAD:

ANERE 0im) BRAE+

NEREEN EB) AR

>

A+

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

e,
AR

PRC
R

PRC
#

PRC
#

PRC
R

PRC
#

PRC
R

PRC
#

Particulars of
issued share

Principal capital/registered
activities capital
BR{THRE/
TEEH MBS
Property holding in PRC HK$35,000,000
UNGEESZEEYES 35,000,000 7T
Wholesale of polished diamond USD200,000
in PRC 200,000% 7%
KRB ECTEZ#R
Retailing of gold and jewellery HK$29,750,000
products in Beiiing, PRC 29,750,000/ 7%
RPELRIEEETR
GLEERTELH
Trademark licensing, brand HK$2,000,000
building and promotion 2,000,0007T
in PRC
NETETE RSB
BlERIERRIE
Trademark licensing, brand HK$8,000,000
building and promotion 8,000,000
in PRC
RPEREEHRER
EERIERRIE
Manufacturing, wholesale of gold ~ HK$50,000,000
and jewellery products in PRC 50,000,000 7t
RPERERER
HESERKEER
Retalling of gold and jewellery HK$50,000,000
products in PRC 50,000,000/ 7%
RAEftERER
GLEERTELH

Proportion of

ordinary shares
held by the Company
AT ERLA
Directly Indirectly
Hi R
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
FEERR S
FrisEiEmR
i ]
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Name

BERUERKEMIARAT+

EEHUERFERHARAG

EM A BREGERRAT

REAEHRERRAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

e,
AR

PRC
R

PRC
#

PRC
R

PRC
#

PRC
f

PRC
H

PRC
#

Particulars of
issued share

Principal capital/registered
activities capital
BR{THRE/
TEEH MBS
Trademark licensing, brand HK$3,000,000
building, promotion 3,000,0007T
and provision of quality
examination services in PRC
RPEEEFHREE
BERIERREUR
B SET RS
Manufacturing of gold products RMB5,000,000
in PRC AE5,000,0007
RPEREREER
Wholesale of polished diamond RMB10,000,000
and jewellery products in PRC AR
KRR EETEERR 10,000,007
HEER
Manufacturing, wholesale of gold ~ RMB65,500,000
and jewellery products in PRC AR
RAERERER 65,500,0007T
HESERAEER
Manufacturing of gold products RMB5,000,000
in PRC AE5,000,0007
RAERESSER
Retalling of gold and jewellery RMB5,000,000
products in PRC AR 5,000,000
RPEREEER
BERTELR
Electronic retailing of gold and RMB5,000,000
jewellery products in PRC AE5,000,00075

NGBl
HKEERETTERS

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company
AT ERLA
Directly Indirectly
Hi R
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
FEERR S
FrisEiEmR
i ]



Name

418

Luk Fook Prestige (Malaysia) SDN.
BHD.

Luk Fook Prestige Jewellery
Company Limited
NELTHEERAG

EETRREFERAT

EETRYESERAR

alf

EETRBEZBRAR

EETATEEZARR

e

EETRBEZBRAR

EETEREFBRAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

e,
AR

Malaysia

BRAR

Hong Kong
B

PRC
e

PRC
e

PRC
HE

PRC
HE

PRC
e

PRC
e

PRC
HE

PRC
HE

Principal
activities

TREH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Malaysia

RERBSHEEER
GEERTEER

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Hong Kong
REBRERERAEER

TELH

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Property holding in PRC
UNaIEESEEEYES

Property holding in PRC
RPESENE

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Property holding in PRC
UNaEESEEEYES

Property holding in PRC
RPESENE

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital

BEfTks/
AMERHE

MYR2,000,000
2,000,000
BREZCE

HK$30,000,000
30,000,000 7%

RMB1,000,000
A #1,000,0007T

RMB1,000,000
AR #1,000,0007T

RMB1,000,000
AE#1,000,00070

RMB1,000,000
A #1,000,0007T

RMB1,000,000
A #1,000,0007T

RMB1,000,000
AR #1,000,0007T

RMB1,000,000
AE#1,000,00070

RMB1,000,000
A 1,000,0007T

Proportion of
ordinary shares

held by the Company
AT ERLA

Directly Indirectly

Hi R

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
FEERR S
FrisEiEmR
i ]
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Name

418

Bright Billion Corporation Limited

EETARAR

Green Rich Corporation Limited

ERARAF

Talent Up Corporation Limited

H2ERAE

Ultra Power Corporation Limited

HEEBRAT

NEHRE ([@%) BRA

ENHERHEHREAERAT

ENEHENEHRAFRAT

Luk Fook Diamond Limited Company

ANEEAERAF

ol

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

e,
AR

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
X

Hong Kong
e

PRC
#

PRC
T

PRC
#

Hong Kong
B

Principal
activities

TREH

Property holding in Hong Kong

REBRANE

Property holding in Hong Kong

REBRANE

Property holding in Hong Kong

RERRAENE

Property holding in Hong Kong

REBRANE

Trademark licensing brand
building and promotion
in PRC

RPEREEHRER
EERIERRIE

Trademark licensing brand
building and promotion
in PRC

NETRETE RSB
BlERIERRIE

Trademark licensing brand
building and promotion
in PRC

RPEREHRER
EERIERRIE

Manufacturing of diamond
products in PRC
RAEREERER

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital

BEfTks/
AMERHE

HK$100

1007

HK$100
100/87C

HK$100
100%7T

HK$100
100/87C

RMB1,000,000
A #1,000,0007T

RMB1,000,000
AR 1,000,007

RMB1,000,000
A #1,000,0007T

HK$6,120,000
6,120,00077C

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company
AT ERLA
Directly Indirectly
Hi R
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
FEERR S
FrisEiEmR
i ]



Place of
incorporation/  Principal

Name establishment  activities
B3 1AV

B2t BRIt TEEH

Green Rich (Macao) Limited Macau Property holding in Macau
R REMRFENE

Talent Up (Macao) Limited Macau Property holding in Macau
g RRAMFHENE

Ultra Power (Macao) Limited Macau Property holding in Macau
R NEIREEREEYE S

FmZEHEZERAR PRC Property holding in PRC
FE RAERENE

FMEBEZERAR PRC Property holding in PRC
FE RPERFENE

+ The subsidiaries are established as wholly foreign-owned enterprises

in PRC.

Unless otherwise stated, all the above companies operate
principally in Hong Kong.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group re-assessed whether the
subsidiaries with non-controlling interests are considered
material to the Group based on their relative size in terms
of total assets, total liabilities and profit/(loss) before
income tax, and considered that they are not material, and
accordingly, the summarised unaudited financial information
of these subsidiaries are considered not necessary.

Proportion of

ordinary
Particulars of shares
issued share Proportion of held by non-
capital/registered ordinary shares controlling
capital held by the Company interests
FEERR S
BR{THRE/ FRiFE B
AMESHE  SARMEEERLA i ]
Directly Indirectly
Hi R
MOP25,000 - 100 -
25,0002 7%
MOP25,000 - 100 -
25,0002 7T
MOP25,000 - 100 -
25,0008 7t
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -
AE1,000,00075
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -

A #1,000,0007T

+ ZEMBABBNPEMILZ ZIERE-

MRRAMRBEN LHFAERRNHEE
REBEEXEE

EERR LRAVNERBMBABEE
BHAFEXEBRTENBHLTE
BEEFEZIEHD EFRR R
HEMMNBARNZHBEELERBRT
Eo

[R202163A31H » ZEBERIEMER JFE
REDZZNBARZEERE BFERQ
BERFRFTISMATER] (B518) ZEHR
B BN LRENBRARHAERT
EREBER UIRBELREK
At ZEMBRBZREELMBE
FHREZ AR A2
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On 31 July 2020, the Group acquired the remaining 50%
equity interest in Luk Fook Diamond Limited Company (“Luk
Fook Diamond”) at a consideration of HK$2,634,000. Luk
Fook Diamond was an associate of the Group in which the
Group had 50% equity interest, and it is mainly engaged
in manufacturing of diamond products in Mainland. Upon
completion of the transaction, Luk Fook Diamond becomes
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for
Luk Fook Diamond and the amounts of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed recognised at the acquisition date.

(@) Details of purchase consideration in cash, net assets
acquired and gains/(losses) on step acquisition
recognised in the business combination are as
follows:

Total purchase consideration in cash

Add: Estimated fair value of previously held interest
before acquisition date (Note 19)

Less: Recognised amounts of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at fair value

Property, plant and equipment (Note 16)
Inventories

Trade receivables

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits

Cash and cash equivalents
Other payables and accruals

Net identifiable assets acquired

No gains/(losses) recognised in the business
combination

R2020FE7H31H » KEB WS /<@
GER2E (@A) 2 T50%MK
#5518 %42,634,0008 75 NEBEL S
AEBNHME D AEEBRETHS
50%RfE > W E B AN EEEER
ER-RRERME  NEEANAK
EE2ERBAR

TRBAARBEL BN ZRERIRU
BORIZEWNBEEREREAR
ZEHe

@ REBEAB BDWREEEFE
RIEBGHERZE S W
i,/ (B538) s¥BI T ¢

HK$’'000
FET
HMIBEEENE 2,634
n o RUREE B ERRT Z RIS A
Hmz st AnE (s
19) 2,634
5,268
TR A ERERS B U EE BT
MNEEKREREEES
%8
YR kB (HEE16) 3,127
T8 3,808
B 5 EWERTE 320
HhEURERIE  F{I =18
ks 220
BERIBEEBEY 2,502
HAE BRI K BT RIE (4,709)
BWER# A EEFE 5,268

RPN ER S DR,
(8518)

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



(b)

Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in (b)

respect of the step acquisition

Cash flow in relation to the acquisition,
net of cash acquired
— cash consideration
— cash and cash equivalents in a subsidiary
acquired

Net cash outflow on step acquisition

ERZTWBEZRERFEEE
YRR

(c) Revenue and loss contribution

The acquired business contributed revenue of
HK$7,336,000 and net loss of HK$3,372,000 to
the Group for the period from 1 August 2020 to
31 March 2021. If the acquisition had occurred
on 1 April 2020, consolidated pro-forma revenue
and consolidated profit for the year would have
been HK$8,862,729,000 and HK$1,016,019,000,
respectively.

On 30 June 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement and completed the disposal of its
interests in a non-wholly owned subsidiary, namely EE
REREEMAR AT (“4BFE") at a cash consideration
of RMB30,850,000 (equivalent to HK$34,922,000) to the
non-controlling shareholder, which is also a licensee of the
Group. The principal activity of the subsidiary is retailing of
gold and jewellery products in Mainland.

HK$’000
FET
BRKEZIRERE Nk
BWEIRS
—RERE (2,634)
—BlRE—XMBATZ
B MIEEEY 2,502
ZHWEZ IR R R (132)

© WEKEEER

H2020E881HE20214&E3R
STHHE FMEEERAE
B SR Uz7,336,0008 T &
E518 73 83,372,000 75 o fH Uk
BER2020F481HEBE 4% &F
NGEeaBETRakizanff
DB %48,862,729,000% 7T K&
1,016,019,00078 7z

7220204663300 » AEE T I BE Btk
REMHER—RIELENELE (B
EEREKEEMARLARE (EFE)))
CHERFIEZERRE (TAREERT R
W) - IREREA ARTE30,850,0007T
(1B E7234,922,000787T) - ZM B AT
PEEERAPAMTEZS RKEE

0
aon °
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Details of net assets disposed and loss on disposal of a
subsidiary recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income are as follows:

Total disposal consideration (Note)

Less: Disposed amounts of net assets
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16)
Inventories

Trade receivables

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits

Cash and cash equivalents
Other payables to the Group (Note)

Other payables and accruals
Dividend payables to the Group (Note)
Dividend payables to non-controlling interests

Net assets disposed

Release of exchange reserve upon disposal
Release of non-controlling interests upon disposal

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 9)

Note:

Upon the disposal of a subsidiary, the Group classified the consideration
receivables, other receivables and dividend receivables as “Other receivables
arose from disposal of a subsidiary” and included in “Deposits, prepayment
and other receivables” (Note 22) on the consolidated balance shest. Such
receivable balances are repayable in 5 years by semi-annual instalments,
interest bearing at 5.50% per annum and secured by certain types of
collaterals.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the

BHEBEEFEMRGEEEEBARE
BREZHE—HKNBAREREZFBN

T

30 June 2020

20204

68 30H

HK$’000

FET

HERBELRZE (D 33,565

B EBEHEEEFESRE

Yz BB R E (I5E16) 3,803

78 81,746

B 5 ERERIE 15,950
HhEUERIE TR IB K&

& 59,387
BEMIREEEBEY 32,148
FEAT A5 B 2 EhERIE (Ft

E) (80,482)
HhERIB R ET A (22,177)
ENEERZKRE (T:H) (10,992
RS IEIERER IR E (10,576)
EHEBEFRE 68,807
B H B B R Bk B S e (1,489)
P E R ERIEER R (33,554)

HE—XWB AT ZEIE
(MF£9) (199)

B 5E

RHE—RNBAR®R  AEBEREKRAE Hi
BURRERERRENGEEEABERADER
THE—RMBLAREE 2 HMEIERIA) > Tt A
M2 FANTERAEMEWERE (f5522) - &%
FEUERIBAE R BN F N U S F E D BHIREE 12
FHZ5.50%5T 2 e LUE FERRI 2 SR @ EHE IR

ERRE—RWBRARZRERRSEEYRLF

disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: BOMAT

2021
HK$'000
FAET
Consideration received BHE -
Cash and bank balances disposed of BHEZIRE MIRITAR (32,148)

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of BRPE—FRWBABZREK
the disposal of a subsidiary ReLEYR 3% (32,148)

The consideration of HK$33,565,000 was determined after
arm’s length negotiations between the Group and the non-
controlling shareholder.

833,565,000/ 775 A< & (B £ 3R 1
RIRRAE N PIEEHREE
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2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
ASSETS B'E
Non-current asset ERHEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B AT 2 Em 3,138,225 3,138,225
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR I B A B BRIE 1,318,743 3,170,439
Deposits, prepayment and other deposits %<~ FETRIE K
Hithizs 94 75
Cash and bank balances RE& MIRTTAE R 89,915 126,376
1,408,752 3,296,890
Total assets HEE 4,546,977 6,435,115
EQUITY K=
Capital and reserve attributable to the ZRQF)EHIFHA
equity holders of the Company FE B AR
Share capital (&N 58,710 58,710
Share premium B i@ B 2,494,040 2,494,040
Reserves (Note (1)) R (EEE)) 1,362,641 1,053,250
3,915,391 3,606,000
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities Pk i =i
Accruals FEETFRIA 1,984 1,229
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI EVNCIE S 10,847 1,867,333
Bank borrowings RITE® 350,000 758,000
Gold loans =2EBE 268,755 202,553
631,586 2,829,115
Total equity and liabilities Em B E4EEE 4,546,977 6,435,115
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the KRB EEEBERITBEEZTZN20214F
Board of Directors on 24 June 2021 and was signed on its 6R24AHLEM AR A EERKRE
behalf by the following directors:
Wong Wai Sheung Chan So Kuen
=HES FREIE
Director Director
o EF
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Note:

Contributed
surplus
BHRR
HK$’000
FTERT
For the year ended #HE2021E3831H
31 March 2021 ILEFE
At 1 April 2020 FR2020F481H 298,687
Profit for the year FRRF =
2019/20 final dividend paid ~~ B1J2019/205 2
REKE
2020/21 interim dividend paid ~ B142020/21E &
HEARR B
2020/21 special dividend paid  B{32020/215F E
R &
At 31 March 2021 R202143H831H 298,687
Representing: 15
Reserves (excluded proposed s (REIIERIKIRE)
dividend) 298,687
Proposed final dividend BICREARR 2 -
Proposed special dividend BRI 2
At 31 March 2021 120214383180 298,687
For the year ended #H 202038310
31 March 2020 IEEFE
At 1 April 2019 FR2019F481H 298,687
Profit for the year FRNEF -
2018/19 final dividend paid =~ B{12018/19FE
KRB
2019/20 interim dividend paid B {J2019/20E &
REARS S
At 31 March 2020 R202043H831H 298,687
Representing: 15
Reserves (excluded proposed i (FEIERREE)
dividend) 298,687
Proposed dividend RERE -
At 31 March 2020 R202043H831H 298,687

Note:

U
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The reserves movement of the Company is as follows:

The reserves movement of the Company is as follows: (Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
in exchange for all the issued ordinary shares of Luk Fook
Investment (B.V.l.) Limited and the value of net assets of the
underlying subsidiaries acquired by the Company during the
Group’s reorganisation in 1997. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is distributable to the
shareholders, provided that the Company would, after the payment of
dividends out of the contributed surplus, be able to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby not be less than the aggregate of its liabilities, its
issued share capital and its share premium. At the Group level, the
contributed surplus is reclassified into its component of reserves of
the underlying subsidiaries.

MI5E

) RABEEEBUT
Capital
redemption Retained

i reserve earnings Total
BXEEGHE REEH ik
HK$’0(£J HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0
TAET THERT THERT

200 754,363 1,053,250

- 896,499 896,499
- (293,554) (293,554)
- (132,099) (132,099)
- (161,455) (161,455)

200 1,063,754 1,362,641

200 476,646 775,533

- 293,554 293,554

- 293,554 293,554

200 1,063,754 1,362,641

200 802,276 1,101,163

- 597,906 597,906
- (352,265) (352,265)
- (293,554) (293,554)

200 754,363 1,063,250

200 460,809 759,696

- 293,554 293,554

200 754,363 1,063,250

T -

EABRBELBUWT : (@

NAT 2 BREBERIEARA B AR HLuk Fook
Investment (B.V.l.) LimitedZ® % &2 3 17E @&
METIN 2 BEHRA AT 1997 F R EE
BAREPMERRANE A 2 EEFER
EZEB - RBEERE(IBIEQTE) &
EE]) » BRBRERAKE TRE EEAABE
BREBHKMRER BENRESEISHRS
JE% ; AEAB 2 EENSRERIERY
DREGH HERTRARERGREZ
BH-MAEBMERMS > LEBREREN
DEASHEANB AR ZRESD
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Citibank, N.A. Hong Kong Branch

Ocorian Management (Bermuda) Limited
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Wanchai, Hong Kong

BTES:

EREBRE EERITHABR)

BmELE (FFE)
TR+
=l =Reann
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LUK FOOK HOLDINGS (INTERNATIONAL ) LIMITED

HARM A AR BE2EIEES27IE
Floor 27, Metropole Square, No.2 On Yiu Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel : (852) 2308 1218 Fax : (852) 2374 1696
Website : lukfook.com
E-mail : group@lukfook.com
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